
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor John Anderson 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
Councilmember Michelle Cordes 
Councilmember Judy Hughes 
 
 
Tuesday, September 8, 2020 
  

Florence Town Hall 
775 N. Main Street 

Florence, AZ 85132 
(520) 868-7500 

www.florenceaz.gov 
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays 

 
 

6:00 PM 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Tuesday, 
September 8, 2020, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main 
Street, Florence, Arizona.   
 

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
Due to the risks to public health caused by the possible spread of the COVID-19 virus at public 
gatherings, the Town of Florence has determined that public meetings will be indefinitely held 
through technological means.  Meetings will be open to the public through technological means. 
In reliance on, and in compliance with, the March 13, 2020 Opinion issued by Attorney General 
Mark Brnovich, and in conjunction with the Emergency Proclamation signed by Mayor Tara 
Walter, on March 18, 2020.  The Town of Florence provides this special advance notice of the 
technological means through which public meetings may be accessed.  While this special notice 
is in effect, public comment at meetings will only be accepted through written submissions, which 
may or may not be read aloud during meetings.  
 
To attend the meeting noticed below by technological means, members of the public may: 
 

1. Watch Live:   
 

YouTube Live    
FlorenceAZ.gov/tv 
Locally on Cox TV Channel 11 
 

2. Join virtually using the link below:  
 

Join via ZOOM 
 
3. To call in and listen, please dial: 
 

Telephone: (346) 248 7799 or (669) 900 6833 
Webinar ID: 815 2259 9421 
Passcode: 280709 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBTvt8ya3WqI-siUct1vQzQ/live
http://www.florenceaz.gov/tv
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81525599421?pwd=T0NoVDBDWVBIZ0lOTkVHUnBHeW9TZz09


Members of the public may submit written comments relating to this meeting to Town Clerk Lisa 
Garcia by emailing lisa.garcia@florenceaz.gov at any time until one hour prior to the posted start 
time for the meeting.  Please be sure to include your name and address for the record as well as 
the meeting date (and Agenda Item #, if applicable) in the subject of your email. 
 
If any member of the public has difficulty connecting to the meeting, they are invited to contact 
the Town of Florence Information Technology Helpdesk at (520) 868-7543. 
The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
  
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle  

 Cordes, Judy Hughes 
     

3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  Council 
rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism 
made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be 
put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any 
matter during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and 
legal action. 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS 
 

a. Presentation of the 60% Design Development Documents for Poston Butte Preserve by 
J2. (Hezekiah Allen) 

 
b. Recognition in honor of Lieutenant Terry Tryon retiring from the Town of Florence after 

serving over 30 years in law enforcement.  (Bruce Walls) 
 

7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Adoption of Resolution No. 1748-20:  A Resolution of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 

Arizona, approving and designating, Town Manager Brent Billingsley to act as applicant 
agent between the Town of Florence and the Arizona Department of Emergency and 
Military Affairs.   (Rebecca Jimenez)  
 

b. Approval of the Programmatic Agreement and the Historic Properties Treatment Plan 
between the Town of Florence, Bureau of Land Management, and the State Historic 
Preservation Office for the Poston Butte Preserve Project. (Hezekiah Allen) 

 
c. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending July 31, 2020, in the amount of 

$5,002,399.90. (Rebecca Jimenez)  
 

mailto:lisa.garcia@florenceaz.gov
mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Florence Returning Stronger Grant Program. (Ben 
Bitter) 

b. Ordinance No. 686-20: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING SECTION 96.43, 
STREET LIGHTING; REQUIREMENTS; IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS. (Reading 
November 18, 2019 and March 16, 2020) (Lisa Garcia)  

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to accept Andrea L. Hild’s resignation from the 
Community Services Advisory Board. (Hezekiah Allen) 
 

b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a contract with Cactus Asphalt (dba: Cactus 
Transport Inc.) for asphalt maintenance and repair services, in an amount not to exceed 
$403,602.99, which includes a 15% contingency. (Chris Salas) 

 
c. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of ratifying a Lease Agreement with Pinal County for use 

of the Florence Community Center as a Florence location for COVID-19 testing. (Brent 
Billingsley)   
 

d. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to lease 17 vehicles with Enterprise Fleet Management, 
in an amount not to exceed $300,000. (Chris Salas) 
 

10. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

11. DEPARTMENT REPORTS   
a. Community Development 
b. Community Services 
c. Courts 
d. Finance 
e. Fire 
f. Police 
g. Public Works 

 
12. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
13. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY  

 
14. ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public 
body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(1), (A)(3) and (A)(4)   to 
consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 

 
i. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys on the Rules of Procedure of Town Council.  
ii. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding request for proposals issued for 

rental space in Town facilities.   

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



iii. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa County 
Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015-000325, including 
counterclaims. 

iv. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case No. 
16-002, including appellate proceedings to reviewing courts.  

 
15. ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
 

16. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of obtaining 
legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3).  One or more members of Council may appear for part or all of the meeting including 
Executive Session telephonically.  
 
POSTED ON SEPTEMBER 3, 2020, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR 711 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE 
MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  

http://www.florenceaz.gov/


  

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
6a.   

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Hezekiah Allen,  
                                      Community Services Director 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject:  J2 Presentation Poston Butte Preserve  Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
SUBJECT: Presentation of the 60% Design Development 

Documents for Poston Butte Preserve by J2

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
 Presentation by J2 on the 60% Design Development Documents for Poston Butte 
Preserve.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Poston Butte is the approximately 160-acre parcel acquired from the Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM) through the Recreation and Public Purposes Act.  The original patent 
was given to the Pinal County Historical Society in 1964.  The patent, with BLM approval, 
was transferred from the Pinal County Historical Society to the Town of Florence in 2006. 
 
The Town applied for an additional 200+ acres from BLM adjacent to the original patented 
land to expand for recreational use.  The primary use would be open space trails and 
passive programming for outdoor recreation, along with a restroom/classroom building 
and vehicular parking for approximately 100 vehicles. 
 
On December 6, 2019, the Town entered into an agreement with J2 Engineering and 
Environment Design for the Poston Butte Open Space and Trails Development (POC-
31). As a part of their outlined scope J2 will be presenting their current design set to 
Council.  
 

 



Subject:  J2 Presentation Poston Butte Preserve  Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

No vote is requested. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

No vote is requested.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Capital item was already allocated within the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budget.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
J2 Presentation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Town of Florence
Council Presentation

September 8, 2020

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 1



Legend
Existing Trail to Remain

New Trail
Existing Pedestrian Only Trail

Re-vegetate trail
New Fence
Remove Fence
Access Point

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 2

1 1 1 1

5

2 2 2

6

3 3

7

4

8

0’ 100’ 200’ 400’

Hunt Highway
Copper Basin Rail Road

Property Line

Overhead Power Easement, Typ.

1

3

8

Bus Parking Lot

Automobile Parking Lot

5

6

7

4

Rail Road Right-of-Way, Typ.

Charles D. 
Poston Tomb 

Property Line

Property Line

Property Line

Property Line

2 Trail Rest Node

Trail Rest Node



Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 3

0’ 40’ 80’ 160’

Bus Parking Lot

Property Line

Overhead Power Easement, Typ.

Automobile Parking Lot

Entry

Box Culvert Wash Crossing

Box Culvert Wash Crossing
Retaining Wall, Typ.

Retaining Wall, Typ.

This Location

Poston Butte

Hunt Highway

Copper Basin Rail Road

Existing Trail, Typ.

Pipe Culvert Crossing

Trailhead Facilities Enlargement



face mounted back mountedsingly in multiples 

graphic panel

priceless resourcepricelespp

BEAUTIFUL LAND
essetial to life

People & the Land 

photos a
nd ill

ustr
ati

ons

preservation & understandingexpansion and growth

photos a
nd illu

stra
tio

ns

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 4

Trail Rest Node Concept

0’ 10’ 20’ 40’

Automobile Parking Lot

Pedestrian Bridge

Poston’s Tomb

Rest Node

Turnaround

Rest Node



Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 5

Automobile Parking Enlargement

0’ 15’ 30’ 60’

Access Road

Earthen Trail

Refuse Enclosure

Drop-Off Area

Pedestrian Bridge

Restroom

Classroom

Accessible Parking

Rest Node

Sidewalk, Typ.

Turnaround



Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 6

Restroom / Classroom Enlargement

0’ 2.5’ 5’ 10’

View to Butte

Restroom

Classroom

Plaza Space

Concrete Seatwalls & Retaining Walls, Typ.

Trash/Recycle Center, Typ.

Gabion Retaining Wall, Typ.

Bike Rack

Accessible Parking

Decorative Paving, Typ.

Area Light

Roof Line, Typ.

Parking Lot

Pet Waste Station



AE
L 

48

AE
L 

48

AE
L 

48

AE
L 

48

AE
L 

48

AE
L 

48

AE
L 

48

AE
L 

48

AE
L 

48

AE
L 

48

AEL 12

AEL 12

AEL 12

AEL 12

AEL 12

north

0'
1'

4

D R RE SH

DE
S

DR
AW

N 
BY

:

-W
AR

NIN
G

w
w

w
.rj

a-
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

e.
c

W
om

en

Ch
as

e

M
en

Cl
as

sr
oo

m

O
ffi

ce

St
or

ag
e

Pa
tio

Pa
tio

LE
D 

FI
XT

UR
ES

 P
ER

LI
G

HT
IN

G
 P

LA
N

SP
LI

T 
SY

ST
EM

 -

CO
ND

EN
SI

NG
 U

NI
T

SP
LI

T 
SY

ST
EM

 - 
AI

R
HA

ND
LE

R 
-

SU
SP

EN
DE

D 
FR

O
M

CE
IL

IN
G

B

preliminary notf

A2
.0B

A2
.0D

A2
.0D

A2
.0B

A2
.0A

A2
.0A

A2
.0E

A2
.0E

rc
p 

- b
ui

ld
in

gs
CA

LE
:  

1/
4"

 =
 1

'-0
"

9
A6

.0

3
A6

.0

4
A6

.0

1
A6

.0
2

A6
.0

6
A6

.0

4
A6

.0

10
A6

.0

3
A6

.0

4
A6

.0

5
A6

.0

10
A6

.0
5

A6
.0

10
A6

.0
5

A6
.0

sim
.

1
A6

.0

FL
O

AT
IN

G
 2

' x
 2

' S
US

PE
ND

ED

CE
IL

IN
G

 G
RI

D 
SY

ST
EM

LE
D 

FI
XT

UR
ES

 P
ER

LI
G

HT
IN

G
 P

LA
N

LE
D 

FI
XT

UR
ES

 P
ER

LI
G

HT
IN

G
 P

LA
N

LE
D 

FI
XT

UR
ES

 P
ER

LI
G

HT
IN

G
 P

LA
N

EX
PO

SE
D 

G
AL

VA
NI

ZE
D 

ST
EE

L 
DE

CK
IN

G

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 7

View to Butte



Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 8

northeast classroom elevation

19
'-1

 1
/2

" b
ea

rin
g 

ce
nt

er

BATTERED CONCRETE/
STONE BUTTRESSES

VERTICAL METAL PANELS
(ON INSULATED METAL FRAMING)

12
'-8

 1
/2

" b
ea

rin
g 

ce
nt

er

104 201205

A2.0
D

8'
-4

" C
L 

fix
tu

re

Keymap

3

3

2

2

1



northwest elevation

9'
-1

 1
/2

"

HORIZONTAL BOARD-FORMED
CONCRETE WALLS

VERTICAL METAL PANELS
(ON INSULATED METAL FRAMING)

CORRUGATED METAL ROOF PANELS
(ON STEEL FRAMING)

202

PERFORATED PANELS

PERFORATED PANELS

VERTICAL METAL DECKING PANELS
(ON CONCRETE WALL RECESS)

A2.0
E

A2.0
C

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 9

Keymap

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

1



southwest elevation
203 204

VERTICAL METAL DECKING PANELS
(ON INSULATED METAL FRAMING)

A2.0
D

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 10

Keymap

1

2

2

2

3

3

4

4



southeast elevation

HORIZONTAL BOARD-FORMED
CONCRETE WALLS

VERTICAL PERFORATED METAL PANELS

HORIZONTAL BOARD-FORMED
CONCRETE WALLS

105

MULTI-SLIDE DOOR

VERTICAL METAL DECKING PANELS
(ON CONCRETE WALL RECESS)

A2.0
C

A2.0
E

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 11

Keymap

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4



south restroom  elevation

AEL 12

101 102

VERTICAL METAL DECKING PANELS
(ON CONCRETE WALL RECESS)A2.0

A

7'
-4

" C
L 

fix
tu

re

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 12

Keymap

1

2

2

3

3

4

4



east elevation

HORIZONTAL BOARD-FORMED
CONCRETE WALLS

WOVEN WIRE METAL VENT PANELS

VERTICAL METAL DECKING PANELS
(ON CONCRETE WALL RECESS)

A2.0
B

(west elevation sim. mirrored)

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 13

Keymap

1

2

2

3

3

4

4



north elevation
TAPERED CONCRETE WALLS

BATTERED STONE BUTTRESSES

MED

T PANELS

103

pr
el

im
in

a

A2.0
A

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 14

Keymap

1

2

2

3

3

4

4



Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 15

Keymap

Earthen Trail
Entry Gate

Decorative Paving, Typ.

Stack Stone Monument FeatureConcrete Board Form Wall

Monument, Typ.

This Location

CIP Wall, Typ.

Entry Enlargement
0’ 2.5’ 5’ 10’



Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 16



5’-6” - avg. eye ht. 
adult

3’-8”  - avg. eye ht.
6-9 ish yr. old

5’-6” - avg. eye ht. 
adult

3’-8”  - avg. eye ht.
6-9 ish yr. old

face mounted back mounted

Poston Butte Preserve
Interpretives and Signage Structure Concepts   A

A B

A

A

B

B

ra
ilr

o
ad

 p
o

w
er

lin
e 

lo
o

p
 -

 1
0

0
 m

ile
s 

ro
un

d
-t

ri
p

restrooms
classroom
patio
trailhead

bus parking
car parking
pick-up & 
drop-off
entry

 vehicular directional

trail markersflora, fauna, geology
trail details

trail vista interpretivespeople interpretives @ patio seat walls 
Poston Butte Preserve timeline

numbers                  on structure location plan

singly in multiples 

trail map & behavior expectationspedestrian directionalB C

E HF G

D

square raw steel uprights with
painted aluminum panels

raw steel framework with
natural elements cast in resin
and interpretive graphic panel

raw steel framework open to “view”
and interpretive graphic panel

arrow “coordinates”
for viewpoint location

graphic panel

1 2 3

priceless resourcepricelespp

BEAUTIFUL LAND
essetial to life

People & the Land 

photos a
nd ill

ustr
ati

ons

instructions for 
finding each
historic structure

brief narrative about each structure

an historic
VIEWversatile

AGAVE
blahblah

preservation & understandingexpansion and growth

photos a
nd illu

stra
tio

ns

numbers                 on 
structure location plan

7 8 9
numbers                 on 
structure location plan

4 5 6

breakformed raw steel panels
with flush, mechanical connections 
to concrete seat wall

raw steel panel structure with painted/applied vinyl 
directional panel overlay and exposed hardware

raw steel panel structure with raw steel 
framework over exterior graphic panels

trail map
SPONSORSHIP SPACE

trail etiquette

1. Fatback reprehenderit swine chicken pig aliqua beef lab.

2.  Dolore in esse chicken tongue jowl. 

3. Aliquip mollit capicola exercitation, prosciutto ullamco 
ipsum laboris chuck excepteur adipisicing ribeye do.

4. Laborum drumstick turducken hamburger aute nostrud 
magna ad ut mollit. Pork chop boudin short ribs ham eu.

5. irure capicola incididunt, doner shankle drumstick pork 
loin meatloaf. Tempor kevin ex proident ad aute prosciutto 
ball tip ut rump. Tri-tip pork aute porchetta esse.

powerline-railroad
xx miles - difficult

powerline - butte
xx miles - easy peasy xx miles - posh

railroad-powerline summit loop
xxx miles - holy cow

crosscut connector
xx miles - meh

flatland loop
xx miles - serene

summit connector
xx miles - jaunt

preserve rules

links

1. Spicy jalapeno bacon ipsum dolor 
amet corned beef est ea, hamburger nisi 
exercitation jerky porchetta enim sirloin.

2.  Magna qui beef ribs. Jerky pork belly 
ad shoulder. Andouille laboris dolore, 
doner dolor pariatur pork loin.

3.  Deserunt ullamco pig, capicola beef 
ribs pork chop veli. 

4.  Esse nostrud sirloin irure ipsum filet 
mignon bresaola burgdoggen, anim 
nulla beef tri-tip salami rump. 

5. Fatback reprehenderit swine chicken 
pig aliqua beef lab.

6.  Dolore in esse chicken tongue jowl. 

7. Aliquip mollit capicola exercitation, 
prosciutto ullamco ipsum laboris chuck 
excepteur adipisicing ribeye do.

H

G

G G G G

G

G

G

trail DIFFICULTY

you are HEREH
GATED connectionG

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 17



Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 18

Item # Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Extended Amount
GENERAL 

1 Construction Stakes, Lines and Grades and Asbuilts LS 1 50,109.49$             50,109.49$                                    

2 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, Maintenance and Permits LS 1 35,076.64$             35,076.64$                                    

3 Town of Florence Controlled Allowance AL 1 501,094.89$           501,094.89$                                 
4 Mobilization/Demobilization/General Conditions/Bonds LS 1 400,875.91$           400,875.91$                                 
5 Clear and Grub LS 1 40,087.59$             40,087.59$                                    
6 Hard Dig/Blasting Allowance AL 1 100,000.00$           100,000.00$                                 
7 Miscellaneous Salvage Allowance AL 1 15,000.00$             15,000.00$                                    

GRADING & PAVING
8 Earthwork CY 24,096 12.00$                    289,152.00$                                 

9 Asphalt Paving(3"AC /5"AB) Access Road, Bus Parking, and Drive 
Aisles

SY 20,104 32.00$                    643,328.00$                                 

10 Asphalt Paving(2"AC /4"AB) Parking Bays SY 2,095 27.00$                    56,565.00$                                    
11 Vertical Curb LF 2,894 20.00$                    57,880.00$                                    
12 Vertical Curb & Gutter LF 2,040 25.00$                    51,000.00$                                    
13 Ribbon Curb LF 481 30.00$                    14,430.00$                                    
14 Roll Curb LF 682 25.00$                    17,050.00$                                    
15 Sidewalk Ramp EA 12 2,200.00$               26,400.00$                                    
16 Detectable Warning Plate(Truncated Domes) SF 144 55.00$                    7,920.00$                                      
17 4" Striping(white)(Stop Bar) LF 164 0.50$                       82.00$                                           
18 4" Striping(yellow) LF 5,381 0.20$                       1,076.20$                                      
19 Fire Lane Striping LF 1,761 0.85$                       1,496.85$                                      
20 Handicap Symbol EA 4 50.00$                    200.00$                                         
21 Traffic Signs (Panel) SF 165 20.00$                    3,300.00$                                      
22 Traffic Signs (Post) LF 773 8.00$                       6,184.00$                                      
23 Traffic Signs (Foundation) EA 65 250.00$                  16,250.00$                                    
24 2' Wide Gabion Retaining Wall CY 15 450.00$                  6,750.00$                                      
25 3' Wide Gabion Retaining Wall CY 427 450.00$                  192,150.00$                                 
26 Concrete Retaining Wall LF 164 350.00$                  57,400.00$                                    
27 Fill in Existing Mine Pits and Seed CY 492 20.00$                    9,840.00$                                      

DRAINAGE & UTILITIES
28 24" RGRCP Pipe LF 228 80.00$                    18,240.00$                                    
29 6' x 5' Reinforced Concrete Box Culvert LF 143 420.00$                  60,060.00$                                    
30 ADOT SD 6.08 Headwall EA 4 5,500.00$               22,000.00$                                    
31 MAG 501-2 "L" Type Headwall EA 1 2,600.00$               2,600.00$                                      
32 MAG 501-2 "U" Type Headwall EA 1 2,900.00$               2,900.00$                                      
33 MAG 501-5 Drop Inlet Headwall EA 1 4,000.00$               4,000.00$                                      
34 MAG 535 Inlet with Orifice EA 2 3,800.00$               7,600.00$                                      
35 Rip Rap CY 203 150.00$                  30,450.00$                                    
36 Connect to Existing Water Tee LS 1 4,000.00$               4,000.00$                                      
37 8" Dia.PVC(C-900, CL 235) LF 3,075 60.00$                    184,500.00$                                 
38 8" Gate Valve,Box and Cover, per MAG Std Dtl 391-1 & 391-2 EA 6 1,800.00$               10,800.00$                                    
39 Vertical Realignment of 8" Water Main Under Pipe/Box Culvert LS 1 28,000.00$             28,000.00$                                    
40 1" Air/Vacuum Release Valve EA 2 1,700.00$               3,400.00$                                      
41 6" Dia PVC (C-900, CL 235) LF 1,253 50.00$                    62,650.00$                                    
42 6" Gate Valve, Box and Cover, per MAG Std Dtl 391-1 & 391-2 EA 14 1,500.00$               21,000.00$                                    

43
Fire Hydrant Assembly(Wet Barrel) per MAG Std Dtl 360-2 & 362.  
Install 6" DIP (CL 350) Restrained, Install Blue Polywrap. Valve to be 
Flanged

EA 11 6,000.00$               66,000.00$                                    

44
2" Water Service Connection with Service Saddle, Corp Stop, 2" 
Meter & 2" Backflow Assembly.  Install Type K Soft Copper From 
Service Saddle to the Backflow Unit.

EA 1 3,000.00$               3,000.00$                                      

45 2" Landscape Water Meter EA 1 1,300.00$               1,300.00$                                      
46 2" Type K Copper Water Line LF 64 35.00$                    2,240.00$                                      
47 Curb Stop with Flushing Pipe Per MAG Std Dtl 390, Type B. EA 1 1,700.00$               1,700.00$                                      
48 4" PVC (SDR-35) Sanitary Sewer Line LF 195 30.00$                    5,850.00$                                      
49 6" PVC(SDR-35) Sanitary Sewer Line LF 54 35.00$                    1,890.00$                                      

50 4" PVC-Perforated (SDR-35) Sanitary Sewer Line and Disposal Trench 
Per Det 

EA 3 9,000.00$               27,000.00$                                    

51 Sanitary Sewer Cleanout Per MAG Std Dtl 441 EA 3 500.00$                  1,500.00$                                      
52 Two-Way Cleanout Per MAG Std Dtl 440-2 EA 1 1,000.00$               1,000.00$                                      
53 1000 Gallon Septic Tank EA 1 6,000.00$               6,000.00$                                      

54 4' Dia Distribution Manhole Per MAG Std Dtl 420 with a  24" Frame 
and Cover Per MAG Std Dtl 424.

EA 1 5,000.00$               5,000.00$                                      

55 Connect Sanitary Sewer Line to Distribution Manhole LS 1 500.00$                  500.00$                                         
HARDSCAPE

56 Concrete Paving (8" Thick)(Trash Enclosure) SF 1,689 10.00$                    16,890.00$                                    
57 Concrete Sidewalk & Plaza (4" Thick)(Medium Broom Finish) SF 5,761 6.00$                       34,566.00$                                    
58 Concrete Sidewalk & Plaza (4" Thick)(Decorative Finish) SF 4,349 8.00$                       34,792.00$                                    
59 Steel Header LF 130 13.00$                    1,690.00$                                      

60 Entry Monument LS 1 50,000.00$             50,000.00$                                    
61 Concrete Wall (Entry Wall) LF 125 250.00$                  31,250.00$                                    
62 Main Entry Automatic Rolling Gate & Equipment LS 1 15,000.00$             15,000.00$                                    
63 Concrete Cast In Place Seat Wall LF 166 140.00$                  23,240.00$                                    
64 Cantilever Bench (Integral color) LF 20 40.00$                    800.00$                                         
65 Trash Enclosure Gate LS 1 4,000.00$               4,000.00$                                      
66 Trash Enclosure Wall (Board form finish w/integral color) LF 47 700.00$                  32,900.00$                                    
67 Guard Post Bollards Per MAG Std Dtl 140, Type 1 EA 4 650.00$                  2,600.00$                                      
68 Trash Receptacle EA 10 3,200.00$               32,000.00$                                    
69 Bike Rack EA 1 650.00$                  650.00$                                         
70 Pet Waste Station EA 2 1,200.00$               2,400.00$                                      

Item # Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Extended Amount

71 Handrail LF 374 52.00$                    19,448.00$                                    
72 Safety Rail LF 149 140.00$                  20,860.00$                                    
73 Pedestrian Access Gate EA 6 3,000.00$               18,000.00$                                    
74 Vehicle-Pedestrian Access Gate EA 2 5,500.00$               11,000.00$                                    
75 Vehicle Gate EA 1 2,700.00$               2,700.00$                                      
76 4 Wire Fence LF 19,950 4.00$                       79,800.00$                                    
77 Mine Shaft Cover EA 1 30,000.00$             30,000.00$                                    
78 Pedestrian Bridge LS 1 125,000.00$           125,000.00$                                 

INTERPRETIVE SIGNAGE
79 Vehicular Directional EA 2 3,500.00$               7,000.00$                                      
80 Pedestrian Directional EA 2 3,000.00$               6,000.00$                                      
81 Trail Map and Behavior Expectations EA 1 4,500.00$               4,500.00$                                      
82 Patio Interpretive Panel EA 4 1,200.00$               4,800.00$                                      
83 Vista Interpretive Panel EA 7 1,800.00$               12,600.00$                                    
84 Detail Interpretive Panel EA 8 1,500.00$               12,000.00$                                    
85 Trail Marker EA 18 500.00$                  9,000.00$                                      
86 Entry Sign and Address numbers within Entry Monument EA 1 12,000.00$             12,000.00$                                    
87 Welcome Sign EA 1 4,200.00$               4,200.00$                                      

LANDSCAPE
88 24" Box Tree EA 14 300.00$                  4,200.00$                                      
89 36" Box Tree EA 51 350.00$                  17,850.00$                                    
90 Salvaged Tree EA 6 1,200.00$               7,200.00$                                      
91 Salvaged Saguaro EA 42 850.00$                  35,700.00$                                    
92 Ocotillo- 6'-8' Height EA 25 200.00$                  5,000.00$                                      
93 5 Gallon Shrub/ Cacti EA 355 35.00$                    12,425.00$                                    
94 Earthen Trail SF 53,028 0.75$                       39,771.00$                                    
95 Stabilized Decomposed Granite SF 1,440 1.25$                       1,800.00$                                      
96 Salvage and Place Native Site Soil SF 1,625,422 0.15$                       243,813.30$                                 
97 Hydroseed Mix 'A' Acre 20.1 3,500.00$               70,490.00$                                    
98 Hydroseed Mix 'B' Acre 12.8 3,500.00$               44,800.00$                                    

IRRIGATION
99 Irrigation Controller EA 1 8,000.00$               8,000.00$                                      

100 Irrigation Backflow Preventer EA 1 2,750.00$               2,750.00$                                      
101 Master Valve 1" EA 1 450.00$                  450.00$                                         
102 Flow Sensor 1" EA 1 350.00$                  350.00$                                         
103 Quick Coupler 1" EA 3 400.00$                  1,200.00$                                      
104 Ball Valve 1" EA 3 350.00$                  1,050.00$                                      
105 Ball Valve 1 1/2" EA 2 400.00$                  800.00$                                         
106 Drip Control Valve Assembly 1" EA 10 450.00$                  4,500.00$                                      
107 Emitter Assembly EA 564 50.00$                    28,200.00$                                    
108 1" Sch 40 PVC Mainline LF 195 3.50$                       682.50$                                         
109 1-1/2" Sch 40 PVC Mainline LF 780 4.50$                       3,510.00$                                      
110 3/4" Sch 40 PVC Lateral LF 3,000 3.25$                       9,750.00$                                      
111 3" Sch 40 PVC Sleeve LF 658 6.00$                       3,948.00$                                      
112 6" Sch 40 PVC Sleeve LF 96 9.00$                       864.00$                                         

BUILDING ARCHITECTURE
113 Restroom Bldg LS 1 578,925.00$           578,925.00$                                 
114 Classroom Building Ls 1 562,800.00$           562,800.00$                                 
115 Classroom Patio LS 1 70,080.00$             70,080.00$                                    
116 Entry Canopy LS 1 148,720.00$           148,720.00$                                 

ELECTRICAL & LIGHTING
117 Electrical SES EA 1 120,000.00$           120,000.00$                                 
118 Utility Transformer (service and pad) EA 1 20,000.00$             20,000.00$                                    
119 Area Light (single) EA 32 4,000.00$               128,000.00$                                 
120 Area Light (double) EA 2 5,000.00$               10,000.00$                                    
121 Signage Lighting EA 6 500.00$                  3,000.00$                                      

6,038,193.36$                              
301,909.67$                                 

6,340,103.03$                              

Subtotal

Grand Total 
5% Contingency

Poston Butte Preserve
Opinion of Probable Cost



Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 19

Poston Butte Preserve
Opinion of Probable Cost

General 1,142,244.51$                              
Grading & Paving 1,458,454.05$                              
Drainage & Utilities 585,180.00$                                 
Hardscape 589,586.00$                                 
Interpretive Signage 72,100.00$                                   
Landscape 483,049.30$                                 
Irrigation 66,054.50$                                   
Building Architecture 1,360,525.00$                              
Electrical & Lighting 281,000.00$                                 

Subtotal 6,038,193.36$                              
5% Contingency 301,909.67$                                 
Grand Total 6,340,103.03$                              



Thank you.

Questions?

Poston Butte Open Space & Trails Development 20



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
 6b. 

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Police 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Bruce Walls, Police Chief   
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 
Subject:  Lieutenant Terry Tryon Retirement                        Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT: Lieutenant Terry Tryon’s Retirement  Other 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Recognition in honor of Lieutenant Terry Tryon retiring from the Town of Florence after 
serving over 30 years in law enforcement.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Lieutenant Terry Tryon retired from the Town of Florence on September 1, 2020 after 
serving 30+ years to this community and surrounding areas.  Terry’s career was quite 
diverse, serving in positions of Patrol Officer, Detective, Patrol Sergeant and ultimately 
Police Lieutenant.  He was selected and graduated from the prestigious Northwestern 
School of Police Staff and Command earning straight A’s on course curriculum. At his 
retirement ceremony several people spoke about their interactions with Terry and  one 
thing stood out—he cares about people and this Town.   Congratulations to Terry and 
his wife Sylvia as they start their new life journey.   
   
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
 
 



Subject:  Lieutenant Terry Tryon Retirement                        Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
Not applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 7a. 

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Rebecca Jimenez, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1748-20 designating the DEMA 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  DEMA Designated Applicant Agent  Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

Applicant Agent    Other 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adoption of Resolution No. 1748-20:  A Resolution of the Town of Florence, Pinal 
County, Arizona, approving and designating, Town Manager Brent Billingsley to act as 
applicant agent between the Town of Florence and the Arizona Department of 
Emergency and Military Affairs.    
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
President Trump declared a national emergency for the coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic on March 13, 2020. 

Local government entities are eligible to apply for Public Assistance. FEMA assistance 
will be provided at a 75%  federal cost share. This assistance will require execution of a 
FEMA-State/Tribal/Territory Agreement, as appropriate, and execution of an applicable 
emergency plan. Local governments and other eligible PA applicants will apply through 
their respective state, tribal, or territorial jurisdictions.  

By this action the Town Council is designating Town Manager Brent Billingsley as 
Applicant Agent between the Town and Arizona Department of Emergency and Affairs. 
 

 

 



Subject:  DEMA Designated Applicant Agent  Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town would be unable to submit FEMA Public Assistance reimbursement request 
to The Arizona Department of Emergency and Affairs for declared emergencies. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town would be able to submit FEMA Public Assistance reimbursement request to 
The Arizona Department of Emergency and Affairs for declared emergencies. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Undetermined at the time. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1748-20 
Applicant Agent Form 



RESOLUTION NO.  1748-20 
 

A RESOLUTION OF TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING AND DESIGNATING, TOWN MANAGER BRENT 
BILLINGSLEY, TO ACT AS APPLICANT AGENT BETWEEN THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE AND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY AND 
MILITARY AFFAIRS.   

 
 WHEREAS, The Town of Florence has appointed Town Manager Brent Billingsley 
as Applicant Agent between the Town of Florence and Arizona Department of Emergency 
and Military Affairs.   

 
 WHEREAS, The Town Council must designate a new Applicant Agent for the 

Town of Florence. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Town Manager Brent Billingsley is 
hereby designated as Applicant Agent: 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the immediate adoption of this resolution is 
necessary for preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the Town of Florence, 
and an emergency is hereby declared to exist; and this resolution shall be in full force and 
effect from the offer of its passage and adoption by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, with an effective date of September 8th ,2020. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this 8th day of September 2020. 
 
       __________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  __________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY AND MILITARY AFFAIRS 
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT’S AGENT FORM 

The intent of this DESIGNATION is to appoint an APPLICANT’S AGENT for the following: 

Applicant: 

CERTIFICATION 

I, , duly appointed and of 
(Authorizing Official’s Name) (Title) 

, do hereby certify that the information below is true and correct,
(Applicant)

based on a resolution passed and approved (attached) by the 
(Governing Body) 

of on the day of , . 
(Applicant) (day) (month) (year) 

 has been designated as the Applicant's Agent 
(Name of Designated Applicant's Agent) 

to act on behalf of . 
(Applicant) 

(Authorizing Official’s Signature) (Title) (Date) 

Designated Applicant’s Agent 

Cell  

Name   

Title/Official Position   

Full Mailing Address   

Email Address

Daytime Telephone Number 
(Please include area code and extension if not a direct number) 

Select program(s) 

Select duration

Public Assistance 

Until further notice        

Received By: ______________________       
 March 2020            Form #AZ PA 204-4 

   (Initials & Date) 

For DEMA Use Only

This document MUST be accompanied by a copy of  the Resolution or Meeting 
Minutes by your governing board which designated the Applicant's Agent.

HMA Mitigation Program 

Only Event _________ From _______ to ________

SEC Mitigation



  

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 7b. 

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Services 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Hezekiah Allen,  
                                      Community Services Director 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject:  Poston Butte PA & HPTP Agreements  Meeting Date:  September 8,  2020 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT: Consideration of the Programmatic Agreement and 
Historic Preservation Treatment Plan for the Poston 
Butte Preserve Expansion Project

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approval of the Programmatic Agreement and the Historic Properties Treatment Plan 
between the Town of Florence, Bureau of Land Management, and the State Historic 
Preservation Office for the Poston Butte Preserve Project. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Poston Butte is the approximately 160-acre parcel acquired from the Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM) through the Recreation and Public Purposes Act.  The original patent 
was given to the Pinal County Historical Society in 1964.  The patent, with BLM approval, 
was transferred from the Pinal County Historical Society to the Town of Florence in 2006. 
 
The Town applied for an additional 200+ acres from BLM adjacent to the original patented 
land to expand for recreational use.  The primary use would be open space trails and 
passive programming for outdoor recreation, along with a restroom/classroom building 
and vehicular parking for approximately 100 vehicles. 
 
The Programmatic Agreement (PA) and the Historic Properties Treatment Plan (HPTP) 
are legal documents that govern how the Town will protect cultural aspects of the 
Preserve and how artifacts or remains will be handled if discovered during development 
of the trails and amenities. The signatories for these documents are BLM, the Town, area 
Tribes and the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO). These documents are 



Subject:  Poston Butte PA & HPTP Agreements  Meeting Date:  September 8,  2020 
Page 2 of 2 

agreements between the BLM and SHIPO outlining policies by which the Town will need 
to follow in order to adhere to the lease agreement provided by BLM. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Would not affect the validity of the PA and HPTP between SHIPO and BLM, however, 
would reflect negatively on the Town, as it would show the Town is not in favor of the 
outlined requirements from SHIPO. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Would indicate the Town’s approval and acceptance of SHIPO’s requirements outlined 
within the documents.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no immediate fiscal impact, however there will be cultural monitoring costs during 
construction that will be included in the project budget.  Long-term operating costs will be 
minimal, consisting of educational brochures for preserve visitors. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Programmatic Agreement 
Historic Properties Treatment Plan 
 



PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT 

IN PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence (Florence) has filed a Recreation & Public Purposes (R&PP) 

Act application with the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Lower Sonoran Field Office. The 

application is for the lease under the R&PP Act for 200 acres of land to expand the Poston Butte 

Preserve (the Preserve), a recreational preserve managed by Florence. The R&PP Act as 

amended (43 Code of Federal Regulations [CFR] § 2740; 43 United States Code [USC] 869 et 

seq.) allows for state and local governments and nonprofits to apply for the leasing of public 

lands for the construction, operations, and maintenance of facilities such as schools, fire stations, 

and parks; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed R&PP lease area is located on 200 acres of federally-owned land under 

the jurisdiction of the BLM, therefore making the project an undertaking as defined under 54 

U.S.C. 306108 (Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act [NHPA]) and its 

implementing regulations, 36 CFR § 800. The undertaking comprises two components: (1) the 

R&PP lease, and (2) the proposed improvements/development project to be completed by Florence; 

and 

WHEREAS, the BLM as the lead agency for implementation of Section 106, is a signatory to 

this programmatic agreement (PA). The BLM, in consultation with the State Historic 

Preservation Officer (SHPO), also a signatory to this PA, was consulted by the BLM to assist in 

defining the undertaking’s Area of Potential Effects (APE), as required by 36 CFR § 800.4(a)(1). 

The APE for this undertaking is comprised of 200 acres of BLM-managed land, 153 acres of 

Town-managed land, and approximately 36 acres of privately owned land, totaling 389 acres as 

depicted in Appendix D. The R&PP lease grant shall include stipulations for additional work 

requirements if there are delays in this project or changes in scope; and 

WHEREAS, the Arizona SHPO is authorized to enter into this agreement in order to fulfill its 

role advising and assisting Federal agencies in carrying out Section 106 responsibilities under the 

following federal statutes: Sections 101 and 106 of the NHPA of 1996, as amended, 54 U.S.C. 

306108, and pursuant to 36 CFR § 800, regulations in implementing Section 106, at 

800.2(c)(1)(i), and 800.6(b), and SHPO is a signatory to this PA; and  

WHEREAS, Florence, as grantee of the lease of public lands under the R&PP Act, has 

participated in consultation per 36 CFR § 800.2(c)(4) and is willing to carry out the stipulations 

of this PA under the oversight of the BLM and is invited to sign this PA as an invited signatory; 

and 



WHEREAS, the BLM has ensured identification efforts to thoroughly document the historic 

properties within the APE, pursuant to 36 CFR § 800.4 (b). The field inventory efforts are 

described in the following report: Taylor, Christopher D. 2018. A Class III Cultural Resources 

Inventory of 403 acres for the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project, Pinal County, Arizona, 

prepared for the Town of Florence. WestLand Resources, Inc., Tucson; and 

WHEREAS, the BLM has evaluated all identified cultural resources within the APE for their 

eligibility for the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) pursuant to 36 CFR Part 63, in 

consultation with the SHPO, Indian tribes (tribes), and other consulting parties, in accordance 

with 36 CFR § 800.4(c). Furthermore, the BLM has applied the criteria of adverse effect to 

historic properties within the APE, and has determined that the Project will have an adverse 

effect on multiple historic properties within the APE, as prescribed in 36 CFR § 800.5(a); and 

WHEREAS,  historic properties within the APE that may be adversely affected include the 

following: AZ U:15:6(ASM), a site with historic and prehistoric components; 

AZ U:15:52(ASM), a prehistoric Hohokam site that features a village and extensive agricultural 

features; AZ U:15:239(ASM), a prehistoric Hohokam agricultural field; AZ U:15:460(ASM), a 

prehistoric Hohokam farmstead site; AZ U:15:465(ASM), a prehistoric Hohokam farmstead site; 

and AZ U:15:902(ASM), a prehistoric Hohokam agricultural site; and 

WHEREAS, the BLM has engaged in or has made a good faith effort to engage in government-

to-government consultation with the Ak-Chin Indian Community, Fort McDowell Yavapai 

Nation, Gila River Indian Community, Pascua Yaqui Tribe, San Carlos Apache Tribe, Salt River 

Pima-Maricopa Indian Community, The Hopi Tribe, Tohono O’odham Nation, Tonto Apache 

Tribe, White Mountain Apache Tribe, Yavapai-Apache Nation, and the Yavapai-Prescott Indian 

Tribe pursuant to Section 101(d)(6)(B) of the NHPA, 36 CFR § 800.2(c)(2)(ii), the American 

Indian Religious Freedom Act, Executive Order 13175,  Section 3(c) of the Native American 

Graves Protection and Repatriation Act (NAGPRA) and the Archaeological Resources 

Protection Act of 1979 (16 U.S.C. 470) (ARPA), to resolve the possible adverse effects of the 

undertaking on historic properties; and 

WHEREAS, the tribes that may attach religious or cultural importance to affected properties 

have been consulted pursuant to 36 CFR § 800.2(c)(2)(ii)(A–F), and the Gila River Indian 

Community, the Ak-Chin Indian Community, the Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community, 

the Tohono O’odham Nation, Pascua Yaqui Tribe, and the Hopi Tribe have been invited to be 

concurring parties in this PA; and 

WHEREAS, the BLM, in accordance with the National PA (nPA) among the BLM, the 

Advisory Council on Historic Preservation (ACHP), and the National Conference of SHPOs 

regarding the manner in which the BLM will meet its responsibilities under the NHPA, has 

determined this this undertaking does not meet the threshold for ACHP notification as defined in 

Component 5 of the nPA; and 

WHEREAS, the BLM is aware that the ACHP reserves the right to participate, on its own 

initiative or at the request of the SHPO, an Indian tribe, a local government, an applicant or other 

consulting party, in any proceeding taking place in fulfillment of the BLM's NHPA Section 106 



responsibilities under the regulations, the nPA, or BLM-SHPO protocols, in a manner consistent 

with its role under 36 CFR § 800 and the criteria under Appendix A of 36 CFR § 800 and will 

notify the responsible BLM state director, and/or district or field office manager and the Director 

when it decides to participate; and 

WHEREAS, for purposes of this PA, all terms are used in accordance with 36 CFR § 800.16, 

36 CFR § 79.4; and 

WHEREAS, after the R&PP Grant is authorized, the construction will be done in phases, as                    

funding is secured for each element of this facility. As a result, the BLM in consultation with the 

SHPO has agreed that a PA is appropriate. Using this instrument of a PA, the signatories and 

invited signatories agree to arrive at a series of procedures to be followed in order that BLM’s 

obligations for compliance with Section 106 of the NHPA for this undertaking in the APE be 

met; and 

WHEREAS, the BLM proposes to resolve adverse effects to historic properties through the 

implementation of a Historic Properties Treatment Plan (HPTP) titled, Poston Butte Preserve 

Expansion Project Historic Properties Treatment Plan, which has been approved by SHPO and 

consulting parties; and  

WHEREAS, the BLM shall utilize the Arizona Site Steward Program (Program) to actively 

monitor the historic properties within the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project in accordance 

with the guidance provided in the HPTP and the Program is invited to sign this PA as an invited 

signatory; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the BLM and SHPO agree that the undertaking shall be implemented in 

accordance with the following stipulations in order to take into account the effect of the 

undertaking on historic properties and that these stipulations shall govern the undertaking and all 

of its parts until this PA expires or is terminated.  

 

STIPULATIONS  

The BLM shall ensure that the following stipulations are implemented: 

I. Roles and Responsibilities 

i. The BLM is responsible for administering and implementing this PA. These 

responsibilities include but are not limited to consulting and coordinating with the 

consulting parties, including tribes whose ancestral territories include the APE; 

ensuring that all signatories carry out their responsibilities; overseeing all cultural 

resources work including any additional cultural resources compliance work, and the 

implementation of the approved HPTP; assembling all submissions to the SHPO 

including additional cultural resources reports (if needed), the HPTP, and the data 

recovery reports; and seeking SHPO concurrence with all agency compliance 

decisions. The BLM shall be responsible for the development of a NAGPRA Plan of 

Action (POA) and all associated tribal consultation if human remains are 



encountered. The BLM shall be responsible for reviewing the data recovery reports, 

monitoring reports, and developing any other needed treatment options in 

consultation with the consulting parties. To the extent possible, Florence, with the 

assistance of the BLM, shall ensure that the Preserve Expansion design avoids or 

minimizes effects to historic properties. 

 

ii. The BLM will ensure that Florence completes any additional cultural resources 

compliance work as proscribed in the BLM Manual, in regulation, and as outlined in 

the HPTP (Appendix B). Florence will fund and implement all cultural resources 

fieldwork, HPTP development, monitoring, data recovery, analysis, reporting, and 

curation, as well as all other developed mitigation that is required under this 

agreement. 

 

iii. Florence is proposing to expand and further develop a recreational park adjacent to 

the Preserve. A Draft Plan of Development (POD) was prepared by Florence which 

includes details of the construction, maintenance, and management of new park 

facilities including an access road and parking lot, a classroom, a restroom, benches, 

signage, picnic areas, and a trailhead with an information kiosk. The POD (see 

Appendix C) also includes the consolidation and closure of unapproved access routes 

and social trails and the construction of new trail alignments to create a cohesive 

nonmotorized trail network and the removal of existing fence lines and installation of 

a new perimeter fence and eight pedestrian gates. 

 

iv. The BLM, in consultation with the SHPO and other consulting parties has established 

the APE for direct effect to be the entire proposed Poston Butte Preserve Expansion 

Project area. The area includes 200 acres of BLM-managed land,153 acres of Town-

managed land, and approximately 36 acres of privately owned land, totaling 389 acres 

(see Appendix D). 

  

v. The NRHP eligibility of identified historic properties within the APE has been 

determined in consultation with the SHPO. All historic properties are eligible under 

Criterion D. The BLM has also taken into consideration traditional cultural values 

associated with Poston Butte and of the archaeological sites. BLM through 

consultation with the GRIC, has determined that Poston Butte is a TCP. Through the 

development of education material described in the HPTP, the BLM may determine 

that other criteria apply to the NRHP eligibility of Poston Butte and the associated 

historic properties. If this is the case, the BLM will consult with the SHPO to seek 

concurrence on additional criteria. 

  

 

 



II. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE HISTORIC PROPERTIES TREATMENT PLAN 

The BLM will assist Florence to ensure that the approved HPTP is closely followed to ensure 

adverse effects will be avoided, minimized, or mitigated. This HPTP will guide the 

archaeological compliance actions that shall be required prior to all ground-disturbing activities 

at AZ U:15:6(ASM), AZ U:15:52(ASM), AZ U:15:460(ASM), AZ U:15:465(ASM), AZ 

U:15:239(ASM), and AZ U:15:902(ASM). The HPTP is appended to this PA.  

The HPTP contains the following components: 

1) The historic properties or portions of properties where monitoring will be performed as a 

treatment for surface disturbing activities within a property.  

2) A historic context to guide the focus of the research. 

3) The field and laboratory methods to be used. 

4) The methods to be used in analysis and data management. 

5) The proposed disposition and curation of recovered materials, samples, and records in 

accordance with 36 CFR 79. 

6) A monitoring and discovery plan outlining the procedures and methods to be used for 

construction monitoring. In addition, this plan includes a broad and far-reaching 

methodology that outlines monitoring requirements during all operational and maintenance 

activities for the present undertaking and into the future. The discovery plan addresses the 

requirements and procedures to be followed if any unexpected discoveries are revealed. 

Notification and consultation requirements are included. 

7) A protocol for the treatment of human remains, in the event that such remains are 

discovered, describing methods and procedures for the recovery, analysis, treatment, and 

disposition of human remains, associated/unassociated funerary objects, and objects of 

cultural patrimony. This protocol reflects concerns and/or conditions identified as a result 

of consultations among parties to this PA and is considered consistent with the Arizona 

State Museum (ASM) burial agreement for private lands and with NAGPRA for federal 

lands. 

8) A plan outlining the protection measures required for the specialized short-term needs due 

to construction, as well as a long-term plan for protection of the historic properties over the 

long term within a public park, including discussion of barriers, signage, and a pocket 

etiquette guide for the public. 

9) A plan for formal cultural sensitivity training is outlined which lists the required associated 

training materials and provides a schedule. This includes a requirement that park 

supervisors, personnel, and contractors view a sensitivity video that will cover all of the 

aspects of an unexpected discovery of artifacts, features, or potential human remains. 

Additional outside training, specifically Arizona Site Steward training, for leadership and 

supervisory park staff is listed as a requirement as well. 



III. PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND STANDARDS 

All historic preservation work carried out under the terms of this PA and under its jurisdiction 

will be overseen by an individual who meets the Secretary of Interior’s Standards and Guidelines 

for Archaeological and Historic Preservation (48 Federal Register 44,716–44,742, September 

23, 1983) and takes into consideration the National Park Service’s applicable guidance. Tribal 

monitoring by the GRIC Cultural Resource Management Program will ensure that tribal 

knowledge and expertise are incorporated into preservation work. 

IV. MONITORING PLAN FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES 

A Secretary of Interior–qualified archaeological monitor and an O’odham tribal monitor will be 

present during all ground-disturbing construction activities within the 50-foot buffered 

boundaries of archaeological sites and will attend daily tailgate meetings with the construction 

crew to reinforce the monitoring procedures. The monitors will keep a daily log documenting 

location(s) monitored, the construction supervisor on duty, and the time spent monitoring, as 

well as whether artifacts or other cultural resources were encountered, and the measures taken in 

that event. During construction periods, the monitors will collaboratively submit weekly 

monitoring reports to the BLM in the form of an email with photographic documentation. The 

monitors shall coordinate closely with construction supervisors and Florence staff in order to 

ensure that the monitoring is carried out in a safe and timely manner and in compliance with all 

applicable regulations and standards. Since construction activities will be phased due to funding 

considerations, monitoring will need to be phased and closely coordinated as well. 

V. LONG TERM PRESERVATION PLAN FOR OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

ACTIVITIES 

Florence is committed to long-term cultural resources preservation and the protection of the 

cultural resources present within the Poston Butte Preserve. The steps necessary to ensure this 

process are outlined in the HPTP. The BLM still retains the responsibility for the cultural 

resources under the R&PP Act lease. For this reason, Florence will partner with the BLM and the 

Arizona Site Steward Program to protect the cultural resources present within the Poston Butte 

Preserve. Each of the six archaeological sites will be inspected by the Arizona Site Stewards 

Program on a bi-annual basis; these inspections will document the current condition of the sites 

relative to the prior six-month period. Florence shall provide the BLM with information 

regarding the condition of the cultural sites bi-annually as well. These will be sent into the BLM 

archaeologist. Florence shall maintain a perimeter fence and gates to prohibit unauthorized 

motorized entry. Florence shall perform regular patrols of the fences and gates to assure 

perimeter integrity. 

VI. PHYSICAL PRESERVATION ACTIONS 

Boulders and other forms of barriers will be placed at numerous locations to prevent pedestrian 

and vehicular use of closed trail alignments and to promote the use of the formal trail network. 

The construction of the barriers will use boulders that are a minimum of 3 feet in diameter, 

spaced to prevent pedestrian traffic and prevent vehicles from passing through the barrier. The 

installation of boulder barriers within site boundaries and a 50-foot buffer will require 



construction monitoring by a qualified archaeologist and O’odham tribal monitor. The boulders 

used as barriers must be obtained from outside site boundaries. 

VII. INTERPRETIVE PLAN AND PUBLIC OUTREACH 

i. AVOIDANCE SIGNAGE 

The BLM will ensure that signage is installed along the trail network at some of the 

archaeological sites as a protective measure. The intention is to promote the use of the 

approved trail network and deter trail users and Florence’s maintenance personnel 

from the closed trail alignments. The proposed signs would instruct trail users and 

Florence’s maintenance personnel in vehicles to “Stay on Trail.” Signs will be placed 

so that they are visible to traffic from either travel direction. The goal of this signage 

is to restrict the current and future uses of the existing road or trail prisms to avoid 

inadvertent damage to the archaeological sites. Florence’s maintenance personnel will 

receive cultural resources training and will know the proper procedures and actions to 

take in these areas. 

ii. INTERPRETIVE MEDIA / BROCHURES 

Florence will develop interpretive information for the public. This shall be an 

informative pamphlet or pocket guide outlining the history of the Preserve: O’odham 

histories and perspectives of the area, the nature of potential cultural resources that 

could be encountered, and the etiquette or treatment of such cultural materials that 

should be followed while visiting the Preserve. This booklet will be placed at the 

information kiosk at the newly constructed trailhead. Electronic methods can be 

employed to enable visitors to access additional information about cultural resources 

onsite. The development of this interpretive information will be a collaborative effort 

with the GRIC Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (THPO) office.  

VII. REPORTING  

i. The BLM shall ensure that Florence or their consultant prepares a draft preliminary 

end-of-fieldwork report within fourteen (14) calendar days of the completion of each 

phase of construction monitoring at sites AZ U:15:6(ASM), AZ U:15:52(ASM), AZ 

U:15:460(ASM), AZ U:15:465(ASM), AZ U:15:239(ASM), and AZ 

U:15:902(ASM). The BLM shall ensure the preliminary report is drafted after an in-

field meeting to discuss the results, if concurring parties inform the BLM that such a 

meeting is desired. The preliminary report should include all agreements made during 

the in-field meeting. The preliminary report shall include a brief description of the 

field methods and features identified during construction monitoring. 
 

ii. The BLM shall submit the draft end-of-fieldwork report on each construction phase 

concurrently to the SHPO and concurring parties for review and comment, the 

duration of which shall be a period of thirty (30) calendar days from receipt. The 

BLM shall make a good faith effort to contact all non-responsive parties by phone or 

email at the end of the review period; lack of response shall not be considered 

concurrence. All comments shall be provided in writing with copies provided to the 



other concurring parties. The BLM will take these comments into consideration when 

directing Florence to revise the draft end-of-fieldwork report. If revisions to the 

preliminary report are made, SHPO and concurring parties shall have fifteen (15) 

calendar days from receipt to review the revisions and provide comments to the BLM. 

Failure to respond by any party within the comment period shall not prohibit the 

BLM from directing Florence to finalize the end-of-fieldwork report. The report will 

be considered final when the BLM issues written approval of the report. 
 

IX. REVIEW AND COMMENT ON DRAFT FINAL MONITORING REPORT 

 

i. The BLM shall ensure Florence provides a complete draft monitoring report of 

findings and analyses to the BLM within six (6) months of the completion of each 

phase of construction-related fieldwork. The draft report shall describe all field 

methods (including any changes in field methods from those proposed in the HPTP), 

descriptions of the results of the investigations, results of subsequent analyses, and a 

discussion of how the results inform on the questions identified in the research 

design. 

 

ii. The BLM shall submit the draft technical report to the SHPO and concurring parties 

for review and comment. The reviewers shall have thirty (30) calendar days from 

receipt of the draft report to respond to the BLM with comments. The BLM will 

ensure that the report is finalized to address the comments of reviewers. The BLM 

shall make a good faith effort to contact all non-responsive parties by phone or email 

at the end of the review period; lack of response shall not be considered concurrence. 

Failure to respond by any party within the comment period shall not prohibit the 

BLM from finalizing the report. 

 

iii. The BLM shall ensure the final archaeological report resulting from actions pursuant 

to this PA are provided to SHPO and all concurring parties to this PA. 

X. CONFIDENTIALITY 

The nature and location of archaeological sites discussed in this PA and the HPTP shall be 

maintained as confidential, on a “need to know” basis, limited to BLM staff, Florence (Park) 

staff, the SHPO staff, and qualified researchers consistent with Section 304 of the NHPA and 

ARPA. 

XI. CURATION 

The BLM shall ensure that all materials and records resulting from the implementation of this 

PA are curated in accordance with 36 CFR Part 79, except where an alternative plan for 

disposition of human remains, pursuant to NAGPRA, is executed  

For the work performed on both federal and privately owned lands, Florence shall arrange a 

repository agreement with an institution that meets federal standards. 

 



XII. UNANTICIPATED DISCOVERIES 

The BLM will ensure its lease conditions require the permittee to provide immediate notification 

if cultural resource deposits are discovered as a result of any ground-disturbing activities or 

exposure due to natural erosion. In the event of a discovery, the BLM will immediately require 

Florence to temporarily halt those activities and take steps to ensure that the area of the discovery 

is protected and secured as specified in the HPTP. The BLM will follow the procedures outlined 

in 36 CFR § 800.13 if an unexpected archaeological discovery is made. Pursuant to 36 CFR 

§ 800.13, the BLM will notify the SHPO and concurring tribes within forty-eight (48) hours of 

the discovery. The notification shall describe the actions proposed by the BLM to resolve the 

adverse effects. The SHPO shall respond within forty-eight (48) hours of the notification. The 

BLM shall take into account their recommendations pursuant to 36 CFR § 800.13(b). In the 

event that human remains are discovered, the BLM and Florence will work to determine the land 

jurisdiction where the remains are discovered to then ascertain whether to follow the ASM State 

Burial Agreement or the NAGPRA POA. 

XIII. CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF WORK AND AREA OF POTENTIAL EFFECTS 

In the event that Florence decides to construct additional facilities, infrastructure, or conduct any 

new ground-disturbing activities not outlined in the POD, Florence must undergo an official 

review approval process with the BLM, and the BLM shall consult with the SHPO and other 

consulting parties to ensure that potential adverse effects are mitigated or minimized to the 

greatest extent practicable.  

XIV. TIME FRAMES 

If any consulting party fails to respond to the BLM within thirty (30) calendar days of the receipt 

of a submission, the BLM shall attempt additional consultation with the consulting parties. If 

these attempts are unsuccessful, the BLM will presume that they do not object with the 

determinations and findings as detailed in the submission and will proceed accordingly.  

Final Report: The final data recovery report resulting from the implementation of any data 

recovery performed during the implementation of the HPTP shall be submitted by the cultural 

resource contractor for Florence to the BLM, and all cultural materials and records shall be 

submitted to an approved curatorial facility for curation within twelve (12) months of the 

completion of fieldwork. 

XV. NOTICES TO PROCEED 

Upon acceptance of the PA by the signatories and invited signatories, the BLM will circulate the 

finalized document under counterpart signatures. Once signed by the signatories and the invited 

signatories, the document is “executed.” Following execution of the PA and subsequent filing 

with the ACHP, the BLM shall issue a Notice to Proceed that will allow Florence to begin 

construction of the planned park facility improvements.  

 

 



XVI. CULTURAL AWARENESS AND SENSITIVITY TRAINING 

Any personnel who will be working in areas or in capacities where archaeological resources, 

human remains, or funerary objects could be inadvertently unearthed, including Florence staff, 

contractors, and subcontractors, will receive cultural resources awareness and sensitivity 

training. Personnel will be trained to recognize potential human remains, sacred objects and 

deposits, objects of cultural patrimony, and previously unrecorded archaeological deposits that 

may meet the definition of an archaeological site.  

XVII. AMENDMENT 

Any signatory to this PA may propose that the PA be amended, whereupon the signatories will 

consult with each other to consider such an amendment. This PA may be amended when such an 

amendment is agreed to in writing by all signatories. The amendment will be effective on the 

date a copy signed by all of the signatories is filed with the SHPO. The BLM shall provide all 

concurring parties with a copy of the executed amendment.  

XVIII. ANNUAL REPORT AND MEETING 

The BLM shall prepare an annual letter report of cultural resources activities pertaining to this 

Undertaking for review and comment by all consulting parties by December 15 of each year for 

the duration of this PA. The annual letter report will include an update on project schedule, 

status, and any ongoing relevant cultural resources monitoring or mitigation activities, discovery 

situations, or outstanding tasks to be completed under this PA or the HPTP. After a thirty (30)-

calendar-day review period, an annual meeting or conference call will be held, and comments 

will be considered regarding an evaluation of the implementation and operation of this PA by the 

consulting parties.  

The annual evaluation, to be conducted after receipt of the consulting parties' comments on the 

BLM letter report, may include in-person meetings or conference calls among all consulting 

parties and includes suggestions for possible modifications or amendments to this PA. 

XIX. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Should any signatory or concurring party to the PA object at any time to any actions proposed or 

the manner in which the terms of this PA are implemented, the BLM shall consult with such 

party to resolve the objection. A thirty (30)-calendar-day period will be granted for the parties to 

resolve their differences.  

If at the end of the thirty (30)-day consultation period, the signatories determine that the objection 

cannot be resolved through such consultation, the BLM will forward all documentation relevant 

to the objection to the ACHP. Any comments provided by the ACHP within thirty (30) days after 

its receipt of all relevant documentation will be taken into account by the signatories in reaching a 

final decision regarding the objection. The BLM shall have the authority per the NHPA to make 

the final decision resolving the objection. The BLM will notify the SHPO, Concurring Parties, and 

the ACHP, in writing of its final decision. The BLM will then proceed according to its final 

decision. 



If the Council does not provide its advice regarding the dispute within the thirty (30)-day time 

period, the BLM may make a final decision on the dispute and proceed accordingly. The BLM 

will provide the ACHP, the SHPO, and Concurring Parties written notice of its final decision. 

The BLM’s responsibility to carry out all other actions subject to the terms of this PA that are not 

the subject of the dispute remain unchanged. 

XX. TERMINATING THE AGREEMENT 

If any signatory or invited signatory determines that the terms of this PA will not or cannot be 

carried out, that party shall immediately consult with the other parties to attempt to develop an 

amendment. If within thirty (30) days (or another time period agreed to by the parties) an 

amendment cannot be reached, the party may terminate the PA upon written notification to the 

other signatories. 

Once the PA is terminated, and prior to work continuing on the Undertaking, the BLM must 

either (A) execute a PA pursuant to 36 CFR § 800.6 or (B) request, take into account, and 

respond to the comments of the Council under 36 CFR § 800.7. The BLM shall notify the SHPO 

as to the course of action it will pursue. 

XXI. DURATION 

This PA will be null and void if its stipulations are not carried out within ten (10) years from the 

date of its execution. At such time, and prior to work continuing on the Undertaking, the BLM 

shall either (A) execute a PA pursuant to 36 CFR § 800.6 or (B) request, take into account, and 

respond to the comments of the ACHP under 36 CFR § 800.7. Prior to such time, the BLM may 

consult with the SHPO and Florence to reconsider the terms of the PA and amend it in 

accordance with Stipulation 17. The BLM shall notify the SHPO as to the course of action it will 

pursue. 

At least six (6) months prior to the end of the sunset date, the signatories and invited signatories 

shall consult to determine whether this PA remains satisfactory. If there is agreement, the BLM 

will revise and update the PA as needed, as per the Amendment stipulation, and consult with all 

signatories and invited signatories, concurring parties, and any parties that may become 

additional concurring parties. The updated PA will be signed and executed by all signatories 

prior to the expiration date. 

If an extension of the PA’s duration is warranted, all signatories and invited signatories will 

agree to the time period in writing through the amendment process until such time as the PA may 

be revised and updated. 

Execution of this PA and subsequent implementation of its terms evidences the BLM has taken 

into account the effects of the Undertaking on historic properties and that the BLM has satisfied 

its responsibilities under Section 106 of the NHPA and applicable implementing regulations. 

 
 

 



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

Arizona State Historic Preservation Office 

 

 

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                        

           Kathryn Leonard, Arizona State Historic Preservation Officer  

 

 

 

Date:                                                                                              

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

Bureau of Land Management         

 

       

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                           

            Edward J. Kender, Field Manager 

 

 

 

Date:                                                                                              

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

Town of Florence (Invited Signatory) 

 

 

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                         

           Tara Walter, Mayor 

 

 

 

Date:                                                                                              

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

Arizona Site Steward Program (Invited Signatory) 

 

 

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                         

           Sean Hammond, Site Steward Coordinator 

 

 

Date:   _____________________________________________ 

 



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

Ak-Chin Indian Community (Concurring Party) 

 

 

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                          

            Robert Miguel, Chairman 

 

 

 

Date:                                                                                               

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

Gila River Indian Community (Concurring Party) 

 

 

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                         

            Stephen Roe Lewis, Governor 

 

 

 

Date:                                                                                               

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

Pascua Yaqui Tribe (Concurring Party) 

 

 

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                          

            Robert Valencia, Chairman 

 

 

 

Date:                                                                                               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian Community (Concurring Party) 

 

 

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                          

            Martin Harvier, Sr., President 

 

 

 

Date:                                                                                               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

The Hopi Tribe (Concurring Party) 

 

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                        

            Timothy Nuvangyoama, Chairman 

 

 

 

Date:                                                                                               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIGNATORY PAGE 

PROGRAMMATIC AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT 

AND 

THE ARIZONA STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE EXPANSION PROJECT IN PINAL 

COUNTY, ARIZONA 

  

 

Tohono O’odham Nation (Concurring Party) 

 

 

By:                                                                                                                                                                                                         

            Ned Norris, Chairman 

 

 

 

Date:                                                                                               

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



APPENDIX A – ACRONYMS AND DEFINITIONS 

ACHP Advisory Council on Historic Preservation  

Area of Potential Effects (APE) – The geographic area or areas within which an undertaking 

may directly or indirectly cause alterations in the character or use of historic properties, if any 

such properties exist. The APE is influenced by the scale and nature of an undertaking and may 

be different for different kinds of effects caused by the undertaking (36 CFR § 800.16(d)). 

ASM Arizona State Museum 

BLM Bureau of Land Management 

GRIC THPO Gila River Indian Community Tribal Historic Preservation Officer 

Historic Property(ies) Treatment Plan (HPTP) – A document that details the procedures 

and techniques for resolving adverse effects to historic properties within the APE through 

avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation.  

NHPA National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) – An act to Establish a Program for the 

Preservation of Historic Properties throughout the Nation, and for Other Purposes, Approved 

October 15, 1966 (Public Law 89-665; 80 STAT.915; 16 U.S.C. 470) as amended by Public Law 

91-243, Public Law 93-54, Public Law 94-422, Public Law 94-458, Public Law 96-199, Public 

Law 96-244, Public Law 96-515, Public Law 98-483, Public Law 99-514, Public Law 100-127, 

and Public Law 102-575). 

Programmatic Agreement (PA) – A document that records the roles, responsibilities, terms, 

and conditions agreed upon to resolve the potential adverse effects of a Federal agency program, 

complex project, or other situations in accordance with 36 CFR § 800.14(b). 

Plan of Development (POD) – The POD is a comprehensive document provided by the 

applicant that fully describes the scope and scale of the project. The purpose, location, design 

factors, auxiliary components, construction details, operational needs, maintenance requirements, 

rehabilitation plans, and comment and review requirements are examples of the elements 

required for a POD to be approved by BLM.  

Recreation & Public Purposes Act (R&PP Act) – The R&PP Act as amended (43 Code of 

Federal Regulations [CFR] Part 2740; 43 United States Code [U.S.C.] 869 et seq.) allows for 

state and local governments and nonprofits to apply for the leasing of public lands for the 

construction and maintenance of facilities such as schools, fire stations, and parks. 

State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) –The official appointed or designated pursuant to 

Section 101(b) (1) of the NHPA to administer the State Historic Preservation Program.  

 
 

 

 



 



 

 

x 

Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan 

Town of Florence 

Prepared by: 

Christopher D. Taylor, M.S. 

 

With Contributions from: 

William L. Deaver, M.A., RPA 
 

Reviewed and submitted by: 

Jocelyn A. Bernatchez, Ph.D. 

 

Cultural Resources Report 2019-70 

October 4, 2019 

Revised December 17, 2019 

Revised March 4, 2020 

Revised March 24, 2020 

Revised April 7, 2020 

Project Number: 486.09 

 

 

WestLand Resources, Inc.  4001 E. Paradise Falls Drive  Tucson, Arizona 85712  5202069585 

 



Historic Properties Treatment Plan Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – i 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ABSTRACT ....................................................................................................................................................... iii 

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND ................................................................ 1 
1.1. Historic Properties in the APE ............................................................................................................. 4 
1.2. Proposed Activities For The Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project ....................................... 5 

1.2.1. Project Activities That Directly or Indirectly Impact Historic Properties ..................... 5 
1.2.1.1. Existing Trails and the Preserve’s Trail Network .............................................. 5 

1.2.2. Project Activities That Have No Effect on Historic Properties...................................... 8 
1.2.2.1. New Facility and Utility Construction................................................................. 8 

1.3. Regulatory Contexts, Area of Potential Effect, and Assessment of Effects .................................. 9 
1.4. Environmental Context ......................................................................................................................... 9 

1.4.1. Modern Disturbances........................................................................................................... 10 
1.5. Cultural Context .................................................................................................................................... 10 

1.5.1. Formative Period: Hohokam Culture (ca. A.D. 1–1450) ................................................. 13 
1.5.1.1 Early Formative: Pioneer Period (ca. A.D. 1–775) ............................................... 13 
1.5.1.2 Middle Formative: Colonial Period (ca. A.D. 775–950) ...................................... 15 
1.5.1.3 Middle Formative: Sedentary Period (ca. A.D. 950–1150) .................................. 16 
1.5.1.4 Late Formative: Classic Period (ca. A.D. 1150–1350) ......................................... 16 
1.5.1.5 Late Formative: Post-Classic Period (ca. A.D. 1350–1450) ................................ 18 

1.5.2. Historic Period (1800–1950) ............................................................................................... 19 
1.5.2.1 Charles Debrille Poston .......................................................................................... 21 

CHAPTER 2. HISTORIC PROPERTIES TREATMENT PLAN .................................................... 25 
2.1. PROTECTION MEASURES ............................................................................................................ 25 

2.1.1. Boulder Barriers .................................................................................................................... 25 
2.1.2. Protective Signage ................................................................................................................. 25 
2.1.3. Informative Signage and the Site Etiquette Pocket Guide ............................................. 26 
2.1.4. Long-Term Archaeological Site Monitoring ..................................................................... 26 

2.2. Cultural Resources Awareness Training ............................................................................................ 27 
2.3. Additional Ground-Disturbing Activties........................................................................................... 27 

CHAPTER 3. MONITORING AND DISCOVERY PLAN ............................................................. 29 
3.1. Monitoring Plan .................................................................................................................................... 29 
3.2. Excavation Field Methods ................................................................................................................... 31 

3.2.1. Proveniencing, Inventory, and Quality Assurance .......................................................... 31 
3.2.2. Spatial Control of the Archaeological Record .................................................................. 31 
3.2.3. Feature Excavation Methods .............................................................................................. 32 

3.2.3.1. Architectural Features .......................................................................................... 32 
3.2.3.2. Extramural Pits ..................................................................................................... 33 
3.2.3.3. Middens ................................................................................................................. 33 
3.2.3.4. Roasting Mounds.................................................................................................. 34 

3.3. Permitting, Reporting, and Curation .................................................................................................. 34 
3.4. Discovery Plan ....................................................................................................................................... 35 

CHAPTER 4. SITE DESCRIPTIONS AND WORK PLANS .......................................................... 37 
4.1. AZ U:15:6(ASM) – Poston’s Butte .................................................................................................... 37 

4.1.1. AZ U:15:6(ASM) – Poston’s Butte Work Plan ................................................................ 38 
4.2. AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site ............................................................................................. 39 

4.2.1. AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site Work Plan ......................................................... 40 
4.2.1.1. Trail Closure Activities at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site ............... 40 



ii –Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

4.2.1.2. New Trail Construction Activities at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston 
 Butte Site ............................................................................................................... 41 
4.2.1.3. Existing Fence Removal Activities at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston 
 Butte Site ............................................................................................................... 41 
4.2.1.4. New Fence and Gate Installation Activities at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston 
 Butte Site ................................................................................................................ 41 
4.2.1.5. Existing Trail Use at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site ....................... 42 

4.3. AZ U:15:460(ASM) ............................................................................................................................... 43 
4.3.1. AZ U:15:460(ASM) Work Plan .......................................................................................... 44 

4.3.1.1. Trail Closure Activities at AZ U:15:460(ASM) ................................................ 44 
4.3.1.2. Existing Fence Removal Activities at AZ U:15:460(ASM) ............................ 44 
4.3.1.3. New Fence Construction Activities at AZ U:15:460(ASM) .......................... 44 
4.3.1.4. Existing Trail Use at AZ U:15:460(ASM) ......................................................... 45 

4.4. AZ U:15:465(ASM) ............................................................................................................................... 45 
4.4.1. AZ U:15:465(ASM) Work Plan .......................................................................................... 46 

4.4.1.1. Trail Closure Activities at AZ U:15:465(ASM) ................................................ 46 
4.4.1.2. Existing Fence Removal Activities at AZ U:15:465(ASM) ............................ 46 
4.4.1.3. New Fence Construction Activities at AZ U:15:465(ASM) .......................... 47 

4.5. AZ U:15:239(ASM) ............................................................................................................................... 47 
4.5.1. AZ U:15:239(ASM) Work Plan .......................................................................................... 48 

4.5.1.1. New Fence and Gate Construction Activities at AZ U:15:239(ASM) ......... 48 
4.5.1.2. Existing Trail Use at AZ U:15:239(ASM) ......................................................... 48 

4.6. AZ U:15:902(ASM) ............................................................................................................................... 49 
4.6.1. AZ U:15:902(ASM) Work Plan .......................................................................................... 49 

CHAPTER 5. REFERENCES.................................................................................................................. 51 

FIGURES  

Figure 1.1. Vicinity map............................................................................................................................. 2 

Figure 1.2. Project location map showing surface management ......................................................... 3 

Figure 1.3 Proposed actions for the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project .......................... 4b 

Figure 1.4. Cultural chronology for the Phoenix Basin and surrounding regions .......................... 12 

PHOTOGRAPHS  

Cover Photo. Overview of the Poston Butte Preserve, view to the west 

TABLES  

Table 1.1. Historic Properties in the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project APE ................ 4a 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A. Proposed Actions for the Treatment of Native American Human Remains and 
Associated Items that may be Encountered within the Poston Butte Preserve 



 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – iii 
 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

ABSTRACT 

REPORT TITLE: Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project Historic Properties Treatment Plant, 
Town of Florence 

REPORT DATE: October 4, 2019; Revised December 17, 2019; Revised March 4, 2020; Revised 
March 24, 2020; Revised April 7, 2020 

AGENCY: Bureau of Land Management – Lower Sonoran Field Office 

PROJECT SPONSOR: Town of Florence 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Poston Butte Preserve (the Preserve) is an existing 153-acre Special 
Use Park; Charles Debrille Poston, the “Father of Arizona,” is buried at its summit. The 
Preserve is located north of East Hunt Highway and west of Herseth Road, about 2 miles 
northwest of Florence, Arizona, in Pinal County. The current Preserve area consists of lands 
managed by the Town of Florence (the Town) that were transferred from the Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM) to the Town in 2007 (patented parcel 200310210). The Town is proposing 
to expand the Preserve (the Project) to include lands administered by the BLM to the east and 
west of the Preserve, as well as a smaller private parcel southwest of the Preserve. The Poston 
Butte Preserve Expansion Project (the project area of potential effect [APE]) constitutes 200 
acres of BLM-managed land, 153 acres of Town-managed land, and 36 acres of privately owned 
land, for a total of 389 acres. A cultural resources inventory of the APE identified six historic 
properties that may be adversely affected by the proposed activities. The activities that would 
be authorized by the Project would adversely affect five of these properties directly, and one 
property would be susceptible to indirect or inadvertent impacts from the proposed activities .  

This Historic Properties Treatment Plan sets out two treatments to resolve the potential 
adverse effects: construction monitoring and protective measures. Monitoring is proposed to 
mitigate the adverse effects to the six properties that will be directly or indirectly impacted by 
the activities proposed by the Project. All six historic properties are also vulnerable to indirect 
or inadvertent adverse impacts resulting from the continued use of existing trail alignments, 
the unauthorized use of closed trail alignments, and general maintenance activities.  
Implementation of protective measures such as the placement of boulder barriers, the 
installation of protective signage, the development of informative signage and a site etiquette 
pocket guide, long-term monitoring of the archaeological sites, and cultural resources training 
of the Town’s maintenance personnel are the planned treatments to prevent indirect or 
inadvertent adverse effects. 

PROJECT NUMBER: 486.09 (WestLand Resources, Inc.) 

LOCATION: Florence, Pinal County, Arizona  

PROPERTIES SUBJECT TO MONITORING AND PROTECTIVE MEASURES: AZ U:15:6(ASM) – Poston’s 
Butte, AZ U:15:52(ASM), AZ U:15:460(ASM), AZ U:15:465(ASM)  

PROPERTIES SUBJECT TO MONITORING: AZ U:15:239(ASM), AZ U:15:902(ASM) 



iv –Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY: Disclosure of the locations of historic properties to the public 
may be in violation of both federal and state laws. Applicable United States laws include, but 
may not be limited to, Section 304 (54 U.S.C. §307103) of the National Historic Preservation 
Act and the Archaeological Resources Protection Act (16 U.S.C. §470hh). In Arizona, applicable 
state laws include, but may not be limited to, Arizona Revised Statute Title 39, Section 125.  



Chapter 1 Introduction and Background 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 1 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

The Poston Butte Preserve (the Preserve) is an existing 153-acre Special Use Park; Charles 

Debrille Poston, the “Father of Arizona,” is buried at its summit. The Preserve is located north 

of East Hunt Highway and west of Herseth Road, about 2 miles northwest of Florence, 

Arizona, in Pinal County. The current Preserve area consists of 153 acres of lands managed by 

the Town of Florence (the Town) that were transferred from the Bureau of Land Management 

(BLM) to the Town in 2007 (patented parcel 200310210). The Town is proposing to expand 

the Preserve (the Project) to include lands administered by the BLM to the east (120 acres) and 

west (80 acres) of the Preserve, as well as a smaller private parcel (36 acres) southwest of the 

Preserve, for a total of 389 acres (Figures 1.1 and 1.2). 

The Poston Butte Preserve’s expansion and development is part of the Town’s 2008 Parks, 

Trails, and Open Space Master Plan and was also included in the Town’s Five-Year Strategic Plan. 

The Town has applied for the use of two BLM-administered parcels as a lease under the 

Recreation and Public Purposes (R&PP) Act to enable the expansion of the Preserve as a public 

park. In addition, the Town is in the process of acquiring a private 36-acre parcel to further 

expand the Preserve as a park. The expansion of the current preserve would enable the Town 

of Florence to develop safe access for recreationists, construct formal parking facilities, restrict 

unapproved access routes and social trails, and design recreational opportunities that align with 

the preservation of the cultural resources present within the Preserve. The proposed Poston 

Butte Preserve Expansion Project (the project area of potential effect [APE]) is located in 

Township 4 South, Range 9 East, portions of Sections 26 and 27, Gila and Salt River Baseline 

and Meridian, as depicted on the Florence U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) 7.5' quadrangle  

(see Figure 1.2). 

Since the acquisition of federal lands as a lease under the R&PP Act is a federal undertaking, 

the BLM is evaluating the potential environmental effects of the project as required by the 

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and evaluating the potential effects to historic 

properties as required by Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA). To 

this end, The Town of Florence sponsored a cultural resources inventory to identify historic 

properties that might be adversely affected by the proposed project (Taylor 2018). This 

inventory identified six historic properties in the APE. The proposed activities authorized by 

the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project have the potential to directly or indirectly impact 

all six properties. This Historic Properties Treatment Plan (HPTP) details measures to avoid, 

minimize, and resolve adverse effects to the identified historic properties.  

  



Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, HERE,

YUMA
TUCSON

PHOENIX

FLAGSTAFF

Pinal
County

Maricopa
County

Approximate Scale 1 Inch = 10 Miles

ARIZONA

PROJECT 
LOCATION

PROJECT VICINITY

T4S, R9E, Portions of Sections 26 and 27, 
Pinal County, Arizona
Mesa USGS 1:100,000 Quadrangle
Projection: UTM NAD83, Zone 12
Data Source: ArcGIS Online World Streetmap

±0 1 2
Kilometers

0 0.5 1
Miles

Figure 1.1  Vicinity map

Date: 8/28/2019 User: vgentile

Legend
Project Area

WestLand Resources

Page 2



Service Layer Credits: Copyright:© 2013

T4S, R9E, Portions of Sections 26 and 27, 
Pinal County, Arizona
Florence USGS 7.5' Quadrangle
Projection: UTM NAD83, Zone 12
Data Source: BLM Surface Management (2018),
Town of Florence parcel provided by Town of
Florence 5/23/2018 ±

0 500 1,000
Meters

0 1,000 2,000
Feet

Figure 1.2  Project location map showing surface management

Date: 8/28/2019 User: vgentile

N: 3657442
E: 463022

N: 3657577
E: 460610

N: 3658057
E: 460616 N: 3658030

E: 463024

Legend
Project Area

Surface Management
Bureau of Land
Management (BLM)

Bureau of
Reclamation
Private Land (No
Color)
State Trust Land
Town of Florence

WestLand Resources

Page 3



4 – Chapter 1  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

1.1. HISTORIC PROPERTIES IN THE APE  

Prior to the current inventory, four archaeological surveys have covered portions of the APE over 

the years (Taylor 2018:Table A.1). The earliest survey (the Conoco Florence Survey Project) was 

undertaken by the Arizona State Museum (ASM) Cultural Resource Management Section (Doelle 

and Hewitt 1974). In recent years, portions of the APE have been surveyed for the Eastern Mining 

Area 115-kV Transmission Line Project (Motsinger et al. 1996), and two surveys related to the Merrill 

Ranch Development Project have been conducted (Montero et al. 2004; Lopez 2005).  

In support of the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project, WestLand undertook a survey in 

2018 to ensure archaeological survey coverage of the entire APE (Taylor 2018). This cultural 

resources inventory relocated eight previously identified sites and identified three additional 

sites for a total of 11 archaeological sites. Of these 11 sites, previously identified AZ 

U:15:6(ASM), Poston’s Butte, has been determined eligible under Criterion (b) and is listed  on 

the Arizona Register of Historic Places (State Historic Preservation Office [SHPO] Property 

No. 38673; Arizona State Parks 2018), and previously identified AZ U:15:52(ASM), the Poston 

Butte site—a large pithouse village with a ballcourt—has been determined eligible under Criterion 

(d) with SHPO concurrence (SHPO-2001-0165 and SHPO-2004-1134). Previously identified 

AZ U:15:240(ASM) and AZ U:15:241(ASM) were both determined to be part of the Poston Butte 

site and were consolidated under AZ U:15:52(ASM), the earliest site number (Taylor 2018). Of 

the remaining seven sites, the BLM determined that four were eligible for inclusion in the 

National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) with SHPO concurrence; the remaining three 

sites are not eligible for inclusion in the NRHP with SHPO concurrence (Blanchard 2019).  

The six historic properties in the APE are listed in Table 1.1 and illustrated in Figure 1.3. 

Table 1.1 and Figure 1.3 also identify the Project activities potentially affecting each property 

and the planned treatment to mitigate the anticipated adverse effects. Table 1.1 includes a 

discussion justifying the planned treatments, given the anticipated adverse effects. Monitoring 

is proposed to mitigate the adverse effects to the six properties that will be directly or indirectly 

impacted by the activities proposed by the Project. All six historic properties are also vulnerable 

to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts resulting from the continued use of existing trail 

alignments, the unauthorized use of closed trail alignments, and general maintenance activities. 

Implementation of protective measures such as the placement of boulder barriers, the installation 

of protective signage, the development of informative signage and a site etiquette pocket guide, 

long-term monitoring of the archaeological sites, and cultural resources training of the Town’s 

maintenance personnel are the planned treatments to prevent indirect or inadvertent adverse 

effects (see Table 1.1). 



Table 1.1. Historic Properties in the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project APE 

ASM Site Number/ 
Site Name 

Site Type 
Age and Cultural 

Affiliation 
Proposed Actions Treatment Discussion 

AZ U:15:6, 

Poston’s Butte 

1 

• Historical burial and monument

• Prehistoric artifact scatter

• Historic period,

A.D. 1870s–1925;

Euroamerican

• Formative period,

A.D. 1–1450;

Hohokam

• Trail closure
Monitoring; 

protective measures 

One construction task—the closure of an existing trail alignment—will directly impact AZ U:15:6(ASM). Monitoring the trail closure 

construction activities within the site boundary and a 50-foot buffer is planned to mitigate the direct impacts to the site. Unauthorized 

use of the closed trail alignment within AZ U:15:6(ASM), continued use of the historical wagon trail by trail users, and general 

maintenance activities will leave the site susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts. Long-term monitoring of the 

archaeological site, the installation of informative signage, and the development of a site etiquette pocket guide are planned to mitigate 

the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site. Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s maintenance personnel is 

planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site from general maintenance activities. 

AZ U:15:52, Poston 

Butte Site 

2 

Prehistoric Hohokam village; 

extensive rock pile field with 

associated middens and an artifact 

scatter 

Formative period, 

A.D. 1–1450;

Hohokam

• Existing fence removal

• New fence and gate

construction

• New trail construction

• Trail closure

Monitoring; 

protective measures 

Four construction tasks—the closure of nine trail segments, the construction of two new trail segments, the removal of one segment of 

existing fence line, and the construction and installation of a new fence line and six pedestrian gates within or near the boundary of AZ 

U:15:52(ASM)—will directly impact the site. Monitoring all four construction tasks and the installation of protective signage within the 

site boundary and a 50-foot buffer is planned to mitigate the direct impacts to the site. Also, continued use of the existing trail 

alignments, unauthorized use of the closed trail alignments, and general maintenance activities within AZ U:15:52(ASM) will leave the 

site susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts. Long-term monitoring of the archaeological site, the installation of 

informative signage, and the development of a site etiquette pocket guide are planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse 

impacts to the site. Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s maintenance personnel is planned to mitigate the indirect or 

inadvertent adverse impacts to the site from general maintenance activities. 

AZ U:15:460 

3 

Prehistoric farmstead; cleared 

area, midden area, rock 

concentrations, and artifact scatter 

Formative period, 

A.D. 1–1450;

Hohokam

• Existing fence removal

• New fence construction

• Trail closure

Monitoring; 

protective measures 

Three construction tasks—the closure of two trail segments, the removal of one segment of existing fence line, and the construction of 

a new fence line within or near the boundary of AZ U:15:460(ASM)—will directly impact the site. Monitoring all three construction 

tasks and the installation of protective signage within the site boundary and a 50-foot buffer is planned to mitigate the direct impacts to 

the site. Also, unauthorized use of the closed trail alignments and general maintenance activities within AZ U:15:460(ASM) will leave the 

site susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts. Long-term monitoring of the archaeological site, the installation of 

informative signage, and the development of a site etiquette pocket guide are planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse 

impacts to the site. Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s maintenance personnel is planned to mitigate the indirect or 

inadvertent adverse impacts to the site from general maintenance activities. 

AZ U:15:465 

4 

Prehistoric farmstead; artifact 

scatter, possible midden, and rock 

concentration 

Formative period, 

A.D. 1–1450;

Hohokam

• Existing fence removal

• New fence construction

• Trail closure

Monitoring; 

protective measures 

Three construction tasks—the closure of a trail segment, the removal of one segment of existing fence line, and the construction of a 

new fence line within or near the boundary of AZ U:15:465(ASM)—will directly impact the site. Monitoring all three construction tasks 

within the site boundary and a 50-foot buffer is planned to mitigate the direct impacts to the site. Also, unauthorized use of the closed 

trail alignments and general maintenance activities within AZ U:15:465(ASM) will leave the site susceptible to indirect or inadvertent 

adverse impacts. Long-term monitoring of the archaeological site, the installation of informative signage, and the development of a site 

etiquette pocket guide are planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site. Additionally, cultural resources 
training of the Town’s maintenance personnel is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site from general 

maintenance activities. 

AZ U:15:239 

5 

Prehistoric dry-land agricultural 

field and associated flaked stone 

artifact scatter 

Formative period, 

A.D. 1–1450;

Hohokam

• New fence and gate

construction

Monitoring; 

protective measures 

One construction task—the construction and installation of a new fence line and a pedestrian gate within or near the boundary of 

AZ U:15:239(ASM)—will directly impact the site. Monitoring the construction task and the installation of protective signage within the 

site boundary and a 50-foot buffer is planned to mitigate the direct impacts to the site. Also, continued use of the existing trail 

alignment and general maintenance activities within AZ U:15:239(ASM) will leave the site susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse 
impacts. Long-term monitoring of the archaeological site, the installation of informative signage, and the development of a site etiquette 

pocket guide are planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site. Additionally, cultural resources training of 

the Town’s maintenance personnel is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site from general 

maintenance activities. 

AZ U:15:902 

6 

Prehistoric dry-land agricultural 

field and associated flaked stone 

artifact scatter 

Formative period, 

A.D. 1–1450;

Hohokam

• New trail construction
Monitoring; 

protective measures 

An approximately 700-foot-long segment of proposed trail is located 100 feet east of AZ U:15:902(ASM). The proposed new trail 
construction activities do not directly impact AZ U:15:902(ASM). However, the site would be susceptible to indirect or inadvertent 

adverse impacts resulting from unauthorized visitation to the site, general maintenance activities, and new trail construction activities. 

Monitoring new trail construction activities near the site, long-term monitoring of the archaeological site, the installation of informative 

signage, and the development of a site etiquette pocket guide are planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the 

site. Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s maintenance personnel is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent 

adverse impacts to the site from general maintenance activities. 

Page 4a



Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri,
DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,
CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,
IGN, and the GIS User Community

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R RR R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR

R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

}}
}}

}}
}}

}} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }}
}} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }}

}}
}}

}} }} }}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}

}}

}} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }}

}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}

}} }}
}} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }}

}} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }}}} }} }} }} }} }} }} }} }}

}} }} }}

}} }} }}

}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}
}}

}}(
(

(

(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

GF

GF
GF

GF

GF

GF

GFGF

GF
GF

GF

GF

F 2

AZ U:15:52(ASM)

AZ U:15:902(ASM)

AZ U:15:239(ASM)

AZ U:15:465(ASM)

AZ U:15:6(ASM)

AZ U:15:460(ASM)

Proposed Pedestrian
Gate

Proposed Pedestrian
Gate

Proposed
Pedestrian

Gate

Proposed Pedestrian
GateProposed Pedestrian Gate

Proposed Pedestrian
Gate Proposed Pedestrian

Gate
Proposed Pedestrian

Gate

Proposed Park Entrance
Access Road

Proposed Trailhead

F 1

F 3

F 5
F 16

F 8
F 7

F 6

F 13
F 14

F 2

F 15
F 5
F 4

F 2

F 3
F 4

F 10

F 3

F 5

F 1

F 4

F 2

F 1 F 1
F 9

Proposed Road By 
Private Developer

M:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC - HPTP\MXD\hptp_maps\01_3_PostonButte_HPTPmap.mxd

±

Legend
!( Feature
!( Agricultural Rock Pile

( Physical Barriers and Signage

GF Stay on Trail Signage

R R Railroad

X X Transmission Line

New Facilities Footprint

Prehistoric Feature

Historic Property

APE

Existing Fence to be Removed

Proposed Pedestrian Gate

}} }} Proposed Fence

Proposed Trail

Mechanical Revegetation Trail Closure

Natural Revegetation Trail Closure

Proposed Road

Existing Trail

Surface Management
Bureau of Land Management (BLM)

Private Land (No Color)

Figure 1.3.  Proposed actions for the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project

WestLand Resources 0 50 100
Meters

0 160 320
Feet

T4S, R9E, Portions of Sections 26 and 27,
Pinal County, Arizona
Florence USGS 7.5' Quadrangle
Projection: UTM NAD83, Zone 12
Data Source: BLM Surface Management (2018),
Town of Florence parcel provided by Town of
Florence 5/23/2018

Page 4b



 Introduction and Background 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 5 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

1.2. PROPOSED ACTIVITIES FOR THE POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE 

EXPANSION PROJECT 

The Poston Butte Preserve is intended for recreational activities such as hiking, biking, and 

birding, as well as educational use and is already a hiking destination with a listed Arizona Register 

of Historic Places historical landmark at the location of the remains of Charles Debrille Poston. 

Currently, a network of existing roads and informal trails exists on the two adjacent BLM-

administered parcels to the east and west of the existing Preserve. As noted above, the Town has 

applied for the use of these parcels as a lease under the R&PP Act, and the Project proposes the 

consolidation and closure of some of these existing roads and trails and the construction of new 

trail alignments to create a cohesive nonmotorized trail network that supports the Preserve’s 

mission of long-term preservation. The Project also proposes the removal of existing fence lines 

and installation of a new perimeter fence and eight pedestrian gates. In addition, the Project 

proposes the construction, maintenance, and management of new park facilities including an 

access road and parking lot, a classroom, a restroom, and a trailhead with an information kiosk. 

Additionally, utilities to service these new facilities would need to be constructed and installed. 

Of the six archaeological sites present within the APE, five date to the Formative period  

(A.D. 1–1450) Hohokam occupation of the region. These five sites are AZ U:15:52 – Poston Butte 

site, AZ U:15:460, and AZ U:15:465 (all ASM), which are associated with residential and farming 

activities, and AZ U:15:239(ASM) and AZ U:15:902(ASM), which are associated with farming 

activities. All of these sites contain surface features such as agricultural rock piles and/or artifact 

concentrations and trash middens. AZ U:5:6(ASM)—also known as Poston’s Butte—is a 

historical monument and the resting place of Charles D. Poston. The site also contains surface 

features associated with Euroamerican land use during the late nineteenth and early twentieth 

centuries, as well as a Formative period artifact scatter. All of the identified surface features at 

these six sites will be avoided during the proposed construction activities.  

1.2.1. Project Activities That Directly or Indirectly Impact Historic Properties  

This section describes the proposed project activities that directly or indirectly impact historic 

properties within the Preserve and identifies the archaeological sites that will be directly or 

indirectly impacted by these proposed activities (see Table 1.1 and Figure 1.3). This section is 

followed by Section 1.1.2, which describes the proposed project activities that will have no impact 

on the historic properties within the Preserve. 

1.2.1.1. Existing Trails and the Preserve’s Trail Network   

Several informal road and trail alignments exist on the BLM-administered parcels adjacent to the 

current Preserve. The Project proposes to formally incorporate 6.15 miles of suitable existing road 

and/or trail alignments into the Preserve’s trail network through signage and without trail 

expansion.  



6 – Chapter 1  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

The Project proposes to incorporate approximately 3.5 miles of existing trail alignments located 

within the boundaries of AZ U:15:52(ASM), approximately 328 feet of an existing trail alignment 

located within the boundaries of AZ U:15:239(ASM), and approximately 164 feet of an existing 

trail alignment located within the boundaries of AZ U:15:460(ASM)  

Trail Closures  

The Project also proposes the closure of 2.28 miles of existing trail alignments along informal 

trails and/or road alignments. Two approaches will be used for the closure of existing trails—

natural revegetation and mechanical revegetation. 

The natural revegetation approach uses various exclusion techniques including signage and 

boulder barriers to deter trail users from the closed trail segments and to promote the use of the 

approved trail network. The trails will naturally reseed once they are no longer in use. Placement 

of the boulder barriers will be completed by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580. This 

approach to trail closure activities was designed to minimize the direct impacts to features and 

artifacts within the archaeological sites.  

The mechanical revegetation approach consists of the scarification of the existing trail alignment to 

a depth of 4 to 6 inches below existing grade; the width of the disturbance will be dependent on the 

width of the existing trail or road prism. Mechanical revegetation activities will be completed by a 

backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 with gannon and ripper attachments. The last step in the 

process is hydroseeding with a native seed mix. Hydroseeding is a planting process in which a slurry 

of native seed mix and mulch is sprayed over the prepared ground. The hydroseeding slurry is 

typically transported in a tank that is either truck-mounted or trailer-mounted.  

Trail closure construction activities are proposed within the boundaries of AZ U:15:6, AZ 

U:15:52, AZ U:15:460, and AZ U:15:465 (all ASM).  

New Trail Construction Activities  

The Project proposes the construction of 0.72 mile of new trail alignments in strategic locales to 

enhance the Preserve’s trail network. New trail construction activities will consist of removing 

grass and brush 1 to 2 inches below the existing grade within an approximately 6-foot-wide area 

of disturbance for the length of the new alignment. This construction activity will be completed 

using small mechanized equipment similar to the Sutter 300 Mini-Trail Dozer.  

New trail construction activities are proposed within the boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM) and 

within 150 feet of the boundary of AZ U:15:902(ASM).  



 Introduction and Background 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 7 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

Existing Fence Removal Activities  

The Project proposes the removal of two segments of existing fence line within the APE. Existing 

fence removal activities outside of an archaeological site will be completed by a backhoe or tractor 

similar to the Case 580. The existing fence posts will be mechanically pulled from the ground and 

the barbed wire will be cut and collected. Within the boundaries of an archaeological site and a 

50-foot buffer, fence removal activities will be completed manually with hand tools. The existing 

fence parts and the equipment needed to complete this task will be transported by a backhoe or 

tractor similar to the Case 580. Mechanical access necessary for this construction activity will be 

restricted to the existing road or trail disturbances.  

Existing fence removal activities are proposed within the boundaries of AZ U:15:52, AZ U:15:460, 

and AZ U:15:465 (all ASM).  

New Fence and Gate Construction Activities  

The Project proposes the construction of 3.7 miles of new fence line and the installation of eight 

pedestrian gates around the perimeter of the APE. New fence construction activities outside of 

an archaeological site will be completed by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 with a 

pneumatic post driver attachment. Steel T-posts with four strands of wire attached will be driven 

into the ground to a depth of approximately 1 foot. Additionally, for structural support, the corner 

panels of the new fence line will also be constructed with an additional hole or two with a concrete 

footing. Within the boundaries of an archaeological site and a 50-foot buffer, new fence 

construction activities will be completed manually with hand tools including a handheld air-

operated post driver. Steel T-posts with four strands of wire attached will be driven into the 

ground to a depth of approximately 1 foot. The new fence parts and the equipment needed to 

complete this task will be transported by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580.  

The Project also proposes the installation of eight pedestrian gates along the newly constructed 

perimeter fence at the intersections with existing road or trail alignments that currently extend 

outside of the APE. The placement of these gates is designed to prohibit the unauthorized use of 

the Preserve’s trail network by motorized vehicles. New gate construction activities will include 

the placement of 3-inch-diameter tubular steel posts with concrete footings into the ground within 

machine-dug holes extending to a depth of approximately 5 to 6 feet below the existing grade 

within an approximately 6-inch-diameter area of disturbance. New gate construction activities will 

be completed by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 with an auger attachment. The new 

gate parts and the equipment needed to complete this task will be transported by a backhoe or 

tractor similar to the Case 580. Mechanical access needed to complete these tasks will be restricted 

to the existing road and/or trail disturbances. 

New fence and gate construction activities are proposed within the boundaries of AZ U:15:52, 

AZ U:15:239, AZ U:15:460, and AZ U:15:465 (all ASM). 



8 – Chapter 1  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

Operations and General Maintenance 

The Project proposes the use of the formal trail network for vehicular access for ongoing 

operations and maintenance activities. Operations and general maintenance activities would 

include the collection of modern trash throughout the Preserve, maintaining and repairing the 

newly constructed perimeter fence line and pedestrian gates, and occasional repairs to the trails 

themselves. The trail network is susceptible to the formation of erosional cuts across the trails 

from sheetwash erosion. Repairs to erosional cuts in existing trails outside of an archaeological 

site will be completed by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580. Clean fill obtained from 

outside of an archaeological site will be mechanically placed and compacted into the erosional 

cuts. Within the boundaries of an archaeological site and a 50-foot buffer, vehicular access needed 

to complete these tasks will be restricted to existing disturbances resulting from the formal trail 

network. In addition, repairs to erosional cuts in existing trails will be completed manually with 

hand tools, and clean fill will be obtained from outside the site boundaries . 

Operations and general maintenance activities are proposed within the boundaries of AZ U:15:6, 

AZ U:15:52, AZ U:15:239, AZ U:15:460, and AZ U:15:465 (all ASM). 

1.2.2. Project Activities That Have No Effect on Historic Properties  

1.2.2.1. New Facility and Utility Construction  

The Project proposes the construction, maintenance, and management of new park facilities 

including an access road and parking lot, a classroom, a restroom, and a trailhead with an 

information kiosk, which are expected to result in approximately 25 acres of new disturbance 

along the western side of the APE. In addition, an 8-inch waterline will be installed within the 

proposed access roadway to service facilities including the restroom, drinking fountain, and fire 

hydrant. Aerial LED light fixtures will be positioned at the turn-off for the proposed access road 

and in the parking facilities. 

Vehicular access and trailhead parking are not currently available within the Preserve. Pedestrians 

must park along Hunt Highway and access the Preserve via an underpass beneath the Copper 

Basin Railway tracks. To provide safer access, a new road and turn-off would be constructed on 

private land outside the western boundary of the Preserve, connecting Hunt Highway to the newly 

constructed access road and parking lots at the entrance to the Preserve. Construction of this road 

will be built by a private developer and is not considered part of the current project.  

The proposed activities related to the construction, maintenance, and management of the new 

park facilities and utilities were designed to avoid any adverse impacts to the archaeological sites 

located within the Preserve. All of the archaeological sites will be avoided and will not be impacted 

by these construction activities.     



 Introduction and Background 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 9 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

1.3. REGULATORY CONTEXTS, AREA OF POTENTIAL EFFECT, AND 

ASSESSMENT OF EFFECTS 

Federal and state laws govern the treatment of cultural resources within the Poston Butte Preserve 

APE. The relevant federal laws include, but are not limited to, the American Antiquities Act of 

1906 (15 U.S.C. § 431–433); the NHPA of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 470), particularly 

Section 106 of the NHPA and its implementing regulations (36 CFR Part 800); the NEPA of 1970 

(42 U.S.C. § 4321–4347); the Archaeological Resources Protection Act of 1979 (16 U.S.C. 

§§ 470aa–470mm); and the Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act (NAGPRA) 

of 1990 (25 U.S.C. § 3001). In addition, Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) § 41-84 and 
A.R.S. § 41-865 provides for the protection and treatment of human remains and funerary objects 

that may be encountered on municipal or private lands as set out by Arizona Board of Regents 

rules 8-101 through 8-110. Particularly relevant to this document is Section 106 of the NHPA, 

which requires federal agencies to consider the effects of their undertakings on historic properties.  

The Project is a federal undertaking, and the activities that would be authorized by the Project 

have the potential to directly or inadvertently impact historic properties. The Poston Butte 

Preserve Expansion Project (the project APE) constitutes 200 acres of BLM-managed land, 

153 acres of Town-managed land, and 36 acres of privately owned land, totaling 389 acres 

(see Figure 1.2). The Town of Florence retained WestLand Resources, Inc. (WestLand), to 

prepare a cultural resources inventory of the APE to identify historic properties that may be 

adversely affected by the proposed action in accordance with 36 CFR 800.4. WestLand prepared 

a cultural resources inventory that identified six historic properties as itemized in Section 1.1 

above (Taylor 2018).  

1.4. ENVIRONMENTAL CONTEXT 

The following description of the environmental context is excerpted from the cultural 

resources inventory (Taylor 2018). The Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project is located in 

south-central Arizona about 2 miles northwest of Florence, Arizona, within the Basin and Range 

physiographic province—an area characterized by northwest-trending mountain ranges separated 

by relatively flat valleys filled with sediments from the adjacent mountains (Chronic 1983). 

Elevations range from 1,496 to 1,526 feet above mean sea level. Tertiary-age volcanic activity in 

the region was responsible for the occasional peaks in the intermountain valleys, including Poston 

Butte, which is located in the middle of the existing preserve (Chronic 1983). 

The climate in the region is typical of a semiarid desert, with low precipitation, high summer 

temperatures, and low humidity. In Florence, the average annual total precipitation is 25.50 cm 

(10.04 inches), and temperatures range from an average high of 102 degrees Fahrenheit in July to 

an average low of 38 degrees in January (WRCC 2018). Native vegetation in or adjacent to the 

survey area is typical of the Lower Colorado River subdivision of the Sonoran Desertscrub biotic 



10 – Chapter 1  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

community (Turner and Brown 1994) and includes sparse creosote bush, saguaro, and cholla 

cactus. Mesquite and palo verde trees grow along the drainage channels. 

The principal surface water feature near the survey area is the Gila River, which is located 0.8 mile 

to the south. The river is dry much of the year and generally flows northeast to southwest in 

response to regional precipitation events. The Gila River is a classic example of a dry-land river—

it is more unstable and prone to changes in channel configuration than rivers in humid regions, 

which have stable channels adjusted for continuous stream flows (Huckleberry 1996). The alluvial 

fans and terraces that formed along the Gila River were suitable locations for agriculture and 

attracted prehistoric farmers, including the Hohokam, who built large pithouse villages and 

constructed extensive canal systems along the terraces of the river’s floodplain. Today, the 

Coolidge Dam, located approximately 55 miles northeast of Florence, regulates the majority of 

the upstream watershed runoff, diverting the water flow into the Florence-Casa Grande and North 

canals, both of which are located south of the survey area. 

1.4.1. Modern Disturbances  

Over the years, the lands surrounding Poston Butte have been impacted by mineral exploration 

projects associated with the Florence Copper project. The earliest known exploration activities 

occurred in the 1960s when ASARCO acquired a land package around Poston Butte (Johnson 2017) 

and apparently drilled three exploration holes to the west of the butte but did not identify significant 

mineralization. In the late 1960s, the Conoco Corporation acquired the land package and drilled 

their first exploratory holes on the southwestern flank of Poston Butte (Johnson 2017); these 

exploratory holes are still visible today. Conoco encountered sufficient mineralization to warrant a 

systematic multi-hole exploration program, which was completed by 1975 and consisted of 

approximately 600,000 feet of exploration within 659 drill holes. Later that year, drilling ceased and 

the project was put on hold until 1992 when Magma acquired the property from Conoco (Johnson 

2017). Magma initiated a prefeasibility study that included the drilling of 37 additional holes; this 

program was completed in January 1995. A year later, Magma was acquired by Broken Hill 

Proprietary Company Limited of Australia, who quickly initiated another feasibility study that 

included a 67-hole drilling program (Johnson 2017). Within the Poston Butte Preserve, claim 

markers, mechanically excavated areas, monitoring wells, drill holes, access roads, and modern 

trash—the remnants of these mineral exploration programs—characterize the landscape. 

1.5. CULTURAL CONTEXT 

Arizona is a geographically diverse landscape, from the high desert Colorado Plateau in the northeast, 

across the rugged Central Highlands mountainous transition zone, to the southern and western 

lowland desert Basin and Range province. Archaeological evidence indicates that people have adapted 

to and inhabited this diverse landscape for more than 12,000 years. Over the tenure of human history, 

the environment has changed radically from the cooler and moister conditions of the late Pleistocene 



 Introduction and Background 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 11 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

epoch to the warmer and drier conditions of today. As the environment changed and as human 

populations increased over time, a variety of human cultures developed. Although these cultures did 

not arise and develop in isolation from those in other regions, it is evident that cultures in different 

geographic regions followed unique trajectories as people responded to the biological, geological, 

hydrological, geographical, and physiographical diversity of Arizona. The APE lies within south-

central Arizona, and human history in this area spans the Archaic, Formative, Protohistoric, and 

Historic periods and encompasses diverse cultural groups. Figure 1.4 provides a cultural chronology 

for the diverse cultural traditions in this and the surrounding regions. 

To effectively evaluate an archaeological site’s or historic property’s significance and treatment, 

organizing the historic property types based on theme, time, and place is necessary so that research 

can be conducted in an appropriate manner. The cultural resources inventory identified sites, artifacts, 

and features representing two main periods of human occupation in the APE: Formative period 

(A.D. 1–1450) Hohokam occupation of the region and Euroamerican land use of the region during 

the Late Historic period (A.D. 1800–1950). Of the prehistoric sites documented and evaluated, 

AZ U:15:52, AZ U:15:460, and AZ U:15:465 (all ASM) are associated with both residential and 

farming activities, and AZ U:15:239(ASM) and AZ U:15:902(ASM) are associated with farming 

activities. AZ U:5:6(ASM)/Poston’s Butte is the historical monument and resting place of Charles D. 

Poston. It was constructed in 1925 and is associated with Euroamerican land use of the APE during 

the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. 

The APE is located along the northside of the Gila River and the prehistoric sites encountered within 

it are part of a series of large, multicomponent sites along the northern terrace of the Gila River that 

span the entire Hohokam sequence, known to archaeologists as the Escalante Ruin Group 

(Doyel 1981; Laurenzi 2012). The name Escalante comes from one Juan Batista de Escalante, a 

member of Father Kino’s expedition to the Gila Basin in 1697 (Doyel 1977). Escalante and two 

others apparently saw the remains of these sites and swam across the Gila River to investigate them. 

This group of archaeological sites have been known to Euroamericans for centuries and have been 

known to the Pima and O’odham peoples for even longer.  

Previous investigations at the Poston Butte Site (AZ U:15:52[ASM]) reveal that occupation of the 

area likely started during the Early Formative period, or around A.D. 500, and the presence of a Casa 

Grande–type ballcourt suggests occupation of the site continued into the Late Formative period 

(Doyel 1977).  During this time, the Hohokam built an extensive canal system along the north side 

of the Gila River to support its population and farming activities.  

To fully understand how the prehistoric archaeological sites within the APE fit into the local cultural 

sequence, it is necessary to step outside the boundaries of the project and examine the whole region, 

known to archaeologists as the Phoenix Basin Hohokam core. The objective of the following sections 

is to establish the relevance and representation of the following cultural context in the context of the 

current undertaking.  



Period Tucson Basin
1

Phoenix Basin
2

Tuthill
3

Vanderpot and 

Altschul
4

Altschul
5

Sayles
6

Vanderpot and 

Altschul
4

Haury
7

Bowen
8

McGuire and 

Villalpando
9

Figure 1.4 Cultural chronology for the Phoenix Basin and surrounding regions

1600

1700

6000

1000

1100

Tres Alamos

MIDDLE ARCHAIC

EARLY ARCHAIC

?
1500

1400

1300

CHIRICAHUA STAGE

Occupation Gap ?

P
io

ne
er

1200

S
ed

en
ta

ry

SacatonRincon

Agua Caliente

Rillito

Tres Alamos

4000

400

P
A

L
E

O
-I

N
D

IA
N

E
A

R
L

Y

A
R

C
H

A
IC

M
ID

D
L

E

400

10000

7000

800

200

100

A.D.

700

600

500

E
A

R
L

Y
M

ID
D

L
E

900

11000

9000

2000

3000

B.C.

200

5000

300

600

800

1000

8000

Undefined

Phase IV

Phase III
Tanque Verde

Undefined

Pinaleño &  

Dos Cabezas

Dos Cabezas

Pinaleño

Cascabel

Undefined

Peñasco

Galiuro

Cascabel

Tanque Verde
Undefined

Trincheras
Middle San 

Pedro Valley

Babocomari

Hohokam PapagueríaDragoon San Simon

Upper Pimas

Tucson Tucson
Huachuca

Santa Teresa

El RealtoSellsTucson
Polvorón

Civano

Postclassic

C
la

ss
ic

Topawa
SohoTanque Verde

Cochise Archaic

SAN PEDRO STAGE

Atil

Atil ?
Early Formative 

period

Gila ButteCañada del Oro

PALEOINDIAN

Phase I 

Cochise 

SULPHUR SPRING STAGE

San Pedro

Cerros Galiuro

Archaic

Peñasco

Phase II

AltarEncinas

Snaketown

C
ol

on
ia

l

San Pedro Late Archaic

Vamori

Cultural Stages

Cienega 

San Pedro 

Unnamed

Red Mountain

Tanque Verde

Preclassic period

Encinas

F
O

R
M

A
T

IV
E

L
A

T
E

L
A

T
E

P
R

O
T

O
-

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

HISTORIC

Snaketown

Tortolita Vahki

Santa Cruz

E
ar

ly
 C

er
am

ic
E

ar
ly

 A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l

1. After Dean 1991, Deaver and Ciolek-Torello 1995, Mabry 1998, Wallace 2012
2. After Dean 1991, Mabry 1998, Haury 1976, Henderson 2002, Wallace 2004
3. Tuthill 1947
4. Vanderpot and Altschul 2007
5. Altschul 1994
6. Sayles 1945, 1983
7. Haury 1975
8. Bowen 1972
9. McGuire and Villalpando 1993

Page 12



Introduction and Background 

Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 13 

WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

1.5.1. Formative Period: Hohokam Culture (ca. A.D. 1–1450) 

Generally, the Formative period is represented by peoples who are characterized as sedentary 

agriculturalists. In central Arizona, these peoples are called the Hohokam. The Hohokam were 

primarily a sedentary farming people who lived in villages consisting of clusters of single-family 

dwellings. During most of the Hohokam tenure, dwellings were made by building a structure of jacal 

(post and adobe) in a shallow pit. The roofs were made of similar materials. Late in the chronological 

sequence, the Hohokam built adobe-walled structures grouped within walled compounds. The 

Hohokam are known for their use of canal irrigation, for building platform mounds and ballcourts, 

for cremating their dead, and for red-on-buff and red on-brown ceramics constructed mainly by the 

paddle-and-anvil method (Fish 1989; Gumerman and Haury 1979; Haury 1976). 

Archaeologists make two basic divisions in the Hohokam chronology: the pre-Classic and the 

Classic. The pre-Classic is divided into three periods: the Pioneer, the Colonial, and the Sedentary. 

These periods, along with the subsequent Classic period, are further broken into phases. There 

are numerous problems in assigning dates and temporal ranges to the Hohokam chronology, and 

complete consensus has yet to emerge (Dean 1991; Fish 1989). Most researchers agree with the 

phase sequence developed following the excavations at Snaketown (Gladwin et al. 1937; Haury 

1976); however, many strongly support the temporal compression of the Pioneer period phases 

(Fish 1989; Schiffer 1982). Following are brief discussions of the periods and phases of the 

Hohokam chronology, concentrating on developments in the Phoenix Basin Hohokam core. . 

1.5.1.1 Early Formative: Pioneer Period (ca. A.D. 1–775) 

In the Phoenix Basin, the Pioneer period encompasses five phases: Red Mountain, Vahki, Estrella, 

Sweetwater, and Snaketown. During the Pioneer period, Hohokam pithouse villages developed, 

canals were built, a few trash mounds were purposefully capped with a caliche plaster, and red-

on-buff pottery was produced (Eighmy and McGuire 1989; Fish 1989; Haury 1976). Cable and 

Doyel (1987) suggested the Red Mountain phase to cover the transition from the Archaic to the 

Hohokam culture. Doyel (1991a) lists the characteristics of the Red Mountain phase as including 

small square houses, flexed inhumation burials, basin metates, and large corner-notched projectile 

points. Round, oval, rectangular, and square structures have all been documented at Red Mountain 

phase sites (Mabry 2000).  

Archaeologists have identified Red Mountain phase components at Pueblo Patricio, the Red 

Mountain site (Cable and Doyel 1985, 1987), Heritage Square (Henderson 1995), and possibly at 

Block 39 (Montero and Hackbarth 1992). Several sites north of the Phoenix Basin have also 

yielded radiocarbon dates in the Red Mountain phase date range (Mabry 2000:40). 

During the Vahki phase, the Phoenix Basin first emerged as distinct from other areas of 

southern Arizona. Hohokam Vahki phase assemblages include trough metates, plain brown ware 

ceramics, and polished red ware ceramics (Crown 1991a). Vahki ceramics were made by both 



14 – Chapter 1 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

the paddle-and-anvil and the coil-and-scrape methods (Foster et al. 1995). The production of 

carved shell jewelry, ground stone palettes, stone bowls, turquoise mosaics, and human figurines 

occurred during this phase (Cable and Doyel 1987; Foster et al. 1995; Gladwin et al. 1937). 

Mortuary patterns shifted from inhumation to cremation, indicating the introduction of new 

ideologies. 

During this period, pithouses became larger and more formal. Oversized pithouses, which may 

have served as community buildings, appear at large settlements such as Snaketown (Cable et al. 

1985; Haury 1976). Settlements became more permanent and structurally complex but still lacked 

the formal organization of later courtyard groups (Ciolek-Torello et al. 1999:32). In the Phoenix 

Basin, large-scale canal irrigation began, but agriculture still consisted largely of dry farming and 

floodwater farming in many areas (Crown 1991a; Doyel 1991a; Henderson 1989). 

The subsequent Estrella (A.D. 500–600) and Sweetwater (A.D. 600–700) phases are typified by 

Estrella and Sweetwater red-on-gray pottery, respectively. Together these phases represent the 

transition between the Vahki and Snaketown phases—that is, between a Vahki-phase Hohokam 

cultural pattern that is similar to patterns seen in other regions of the Southwest and a Snaketown-

phase Hohokam pattern that stands out as unique. Estrella Red-on-gray often included grooves 

between the coils of the pot on the outside of the vessel and simple, broad, and red-line designs. 

Haury (1976:220) identified an early version of Estrella Red-on-gray in which the potter polished 

over the painted lines, giving them diffused edges. Sweetwater Red-on-gray pottery sits as a 

transition between the earlier Estrella Red-on-gray and the later Snaketown Red-on-buff. 

Sweetwater Red-on-gray retains the practice of incising the exteriors of vessels, but the incising is 

not constrained to the coils of the pot and often produces elaborate decorative patterns. The 

painted designs become more elaborate as well, showing the emergence of a particular decorative 

style involving interlocking hachure motifs. Estrella houses at Snaketown included square and 

rectangular structures, although both were smaller than the square structures of the Vahki phase 

at that site. By the Sweetwater phase, rectangular houses were the norm. Cultural materials from 

the Vahki phase, such as figurines with crude featureless faces, continued through the Estrella and 

Sweetwater phases (Haury 1976). 

The Snaketown phase (A.D. 700–775) brought numerous changes to the Hohokam and represents 

the consolidation of Hohokam identity into a widespread cultural pattern. The first large-scale 

irrigation systems appeared during this phase (Foster et al. 1995). New traits included the 

deposition of trash in mounds and the introduction of hachured red-on-buff ceramics. Stone 

palettes, censers, and figurines became common and were often included as burial goods, 

indicating the spread of a shared mortuary cult. 

Domestic-use structures increased in size during the Snaketown phase, although the large square 

houses were no longer constructed. Pithouses were typically of the house-in-pit variety (Haury 1976). 

The Hohokam developed a pattern of grouping several houses together around a courtyard area 



Introduction and Background 

Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 15 

WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

(courtyard groups) that persisted through multiple generations of occupation, indicating household 

economies operated at the corporate or lineage level (Doyel 1991a). During this period, the Hohokam 

system began to expand beyond the Phoenix Basin with the establishment of small settlements in the 

lower Verde Valley and Tonto Basin (Ciolek-Torello 1998; Elson 1992). Similarly, it is during the late 

Pioneer period that interaction between the Phoenix Basin Hohokam and Hohokam communities 

in the Tucson Basin reached its apogee, reflected in a higher proportion of Phoenix Basin trade wares 

in the Tucson area and a greater stylistic affinity between both regions (Deaver 1984:397–398, 

1988:160, 1989a:177, 1989b:56, 1989c:68). 

1.5.1.2 Middle Formative: Colonial Period (ca. A.D. 775–950) 

The Colonial period is made up of two phases: the Gila Butte (A.D. 775–850) and the Santa Cruz 

(A.D. 850–950). This period witnessed the expansion of Hohokam culture beyond the Phoenix 

Basin and into many areas of southern and central Arizona. Oval ballcourts were constructed, and 

villages within the basin became larger. Well-crafted projectile points and carved and etched shell 

were common; cremation burials were standard (Fish 1989; Haury 1976). 

By the Gila Butte phase, structures (houses-in-pits) were primarily rectangular and organized into 

courtyard groups. These courtyard groups consisted of several structures oriented toward a 

common-use courtyard area (Crown 1991a). At the Grewe site, the locations of the courtyards 

became more permanent, with houses being rebuilt around the same courtyard (Craig 2000). 

Ballcourts had also appeared at a number of sites by the Gila Butte phase (Doyel 1980, 1991a; 

Wilcox and Sternberg 1983). The spread of Hohokam material culture to peripheral areas has been 

explicitly tied to the spread of the ballcourt system. The ball game appears linked to an ideological 

complex that also includes mortuary ritual (palettes, cremation) and exchange networks that 

moved ceramics, shell, and other goods through ballcourt communities in a periodic market 

exchange system (Abbott et al. 2007; Bayman 2002). 

These trends in architecture and the material culture continued through the Santa Cruz phase. 

Red-on-buff pottery reached its zenith during this phase, with tightly packed and well-executed design 

motifs (Crown 1991a:148). Pithouses continued to be rectangular or slightly oval in shape and were 

almost entirely of the house-in-pit variety (Haury 1976). Populations throughout the Hohokam world 

increased during the Colonial period, in part because irrigation technology improved, facilitating the 

reliable cultivation of maize, beans, squash, and cotton (Reid and Whittlesey 1997). Ballcourts were 

built at the larger sites throughout southern Arizona (Wilcox and Sternberg 1983). 

During the Colonial period, a settlement pattern emerged that was reflected in many areas of the 

Hohokam system. This pattern focused on the ballcourt village as the locus of community identity 

and local exchange systems. However, Hohokam site types also included diverse smaller 

settlements and use areas, many of which were used on a seasonal or intermittent basis. Previous 

studies (Gregory 1991; Wilcox 1978) have defined site types that include farmsteads (small 



16 – Chapter 1 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

settlements associated with agricultural field systems, with recurrent or long-term occupation) and 

fieldhouses (isolated structures associated with field systems that were occupied on a short-term 

or seasonal basis). In terms of enduring traces of Hohokam occupation on the landscape, these 

smaller sites make up a significant percentage of the sites recorded in the Hohokam culture area. 

1.5.1.3 Middle Formative: Sedentary Period (ca. A.D. 950–1150) 

Hohokam participation in exchange networks was at its zenith during the Colonial and Sedentary 

periods (Crown 1991a, 1991b; Doyel 1991a, 1991b). Sedentary period materials from nonlocal 

sources include shell, copper bells, obsidian and other fine-grained stone used in flaked lithic tool 

production, and andesite, quartz, and basalt for ground stone tools (Doyel 1991a:252). These 

materials indicate contact with the Anasazi, Mogollon, Dragoon, Trincheras, Yuman, and 

California coastal groups (Doyel 1991a). However, by the Sedentary period the quality of ceramic 

production had declined, and production on a mass scale resulted in simplified decorative styles. 

During the Sedentary period, sites continued to increase in size, and some, such as Snaketown, 

contained large central plazas and multiple ballcourts. Sacaton phase houses were ellipsoidal and 

somewhat larger than the structures of the Colonial period. The Sacaton phase Hohokam 

expanded irrigation throughout the Phoenix Basin. This period of canal construction accompanied 

the expansion of Hohokam populations, trade networks, and cultural patterns into outlying areas 

of the Hohokam system. As noted by Doyel (1981:70), “it is likely that the vast majority of the 

canals mapped by Midvale (1965) in the Gila Basin were completed by the Sacaton phase.” 

During the latter part of the Middle Formative period, the influence of the Hohokam cultural 

system on populations in southern Arizona began to wane. The export of red-on-buff painted 

pottery from the Gila River to outlying areas slowed dramatically around A.D. 950 (Wallace 1988; 

Wilcox 1987). In its place, a number of local ceramic series evolved that imperfectly emulated 

Hohokam Sedentary-style decoration but were clearly produced from local clays with a non-

Hohokam technology (Deaver 1989a, 1989b; Greenleaf 1975; Wallace 1986). Across southern 

Arizona, ballcourts as integrative features had been largely abandoned by about A.D. 1000, and 

widespread shifts in settlement location and configuration occurred (Ferg 1984). By the end of 

the Sacaton phase, many large Hohokam sites were abandoned, and, with the advent of the Classic 

period, Hohokam populations retracted from outlying areas and consolidated within the Phoenix 

Basin. 

1.5.1.4 Late Formative: Classic Period (ca. A.D. 1150–1350) 

Changes of the post-A.D. 950 period are sufficiently dramatic to suggest that the populations of 

southern Arizona were once again functioning as independent political and economic systems by 

the middle of the tenth century A.D. In southern Arizona, local systems flourished at the expense 

of regional systems, and within localities, districts were abandoned and new communities and 

community centers were established. Influential local systems included northern Mexico, the 



Introduction and Background 

Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 17 

WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

middle and lower San Pedro River valleys, the Papaguería, and the Tucson Basin. These new 

sociopolitical and economic relationships can be inferred from patterns in the indigenous and 

exotic ceramics in archaeological assemblages. In the Tucson Basin, for example, Tanque Verde 

Red-on-brown was produced with a vigor not reflected by its Gila Basin counterpart, Casa Grande 

Red-on-buff. Similarly, in the Safford region, San Carlos Red-on-brown (a stylistic homologue of 

Tanque Verde Red-on-brown) was produced in quantities unmatched in the Gila Basin. In 

addition, the influx of pottery from the San Pedro River valley, the Tonto Basin, and the Cibola 

region suggests that a more sustained interaction with peoples to the southeast and northeast was 

occurring (Wallace and Holmlund 1984:176–177). 

In the Phoenix Basin, the Classic period (A.D. 1150–1350) is made up of two phases: the Soho and 

the Civano. Architecture during the Classic period changed from shallow pithouses to adobe 

structures and adobe-walled compounds. The Hohokam further expanded their canal systems in 

upstream areas, constructing new settlements focused on platform mounds. Downstream areas along 

canal systems experienced significant depopulation, and many were abandoned. Ballcourts ceased 

to be built, but some may have continued to be used (Eighmy and McGuire 1989; Haury 1976). 

Early Southwestern archaeologists viewed the Classic period of the Phoenix Basin Hohokam as the 

epitome of prehistoric culture in central and southern Arizona (Gladwin et al. 1937). However, as 

Abbott et al. (2003:4–5) have stated, most archaeologists now view the Classic period as a time of 

rapid change and pressure from outside the region. During this period, several of the major villages 

along the Gila River, such as Snaketown, were abandoned or only occupied on a limited basis. This 

is in contrast to the Salt River, where most large villages continued to be occupied (Foster et al. 

1995). 

During the Soho phase (A.D. 1150–1250), architecture consisted of both pithouses and 

aboveground structures (Doyel 1981). Post-reinforced and solid adobe-walled structures were 

built. By this time, the regional ballcourt system had either weakened or ceased to exist and was 

replaced by large platform mounds (Doyel 1991a). There was a decrease in the production of 

red-on-buff pottery and an increase in the production of red ware. Cremation burial in ceramic 

urns was common, although there is also evidence of inhumation (Doyel 1974). Soho sites 

consisted of clusters of structures that were often surrounded by an adobe compound wall. 

The Civano phase (A.D. 1250–1350) saw an elaboration of the architectural trends evident during 

the Soho phase (Doyel 1991a:253). Adobe walls became more substantial, and rooms were often 

constructed in a contiguous pattern (Doyel 1974, 1981). Platform mounds are found at major 

sites, and great houses, the basal floors of which were platforms, were built at Casa Grande and 

perhaps at Pueblo Grande. Inhumation burials dominated, Salado polychrome ceramics were the 

common decorated ware, and red-on-buff ware production drastically decreased. Crown (1994) 

argues that the proliferation of Roosevelt Red ware ceramics signaled the spread of a new religious 



18 – Chapter 1 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

ideology through Hohokam, Mogollon, and Pueblo communities in south/central Arizona and 

southwestern New Mexico. 

Crown (1991a) has argued that new platform mounds were not being built during the Civano 

phase, but that adobe structures were built on top of the existing mounds and apparently used as 

habitations. Evidence regarding the social function of the platform mound is mixed. Data from 

early excavations at the Pueblo Grande platform mound and from the Hohokam Expressway 

project indicate that the mound was not used as a full-time residence by an elite group. Instead, 

multiple groups may have used it for a variety of tasks such as food preparation, feasting, food 

storage, and rituals and ceremonies (Downum and Bostwick 2003:199). This interpretation may 

apply to other platform mound sites as well. 

Classic period occupation of the Florence area appears to have been limited, with no evidence of 

the establishment of new communities. Ciolek-Torello and Wegener (2011) suggest that during 

this period much of the Middle Formative period population of the Queen Creek Valley and 

Florence Junction area aggregated into newly established settlements in the Queen Creek Delta 

(Ciolek-Torello and Wegener 2011:288). On a larger scale, population movements from 

settlements throughout the Gila Valley toward mound communities along the Salt River may have 

contributed to population decline (Abbott 2000). 

1.5.1.5 Late Formative: Post-Classic Period (ca. A.D. 1350–1450) 

In the Phoenix Basin, a late Classic or post-Classic phase termed the Polvorón has been 

identified (Chenault 1996, 2000; Sires 1984). However, some archaeologists working in the 

region (Henderson and Hackbarth 2000) believe that the Polvorón is not a valid phase and that 

the remains identified as Polvorón merely represent variation in the Civano phase. The Polvorón 

phase was first defined by Sires (1984) and Crown (1994) from work on the Salt-Gila Aqueduct 

project. Excavations at the site of El Polvorón (Sires 1984) in the Queen Creek drainage 

revealed a small prehistoric site dating late in the Hohokam chronological sequence. 

Inhabitants of the site lived in pithouses, practiced agriculture, and had a material culture in the 

Hohokam tradition.  

The Polvorón phase marked a significant change in the Hohokam culture (Crown 1994). There 

appears to have been a dramatic decrease in population levels, a new preference for pithouses, 

and a return to the exploitation of diverse resources and marginal areas, with a possible decrease 

in the reliance on agriculture. Roosevelt Red ware (Salado polychrome) ceramics were used in 

high frequencies, buff wares were used in very low frequencies, and obsidian use greatly 

increased (Doyel 1991a; Sires 1984). 

The Late Formative period ends sometime around A.D. 1450 with the abandonment of the 

major Formative period settlements in the Salt and Gila river valleys, the Tucson Basin, and 

the rest of southern Arizona. Various competing theories have arisen to explain this cultural 

change. In the Hohokam core along the Salt and Gila rivers, soil salinization as a result of 



Introduction and Background 

Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 19 

WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

intensive irrigation with alkaline water, waterborne diseases spread through canal systems, 

overpopulation leading to resource depletion, social and political reconfiguration, raiding and 

warfare, internal strife, climatic change in the form of floods and droughts, or some 

combination of these have all been proposed (e.g., Abbott 2003; Ackerly 1982; Andrews and 

Bostwick 1997). In areas of southern Arizona that were not dependent on a similar level of 

social organization or extensive networks of irrigation canals, other factors may have been at 

work. Little hard evidence is available. What is clear is that when the Spanish first entered the 

southwestern United States less than a century later, the large Late Formative period 

settlements across southern Arizona had been long abandoned and the history of these 

prehistoric cultures already made part of the folklore of the native peoples that the Spanish 

encountered. 

1.5.2. Historic Period (1800–1950) 

In 1821, Mexico gained its independence from Spain, and it was during this period between 

Mexican independence and 1846 (the year the Mexican-American War began) that Anglo-

Americans first established a substantial presence in the middle Gila River region. The first 

Americans to enter the area appear to have been Sylvester and James Ohio Pattie, father and son 

beaver trappers who made several trapping excursions along the San Pedro, Gila, and Colorado 

Rivers during the years 1825 and 1826 (Walker and Bufkin 1979:17).  

In 1846, Colonel Stephen Watts Kearny, who had been charged with establishing American 

control of California and the Southwest, followed the Gila River west toward California after 

securing New Mexico. Along the way, he met Lieutenant Christopher “Kit” Carson, who 

informed him that the war in California was essentially over. Kearny continued westward with a 

minimal contingent of men, sending the rest back to New Mexico. He and his party followed the 

river, passing by the Piman villages. When he reached California, he found that Carson had 

exaggerated and that the hostilities there were not quite at an end; nevertheless, his trip had not 

been wasted as it resulted in the first reliable mapping of the Gila River. 

The Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo ended the Mexican-American War in 1848 and established the 

Gila River as the Mexican-American border from the western boundary of New Mexico to the 

confluence of the Gila and Colorado Rivers. Following the discovery of gold in California in 1849, 

the Gila Trail, as the route established along the Gila River by Kearny had come to be known, 

became a major thoroughfare for would-be gold miners on their way to California. The Piman 

peoples living along the Gila River frequently sold food and supplies to the westbound travelers 

and, when necessary, provided defense against the Apache. Recognizing this aid on the part of the 

Pima, Congress allocated $10,000 for gifts (in the form of farming implements and other tools) in 

1859. An additional $1,000 was also allocated for a survey and the establishment of a reservation. 



20 – Chapter 1 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

Initially, 64,000 acres of land were set aside for the Pima, which was far less territory than they 

claimed and required for farming and grazing; in 1869 an additional 81,140 acres were added, 

followed by another 9,000 acres at the eastern end of the reservation in 1876 (Russell 1908:31–

32). In 1853, the Gadsden Purchase expanded Arizona from the Gila River south to the 

present-day Mexican border; 10 years later, the Arizona Territory was established after successful 

lobbying by Charles D. Poston. Mining camps and towns began springing up in the territory, 

specifically in the region colloquially referred to as the Copper Basin, a mineral-rich zone situated 

between two ecological regions—the Tonto Transition section of the Colorado Plateau 

semi-desert province to the north and the Sonoran Desert section of the American semi-desert 

and desert province to the south (Seefeldt 2005:3). 

In response to the promise of rich silver deposits, Euroamericans began prospecting 

throughout the Copper Basin. Explorers such as King Woolsey and Cal Jackson searched for 

mineral deposits in the eastern portion of the Pinal Mountains near present-day Globe in the 

mid- to late 1860s (Bigando 1989). The important territorial town of Florence was established 

in 1866 along the southern bank of the Gila River. Florence grew rapidly in its fi rst decade, 

making it one of the largest cities in the territory. When Pinal County was formed in 1875, 

Florence became the county seat. It was also in 1875 that silver was discovered near Superior , 

and the Silver King mine was founded. Florence experienced another population expansion 

when it became a waypoint on the route transporting ore from the Silver King, which lasted 

until the mine folded in 1889. The Ray mine, founded in 1882, also had a tremendous influence 

on the economy of the Florence area. In 1907, the Ray Consolidated Copper Co. gained control 

of the mining operations, and by 1920 over 4,000 people lived in Ray. The mines closed during 

the Depression but reopened in 1937, operating under the ownership of Kennecott Copper 

(Seefeldt 2005).  

In the 1870s, canal companies began to be established in Florence; these companies were 

founded to ensure a water supply to the town and its adjacent farms and ranches (Sobin 

1977:23). In 1886, one of these companies, the Florence Canal and Land Company, began the 

construction of a large network of canals and the Florence Reservoir. The Florence Canal was 

completed in 1888. By this time, the diversion of water had become a serious problem for the 

Pima, and many relocated north to the Salt River where farming—which had become the 

cornerstone of their economy—was still possible. Indian Agent R. G. Wheeler protested to the 

Department of the Interior that the Florence Canal would undermine the Pimas’ ability to farm 

even further. Although the Department of the Interior agreed with Wheeler, no effort was 

made to prevent the diversion of the water (Russell 1908:33). As a result of the water supply 

made possible by all the canal building, Hispanic farmers began arriving in Florence around the 

turn of the twentieth century, many with the intention of growing cotton. The cotton industry 

in Florence peaked in the 1920s (particularly following the construction of the Ashurst-Hayden 

Diversion Dam in 1921) but declined thereafter, although cotton continues to be an important 

crop in the area. 



Introduction and Background 

Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 21 

WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

Controversy over water continued to plague the Florence region into the new century. A solution 

to the water problems had been proposed by Congressman Carl Hayden (elected in 1912), who 

argued that the Pima should not have their water supply restored directly from the Gila River 

(which would deprive the cotton farmers upstream). Rather, he proposed that a dam be built that 

would reclaim runoff and thus alleviate the Pimas’ need for water. The San Carlos Project Bill was 

passed in 1924 after being delayed by World War I. However, half the lands allocated for the 

irrigation district to be served by the dam—50,000 acres—were outside reservation lands. These 

lands were exploited by white growers, who provided excessive competition to the Piman farmers. 

The Pima did not have the economic resources to farm the lands nearly as efficiently as the large 

agricultural companies. In addition, an error was made in the estimation of the runoff rates, and 

the Coolidge Dam (which was completed in 1928 and forms San Carlos Lake) did not provide the 

expected volume of water. In fact, it prevented floodwater from reaching downstream, which 

desiccated reservation lands even further (Sheridan 1995:217–218). 

Although agriculture played a major role in the economy of Florence and vicinity from an early 

date, the middle Gila area is also known for its prisons. By 1907, the Territorial Prison in Yuma 

was filled to capacity, and construction began on a new facility in Florence. By 1909, all of the 

Yuma prison’s inmates had been relocated to Florence (Wagoner 1970). During World War II, 

Florence was the site of Camp Florence, constructed for Italian prisoners of war who had been 

captured in North Africa. The Gila River Relocation Center, an internment camp for Japanese-

Americans, was established at Sacaton (Walker and Bufkin 1979:56). 

1.5.2.1 Charles Debrille Poston 

Charles D. Poston, often referred to as the “Father of Arizona,” was an adventurer, explorer, 

and miner and the alcalde of Tubac, Arizona. He was also instrumental in gaining territorial 

status for Arizona (Crowther 1997; Gressinger 1961). Born on April 20, 1825, in 

Elizabethtown, Kentucky, young Charles grew into a restless and ambitious man who, like 

many of his time, looked to the west for his fortune and wealth. In early January 1854, Poston 

and others set out on an expedition to establish a railroad route and depot across lands recently 

acquired from Mexico through the Gadsden Purchase. After nearly perishing in a shipwreck 

off the port of Guaymas, Poston’s expedition traveled northward along the coast in search of 

prime real estate for his railroad and depot. Unfortunately for Charles, the Gadsden Purchase 

was not finalized until June 8, 1854, and Poston wrongly assumed that the purchase would 

include a seaport somewhere along the Sea of Cortez (Trimble 1998). After receiving this news, 

he and his party headed north from Sonora in search of riches in the mineral-rich mountains 

of what is today southern Arizona. 

After discovering copper-rich ore deposits near Ajo, Poston traveled east to Washington D.C. 

to secure investors and capital with which he established the Sonora Exploring and Mining 

Company (Arizona Historical Society 1997). In 1856, he and his party arrived in Tucson and 



22 – Chapter 1  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

quickly established the company’s headquarters at an abandoned Spanish presidio in Tubac, 

Arizona (Trimble 1998). Shortly thereafter, Poston purchased Arivaca Ranch on the western 

side of the Cerro Colorado Mountains and reopened several abandoned mines in the area. 

Tubac rapidly grew into a booming mining community with Poston as its alcalde or mayor. He 

oversaw all the criminal and civil affairs of the mining community and even performed 

marriages for his miners (Trimble 1998). From 1856 to 1861, Poston and the Sonora Exploring 

and Mining Company successfully conducted mining operations at the Heintzelman mine and 

other mines in the Cerro Colorado Mountain region but were frequently threatened by Apache 

raids and bandits (Crowther 1997). By 1861, federal troops had ignited a war with the Apache , 

and, complicating matters, the civil war also began. The U.S. government quickly turned its 

attention to the war, abandoning forts in the region and leaving communities to fend for 

themselves against the Apache (Trimble 1998). 

In 1862, after losing his brother John Lee Poston at the Heintzelman mine and nearly losing 

his own life during an Apache raid on Tubac, Charles Poston left Arizona, abandoning over a 

million dollars’ worth of mining equipment (Crowther 1997). He headed back to Washington 

D.C. to lobby for territorial status for Arizona and met with President Lincoln and other key 

members of Congress. In 1863, Arizona officially became a territory and soon after, President 

Lincoln appointed Charles to serve as Arizona’s first superintendent of Indian affairs (Crowther 

1997). Returning to Arizona in 1864, Poston was also appointed Arizona’s first delegate to 

Congress but was quickly defeated only a few months later during an official election.  

In 1868 during a trip to India, Poston was introduced to Zoroastrianism and quickly became an 

avid follower of that religion. In 1877, he co-published The Sun Worshippers of Asia, a book that 

outlined the history of the Zoroaster religion and its followers (Stanley 2014). In 1878, while 

working in the U.S. land office in Florence, Poston attempted to build a temple to the sun on top 

of Poston Butte (formerly known as Primrose Hill) approximately 2 miles northeast of town. He 

built a road to the top of the butte and constructed a makeshift temple there with a giant blue and 

white flag featuring a huge red sun on top of it (Stanley 2014). Funds for Poston’s temple quickly 

ran out, and the venture was abandoned. In 1899, the territorial legislature awarded Charles a 

pension of 25 dollars a month, and in 1890 he took a job as Agent of the Department of 

Agriculture and moved to Phoenix (Crowther 1997; Trimble 1998). 

Charles Poston died on June 24, 1902, and was initially buried in an unmarked grave at the Porter 

Cemetery (now part of the Pioneer & Military Memorial Park) in Phoenix (Gressinger 1961; 

Pioneers’ Cemetery Association 2018). In 1907, the Maricopa Chapter of the Daughters of the 

American Revolution (D.A.R.) raised the money needed to place a granite memorial marker at his 

gravesite in the Porter Cemetery (Gressinger 1961). In 1916, Colonel James H. McClintock 

published “Arizona, the Youngest State,” and within his book he mentioned Charles Poston’s 

wish to be buried at the summit of Poston Butte, the site where he planned to erect his temple of 

the sun. Through Col. McClintock’s efforts and with the help of the D.A.R., the state legislature, 



 Introduction and Background 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 23 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

a few of Poston’s friends, and his grandson, Gustavus Debrille Pope, enough money was raised 

to erect a monument on top of the butte (Gressinger 1961). 

In March 1925, under the supervision of George R. Kelly, state historian, and R. B. Sims, 

superintendent of the Arizona State Prison, prisoners from the state prison constructed a 

13.5-foot-tall cobble stone pyramid with a 13.5-foot-diameter base from locally available materials 

found on top of the butte (Arizona Blade-Tribune 1925a, 4 March 1925:1–4). Soon after, Charles 

Poston’s remains and the granite grave marker from the cemetery in Phoenix were moved to the 

monument (Arizona Blade-Tribune 1925b, 2 May 1925:1), and a copper memorial plate donated by 

General John C. Greenway on behalf of the New Cornelia Copper Company of Ajo was placed 

on the southern side of the pyramid. Charles Poston was reburied in a steel casket beneath the 

pyramid monument, facing the rising sun, and a bottle containing two copies of the Arizona 

Blade-Tribune bearing an account of his early history of Arizona was placed next to the casket 

(Arizona Blade-Tribune 1925b, 2 May 1925:1; Gressinger 1961). 

On April 26, 1925, the official dedication ceremony of the Charles D. Poston Monument took 

place, with a reported 1,500 people in attendance. Col. McClintock, Governor George W. P. Hunt, 

and Mrs. Thomas T. Moore, regent of the Maricopa Chapter of the D.A.R., gave speeches and 

paid tribute to the man (Arizona Blade-Tribune 1925b, 2 May 1925:1). The ceremony concluded 

with the crowd singing “America” and a procession down the Butte on the road built by Poston 

himself. In 1975, the monument was listed on the Arizona State Register of Historic Places (SHPO 

Property No. 38673; Arizona State Parks 2018). 

  



Page 24 has been deliberately left blank. 



Chapter 2 Historic Properties Treatment Plan 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 25 

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

CHAPTER 2. HISTORIC PROPERTIES TREATMENT PLAN 

This section sets out the treatments intended to avoid, minimize, and resolve the direct and 

indirect impacts of Project activities on the six archaeological sites identified in the APE. Five of 

the archaeological sites will be directly impacted by the proposed construction activities, and one 

archaeological site is susceptible to indirect or inadvertent impacts from the proposed 

construction activities. Monitoring is the preferred treatment to resolve the direct and indirect 

impacts of construction activities to these sites. The monitoring procedures and methods that will 

be utilized are set out in Chapter 3 of this HPTP. Specific monitoring work plans for each site 

are detailed in Chapter 5. All six archaeological sites are vulnerable to indirect or inadvertent 

adverse impacts resulting from the continued use of existing trail alignments, the unauthorized 

use of closed trail alignments, and general maintenance activities. Protection measures will be 

installed to prevent inadvertent adverse impacts to these six archaeological sites; these are detailed 

below in Section 2.1. The protective measures that will be implemented at each site are specifically 

described in Chapter 5.  

2.1. PROTECTION MEASURES 

All six archaeological sites are vulnerable to disturbance resulting from the continued use of 

existing trail alignments and the unauthorized use of closed trail alignments. The potential adverse 

impacts to these sites will be mitigated by using protective measures. The protective measures 

proposed include the placement of boulder barriers, the installation of protective signage, the 

development of informative signage and a site etiquette pocket guide, long-term monitoring of 

the archaeological sites, and cultural resources training of the Town’s maintenance personnel.  

2.1.1. Boulder Barriers 

Boulder barriers will be placed at numerous locations to prevent pedestrian and vehicular use of 

closed trail alignments and to promote the use of the formal trail network. The construction of 

the barriers will use boulders that are a minimum of 3 feet in diameter, spaced to prevent 

pedestrian traffic and prevent vehicles from passing through the barrier. The installation of 

boulder barriers will require construction monitoring by a qualified archaeologist and O’odham 

tribal monitor. The boulders used as barriers should be obtained from outside site boundaries; 

construction crews should not acquire any boulders from within site boundaries. 

2.1.2. Protective Signage 

Signage will be installed along the trail network at some of the archaeological sites as a protective 

measure. The intention is to promote the use of the approved trail network and deter trail users 

and the Town’s maintenance personnel from the closed trail alignments. The proposed signs 

would instruct trail users and the Town’s maintenance personnel in vehicles to “Stay on Trail.” 

Signs will be emplaced so that they are visible to traffic from either travel direction. The goal of 



26 – Chapter 2  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

this signage is to restrict the current and future uses of the exiting road or trail prisms to avoid 

advertent damage to the archaeological sites. The Town’s maintenance personnel will receive 

cultural resources training and will know the proper procedures and actions to take in these areas.  

2.1.3. Informative Signage and the Site Etiquette Pocket Guide 

Informative signage and an informative pamphlet or pocket guide will be developed in 

collaboration with the Gila River Indian Community Tribal Historic Preservation Officer to 

educate the public on the importance and significance of the archaeological sites present within 

the Preserve. The signage will be installed at strategic locations within the park, and the site 

etiquette booklet will be placed at the information kiosk at the newly constructed trailhead. The 

goals of these outreach materials are to educate the public on O’odham histories and perspectives 

of the area; promote public stewardship of the archaeological sites, communicate the importance 

of historic preservation, and outline the etiquette or treatment of cultural materials while visiting 

the Preserve. These outreach materials will be sensitive to the character of the archaeological sites 

and their surroundings and will not endanger the resources’ long-term preservation. 

2.1.4. Long-Term Archaeological Site Monitoring  

The Town is committed to long-term cultural resources preservation and the protection of the 

cultural resources present within the Poston Butte preserve. The BLM still retains the 

responsibility for the cultural resources under the R&PP Act lease. For this reason, the Town will 

partner with the BLM and the Arizona Site Steward Program to protect the cultural resources 

present within the Poston Butte Preserve. The Arizona Site Steward Program is an organization 

of volunteers whose chief objectives are to assist with cultural resources management by site 

monitoring, reporting any damage such as illegal collecting or looting at cultural sites to the 

appropriate land manager, and to uphold all state and federal preservation laws (Arizona State 

Parks 2019).  

The Community Services Director (CSD) of the Town will act as the Arizona Site Stewards 

Coordinator and point of contact for the Site Stewards working within the Park. The CSD will 

attend the Arizona Site Stewards training and will work closely with the regional coordinator for 

the central region of the Arizona Site Stewards program.  

It is the Town’s responsibility to nominate the archaeological sites located on Town-managed-

lands and the BLM’s responsibility to nominate the archaeological sites located on BLM-managed-

lands to the Site Stewards official list. Additionally, the Site Stewards will need BLM volunteer 

agreements in place to monitor archaeological sites situated on federally-managed lands.  

Each of the six archaeological sites will be inspected by the Arizona Site Stewards Program on a 

bi-annual basis; these inspections will document the current condition of the sites relative to the 

prior six-month period. The Town also shall provide the BLM with information regarding the 



 Historic Properties Treatment Plan 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 27 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

condition of the cultural sites bi-annually. These will be sent into the BLM Lower Sonoran Field 

Office Archeologist. Notes, maps, photographs, and an assessment of the condition relative to 

the prior period will be provided to the Town and BLM for use in evaluating the effectiveness of 

the protective measures in protecting the archaeological sites from disturbance due to the 

continued use of the trail network. If the monitoring of the archaeological sites finds that 

continued use of the trail network is adversely impacting the archaeological sites, the Town will 

develop additional mitigation measures to protect the sites in consultation with the BLM. 

2.2. CULTURAL RESOURCES AWARENESS TRAINING 

Any personnel who will be working in areas or in capacities where archaeological resources, 

human remains, or funerary objects could be inadvertently unearthed, including Town of Florence 

staff, contractors, and subcontractors, will receive cultural resources awareness training.  

The training program will be prepared by WestLand in collaboration with the Gila River Indian 

Community Tribal Historic Preservation Officer, the Town, the BLM and SHPO and will consist 

of a cultural resources sensitivity video. The video will convey O’odham histories and perspectives 

of the cultural sites present within the Preserve and will be intended to prepare construction and 

Town personnel to correctly implement the requirements and procedures outlined in this HPTP. 

The video will also prepare personnel to correctly implement the requirements and procedures in 

the event of an unexpected discovery or the discovery of potential human remains as set out in 

Appendix A. Personnel will be trained to recognize potential human remains, sacred objects and 

deposits, objects of cultural patrimony, and previously unrecorded archaeological deposits that 

may meet the definition of an archaeological site. Copies of Appendix A will be provided to all 

municipal supervisory personnel working at the Preserve.  

The cultural resources training program will be updated as necessary and integrated into training 

of contractors and employees working in areas of known or suspected archeological sites. Senior 

leadership and supervisory staff working at the park will attend Arizona Site Stewards training, 

and the cultural resources sensitivity video will be presented to all staff working at the park on an 

annual basis. The Town will also make this video available online, as an easily accessible tool to 

educate its staff and the public.   

2.3. ADDITIONAL GROUND-DISTURBING ACTIVTIES 

In the event that the Town of Florence decides to construct additional facilities or infrastructure 

or conduct any new ground-disturbing activities not outlined in the Plan of Development, the 

Town must undergo an official approval process with the BLM and SHPO.  

  



Page 28 has been deliberately left blank. 



Chapter 3 Monitoring and Discovery Plan 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 29 

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

CHAPTER 3. MONITORING AND DISCOVERY PLAN  

Monitoring all-ground disturbing construction activities within an archaeological site and a 

50-foot buffer is the planned treatment to mitigate the direct and indirect impacts of the 

proposed construction activities to the six archaeological sites located within the APE.  

3.1. MONITORING PLAN 

WestLand will produce a cultural sensitivity video in collaboration with the Gila River Indian 

Community Tribal Historic Preservation Officer, the Town, the BLM, and SHPO that will train 

construction personnel on why archaeological monitoring is necessary, the kinds of buried 

archaeological resources that can be expected within the APE and how to recognize them, the 

importance of coordination and communication, and the steps to be followed in the event cultural 

material is encountered, with particular emphasis on the appropriate treatment of human remains 

and associated funerary objects. This cultural sensitivity video will be viewed by all construction 

personnel prior to any ground-disturbing activities. The video will then be provided to the Town 

to be used in educating operations and maintenance personnel after construction is complete.  

A Secretary of Interior–qualified archaeological monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be present 

during all ground-disturbing construction activities within an archaeological site and a 50-foot buffer 

and will attend daily tailgate meetings with the construction crew to reinforce the monitoring 

procedures. The monitors will keep a daily log documenting location(s) monitored, the construction 

supervisor on duty, and the time spent monitoring, as well as whether artifacts or other cultural 

resources were encountered and the measures taken in that event. During construction periods, the 

monitors will collaboratively submit weekly monitoring reports to the BLM in the form of an email 

with photographic documentation. The monitors shall coordinate closely with construction 

supervisors and Town of Florence staff in order to ensure that the monitoring is carried out in a safe 

and timely manner and in compliance with all applicable regulations and standards.  

In case of a discovery (defined here as the identification of subsurface cultural deposits), the 

following step will be taken: 

• The construction foreman will halt all construction activities within 50 feet of the discovery.   

 

• The archaeological monitor will determine the nature of the discovery and notify 

WestLand’s Principal Investigator and/or Archaeology Division Manager, who will 

immediately notify the BLM. The archaeological monitor will then assess the NRHP 

eligibility of the discovered material. Depending on the type, context, and NRHP eligibility 

of the discovery, different courses of action may be taken.  



30 – Chapter 3  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

o If a small number of undiagnostic artifacts, such as plain ware ceramic sherds or 

flaked stone debitage, is discovered but cannot be associated with a feature, 

construction needs to stop briefly to allow the archaeological monitor time to 

record the artifacts and their location using a GPS unit. The archaeological monitor 

will analyze the artifacts in the field and in most situations will not collect them. In 

the event that artifact(s) are discovered that are of exceptional cultural or temporal 

diagnostic significance, WestLand will notify the appropriate contact at the BLM, 

and treatment will follow in accordance with the decisions made in consultation 

with the BLM. 

 

o If the discovery constitutes an intact NRHP-eligible subsurface feature, the 

archaeological monitor will have the time to record the feature with a GPS unit, 

photographs, profile drawings, and field notes.  

 

▪ If the subsurface feature is exposed, and additional construction will further 

destroy it, the archaeological monitor will coordinate with construction 

personnel and Town of Florence staff to find an alternative location for the 

construction activity to avoid further damage to the feature.  

 

▪ If the subsurface feature is exposed, and additional construction will further 

destroy it, and the construction activity cannot be moved, WestLand will first 

consult with the BLM and will then follow the excavation field strategies laid 

out below in Section 3.2 so that the adverse impacts of the ground 

disturbance on the discovery are mitigated. WestLand’s Principal Investigator 

and/or Archaeology Division Manager will notify and consult with the BLM 

should any deviation from the strategies laid out in Section 3.2 become 

necessary for resolving adverse impacts to the discovery. Consultation with 

SHPO is also necessary if there is to be any deviation from the HPTP.  

 

• In the event of the discovery of human remains and associated artifacts, WestLand will notify 

the appropriate contact at the BLM and/or the Repatriation Coordinator at the ASM and will 

follow the protocols and procedures outlined in Appendix A: Proposed Actions for the 

Treatment of Native American Human Remains and Associated Items That May Be 

Encountered in the Poston Butte Preserve. Treatment will follow in accordance with the 

decisions made in consultation with the BLM, the ASM, and the tribe(s). This treatment will 

comply with the stipulations of Appendix A and the Burial Agreement. 

 

•  Construction work can resume in the vicinity (within 50 feet) of the discovery upon 

completion of the consultation and/or data recovery efforts. 



 Monitoring and Discovery Plan 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 31 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

3.2. EXCAVATION FIELD METHODS 

WestLand is dedicated to high-quality scientific research. The following sections provide 

overviews of and details about the field procedures and methods that will be implemented during 

the archaeological monitoring to recover artifacts, specimens, and samples and to provide a 

documentary record of these studies. 

3.2.1. Proveniencing, Inventory, and Quality Assurance 

WestLand treats archaeological explorations as serious, scientifically valuable undertakings. At all 

times, control must be maintained over the excavation procedures to ensure the validity of the 

findings. To this end, WestLand uses integrated provenience, inventory, and quality assurance 

systems throughout the course of a project. All excavations are considered unique recovery locations 

and assigned unique provenience numbers. The number assigned to a recovery provenience is 

transcribed on all notes, photographs, maps, artifacts, specimens, and any other record or item 

recovered from that provenience in order to ensure that all the information can be efficiently and 

accurately linked back to the recovery location. This is required to make useful and meaningful 

analyses of the spatial associations of the objects and features and the data and recorded 

characteristics of these objects and features that derive from subsequent analytical study. All field 

bags and containers of artifacts, specimens, sediments, and samples removed from the provenience 

are assigned inventory numbers. Inventory numbers are unique to individual bags for the lifetime of 

that bag. These inventory numbers are a way of tracking the location and status of all bags and 

materials entrusted to WestLand’s care. Throughout the provenience and inventory process, an 

integrated quality assurance system checks and double-checks the provenience and inventory 

information. These systems ensure that the results are accurate and that the inventory is complete. 

3.2.2. Spatial Control of the Archaeological Record  

WestLand will use geographic information system programs to maintain maps of all excavation 

units and points of interest identified during excavation. Archaeologists will establish a primary 

datum that will be used for both vertical and horizontal metric control. Horizontal coordinates 

will be measured relative to the UTM grid. Supplemental control points will be established, as 

needed. Features will be hand-mapped. Each map will have at least two control points. The 

horizontal and vertical positions of these control points will be mapped relative to the primary 

datum and site grid. The hand-drawn maps will be digitized and integrated into the overall site 

map. The resultant computer-generated maps will be field-checked for completeness and accuracy 

and later professionally produced for use in the final report. Updated working field maps will be 

maintained that show the progress of the excavations, including all exploratory units, cultural 

features, and site boundaries. 



32 – Chapter 3  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

3.2.3. Feature Excavation Methods  

The following sections describe the excavation methods for the most common feature types expected. 

3.2.3.1. Architectural Features  

Architectural features are typically the most productive contexts at archaeological sites in terms of 

information return on effort. First, the style of the architecture is often indicative of cultural identity 

and usually representative of a cultural era. Second, these features are the constructed “activity 

spaces” where a variety of day-to-day activities took place. The interior floor spaces of such features 

yield a wealth of archaeological information. Third, after abandonment, architectural features were 

commonly used as trash repositories, and the fill of these structures usually contains an abundance 

of day-to-day debris. Following is an overview of the excavation methods that will be employed 

for the architectural features: 

• After discovery, a 1-by-2-m control unit will be excavated in each prehistoric walled space 

(e.g., pit structure, freestanding structure, room or courtyard in a multiroom structure). The 

control unit will be excavated in natural layers or 10-cm levels, whichever is smaller. Sediments 

removed during excavation will be sifted through ¼-inch mesh screens, and artifacts and 

specimens will be collected. Smaller mesh screens may be used where warranted to recover 

artifacts or specimens that would not be captured by the standard ¼-inch mesh screens. 

Sediment samples for paleobotanical and palynological studies may be collected if warranted. 

• Fill deposits in the structures will be characterized as one of two primary depositional units: 

(1) post-abandonment fill and (2) structural debris. The former is composed of sediment and 

trash accumulations that reflect post-abandonment activities or the natural processes of erosion 

and deposition. The latter represents the collapse of the structure and effectively seals the 

materials that were in the structure at the time of abandonment and collapse. Fill deposits will be 

removed en masse to the top of the structural debris layer or to within 10 cm of the floor when 

the structural debris is not evident. This level will not be screened because a quantitative sample 

of this trash will have already been collected from the control unit; however, a grab sample of 

diagnostic and rare artifacts and specimens will be made to augment the screened sample. 

Examples of diagnostic and rare artifacts and specimens include painted pottery, rim sherds from 

pottery vessels, stone tools, worked and unworked marine and freshwater shell, jewelry, 

nonutilitarian stone artifacts, and other rare items not commonly recovered from screened 

samples. Any human remains encountered will also be recovered and treated according to the 

protocols set out in Appendix A.  

• The structural debris layer or the fill within 10 cm of the floor (the near-floor fill) will be sifted 

through ¼-inch mesh to recover materials in association with the floor. Smaller mesh screens 



 Monitoring and Discovery Plan 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 33 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

may be used when warranted to recover artifacts or specimens that would not be captured by 

the standard ¼-inch mesh screens. 

• Intramural features exposed will be excavated, and the fill sediments will be sifted through ¼-inch 

mesh for artifact and specimen recovery. Smaller mesh screens may be used when warranted to 

recover artifacts or specimens that would not be captured by the standard ¼-inch mesh screens. 

• Sediment samples for the recovery of charred botanical materials will be collected from 

hearths, firepits, and other thermal features in the structural spaces or from the structural 

debris in burned structures. 

• Sediment samples will be collected for palynological studies from sealed contexts beneath 

objects found in place on the floor surface of the structure, from the fill of the firepit or hearth, 

from the floor surface surrounding the firepit, and from other contexts based on the 

judgement of the excavator as to whether they may be informative. 

3.2.3.2. Extramural Pits 

This feature category includes all pits (except human and animal burials) identified outside of 

walled living spaces. This category includes a variety of pit types that most commonly are 

divided into thermal and nonthermal categories based on the presence or absence of evidence 

of burning in the pit. Documentation will consist of recording the physical characteristics of 

each pit including dimensions, shape, contents, and the presence of evidence of burning such 

as fire-affected rocks, ash, charcoal, or oxidation of the pit walls. Extramural pits will be 

partially excavated and, in some circumstances, completely excavated.  

Extramural pits are typically simple features with symmetrical shapes; information about form, 

function, and content can be obtained by excavating one-half of the feature. Pits will be divided into 

two sections, each approximating one half of the pit. One section will be excavated in natural layers 

or 10-cm levels, whichever is smaller. Sediments removed will be sifted through ¼-inch or smaller 

mesh for the recovery of artifacts and specimens. Sediment samples for paleobotanical and 

palynological studies may be collected if warranted. In certain cases, the remainder of the extramural 

pit will be excavated. The second section will be excavated in circumstances where the form is not 

symmetrical; it is necessary to obtain a larger sample of diagnostic artifacts, chronometric samples, or 

specimens from the feature; or the feature represents an unusual deposit (e.g., a cache).  

3.2.3.3. Middens 

Middens are defined here as discrete locations used for trash disposal. This is a feature category 

distinct from the trash deposits commonly comprising the post-abandonment fill of architectural 

features and extramural pits. A 1-by-2-m control unit will be excavated in each midden feature 

identified. Additional units may be excavated at the discretion of the excavator if it appears that the 



34 – Chapter 3  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

midden deposit has distinct depositional aspects that cannot be sampled in a single unit. Each control 

unit will be excavated in natural layers or 10-cm levels, whichever is smaller. Sediments will be sifted 

through ¼-inch or smaller mesh for the recovery of artifacts and specimens. Sediment samples for 

paleobotanical and palynological studies may be collected if warranted. 

3.2.3.4. Roasting Mounds 

Roasting mounds are piles of ash-laden sediments and fire-affected rocks created by the 

repeated use and cleanout of subterranean cooking pits. A series of 1-by-2-m control units set 

out end-to-end will be excavated through the center of the roasting mound. Each control unit 

will be excavated in natural layers or 10-cm levels, whichever is smaller. Sediments removed 

during excavation will be sifted through ¼-inch or smaller mesh for the recovery of artifacts 

and specimens. Sediment samples for paleobotanical studies will be collected from the ash 

accumulations. Sediment samples for palynological studies may be collected if warranted.  

3.3. PERMITTING, REPORTING, AND CURATION 

Prior to the initiation of archaeological monitoring, WestLand will obtain all necessary permits. 

These include a Project-specific Permit and a Burial Agreement from the ASM to comply with 

the guidelines and standards set forth in the Arizona Antiquities Act. Portions of  

AZ U:15:52(ASM) – the Poston Butte site and AZ U:15:239(ASM), as well as all of 

AZ U:15:6(ASM) – Poston’s Butte are located on Town-managed lands and will be governed 

by the ASM Project-specific Permit. The ASM Burial Agreement will also govern the 

archaeological sites on the Town-managed lands, as well as AZ U:15:460(ASM), 

AZ U15:465(ASM), and AZ U:15:902(ASM), which are located on private lands within the 

APE. Because portions of AZ U:15:52(ASM) – the Poston Butte site are located on BLM lands, 

an Archaeological Resources Protection Act permit issued by the BLM will also be obtained 

for archaeological monitoring on BLM lands. Additionally, a NAGPRA Plan of Action will be 

developed for the archaeological site located on BLM lands.  A repository agreement will be 

negotiated with Huhugam Ki Museum or another federally recognized facility for the curation 

in perpetuity of the artifacts, specimens, and records generated by the investigation. 

When all monitoring activities for the Project are complete, a monitoring report will be 

prepared in accordance with BLM and SHPO standards that will summarize the procedures 

and results of monitoring activities in the APE within six months of the completion of 

fieldwork. This report will document all discoveries and any incidents involving damage to 

cultural resources. The results of any investigations of burials and/or subsurface features or 

deposits will be incorporated into this report. Written records and photographic documentation 

will be curated at the BLM.  



 Monitoring and Discovery Plan 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 35 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

3.4. DISCOVERY PLAN  

This discovery plan addresses the requirements and procedures to be followed in the event of any 

unexpected discoveries that may occur during construction activities outside of designated 

monitoring areas and during operations and routine maintenance activities associated with the 

Project after the completion of archaeological monitoring as defined by this HPTP. All key 

personnel and those people involved with ground-disturbing activities during the construction 

and all Town operations and maintenance personnel will have received cultural resources 

awareness training.  

These procedures are similar to those laid out above for discoveries that occur during the 

monitoring process and consist of the following: 

1. The construction foreman will halt all activities within 50 feet of the discovery. 

2. The construction foreman will notify the Town, who will then notify the BLM Lower 

Sonoran Field Manager, the BLM Archaeologist, and WestLand’s Principal Investigator 

and/or Archaeology Division Manager. 

3. WestLand archaeologists will promptly assess the nature of the discovery. If the discovery 

is significant, treatment will follow in accordance with decisions made in consultation with 

the BLM and as detailed above in Sections 3.1 and 3.2.  

4. In the event of the discovery of human remains and associated artifacts, work shall cease 

within 100 feet of the discovery. The discovery will then be protected from further 

disturbances, public access, and public view. WestLand will notify the appropriate contact 

at the BLM and/or the Repatriation Coordinator at the ASM and will follow the protocols 

and procedures outlined in Appendix A: Proposed Actions for the Treatment of 

Native American Human Remains and Associated Items That May Be 

Encountered in the Poston Butte Preserve. Treatment will follow in accordance with 

the decisions made in consultation with the BLM, the ASM, and the tribe(s). This 

treatment will comply with the stipulations of Appendix A and the Burial Agreement. 

 

  



Page 36 has been deliberately left blank. 



Chapter 4 Site Descriptions and Work Plans 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 37 

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

CHAPTER 4. SITE DESCRIPTIONS AND WORK PLANS 

This section presents descriptions for each historic property where monitoring efforts and 

measures to protect the property will be carried out. The description of each property includes a 

synopsis of the work plan for that site. 

4.1. AZ U:15:6(ASM) – POSTON’S BUTTE  

AZ U:15:6(ASM) – Poston’s Butte is a historical monument and burial place for Charles D. 

Poston. Constructed in 1925, the historical monument is a mortared cobblestone pyramid set atop 

the butte; the remains of Charles Poston were reburied beneath it. The site was originally recorded 

in 1974 by John Y. Melot during a project for the Historic Site Committee (Melot 1976). At that 

time, the recorder documented the monument on top of the butte, a well dug on the southern 

side of the butte, and a wagon trail built by Poston in 1878. In 2018, WestLand archaeologists 

revisited AZ U:15:6(ASM) and found the monument and the wagon trail essentially unchanged 

since the previous recording. No evidence of the well that was reported on the southern side of 

the butte was observed (Melot 1976).  

WestLand archaeologists identified eight historical features, a prehistoric artifact concentration, 

and a circular rock feature and observed a dispersed prehistoric artifact scatter along the eastern 

slope of the butte. Feature 1 is a mortared cobblestone pyramid historical monument and the 

burial place of Charles D. Poston. Feature 2 is a 1,437-foot-long by 13-to-20-foot-wide trail 

that begins at the eastern base of Poston Butte and leads to the top, terminating in front of the 

cobblestone pyramid. Feature 2 is apparently the route that Charles Poston used to build a 

wagon trail to the top of the butte in the late nineteenth century. Features 3–5 are 1935 U.S. 

Coastal Geodetic Survey markers located in front and to the southeast of Feature 1. Feature 6 

is a concrete and cinderblock storage structure that was constructed by the Pinal County 

Sheriff’s Department in the 1930s (Gressinger 1961:201). Features 7 and 8 are the remains of 

a radio equipment structure and the remains of a bracing structure for a radio antenna that 

were constructed by the Pinal County Sheriff’s Department in the 1930s , respectively 

(Gressinger 1961:200). Feature 9 is the remains of a one- or two-room cobble structure 

delineated by a circular alignment of stacked volcanic cobbles with a cleared area at the center. 

The wall stones are composed of locally available volcanic rocks and cobbles set two or three 

courses tall and one to three courses wide. The bottom course is not embedded in the ground 

surface, suggesting that the feature may be of recent origin. Feature 10 is a dispersed 

concentration of ceramic sherds and a ground stone fragment in a 72-by-27-m area on the top 

of and extending down the southern slope of Poston Butte.  

WestLand archaeologists observed an estimated 300 to 400 ceramic artifacts consisting 

predominantly of plain ware body sherds (Gila and Salt varieties), with lower frequencies of 



38 – Chapter 4  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

red-on-buff ware body sherds (Gila Butte variety). Additionally, one tan rhyolite mano fragment 

was identified within Feature 10. In addition to the artifact concentration described above, 

WestLand archaeologists observed a low-density ceramic artifact scatter on the eastern slope and 

extending down the eastern ridge line on Poston Butte. This assemblage consists predominantly 

of plain ware sherds (Gila and Salt varieties), with lower frequencies of red-on-buff sherds (Middle 

Gila variety) also represented. An estimated 75 to 100 ceramics were observed on the eastern slope 

and ridgeline extending down to the area surrounding Feature 9. 

Based on the historical records, the historical component of the site is associated with 

Euroamerican land use during the late-nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. The newly 

identified prehistoric component is associated with Formative period Hohokam occupation 

along the middle Gila River. It is unclear whether the one- or two-room cobble structure 

(Feature 9) is prehistoric or of recent origin. Given modern use of the area by hikers and for 

mineral-exploration activities, the feature could be of recent construction; however, based on 

its proximity to prehistoric artifacts, it may be a Formative period Hohokam rock structure.  

4.1.1. AZ U:15:6(ASM) – Poston’s Butte Work Plan 

One construction task—the closure of an existing trail alignment—will directly impact 

AZ U:15:6(ASM). Unauthorized use of the closed trail alignment within AZ U:15:6(ASM), 

continued use of the historical wagon by trail users, and general maintenance activities will leave 

the site susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts. 

The Project proposes the closure of an informal trail that currently connects to the historical 

wagon trail (Feature 2) within the site boundary. Closure of this informal trail will be completed 

by natural revegetation. This approach to trail closure activities was designed to minimize the 

direct impacts to features and artifacts within the archaeological site. Boulder barriers will be 

placed by backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 across the informal trail at the intersection 

with Feature 2 to deter trail users from this closed trail segment. Mechanical equipment 

necessary for this construction activity will be restricted to the existing trail disturbances. To 

mitigate the direct impacts to the site, monitoring the trail closure construction activities within 

the site boundary of AZ U:15:6(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer is planned.  

Long-term monitoring of the archaeological site, the installation of informative signage, and the 

development of a site etiquette pocket guide is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent 

adverse impacts to the site. Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s maintenance 

personnel is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site from 

general maintenance activities. 



 Site Descriptions and Work Plans 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 39 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

4.2. AZ U:15:52(ASM) – POSTON BUTTE SITE 

AZ U:15:52(ASM) is the Poston Butte Site, a large pithouse village with a ballcourt. The site is 

part of the Escalante Ruin Group, a series of large, multicomponent sites along the northern 

terrace of the Gila River that spans the entire Hohokam sequence (Doyel 1981; Laurenzi 2012). 

The site has been documented several times over the years, most recently in 2002 and 2005 by 

Archaeological Research Services, Inc. (ARS), during survey and archaeological testing in support 

of the Florence Copper project (Wright 2002, 2005). ARS documented a large Hohokam 

habitation site with an intact ballcourt and numerous trash mounds, observing artifacts and 

features on both sides of the Hunt Highway (Wright 2002). The main locus of habitation features 

is located south of the Hunt Highway. WestLand revisited only the portion of AZ U:15:52(ASM) 

north of the Hunt Highway within the current APE.  

AZ U:15:240(ASM) and AZ U:15:241(ASM) contain agricultural rock pile features with associated 

artifact scatters that were originally recorded in 1994 by SWCA Environmental Consultants, Inc. 

(SWCA), during a survey in support of the Eastern Mining Area 115-kV Transmission Line project 

(Motsinger et al. 1996). AZ U:15:241(ASM) was revisited during a project related to the proposed 

Merrill Ranch Development Project (Montero et al. 2004). The northern portion of the site was 

subjected to limited data recovery in support of the Eastern Mining Area 115-kV Transmission 

Line project (Purcell 1997). WestLand revisited only those portions of AZ U:15:240(ASM) and 

AZ U:15:241(ASM) within the current APE. 

In 2018, WestLand archaeologists defined a boundary around an extensive prehistoric dry-land 

agricultural field containing a thousand or more agricultural rock piles, artifact concentrations, 

midden areas, thermal features, and an associated artifact scatter; this site boundary overlaps three 

previously known archaeological sites: AZ U:15:52, AZ U:15:240, and AZ U:15:241 (all ASM). 

WestLand consolidated the three sites under the earliest site number, AZ U:15:52(ASM). The site 

covers 183 acres east and north of Poston Butte. 

WestLand point-located 994 rock piles while transecting the site area and sampled a 

concentration of 18 rock piles, designated as Locus 1, to characterize the size, shape, and 

dimensions of the vast numbers of rock pile features observed. In addition to the approximately 

1,000 rock piles that were point-located, WestLand documented 16 features including artifact 

concentrations, trash middens, thermal features, and areas of unauthorized excavations. 

Features 1–4 are artifact concentrations eroding out of deflated areas between vegetation 

hummocks. Features 5 and 6 are dense concentrations of prehistoric artifacts in slightly mounded 

dark ashy soils, likely representing prehistoric trash middens. Features 7 and 8 are concentrations 

of fire-cracked rock in dark ashy soils with an associated low-density scatter of prehistoric artifacts, 

likely representing prehistoric thermal features or roasting pits. Feature 9 is a small concentration 

of flaked stone and ceramic artifacts surrounding a mechanically disturbed area, and Feature 10 is 

an isolated ceramic pot break consisting of 58 plain ware body sherds (Gila variety). Features 11–



40 – Chapter 4  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

15 consist of areas of unauthorized excavations and collectors’ piles within Locus 2, which likely 

represents the remains of a prehistoric trash midden. Lastly, Feature 16 is likely the remains of a 

prehistoric trash midden heavily impacted by another area of unauthorized excavation.  

The extensive prehistoric assemblage consists of thousands of ceramic, flaked stone, ground 

stone, and shell artifacts and hundreds of fragments of fire-cracked rock. WestLand observed 

varying densities of artifacts across the site, with as many as 80 artifacts per m² in the southern 

portion and as few as 1 artifact per m² in the northern portion amongst the agricultural rock piles. 

The portion of AZ U:15:52(ASM) within the current APE appears to exhibit both residential and 

farming settlement functions and is associated with Formative period Hohokam occupation along 

the middle Gila River. This portion of the site is interpreted as a dry-land agricultural field with 

features and an artifact scatter that is an extension of the previously known large village site 

AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site. 

4.2.1. AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site Work Plan 

Four construction tasks—the closure of nine trail segments, the construction of two new trail 

segments, the removal of one segment of existing fence line, and the construction and installation of 

a new fence line and six pedestrian gates within or near the boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM)—will 

directly impact the site. Also, continued use of the existing trail alignments, unauthorized use of the 

closed trail alignments, and general maintenance activities within AZ U:15:52(ASM) will leave the site 

susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts. 

4.2.1.1. Trail Closure Activities at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site  

Within the boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM), four segments of informal road or trail alignments, 

totaling 2,690 feet, will be closed by the natural revegetation approach (see Figure 1.3). This 

approach to trail closure activities was designed to minimize the direct impacts to features and 

artifacts within the archaeological site. Three of these road or trail alignments cross through 

Feature 1, an artifact concentration. Boulder barriers will be placed by a backhoe or tractor similar 

to the Case 580 across the informal alignments where they intersect the approved trail network to 

deter trail users from these closed routes. The last trail alignment that will be closed by the natural 

vegetation approach crosses through a portion of the prehistoric agricultural field in the 

northeastern extent of the site (see Figure 1.3). Boulder barriers will also be placed by a backhoe 

or tractor similar to the Case 580 across this closed trail near the intersection with the approved 

trail network to deter trail users from this closed route. All of these closed alignments will then be 

allowed to naturally reseed once they are no longer in use. Vehicle and mechanical equipment 

necessary for this construction activity will be restricted to the existing trail disturbances.  

Also within the site boundary, five segments of informal road or trail alignments, totaling 6,620 

feet, will be closed by the mechanical revegetation approach (see Figure 1.3). A backhoe or 



 Site Descriptions and Work Plans 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 41 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

tractor similar to the Case 580 with gannon and ripper attachments will scarify the informal 

alignments to a depth of 4 to 6 inches below the existing grade, and then hydroseeding with native 

seed mix will take place. This will allow these closed informal alignments to quickly reseed and 

disappear into the desert landscape. All previously identified surface features at the site will be 

avoided by the mechanical closure construction activities. An archaeological monitor and 

O’odham tribal monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing activities related to the trail 

closure activities within the boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer. Mechanical 

access needed to complete these tasks will be restricted to the existing road and/or trail 

disturbances.  

4.2.1.2. New Trail Construction Activities at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site  

Two segments of proposed trail, totaling 2,700 feet, are located within the boundary of AZ 

U:15:52(ASM). New trail construction activities will consist of removing grass and brush 1 to 2 

inches below the existing grade within an approximately 6-foot-wide area of disturbance. This 

construction activity will be completed by small mechanized equipment similar to the Sutter 300 

Mini-Trail Dozer. During preliminary design efforts, the two segments of proposed trail were 

designed to avoid any features or artifacts within the site. However, monitoring the new trail 

construction within the boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM) is planned. An archaeological monitor 

and O’odham tribal monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing activities related to the 

new trail construction within the boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM). Vehicle and mechanical 

equipment necessary for this construction activity will be restricted to the existing road 

disturbances along the northern and southern extents of the APE through the site’s boundary 

(see Figure 1.3).  

4.2.1.3. Existing Fence Removal Activities at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site  

One segment of existing fence line, totaling 4,800 feet, is located within the boundary of AZ 

U:15:52(ASM). Within the boundaries of the site and a 50-foot buffer, fence removal activities will 

be completed manually with hand tools. Equipment needed to complete this task, as well as the 

existing fence parts, will be transported by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580. An 

archaeological monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing 

activities related to removal of the existing fence line within the boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM) and 

a 50-foot buffer. Mechanical equipment necessary for this construction activity will be restricted to 

the existing disturbances along the fence line through the site’s boundary (see Figure 1.3).  

4.2.1.4. New Fence and Gate Installation Activities at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site  

A total of approximately 5,300 feet of new fence line lies within the boundary of AZ 

U:15:52(ASM). Within the boundaries of the site and a 50-foot buffer, new fence construction 

activities will be completed manually with hand tools including a handheld air -operated post 

driver. Steel T-posts with four strands of wire attached will be driven into the ground to a depth 



42 – Chapter 4  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

of approximately 1 foot. The new fence parts and the equipment needed to complete this task 

will be transported by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 along the existing trail 

and/or road disturbances. Also, six pedestrian gates will be installed within or near the 

boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM). New gate construction activities will include the placement of 

3-inch-diameter tubular steel posts with concrete footings into the ground within machine-dug 

holes extending to a depth of approximately 5 to 6 feet below the existing grade within an 

approximately 6-inch-diameter area of disturbance. New gate construction activities will be 

completed by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 with an auger attachment. All 

previously identified surface features at the site will be avoided by the new gate construction 

activities. An archaeological monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be present during all 

ground-disturbing activities related to the installation of the new fence line and pedestrian gates 

within the boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer. The new fence and gate parts 

and the equipment needed to complete this task will be transported by a backhoe or tractor 

similar to the Case 580 along the existing trail and/or road disturbances. Mechanical and 

vehicular access needed to complete these tasks will be restricted to the existing road and/or 

trail disturbances. 

4.2.1.5. Existing Trail Use at AZ U:15:52(ASM) – Poston Butte Site  

Continued use of the existing trail alignments within AZ U:15:52(ASM) will leave the site 

susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts resulting from the unauthorized 

collection of artifacts. Within the site, signage will be installed along the trail network as  a 

protective measure. The intent is to promote the use of the approved trail network and deter 

trail users and the Town’s maintenance personnel from leaving these approved routes. The 

Project proposes the use of four existing trail alignments that are located within Feature 1, a 

prehistoric artifact concentration (see Figure 1.3). Signage discouraging users from leaving the 

designated trail network will be placed along the existing trail alignments where the trails cross 

through Feature 1. The project also proposes the use of two segments of existing trail 

alignments that are in close proximity to several newly identified features within the site (see 

Figure 1.3). Signage will be placed along these trail alignments on either side of the features to 

discourage users from leaving the designated trail network. Within AZ U:15:52(ASM), the 

installation of this signage will be performed manually with hand tools and will include steel T-

posts driven into the ground to a depth of approximately 1 foot. An archaeological monitor 

and O’odham tribal monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing activities related to the 

installation of the protective signage within the boundary of AZ U:15:52(ASM). Vehicles 

necessary to transport equipment for this task will be restricted to the existing trail disturbances.  

Monitoring all four construction tasks and the installation of protective signage within the site 

boundary of AZ U:15: 52/240/241(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer is planned to mitigate the direct 

impacts to the site. Long-term monitoring of the archaeological site, the installation of informative 

signage, and the development of a site etiquette pocket guide is planned to mitigate the indirect 



 Site Descriptions and Work Plans 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 43 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site. Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s 

maintenance personnel is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the 

site from general maintenance activities. 

4.3. AZ U:15:460(ASM) 

AZ U:15:460(ASM) consists of a Hohokam artifact scatter, a cleared area, a possible midden, an 

artifact concentration, and a concentration of agricultural rock pile features located among several 

low ridgetops approximately 10 m north of the Hunt Highway. The site was originally recorded 

by Carter & Burgess in 2004 and 2005 during surveys in support of the Merrill Ranch 

Development Project (Lopez 2005; Stubing et al. 2004). At that time, the site contained a diverse 

artifact scatter of ceramics, flaked stone, and ground stone; a cleared area representing a possible 

structure; a possible midden; an artifact concentration; and at least 18 rock concentrations. 

WestLand archaeologists revisited AZ U:15:460(ASM) during the current survey project and 

found the site essentially unchanged from the previous recording. 

WestLand identified and documented the remains of a midden (Feature 1), an artifact 

concentration (Feature 2), a concentration of rock pile features (Locus 1), and three isolated rock 

piles (Features 3–5). WestLand archaeologists also noted a dispersed scatter of artifacts across the 

site surface. The previously recorded cleared area described as the remnants of a subrectangular 

structure adjacent to the midden feature (previously recorded as Feature 1) was not observed 

(Lopez 2005; Stubing et al. 2004). 

The prehistoric artifacts observed on the site include an estimated 1,200–1,500 pottery sherds, an 

estimated 500–750 pieces of flaked stone debitage, and an estimated 100 ground stone artifacts. 

The ceramic assemblage consists predominantly of plain ware sherds (Gila and Salt varieties), with 

lower frequencies of red-on-buff and red-slipped sherds. The flaked stone assemblage consists of 

basalt, quartzite, rhyolite, chert, and obsidian flakes in all stages of reduction, as well as several 

cores of basalt, rhyolite, and quartzite. Ground stone artifacts include fragments of manos, 

metates, hammerstones, and pestles made from basalt, rhyolite, and quartzite. The majority of the 

ground stone artifacts were observed in Feature 1. 

AZ U:15:460(ASM) is interpreted as a Formative period Hohokam farmstead as it appears to 

exhibit both residential and farming functions. The site is located just north of the Escalante Ruin 

Group, a series of large multicomponent sites along the northern terrace of the Gila River that 

spans the entire Hohokam sequence (Doyel 1981; Laurenzi 2012). The agave consumed by the 

residents of the Escalante Ruin Group could have been cultivated in the rock pile features at 

AZ U:15:460(ASM). 



44 – Chapter 4  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

4.3.1. AZ U:15:460(ASM) Work Plan 

Three construction tasks—the closure of two trail segments, the removal of one segment of 

existing fence line, and the construction of a new fence line within or near the boundary of 

AZ U:15:460(ASM)—will directly impact the site. Also, unauthorized use of the closed trail 

alignments and general maintenance activities within AZ U:15:460(ASM) will leave the site 

susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts. 

4.3.1.1. Trail Closure Activities at AZ U:15:460(ASM)  

Within the site boundary, two segments of informal road or trail alignments, totaling 902 feet, will 

be closed by the natural revegetation approach. This approach to trail closure activities was 

designed to minimize the direct impacts to features and/or artifacts within the archaeological site. 

Boulder barriers will be placed by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 across the closed 

trail at the intersection with the approved trail network to deter trail users from this closed route. 

Additionally, boulder barriers will also be placed by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 

at the eastern end of the closed alignment outside of the site boundary to deter users from the 

closed route. These closed alignments will then be allowed to naturally reseed once they are no 

longer in use. An archaeological monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be present during all 

ground-disturbing activities related to the trail closure activities within the boundary of AZ 

U:15:460(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer. Vehicle and mechanical equipment necessary for this 

construction activity will be restricted to the existing trail disturbances.  

4.3.1.2. Existing Fence Removal Activities at AZ U:15:460(ASM)  

One segment of existing fence line, totaling 430 feet, is located within the boundary of 

AZ U:15:460 (ASM). Within the boundaries of the site and a 50-foot buffer, fence removal 

activities will be completed manually with hand tools. Equipment needed to complete this task, as 

well as the existing fence parts, will be transported by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580. 

An archaeological monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing activities related to 

removal of the existing fence line within the boundary of AZ U:15:460 (ASM) and a 50-foot 

buffer. Mechanical equipment necessary for this construction activity will be restricted to the 

existing disturbances along the existing fence line through the site’s boundary (see Figure 1.3). 

4.3.1.3. New Fence Construction Activities at AZ U:15:460(ASM)  

A total of approximately 380 feet of new fence line lies within the boundary of the site. Within 

the boundaries of the site and a 50-foot buffer, new fence construction activities will be completed 

manually with hand tools including a handheld air-operated post driver. Steel T-posts with four 

strands of wire attached will be driven into the ground to a depth of approximately 1 foot. The 

new fence parts and the equipment needed to complete this task will be transported by a backhoe 

or tractor similar to the Case 580. An archaeological monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be 



 Site Descriptions and Work Plans 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 45 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

present during all ground-disturbing activities related to the installation of the new fence line 

within the boundary of AZ U:15:460(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer. Mechanical access needed to 

complete this task will be restricted to the existing road and/or trail disturbances. 

4.3.1.4. Existing Trail Use at AZ U:15:460(ASM)  

Continued use of the existing trail alignment within AZ U:15:460(ASM) will leave the site 

susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts resulting from the unauthorized collection 

of artifacts. Within the site boundary, signage will be installed along the trail network as a 

protective measure. The intention is to promote the use of the approved trail network and deter 

trail users and the Town’s maintenance personnel from leaving this approved route. The 

installation of signage along the existing trail alignment within AZ U:15:460(ASM) will directly 

impact the site. The installation of signage discouraging users from leaving the designated trail 

network will be placed along the existing trail alignment where it intersects the site boundary. At 

AZ U:15:460 (ASM), the installation of this signage will be performed manually with hand tools 

and will include steel T-posts driven into the ground to a depth of approximately 1 foot. An 

archaeological monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing 

activities related to the installation of the protective signage within the site. Vehicles necessary to 

transport equipment for this task will be restricted to the existing trail disturbances. 

To mitigate the direct impacts to the site, monitoring of all three construction tasks and the 

installation of protective signage within the site boundary of AZ U:15:460(ASM) and a 50-foot 

buffer is planned. Long-term monitoring of the archaeological site, the installation of informative 

signage, and the development of a site etiquette pocket guide is planned to mitigate the indirect 

or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site. Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s 

maintenance personnel is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the 

site from general maintenance activities. 

4.4.   AZ U:15:465(ASM) 

AZ U:15:465(ASM) is a Hohokam artifact scatter, a possible midden, and a concentration of 

agricultural rock pile features located between two small drainages approximately 100 m north of 

the Hunt Highway. The site was originally recorded by Carter & Burgess in 2004 and 2005 during 

surveys in support of the Merrill Ranch Development Project (Lopez 2005; Stubing et al. 2004). 

At that time, the site contained a diverse artifact scatter of ceramics, flaked stone, and ground 

stone; a possible midden; and at least six agricultural rock pile features. WestLand archaeologists 

revisited AZ U:15:465(ASM) during the current survey project and found the site essentially 

unchanged from the previous recording. 

WestLand identified and documented five features at the site—the remains of a midden 

(Feature 1) and four rock concentrations (Features 2–5). The prehistoric artifacts observed on the 



46 – Chapter 4  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

site include an estimated 1,000 pottery sherds and 250 pieces of flaked stone debitage. The ceramic 

assemblage consists predominantly of plain ware sherds (Gila and Salt varieties), with lower 

frequencies of red-on-buff and red-slipped sherds. The flaked stone assemblage consists of basalt, 

quartzite, and rhyolite flakes in all stages of reduction, as well as several basalt and quartzite cores. 

Five vesicular basalt fragments and one glycymeris shell fragment were identified in Feature 1. 

AZ U:15:465(ASM) exhibits both residential and farming settlement functions and is interpreted 

as a Formative period Hohokam farmstead. It is located just north of the Escalante Ruin Group, 

a series of large multicomponent sites along the northern terrace of the Gila River that spans the 

entire Hohokam sequence (Doyel 1981; Laurenzi 2012). The agave consumed by the residents of 

the Escalante Ruin Group could have been cultivated in the rock pile features at 

AZ U:15:465(ASM). 

4.4.1. AZ U:15:465(ASM) Work Plan 

Three construction tasks—the closure of a trail segment, the removal of one segment of existing 

fence line, and the construction of a new fence line within or near the boundary of 

AZ U:15:465(ASM)—will directly impact the site. Also, unauthorized use of the closed trail 

alignments and general maintenance activities within AZ U:15:465(ASM) will leave the site 

susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts. 

4.4.1.1. Trail Closure Activities at AZ U:15:465(ASM)  

Within the boundary of AZ U:15:465(ASM), one segment of informal road or trail alignment, totaling 

470 feet, will be closed by the natural vegetation approach. This approach to trail closure activities 

was designed to minimize the direct impacts to features and artifacts within the archaeological site. 

Boulder barriers will be placed by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 at the western end of 

the closed alignment outside of the site boundary to deter users from the closed route. This closed 

alignment will then be allowed to naturally reseed once it is no longer in use. An archaeological 

monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing activities related 

to the trail closure activities within the boundary of AZ U:15:465(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer. 

Mechanical equipment necessary for this construction activity will be restricted to the existing trail 

disturbance. 

4.4.1.2. Existing Fence Removal Activities at AZ U:15:465(ASM)  

One segment of existing fence line, totaling 375 feet, is located within the boundary of 

AZ U:15:465 (ASM). Within the boundaries of the site and a 50-foot buffer, fence removal 

activities will be completed manually with hand tools. The existing fence parts and the equipment 

needed to complete this task will be transported by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580. 

An archaeological monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing activities related to 

removal of the existing fence line within the boundary of AZ U:15:465(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer. 



 Site Descriptions and Work Plans 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 47 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

Mechanical equipment necessary for this construction activity will be restricted to the existing 

disturbances along the existing fence line through the site’s boundary (see Figure 1.3). 

4.4.1.3. New Fence Construction Activities at AZ U:15:465(ASM)  

A total of approximately 380 feet of new fence line lies within the boundary of the site. Within 

the boundaries of the site and a 50-foot buffer, new fence construction activities will be completed 

manually with hand tools including a handheld air-operated post driver. Steel T-posts with four 

strands of wire attached will be driven into the ground to a depth of approximately 1 foot. The 

new fence parts and the equipment needed to complete this task will be transported by a backhoe 

or tractor similar to the Case 580. An archaeological monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be 

present during all ground-disturbing activities related to the installation of the new fence line 

within the boundary of AZ U:15:465(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer. Mechanical access needed to 

complete this task will be restricted to the existing road and/or trail disturbances. 

To mitigate the direct impacts to the site, monitoring all three construction tasks within the site 

boundary of AZ U:15: 465(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer is planned. Long-term monitoring of the 

archaeological site, the installation of informative signage, and the development of a site etiquette 

pocket guide is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site. 

Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s maintenance personnel is planned to 

mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site from general maintenance activities. 

4.5.   AZ U:15:239(ASM) 

AZ U:15:239(ASM) consists of 14 agricultural rock pile features with an associated flaked stone 

artifact scatter. The site was originally recorded in 1994 by SWCA during a survey in support of 

the Eastern Mining Area 115 kV Transmission Line project (Motsinger et al. 1996). The features 

recorded within the current APE constitute a small portion of the larger site—an agricultural rock 

pile field that extends outside the current APE. Features on adjacent private lands were not 

recorded during the current field effort. WestLand archaeologists found the revisited portion of 

AZ U:15:239(ASM) essentially unchanged from the previous recording.  

Within the current APE, the site consists of two rock pile features with an associated low-density 

artifact scatter. Feature 1 is a dispersed rock pile containing 30 small cobbles surrounded by slightly 

mounded sediments in a 1-by-1-m area; Feature 2 consists of 100 to 150 gravels and small cobbles 

surrounded by slightly mounded sediments in a 1-by-1-m area. Two basalt primary flakes and 

several fragments of thermally fractured rock were observed in association with Feature 1. 

AZ U:15:239(ASM) designates a Hohokam dry-land agricultural field and an associated flaked 

stone artifact scatter located just south of the Coolidge to Hayden 115 kV transmission line and 

north-northwest of Poston Butte. Diagnostic artifacts are absent, but, given the proximity of 

AZ U:15:239(ASM) to other sites in the survey area, it is interpreted as a Formative period 

Hohokam dry-land field. The site is north of the Escalante Ruin Group, a series of large 



48 – Chapter 4  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

multicomponent sites along the northern terrace of the Gila River that spans the entire Hohokam 

sequence (Doyel 1981; Laurenzi 2012). The agave consumed by the residents of the Escalante 

Ruin Group could have been cultivated in the rock pile features at AZ U:15:239(ASM). 

4.5.1. AZ U:15:239(ASM) Work Plan 

One construction task—the construction and installation of a new fence line and a pedestrian gate 

within or near the boundary of AZ U:15:239(ASM)—will directly impact the site. Also, continued 

use of the existing trail alignment and general maintenance activities within AZ U:15:239(ASM) 

will leave the site susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts. 

4.5.1.1. New Fence and Gate Construction Activities at AZ U:15:239(ASM)  

A total of approximately 100 feet of new fence line lies within the boundary of the site. Within 

the boundaries of the site and a 50-foot buffer, new fence construction activities will be completed 

manually with hand tools including a handheld air-operated post driver. Steel T-posts with four 

strands of wire attached will be driven into the ground to a depth of approximately 1 foot. The 

new fence parts and equipment needed to complete this task will be transported by a backhoe or 

tractor similar to the Case 580. Also, one pedestrian gate will be installed across an existing road 

alignment within the boundary of AZ U:15:239(ASM). New gate construction activities will 

include the placement of 3-inch-diameter tubular steel posts with concrete footings into the 

ground within machine-dug holes extending to a depth of approximately 5 to 6 feet below the 

existing grade within an approximately 6-inch-diameter area of disturbance. New gate 

construction activities will be completed by a backhoe or tractor similar to the Case 580 with an 

auger attachment. All previously identified surface features at the site will be avoided by the new 

gate construction activities. An archaeological monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be 

present during all ground-disturbing activities related to the installation of the new fence line and 

pedestrian gate within the boundary of AZ U:15:239(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer. Mechanical 

access needed to complete these tasks will be restricted to the existing road and/or trail 

disturbances. 

4.5.1.2. Existing Trail Use at AZ U:15:239(ASM)  

Continued use of the existing trail alignment within AZ U:15:239(ASM) will leave the site 

susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts resulting from the unauthorized collection 

of artifacts. Within the site, signage will be installed along the trail network as a protective measure. 

The intention is to promote the use of the approved trail network and deter trail users and the 

Town’s maintenance personnel from leaving the approved route. The installation of signage along 

the existing trail alignments within AZ U:15:239(ASM) will directly impact the site. The installation 

of signage discouraging users from leaving the designated trail network will be placed along the 

existing trail alignment where it intersects the site boundary. At AZ U:15:239 (ASM), the 

installation of this signage will be performed manually with hand tools and will include steel 

T-posts driven into the ground to a depth of approximately 1 foot. An archaeological monitor 



 Site Descriptions and Work Plans 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 49 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

and O’odham tribal monitor will be present during all ground-disturbing activities related to the 

installation of the protective signage within the boundary of AZ U:15:239(ASM). Vehicles 

necessary to transport equipment for this task will be restricted to the existing trail disturbances. 

To mitigate the direct impacts to the site, monitoring the construction task and the installation of 

protective signage within the site boundary of AZ U:15: 239(ASM) and a 50-foot buffer is planned. 

Long-term monitoring of the archaeological site, the installation of informative signage, and the 

development of a site etiquette pocket guide is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent 

adverse impacts to the site. Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s maintenance 

personnel is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site from 

general maintenance activities. 

4.6.   AZ U:15:902(ASM) 

AZ U:15:902(ASM) is a concentration of dry-land agricultural features and an associated flaked 

stone artifact scatter located near the base of a low-lying ridge west of Poston Butte. WestLand 

documented five agricultural rock piles and a low-density flaked stone artifact scatter containing 

basalt and pink rhyolite primary flakes. 

WestLand identified and documented five dry-land agricultural rock pile features (Features 1–5). 

The prehistoric artifacts observed at the site include 20 pieces of flaked stone debitage surrounding 

the rock concentrations. The flaked stone assemblage consists of basalt and pink rhyolite primary 

flakes. WestLand archaeologists also observed one pink rhyolite primary flake with retouched 

margins and a gray igneous cobble that had been expediently flaked. 

Diagnostic artifacts are absent, but, given the proximity of AZ U:15:902(ASM) to other sites in 

the survey area, it is interpreted as a Formative period Hohokam dry-land field. The site is located 

just north of the Escalante Ruin Group, a series of large multicomponent sites along the northern 

terrace of the Gila River that spans the entire Hohokam sequence (Doyel 1981; Laurenzi 2012). 

The agave consumed by the residents of the Escalante Ruin Group could have been cultivated in 

the rock pile features at AZ U:15:902(ASM). 

4.6.1. AZ U:15:902(ASM) Work Plan 

An approximately 700-foot-long segment of proposed trail is located 100 feet to the east of 

AZ U:15:902(ASM). New trail construction activities will consist of removing grass and brush 1 

to 2 inches below the existing grade within an approximately 6-foot-wide area of disturbance. This 

construction activity will be completed by small mechanized equipment similar to the Sutter 300 

Mini-Trail Dozer. The proposed new trail construction activities do not directly impact 

AZ U:15:902(ASM). However, the site would be susceptible to indirect or inadvertent adverse 

impacts resulting from unauthorized visitation to the site, general maintenance activities, and new 

trail construction activities. An archaeological monitor and O’odham tribal monitor will be present 



50 – Chapter 4  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

during all ground-disturbing activities related to the new trail construction near the site’s boundary. 

Vehicle and mechanical equipment necessary for this construction activity will be restricted to the 

existing road disturbances along the southern extent of the APE (see Figure 1.3). 

Monitoring new trail construction activities near the site, long-term monitoring of the 

archaeological site, the installation of informative signage, and the development of a site etiquette 

pocket guide is planned to mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site. 

Additionally, cultural resources training of the Town’s maintenance personnel is planned to 

mitigate the indirect or inadvertent adverse impacts to the site from general maintenance activities. 

 

 

 



Chapter 5 References 

Historic Properties Treatment Plan Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 51 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

CHAPTER 5. REFERENCES 

Abbott, David R. 

2000 Ceramics and Community Organization among the Hohokam. University of Arizona Press, Tucson. 

Abbott, David R. (ed.) 

2003 Centuries of Decline during the Hohokam Classic Period at Pueblo Grande. University of Arizona 

Press, Tucson. 

Abbott, David R., Alexa M. Smith, and Emiliano Gallaga 

2007 Ballcourts and Ceramics: The Case for Hohokam Marketplaces in the Arizona Desert. 

American Antiquity 72(3):461–484. 

Abbott, David R., Susan L. Stinson, and Scott Van Keuren 

2003 The Economic Implications of Hohokam Buff Ware Exchange during the Early Sedentary 

Period. Kiva 67:7–29. 

Ackerly, Neal W. 

1982 Irrigation, Water Allocation Strategies, and the Hohokam Collapse. Kiva 47:91–106. 

 

Adams, Karen, Peter E. Wigand, and Richard Ciolek-Torello 

2011 Archaeobotanical Remains. In The U.S. 60 Archaeological Project: Early Agricultural, Formative, 

and Historical-period Use of the Upper Queen Creek Region, Vol. I: Florence Junction Area, pp. 255–

273. Technical Series No. 92. Statistical Research, Inc., Tucson. 

Altschul, Jeffrey H. 

1994 From North to South: Shifting Sociopolitical Alliances during the Formative Period in the San Pedro 

Valley. Paper presented at the Spring meeting of the Arizona Archaeological Council, 

April 8 and 9, Tucson. 

Andrews, John P., and Todd W. Bostwick 

1997 Desert Farmers at the River’s Edge: The Hohokam and Pueblo Grande. Pueblo Grande Museum 

and Archaeological Park, Phoenix. 

Arizona Blade-Tribune [Florence, Arizona] 

1925a “Poston Monument is Being Erected on Poston Butte.” 4 March:1–4. Florence, Arizona. 

1925b “Poston Monument Dedicated with Appropriate Ceremony.” 2 May:1. Florence, Arizona. 

Arizona Historical Society 

1997 Charles Debrille Poston, 1825–1902. Papers, 1884–1891. Arizona Historical Society.  

Available at: https://www.arizonahistoricalsociety.org/wp-content/upLoads/ 

library_Poston-Charles.pdf. Accessed October 2018. 



52 – Chapter 5  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

Arizona State Parks 

2018 Arizona Register of Historic Places (ARHP). Available at: https://azstateparks.com/ 

arizona-register-of-historic-places-arhp. Accessed October 2018. 

2019 Arizona Site Steward Program Training Handbook. Available at: 

https://azstateparks.com/arizona-site-stewards-volunteer-program. Accessed August 2019. 

Bayman, James M. 

2002 Hohokam Craft Economies and the Materialization of Power. Journal of Archaeological 

Method and Theory 9(1):69–94. 

Bigando, Robert 

1989 Globe, Arizona: The Life and Times of a Western Mining Town 1864–1917. American Globe 

Publishing Co., Globe. 

Blanchard, Cheryl  

2019 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project Consultation with the State Historic 

Preservation Office, Project 1780-8110 (AZP020). On file, Bureau of Land Management 

– Lower Sonoran Field Office, Phoenix.  

Bowen, Thomas 

1972 A Survey and Re-evaluation of the Trincheras Culture, Sonora, Mexico. Manuscript on file. Arizona 

State Museum Library Archives AT-95-85. University of Arizona, Tucson. 

Cable, John S., and David E. Doyel 

1985 The Pueblo Patricio Sequence: Its Implications for the Study of Hohokam Origins, 

Pioneer Period Site Structure and the Processes of Sedentism. In City of Phoenix, Archaeology 

of the Original Townsite: Block 24-East, edited by J. S. Cable, K. S. Hoffman, D. E. Doyel, and 

F. Ritz, pp. 211–270. Publications in Archaeology No. 8. Soil Systems, Inc., Phoenix. 

1987 Pioneer Period Village Structure and Settlement Pattern in the Phoenix Basin. In The 

Hohokam Village: Site Structure and Organization, edited by David E. Doyel, pp. 21–70. 

Southwest and Rocky Mountain Division of the American Association for the 

Advancement of Science, Glenwood Springs. 

Chenault, Mark L. 

1996 The Polvorón Phase and the Hohokam Collapse. Ph.D. dissertation, on file, University of 

Colorado, Boulder. 

2000 In Defense of the Polvorón Phase. In The Hohokam Village Revisited, edited by David E. 

Doyel, Suzanne K. Fish, and Paul R. Fish, pp. 277–286. Southwestern and Rocky Mountain 

Division of the American Association for the Advancement of Science, Ft. Collins. 



 References 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 53 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

Chronic, Halka 

1983 Roadside Geology of Arizona. Mountain Press Publishing Company, Missoula. 

Ciolek-Torello, Richard 

1998 Prehistoric Settlement and Demography in the Lower Verde Region. In Overview, Synthesis, 

and Conclusions. Vanishing River: Landscapes and Lives of the Lower Verde Valley: The Lower Verde 

Archaeological Project, edited by Stephanie M. Whittlesey. SRI Press, Tucson. 

Ciolek-Torello, Richard, and Robert Wegener 

2011 Summary and Conclusions. In The U.S. 60 Archaeological Project: Early Agricultural, Formative, 

and Historical-period Use of the Upper Queen Creek Region, Vol. I: Florence Junction Area, pp. 275–

289. Technical Series No. 92. Statistical Research, Inc., Tucson. 

Ciolek-Torello, Richard, Edgar E. Huber, and Robert B. Neily (eds.) 

1999 Investigations at Sunset Mesa Ruin: Archaeology at the Confluence of the Santa Cruz and Rillito Rivers, 

Tucson, Arizona. Technical Series 66. Statistical Research, Inc., Tucson. 

Clark, Jeffery, and James Vint 

2004 2000 Years of Settlement in the Tonto Basin: Overview and Synthesis of the Tonto Creek Archaeological 

Project. Anthropological Papers No. 25. Center for Desert Archaeology, Tucson. 

Clark, Jeffery, and Patrick Lyons (eds.) 

2012 Migrants and Mounds: Classic Period Archaeology of the Lower San Pedro Valley. Anthropological 

Papers No. 45. Archaeology Southwest, Tucson. 

Clark, Jeffery J., Michael W. Diehl, Jennifer Waters, Brett Hill, and Jenny L. Adams 

2012 Plant and Animal Utilization. In Migrants and Mounds: Classic Period Archaeology of the Lower 

San Pedro Valley, edited by Jeffery J. Clark and Patrick D. Lyons. Anthropological Papers 

No. 45. Archaeology Southwest, Tucson. 

Craig, Douglas B. 

2000 The Demographic Implications of Architectural Change at the Grewe Site. In The Hohokam 

Village Revisited, edited by David E. Doyel, Suzanne K. Fish, and Paul R. Fish, pp. 139–

166. Southwestern and Rocky Mountain Division of the American Association for the 

Advancement of Science, Ft. Collins. 

Crown, Patricia L. 

1984 Hohokam Subsistence and Settlement in the Salt-Gila Basin. In Hohokam Archaeology along the 

Salt-Gila Aqueduct Central Arizona Project, Vol. IX: Synthesis and Conclusions, edited by Lynn S. 

Teague and Patricia L. Crown, pp. 87–112. Archaeological Series No. 150. Arizona State 

Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 



54 – Chapter 5  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

1991a The Hohokam: Current Views of Prehistory and the Regional System. In Chaco and 

Hohokam: Prehistoric Regional Systems in the American Southwest, edited by Patricia L. Crown 

and W. James Judge, pp. 135–157. School of American Research Press, Santa Fe. 

1991b The Role of Exchange and Interaction in Salt-Gila Basin Hohokam Prehistory. In 

Exploring the Hohokam: Prehistoric Desert Peoples of the American Southwest, edited by George J. 

Gumerman, pp. 383–415. University of New Mexico Press, Albuquerque. 

1994 Ceramics and Ideology: Salado Polychrome Pottery. University of New Mexico Press, Albuquerque. 

Crowther, Mary Ann 

1997 Charles Debrille Poston. Revised by Phil Crowther March 20, 2000. Available at: 

http://www.pinalcountyaz.gov/bos/Courthouse/Documents/Charles%20Debrille%20

Poston.pdf. Accessed October 2018. 

Dean, Jeffrey S. 

1991 Thoughts on Hohokam Chronology. In Exploring the Hohokam. Prehistoric Desert Peoples of 

the American Southwest, edited by G. J. Gumerman, pp. 61–149. Amerind Foundation New 

World Studies Series No. 1. University of New Mexico Press, Albuquerque. 

Deaver, William L. 

1984 Pottery. In Hohokam Habitation Sites in the Northern Santa Rita Mountains, Arizona, by Alan 

Ferg, Kenneth C. Rozen, William L. Deaver, Martyn D. Tagg, David A. Phillips, Jr., and 

David A. Gregory, pp. 237–420. Archaeological Series No. 147, Vol. 2, Part 1. Arizona 

State Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 

1988 Ceramics. In Hohokam Archaeology along Phase B of the Tucson Aqueduct, Central Arizona Project, 

Vol. 2: Excavations at Fastimes (AZ AA:12:384), a Rillito Phase Site in the Avra Valley, edited 

by Jon S. Czaplicki and John C. Ravesloot, pp. 139–174. Archaeological Series No. 178, 

Vol. 2. Arizona State Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 

1989a Ceramics. In Hohokam Archaeology along Phase B of the Tucson Aqueduct, Central Arizona Project, 

Vol. 3: Excavations at Water World (AZ AA:16:94), a Rillito Phase Ballcourt Village in the Avra 

Valley, edited by Jon S. Czaplicki and John C. Ravesloot, pp. 153–212. Archaeological 

Series No. 178, Vol. 3. Arizona State Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 

1989b Ceramics. In Hohokam Archaeology along Phase B of the Tucson Aqueduct, Central Arizona Project, 

Vol. 4: Small Sites and Specialized Reports, edited by Jon S. Czaplicki and John C. Ravesloot, 

pp. 51–62. Archaeological Series No. 178, Vol. 4. Arizona State Museum, University of 

Arizona, Tucson. 



 References 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 55 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

1989c Pottery and Other Ceramic Artifacts. In The 1979–1989 Testing at Los Morteros 

(AZ AA:12:57[ASM]), a Large Hohokam Village Site in the Tucson Basin, edited by Richard 

C. Lange and William L. Deaver, pp. 27–82. Archaeological Series No. 177. Arizona State 

Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 

Doelle, William H. 

1985 Excavations at the Valencia Site, a Preclassic Hohokam Village in the Southern Tucson Basin. 

Anthropological Papers No. 3. Institute for American Research, Tucson. 

Doelle, William H., and James Hewitt 

1974 Preliminary Report on Archaeological Resources within the Conoco Florence Project. Arizona State 

Museum Cultural Resource Management Section, Tucson. 

Downum, Christian E., and Todd W. Bostwick 

2003 The Platform Mound. In Centuries of Decline during the Hohokam Classic Period at Pueblo Grande, 

edited by David R. Abbott, pp. 166–200. University of Arizona Press, Tucson 

Doyel, David E. 

1974 Excavations in the Escalante Ruin Group, Southern Arizona. Archaeological Series 37. Arizona 

State Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 

1977 Classic Period Hohokam in the Escalante Ruin Group. The University of Arizona, Ph.D. 

Dissertation, Anthropology, Tucson. Xerox University Microfilms, Ann Arbor, Michigan.   

1980 Hohokam Social Organization and the Sedentary to Classic Transition. In Current Issues in 

Hohokam Prehistory, edited by David E. Doyel and Fred Plog, pp. 23–40. Anthropological 

Research Papers 23. Arizona State University, Tempe. 

1981 Late Hohokam Prehistory in Southern Arizona. Contributions to Archaeology No. 2. Gila Press, 

Scottsdale. 

1991a Hohokam Cultural Evolution in the Phoenix Basin. In Exploring the Hohokam: Prehistoric 

Desert Peoples of the American Southwest, edited by George J. Gumerman, pp. 231–278. 

University of New Mexico Press, Albuquerque. 

1991b Hohokam Exchange and Interaction. In Chaco and Hohokam: Prehistoric Regional Systems in 

the American Southwest, edited by Patricia L. Crown and W. James Judge, pp. 225–252. 

School of American Research Press, Santa Fe. 

Eighmy, Jeffrey L., and Randall H. McGuire 

1989 Archaeomagnetic Dates and the Hohokam Phase Sequence. Technical Series 3. Archaeometric 

Laboratory, Colorado State University, Ft. Collins. 



56 – Chapter 5  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

Elson, Mark D. 

1992 Temporal Issues in Tonto Basin Prehistory: The Rye Creek Chronology. In Synthesis and 

Conclusions, edited by Mark D. Elson and Douglas B. Craig, pp. 55–77. The Rye Creek Project: 

Archaeology in the Upper Tonto Basin, Vol. 3. Anthropological Papers 11. Center for Desert 

Archaeology, Tucson. 

Ferg, Alan 

1984 Hohokam Habitation Sites in the Northern Santa Rita Mountains. Archaeological Series No. 147. 

Arizona State Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 

Fish, Paul R. 

1989 The Hohokam: 1,000 Years of Prehistory in the Sonoran Desert. In Dynamics of Southwest 

Prehistory, edited by Linda Cordell and George Gumerman, pp. 19–64. Smithsonian 

Institution Press, Washington D.C. 

Foster, Michael S., JoAnne Miller, Ruth Van Dyke, and Gary Brown 

1995 A Cultural Resource Management and Treatment Plan for Magma Copper Company’s Florence In-situ 

Copper Mine, Pinal County, Arizona. Western Cultural Resource Management, Inc., Boulder. 

Gladwin, Harold S., Emil W. Haury, E. B. Sayles, and Nora Gladwin 

1937 Excavations at Snaketown: Material Culture. Medallion Papers No. 25. Gila Pueblo, Globe. 

Gregory, David A. 

1991 Form and Variation in Hohokam Settlement Patterns. In Chaco and Hohokam: Prehistoric 

Regional Systems in the American Southwest, edited by P. L. Crown and W. J. Judge, pp. 159–

193. School of American Research, Santa Fe. 

Gressinger, Alfred W. 

1961 Sunland Seer: Charles D. Poston. McGrew Printing and Lithographing Co., Phoenix. 

Gumerman, George J., and Emil W. Haury 

1979 Prehistory: Hohokam. In Handbook of North American Indians, Vol. 9: Southwest, edited by 

Alfonso Ortiz, pp. 75–90. Smithsonian Institution, Washington D.C. 

Haury, Emil W. 

1953 Artifacts with Mammoth Remains, Naco, Arizona, I: Discovery of the Naco Mammoth 

and the Associated Projectile Points. American Antiquity 19(1):1–14. 

1975 The Stratigraphy and Archaeology of Ventana Cave (second printing). University of Arizona 

Press, Tucson. 

1976 The Hohokam: Desert Farmers and Craftsmen. University of Arizona Press, Tucson. 



 References 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 57 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

Haury, Emil W., E. B. Sayles, and William W. Wasley 

1959 The Lehner Mammoth Site, Southeastern Arizona. American Antiquity 25(1):2–32. 

Haynes, Gary 

2002 The Early Settlement of North America: The Clovis Era. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge. 

Henderson, T. Kathleen 

1995 The Prehistoric Archaeology of Heritage Square. Anthropological Papers 3. Pueblo Grande 

Museum, Phoenix. 

2002 Chronology. In The Grewe Archaeological Research Project, Vol. 1: Project Background and Feature 

Descriptions, edited by Douglas B. Craig, pp. 163–208. Anthropological Papers No. 99-1. 

Northland Research, Inc., Flagstaff and Tempe. 

Henderson, T. Kathleen (ed.) 

1989 Prehistoric Agricultural Activities on the Lehi-Mesa Terrace: Excavations at La Cuenca del Sedimento. 

Northland Research, Flagstaff. 

Henderson, T. Kathleen, and Mark R. Hackbarth 

2000 What is Going on at the Hohokam Village? A Fourteenth and Fifteenth Century 

Perspective. In The Hohokam Village Revisited, edited by David E. Doyel, Suzanne K. Fish, 

and Paul R. Fish, pp. 287–316. Southwestern and Rocky Mountain Division of the 

American Association for the Advancement of Science, Ft. Collins. 

Hoffmann, Teresa L., Robert J. Stokes, Kristen L. Fangmeier, Thomas Jones, Michael D. Roz, 

John Rapp, Deborah Ferguson, and Maralee Wernz 

2002 Final Report of Testing at AZ U:11:63, AZ U:11:142, AZ U:11:144, and AZ U:11:145(ASM) 

at Florence Junction (US60/SR79), Pinal County, Arizona. Archaeological Consulting Services, 

Tempe. Submitted to the Arizona Department of Transportation, Phoenix. 

Huckleberry, Gary 

1996 Historical Geomorphology of the Gila River. Arizona Geological Survey Open-file Report 96-14. 

Arizona Geological Survey, Tucson. 

Irwin-Williams, Cynthia 

1967 Picosa: The Elementary Southwestern Culture. In American Antiquity 32(4):441–457. 

1979 Post-Pleistocene Archaeology 7000–2000 B.C. In Southwest, edited by Alfonso Ortiz. 

Handbook of North American Indians, Vol. 9, W. C. Sturtevant, general editor. Smithsonian 

Institution Press, Washington D.C. 

Johnson, Dan 

2017 Florence Copper Project. NI 43-101 Technical Report. Taseko Mines Limited, Vancouver, BC 



58 – Chapter 5  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

Laurenzi, Andy 

2012 Priority Prehistoric Cultural Resources, Pinal County, Arizona. Reviewed by William H. Doelle. 

Submitted to the Pinal County Planning and Development Department. Technical Report 

No. 2012-101. Archaeology Southwest, Tucson. 

Lopez, Sara 

2005 Cultural Resources Survey of Approximately 170 Acres of Private Land within the Proposed Merrill 

Ranch Development near Florence, Pinal County, Arizona. Carter & Burgess, Inc., Phoenix. 

Mabry, Jonathan B. 

2000 The Red Mountain Phase and the Origins of Hohokam Villages. In The Hohokam Village 

Revisited, edited by David E. Doyel, Suzanne K. Fish, and Paul R. Fish, pp. 37–63. 

Southwestern and Rocky Mountain Division of the American Association for the 

Advancement of Science, Ft. Collins. 

Masse, W. Bruce 

1991 The Quest for Subsistence Sufficiency and Civilization in the Sonoran Desert. In Chaco and 

Hohokam: Prehistoric Regional Systems in the American Southwest, edited by Patricia L. Crown 

and W. J. Judge, pp. 195–225. School for American Research Press, Santa Fe. 

McGuire, Randall H., and María Elisa Villalpando C. 

1993    An Archaeological Survey of the Altar Valley, Sonora, Mexico. Archaeological Series No. 184. 

Arizona State Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 

Melot, John Y. 

1976 Site Card for AZ U:15:6(ASM). On file. Arizona State Museum, Tucson 

Midvale, Frank 

1965 Prehistoric Irrigation of the Casa Grande Ruins Area. The Kiva 30(3):82–86. 

Montero, Laurene G., and Mark R. Hackbarth 

1992 Archaeological Testing at the Jefferson Street Parking Garage, Block 39, City of Phoenix. City of 

Phoenix Archaeology Series No. 2. Northland Research, Flagstaff. 

Montero, Laurene, Erin Davis, Michael Stubing, and Korri Turner 

2004 A Class I Cultural Resources Inventory of Approximately 5,820 Acres, and Results of Relocations and 

Evaluation of Fourteen Cultural Resource Sites, for the Proposed Merrill Ranch Development near 

Florence, Pinal County, Arizona. Report No. 2003-014. Carter & Burgess, Inc., Phoenix. 

Motsinger, Thomas N., Heidi Roberts, and Richard V. N. Ahlstrom 

1996 The Eastern Mining Area 115-kV Transmission Line Survey. Archaeological Report No. 94-43. 

SWCA Environmental Consultants, Inc., Phoenix. 



 References 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 59 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

North, Chris D., Michael S. Foster, John M. Lindly, and Douglas R. Mitchell 

2005 A Newly Discovered Clovis Point from the Phoenix Basin and an Update on Arizona 

Clovis Point Attributes. Kiva 70(3):293–307. 

Pioneers’ Cemetery Association 

2018 Burials in the Pioneer & Military Memorial Park. Surnames beginning with the letters P-Q. 

Available at: http://www.azhistcemeteries.org/uploads/1/0/0/8/100815370/ 

burials_-_p_q.pdf. Accessed November 11, 2018. 

Purcell, David E. 

1997 The Eastern Mining Area Project Coolidge to Hayden Segment Data Recovery: Hohokam Agriculture 

in the Middle and Upper Gila River Valley of Pinal County, Arizona. Archaeological Report 

No. 97-74. SWCA, Inc., Flagstaff. 

Reid, Jefferson, and Stephanie Whittlesey 

1997 The Archaeology of Ancient Arizona. University of Arizona Press, Tucson. 

Rogers, Malcolm J. 

1966 Ancient Hunters of the Far West, edited by Richard F. Pourade. Union Tribune Publishing 

Company, San Diego. 

Russell, Frank 

1908 The Pima Indians. 26th Annual Report of the Bureau of American Ethnology, Washington 

D.C. 

Sayles, E. B. 

1945 The San Simon Branch, Excavations at Cave Creek in the San Simon Valley: Vol. 1. Material Culture. 

Medallion Papers No. 34. Gila Pueblo, Globe. 

Schiffer, Michael B. 

1982 Hohokam Chronology: An Essay on History and Method. In Hohokam and Patayan: 

Prehistory of Southwestern Arizona, edited by Randall McGuire and Michael Schiffer, pp. 299–

344. Academic Press, New York. 

Seefeldt, Douglas 

2005 Creating Kearny: Forging a Historical Identity for a Central Arizona Mining Community. 

The Journal of Arizona History 46(1):1–32. 

Sheridan, Thomas E. 

1995 Arizona: A History. University of Arizona Press, Tucson. 



60 – Chapter 5  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

Sires, Earl W., Jr. 

1984 Excavations at El Polvorón (AZ U:15:59). In Hohokam Archaeology along the Salt-Gila 

Aqueduct, Central Arizona Project, Vol. IV(2): Prehistoric Occupation of the Queen Creek Delta, 

edited by Lynn S. Teague and Patricia L. Crown, pp. 221–326. Archaeological Series 

Number 150, Vol. 4. Arizona State Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 

Slaughter, Mark C. 

1992 Flaked Stone in Arizona. In Making and Using Stone Artifacts: A Context for Evaluating Lithic 

Sites in Arizona, by Mark C. Slaughter, Lee Fratt, Kirk Anderson, and Richard V. N. 

Ahlstrom, pp. 2.1–2.12. Prepared by SWCA, Inc., Environmental Consultants, Tucson. 

Distributed by the Arizona State Historic Preservation Office, Phoenix. 

Sobin, Harris J. 

1977 Florence Townsite A.T.: Final Report of Florence Townsite Historic District Study. Harris Sobin and 

Associates, Tucson. 

Stanley, John 

2014 Arizona Explained: Charles Poston was an Eccentric. Special for the Republic. Available at: 

https://www.azcentral.com/story/travel/local/history/2014/03/25/arizona-father-

charles-poston/6870811/. Accessed October 2018. 

Stubing, Michael, Korri Turner, and Erin Davis  

2004 A Cultural Resources Survey of Approximately 1,346 Acres of Private Land within the Proposed Merrill 

Ranch Development near Florence, Pinal County, Project. Report No. 2003-020. Carter & Burgess, 

Phoenix. 

Taylor, Christopher D. 

2018 A Class III Cultural Resource Inventory of 403 acres for the Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project, 

Pinal County, Arizona. Prepared for the Town of Florence. Cultural Resources Report No. 

2018-112. ASM Accession No. 2018-0348. WestLand Resources Project No. 486.09. 

WestLand Resources, Inc., Tucson. 

Trimble, Marshall 

1998 Arizoniana: Stories from the Old Arizona. Reata Publishing Company, Scottsdale. 

Turner, Raymond, and David Brown 

1994 Sonoran Desertscrub. In Biotic Communities, Southwestern United States and Northwestern Mexico, 

edited by David E. Brown, pp. 181–221. University of Utah Press, Salt Lake City. 

Tuthill, Carr 

1947 The Tres Alamos Site on the San Pedro River, Southeastern Arizona. The Amerind Foundation 

No. 4. Amerind Foundation, Dragoon. 



 References 

 Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – 61 

 

 WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

Vanderpot, Rein, and Jeffrey H. Altschul 

2007 The Mescal Wash Site: A Persistent Place in Southeastern Arizona. In Hinterlands and 

Regional Dynamics in the Ancient Southwest, edited by Alan P. Sullivan and James M. Bayman, 

pp. 50–108. University of Arizona Press, Tucson. 

Wagoner, Jay J. 

1970 Arizona Territory 1863–1912: A Political History. University of Arizona Press, Tucson. 

Walker, Henry P., and Don Bufkin 

1979 Historical Atlas of Arizona. University of Oklahoma Press, Norman. 

Wallace, Henry D. 

1986 Rincon Phase Decorated Ceramics in the Tucson Basin: A Focus on the Westbranch Site. 

Anthropological Papers No. 1. Institute for American Research, Tucson. 

1988 Ceramic Boundaries and Interregional Interaction: New Perspectives on the Tucson Basin 

Hohokam. In Recent Research on Tucson Basin Prehistory: Proceedings of the Second Tucson Basin 

Conference, edited by William H. Doelle and Paul R. Fish, pp. 313–348. Anthropological 

Papers No. 10. Institute for American Research, Tucson. 

2004 Update to the Middle Gila Buff Ware Ceramic Sequence. In Hohokam Farming on the Salt 

River Floodplain: Refining Models and Analytical Methods, edited by T. Kathleen Henderson, 

pp. 59–141. Anthropological Papers No. 43. Center for Desert Archaeology, Tucson. 

2012 Site Chronology. In Life in the Valley of Gold: Archaeological Excavations at Honey Bee Village, a 

Prehistoric Hohokam Ballcourt Village, Part 1, edited by Henry D. Wallace, pp. 109–122. 

Archaeology Southwest, Tucson. 

Wallace, Henry D., and James P. Holmlund 

1984 The Classic Period in the Tucson Basin. Ms. on file. Arizona State Museum Library, Tucson. 

Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC) 

2018 Florence, Arizona (023027). Available at: https://wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-

bin/cliMAIN.pl?az3027. Accessed October 2018. 

Wilcox, David R. 

1978 The Theoretical Significance of Field Houses. In Limited Activity and Occupation Sites: 

A Collection of Conference Papers, edited by Albert E. Ward, pp. 25–32. Contributions to 

Anthropological Studies No. 1. Center for Anthropological Studies, Albuquerque. 

1987 Frank Midvale’s Investigation of the Site of La Ciudad. Anthropological Field Studies No. 19. 

Arizona State University, Tempe. 



62 – Chapter 5  

Historic Properties Treatment Plan  

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx .  

Wilcox, David R., and Charles Sternberg 

1983 Hohokam Ballcourts and Their Interpretation. Archaeological Series No. 160. Arizona State 

Museum, University of Arizona, Tucson. 

Wright, Thomas E. 

2002 A Cultural Resources Survey of Approximately 200 Acres of Private Land near Poston Butte, Pinal 

County, Arizona. Archaeological Research Services, Inc., Phoenix. 

2005 Archaeological Investigations in a Portion of the Poston Butte Ruin, AZ U:15:52(ASM), near Florence, 

Pinal County, Arizona. Project Report No. 2004:087. Archaeological Research Services, Inc., 

Tempe. 

 



 

 

APPENDIX A 

PROPOSED ACTIONS 

FOR THE TREATMENT 

OF NATIVE AMERICAN 

HUMAN REMAINS AND 

ASSOCIATED ITEMS 

THAT MAY BE 

ENCOUNTERED WITHIN 

THE POSTON BUTTE 

PRESERVE 



APPENDIX A: Treatment of Human Remains Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – A1 

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

PROPOSED ACTIONS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 

NATIVE AMERICAN HUMAN REMAINS AND ASSOCIATED 

ITEMS THAT MAY BE ENCOUNTERED WITHIN THE 

POSTON BUTTE PRESERVE 

INTRODUCTION 

It is possible that human remains and associated objects that may be affiliated with ancestral 

Native American peoples will be found in the identified archaeological sites or in other locations 

within the Poston Butte Preserve. Given this potential, the following procedures will be followed 

if such remains and objects are encountered during archaeological investigations or in the event 

of an unanticipated discovery.  

By law, the procedures for the treatment of human remains are determined by land ownership 

and ancestry.  

• On federal land, the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) must comply with the Native 

American Graves and Repatriation Act (NAGPRA) (25 USC 3001-3013) for Native 

American human remains. The requirements regarding the implementation of NAGPRA 

are set forth in 43 CFR 10.3, 10.4, 10.5 and 10.6. In addition, a NAGPRA plan of action 

will be developed for the federal lands within the Park.  

 

• On municipal and private land, all human remains and associated funerary items 

discovered will be treated in accordance with the stipulations, requirements, and limitations 

set out in A.R.S. §41-844 and A.R.S. §41-865, and the Arizona State Museum (ASM) Burial 

Agreement. 

NOTIFICATION, TREATMENT, CARE, AND HANDLING OF REMAINS 

The reporting, treatment, care, and handling of human remains and associated funerary items 

discovered on municipal and private lands will follow the stipulations set out in the ASM Burial 

Agreement. The section below describes the procedures that will be followed for all human 

remains and associated funerary items discovered on federal lands:  

A. In the event of the discovery of human remains and associated artifacts, WestLand 

Resources, Inc. (WestLand), and/or the Town of Florence (the Town) shall cease work in 

the immediate area of the discovery and notify the BLM archaeologist within 24 hours. 

The location of the remains, their condition, their antiquity, and their probable cultural 

affiliation (to the degree that these can be determined) will be included in the notification. 



APPENDIX A: Treatment of Human Remains Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – A2 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

B. All treatment of human remains and associated funerary objects will be performed by or 

under the direct supervision of a Secretary of Interior–qualified archaeologist, as agents for 

the BLM, in accordance with the requirements of the Archaeological Resource Protection 

Act. Representatives of interested tribes may provide assistance if they wish to do so. 

C. All human remains encountered on the project will be treated with dignity and respect. 

D. Within 24 hours of receiving notice from WestLand and/or the Town, the BLM Lower 

Sonoran Field Office will notify the interested tribes and will follow this notification with 

written confirmation within an additional 48 hours. 

E. If the BLM determines that human remains can be left in place without risk of damage, 

they will be left undisturbed. Human remains will be exposed for the minimum amount of 

time necessary to ensure that they may be preserved in place or within the site. The 

excavated soil will be replaced, and, if necessary to protect the burial, no further 

excavations will be conducted in its immediate vicinity. 

F. If the BLM determines that human remains and associated funerary objects will be 

damaged or destroyed by these excavations, they will be excavated using standard 

archaeological methods consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and 

Guidelines for Archaeology and Historic Preservation (Federal Register vol. 48, no. 190, 

pp444716-44772). 

1. Excavation will be done by hand with the fill from the burial pit screened 

through 1/8-inch mesh screen to ensure recovery of associated objects. 

2. Documentation will consist of completing standard forms and scale drawings. 

Burials and associated objects will not be photographed; detailed drawings will be 

made in lieu of a photographic record. This documentation will be curated with 

other archaeological records from the project. 

G. Human remains will be exposed for the minimum amount of time necessary to properly 

excavate them as described above. WestLand and/or the Town, in cooperation with the 

BLM, will take appropriate security measures to ensure that no human remains will be left 

unattended or exposed without proper protection. No human remains will be left exposed 

over a weekend.  

H. Human remains will not be displayed to or discussed before the public or the media. 

Discussions of human burials by project personnel will be conducted only within a 

professional setting. 



APPENDIX A: Treatment of Human Remains Poston Butte Preserve Expansion Project – A3 

 

Q:\Jobs\400's\486.09\ARC\HPTP\Revised Submittal_4-7-20\HPTP_Poston Butte_4-7-20.docx WestLand Resources,  Inc.  

I. The BLM Lower Sonoran Field Office will maintain contact with the interested tribes as 

follows: 

1. The BLM will request the interested tribes to designate tribal 

representatives who will act as an official point of contact with BLM for 

the purposes of complying with NAGPRA. 

2. The BLM will advise the tribal representatives of the planned archaeological 

monitoring as soon as it has been scheduled. Interested tribes will be 

welcome to participate in or observe the archaeological monitoring and or 

any archaeological work that may follow a discovery. 

3. The BLM will provide interested tribes with copies of the archaeological 

report documenting the recordation of all human remains and associated 

funerary objects. Interested tribes will be invited to review and comment 

on the report and offer their perspectives on the prehistoric people who 

lived at the sites investigated by the project. 

4. The BLM will provide interested tribes with reasonable opportunities to 

conduct traditional treatment of human remains and associated funerary 

objects during or after their excavation, recordation, and handling by 

WestLand. The BLM and WestLand will accommodate such requests to 

the maximum extent allowable by considerations of health, safety, 

environmental protection, and the project schedule.  

CONSULTATION  

Copies of the cultural resources inventory, this Historic Properties Treatment Plan, and a map are 

being provided to the Tohono O’odham Nation, Gila River Indian Community, Salt River Pima-

Maricopa Indian Community, Ak Chin Indian Community, Pascua Yaqui Tribe, and Hopi Tribe. 

The BLM will work with the tribes to address comments and concerns. 

 



Source Amount
Warrant Register-Checks and Credit Card Payments 1,488,275.98$         

Electronic Payments
Bank and Merchant Fees 5,533.82$                
Payroll - Net of Deductions 493,065.22$            
Payroll Related Payments:
Liens, Levys, Garnishments, Flexible Spending, AFLAC, 
Deposits to PCFCU (Employee Savings) 32,685.85$              

Town of Florence
Summary of Warrants Paid

for July 2020
Retirement Contributions, Arizona State Retirement, Public 
Safety Retirement, Securian, Voluntary 401K Plan 242,450.07$            
Payroll Taxes, State and Federal 226,916.30$            
Transaction Privilege Taxes Collected Payable to State 30,021.72$              
Medical, Dental, Life, Vision payments 442,465.29$            
Workmans Comp 72,863.00$              
ADEQ Legal Fees 25,000.00$              
Sewer Debt Service 572,941.22$            
HURF Debt Service 347,345.27$            
CFD #1 Administrative Expense 9,000.00$                
CFD #1 General Obligations Debt Service 300,646.25$            
CFD #1 Special Assessments Debt Service 336,299.40$            
CFD #2 Administrative Expense 4,750.00$                
CFD #2 General Obligations Debt Service 173,525.00$            
CFD #2 Special Assessments Debt Service 198,615.51$            

Electronic Payments 3,514,123.92$         

Total Warrants 5,002,399.90$         



Town of Florence                           

Warrant Register

Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

UTILITY CLEARING
010‐160‐000 117366 07/24/20 2ND TEMP 702071 07/22/20 SANITAITON OVERPAYMENT $30.17

010‐160‐000 117439 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 10404101 07/24/20 WATER OVERPAYMENT $88.18

010‐160‐000 117440 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 736150 07/23/20 SANITAITON OVERPAYMENT $32.92

010‐160‐000 117359 07/24/20 2ND TEMP 707671.1 07/09/20 SANITAITON OVERPAYMENT $17.33

$168.60

LIABILITIES
010‐206‐000 117350 07/24/20 2ND TEMP TR2018000029 07/13/20 BOND REFUND CASE TR2018‐000029 $21.00

010‐211‐000 117212 07/20/20 AVESIS INSURANCE 2520752 06/17/20 MONTHLY VISION SERVICES $1,681.28

010‐211‐000 117459 07/31/20 AVESIS INSURANCE 2536079 07/17/20 MONTHLY VISION SERVICES $1,663.62

010‐241‐000 116964 07/08/20 UNITED WAY OF PINAL COUNTY PPE 6.19.20 06/29/20 EMPLOYEES CONTRIBUTIONS $45.00

010‐241‐000 117301 07/20/20 UNITED WAY OF PINAL COUNTY PPE 7.3.20 07/03/20 EMPLOYEES CONTRIBUTIONS $65.00

010‐241‐000 117455 07/31/20 UNITED WAY OF PINAL COUNTY PPE 7.17.20 07/17/20 EMPLOYEES CONTRIBUTIONS $65.00

010‐243‐000 117295 07/20/20 NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE 006929080 7  07/03/20 JULY INVOICE $516.72

010‐256‐000 117375 07/24/20 ARIZONA MUNICIPAL RISK 20000215 APRIL‐ 06/30/20 QUARTERLY PREMIUM APR ‐ JUN 2020 $72,863.00

010‐260‐000 117362 07/24/20 2ND TEMP CM2017‐000197 07/16/20 RESTITUTION PMT CASE #CM2017‐000197 $62.76

$76,983.38

LICENSES AND PERMITS
010‐320‐211 117394 07/24/20 2ND TEMP 1923‐ 06/26/20 BUSINESS LICENSE PARTIAL REFUND ‐ COVID‐19 $25.00

$25.00

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
010‐335‐212 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 606 W 11TH ST. $1,340.95

010‐335‐212 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 620 W 11TH ST. $522.55

010‐335‐212 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 620 W 11TH ST. $1,671.35

010‐335‐212 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 606 W 11TH ST. $391.25

$3,926.10

PARKS & RECREATION

Page 1 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

PARKS & RECREATION
010‐339‐606 117222 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 1048154.002 06/30/20 PARTIAL REFUND FOR GYM MEMBERSHIP $93.00

010‐339‐606 117238 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 1048407.002 06/30/20 PARTIAL REFUND FOR GYM MEMBERSHIP $106.00

$199.00

FINES AND FORFEITURES
010‐340‐578 117388 07/24/20 JANET MANNATO JUNE 2020 SVCS 07/20/20 PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICES JUNE 2020 $350.00

$350.00

TOWN COUNCIL
010‐501‐205 117217 07/20/20 CASA GRANDE VALLEY NEWSPAPER  77569 05/20/20 LEGAL AD FOR RFQ TERRITORY SQ $75.47

010‐501‐205 117285 07/20/20 CASA GRANDE VALLEY NEWSPAPER  83540 07/14/20 2 RFP NOTICES PUBLISHED 2X FOR SILVER KING  $61.71

010‐501‐205 117285 07/20/20 CASA GRANDE VALLEY NEWSPAPER  83540 07/14/20 2 RFP NOTICES PUBLISHED 2X FOR SILVER KING  $67.32

010‐501‐401 117352 07/24/20 AZ PROSECUTING ATTORNEY'S ADV.  2551 05/06/20 MEMBERSHIP FEE 20/21 $100.00

010‐501‐401 117291 07/20/20 MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF MB‐00510 07/06/20 YEARLY DUES $6,298.00

010‐501‐401 117288 07/20/20 LEAGUE OF AZ CITIES AND TOWNS 07012020 07/01/20 FY 20/21 DUES $15,781.00

$22,383.50

ADMINISTRATION
010‐502‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 ADMIN‐B. BITTER $36.70

010‐502‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $363.77

010‐502‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $85.27

010‐502‐203 117423 07/30/20 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ARIZONA 0007299‐0563‐8  02/03/20 ORIGINAL INVOICE WAY PAID SHORT $415.74

010‐502‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $13.91

010‐502‐217 620 07/15/20 2ND TEMP June 30 2020 06/30/20 CENSUS AD ON FACEBOOK $26.00

010‐502‐217 117237 07/20/20 INFOSEND 173003.2 05/29/20 INSERT CENSUS $358.28

010‐502‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 04.06.20 07/20/20 APRIL 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $363.34

010‐502‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 05.06.20 03/09/20 MAY 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $363.34

010‐502‐231 117444 07/31/20 KS STATEBANK JUL‐20 07/01/20 JULY 2020 COPIER LEASE $363.34

010‐502‐301 117389 07/24/20 OFFICE DEPOT INC 4771830800001 06/09/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $19.15

010‐502‐402 620 07/15/20 DOLLAR GENERAL June 30 2020 06/30/20 WATER FOR MEETINGS $6.83

$2,415.67

COURTS
010‐503‐203 620 07/15/20 UPRINTING.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE DRI*PRINTING SERVICES $128.14

Page 2 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

COURTS
010‐503‐217 117379 07/24/20 CITY OF ELOY JULY 2020 07/20/20 JUDGES SALARY FY 19 Q4 $11,000.00

010‐503‐234 117390 07/24/20 PINAL CO SHERIFF'S OFFICE 2347 07/20/20 JUNE 2020 JAIL BILL $2,053.66

010‐503‐301 117367 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7309951646‐0‐1 07/13/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $86.40

010‐503‐403 620 07/15/20 NATIONAL CENTER FOR STATE  June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE NTL CTR FOR ST CTS $295.00

$13,563.20

LEGAL
010‐504‐217 117234 07/20/20 GUST ROSENFELD P.L.C. M01 06/30/20 LEGAL SERVICES: ENVIRONMENTAL APPEALS  $12,250.00

010‐504‐217 117261 07/20/20 SIMS MACKEN LTD 28605 07/06/20 LEGAL SERVICES:  FLORENCE VS FCI  JUNE 2020 $18,275.00

010‐504‐217 117383 07/24/20 DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC 1487739 06/22/20 LEGAL SERVICES:  ACC PROCEEDINGS ADV.  $3,900.00

010‐504‐217 117398 07/27/20 FLORENCE COPPER INC. CA‐CV19‐0122 05/07/20 ATTORNEY FEES $10,000.00

010‐504‐217 117398 07/27/20 FLORENCE COPPER INC. CA‐CV19‐0122 05/07/20 TAXABLE COSTS $171.00

010‐504‐401 117300 07/20/20 THOMSON REUTERS‐WEST 8425922645 07/01/20 LEGAL RESEARCH : JUNE 2020 $226.00

$44,822.00

FINANCE
010‐505‐202 117237 07/20/20 INFOSEND 173003 05/29/20 FY 19‐20 PURCHASE ORDER FOR MONTHLY  $1,457.05

010‐505‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $243.13

010‐505‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $330.31

010‐505‐204 117387 07/24/20 INFOSEND 174460 06/30/20 JUNE 2020 UTILITY BILLING $3,028.18

010‐505‐204 117237 07/20/20 INFOSEND 173003.1 05/29/20 MAY 2020 UTILITY BILLING $1,241.64

010‐505‐207 117298 07/20/20 QUADIENT INC. 57704006 07/01/20 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR  $636.00

010‐505‐231 620 07/15/20 PITNEY BOWES INC June 30 2020 06/30/20 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE 03/30/20 ‐ 06/29/20 $270.45

010‐505‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 04.06.20 07/20/20 APRIL 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $239.88

010‐505‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 05.06.20 03/09/20 MAY 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $239.88

010‐505‐231 117444 07/31/20 KS STATEBANK JUL‐20 07/01/20 JULY 2020 COPIER LEASE $239.88

010‐505‐301 117453 07/31/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308694590‐0‐2 07/20/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $129.81

010‐505‐301 117453 07/31/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308694590‐0‐2 07/20/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $510.00

010‐505‐301 117247 07/20/20 OFFICE DEPOT INC 497590372002 05/28/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $4.47

010‐505‐301 116950 07/08/20 OFFICE DEPOT INC 510600200001 06/15/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $68.27

010‐505‐301 116950 07/08/20 OFFICE DEPOT INC 510582791001 06/13/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $41.46

010‐505‐301 620 07/15/20 MONROE SYSTEMS FOR BUSINESS June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE CALCULATOR RIBBONS FOR FINANCE $61.47

Page 3 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

FINANCE
010‐505‐301 117453 07/31/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 738694590‐0‐1 07/20/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $130.38

$8,872.26

HUMAN RESOURCES
010‐508‐205 117402 07/30/20 ARIZONA SILVER BELT 90428 06/17/20 CLASSIFED AD FOR POLICE DEPARTMENT $101.28

010‐508‐217 116926 07/08/20 AZ DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY JUN/2020 06/29/20 FINGERPRINT BACKGROUND CHECK $110.00

010‐508‐217 117236 07/20/20 INFINISOURCE INC. 104721551 06/30/20 JUNE MONTHLY ADMIN SERVICE $326.70

010‐508‐217 117236 07/20/20 INFINISOURCE INC. 91034958 01/09/20 DECEMBER 2019 MONTHLY ADMIN SERVICES $321.75

010‐508‐217 117239 07/20/20 JORGENSEN BROOKS GROUP SAAS076387 06/12/20 THIRD QUARTER EAP SERVICES $864.00

010‐508‐217 117283 07/20/20 BENEFIT INTELLIGENCE INC.  40187 07/06/20 MONTHLY TELEDOC SERVICES $532.50

010‐508‐301 620 07/15/20 BAUDVILLE June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE BAUDVILLE INC. ‐ SERVICE AWARD  $684.07

010‐508‐301 620 07/15/20 SAFEWAY INC. June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE SAFEWAY #2835 ‐ JOHN NIXON  $72.95

010‐508‐301 117247 07/20/20 OFFICE DEPOT INC 508695807‐001 06/23/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $256.00

010‐508‐314 117357 07/24/20 GLORIA MORENO MORENO/REIMB 03/03/20 PAPER GOOD AND DESSERTS FOR ANNUAL  $34.56

010‐508‐314 117457 07/31/20 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 020500185319 07/23/20 JULY AND AUGUST VISA GIFT CARD FOR SERVICE  $679.64

010‐508‐314 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 EIC PRIZES FOR MASK DASH EVENT $109.18

010‐508‐314 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 EIC PRIZES FOR MASK DASH EVENT $57.05

010‐508‐314 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 EIC PRIZES FOR MASK DASH EVENT $120.01

$4,269.69

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
010‐510‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 COMMUNITY DEV $385.97

010‐510‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $282.19

010‐510‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $87.99

010‐510‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $27.82

010‐510‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807065 07/01/20 BATTERY FOR CD‐1 $114.81

010‐510‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 224 W 20TH ST $792.46

010‐510‐217 117418 07/30/20 SHRED‐IT USA 8129434920 03/15/20 DOCUMENT SHREDDING $153.60

010‐510‐217 117418 07/30/20 SHRED‐IT USA 8129932650 06/15/20 DOCUMENT SHREDDING $71.51

010‐510‐231 117444 07/31/20 KS STATEBANK JUL‐20 07/01/20 JULY 2020 COPIER LEASE $123.46

010‐510‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 04.06.20 07/20/20 APRIL 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $123.46

010‐510‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 05.06.20 03/09/20 MAY 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $123.46

Page 4 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
010‐510‐301 117448 07/31/20 OFFICE DEPOT INC 106826311001 07/20/20 COPY PAPER $195.41

010‐510‐302 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 246907 03/16/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES ‐ BPO FY 19/20 $12.69

010‐510‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 COMMUNITY DEV. DEPT $173.32

010‐510‐323 620 07/15/20 FOXIT CORPORATION INCORPORATED June 30 2020 06/30/20 QTY 7 FOXIT PHANTOM PDF FOR DIGITAL PLAN  $1,368.27

010‐510‐323 620 07/15/20 MOULTRIE MOBILE June 30 2020 06/30/20 ONLINE MONTHLY BILLING FOR 4G PHOTO  $10.91

$4,047.33

POLICE ADMINISTRATION
010‐511‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 POLICE ADMIN PHONES $2,660.32

010‐511‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 POLICE ADMIN PHONES ‐ CREDIT ($50.00)

010‐511‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 SUPERIOR FIRE $90.48

010‐511‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐9627 POLICE 9‐1‐1 $304.07

010‐511‐201 117382 07/24/20 COX BUSINESS 207217901  06/30/20 POLICE $6.28

010‐511‐201 117431 07/31/20 CENTURYLINK JULY/2020 07/16/20 868‐9627 POLICE 9‐1‐1 $333.33

010‐511‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $1,032.71

010‐511‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $1,337.01

010‐511‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 425 N PINAL ST PD $1,571.97

010‐511‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 193 E. 6TH ST $51.28

010‐511‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 3949 N IOWA RADIO TOWER 2 $200.13

010‐511‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 1817 N. HUNT HWY $132.08

010‐511‐217 117260 07/20/20 SHRED‐IT USA JUNE 2020 06/15/20 MONTHLY SHREDDING SERVICE TO COVER FY $34.00

010‐511‐217 117292 07/20/20 MICHAEL BACA P20200707 07/07/20 PHOTO ART FOR LOBBY: SITTING FEE CHIEF $383.98

010‐511‐302 117397 07/24/20 WATER SHED 400004323 05/22/20 ICE FOR PD $16.46

010‐511‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 PD ADMIN $340.85

$8,444.95

POLICE SUPPORT SERVICES
010‐512‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 200 E 6TH ST $2,422.73

010‐512‐215 117263 07/20/20 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION 3230051016026  06/30/20 200 W. 20TH ST $31.27

010‐512‐217 117249 07/20/20 PINAL CO ANIMAL CARE & CONTROL JUNE 2020 06/30/20 FY 19/20: MONTHLY BILLING: JUNE 2020 $792.16

010‐512‐301 117449 07/31/20 PHILLIP J. RICCOMINI II 06820 07/18/20 REIMBURSEMENT FOR CLOROX WIPES‐ $21.57

010‐512‐408 116952 07/08/20 PINAL COUNTY UNIFORMS 192 06/15/20 NAVY BLUE CLOTH MASKS FOR DEPARTMENT $217.40

Page 5 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

POLICE SUPPORT SERVICES
010‐512‐408 117450 07/31/20 PINAL COUNTY UNIFORMS 193 07/20/20 MASKS FOR DEPARTMENT USE $271.75

$3,756.88

POLICE OPERATIONS
010‐514‐209 116957 07/08/20 SHAWS INTERIORS 03709 06/24/20 SEAT REPAIR FOR PD G 870GE $98.57

010‐514‐209 117363 07/24/20 PURCELL TIRE COMPANY 6789053 07/16/20 6 TIRES FOR PD STOCK $859.86

010‐514‐209 117358 07/24/20 INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM OF  25017626 07/17/20 STOCK BATTERIES FOR PD $547.05

010‐514‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 790228 12/11/19 WIPER BLADES FOR PD $8.34

010‐514‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807376 07/06/20 PARTS FOR PD $69.41

010‐514‐209 116944 07/08/20 MHQ OF ARIZONA 112744 06/30/20 LIGHT BAR REPLACEMENT ON PD G‐869GE $2,362.59

010‐514‐209 116939 07/08/20 JONES AUTO CENTER 184016 06/24/20 PARTS & SERVICE FOR PD $13.32

010‐514‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806325 06/22/20 PARTS FOR PD OPPS $3.27

010‐514‐209 116939 07/08/20 JONES AUTO CENTER 183426 05/18/20 PARTS & SERVICE FOR PD $388.26

010‐514‐217 116962 07/08/20 TRANSCRIPTS LTD 6220 06/22/20 CONTRACTED SERVICES: TRANSCRIPTS FOR IA $42.75

010‐514‐302 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 AMAZON: USB DRIVES $98.25

010‐514‐302 117248 07/20/20 PETTY CASH ‐ POLICE DEPT 45830 06/24/20 45830: KEYS FOR OPS USE $8.28

010‐514‐302 117248 07/20/20 PETTY CASH ‐ POLICE DEPT 45830 06/24/20 45832: BOLTS...OPS USE $18.00

010‐514‐302 117253 07/20/20 PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT 495874 06/29/20 50 CANISTERS OF OC SPRAY FOR OPS USE $565.32

010‐514‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 PD OPERATIONS $6,123.21

010‐514‐309 117416 07/30/20 PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT 410404 05/12/20 HOLSTERS $594.81

010‐514‐309 117416 07/30/20 PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT 392137 11/08/19 CREDIT FOR HOLSTERS ($460.57)

010‐514‐314 116953 07/08/20 PRECISION POLYGRAPH &  19 06/14/20 POLYGRAPH: NEW HIRE: SALAZAR $150.00

010‐514‐314 117271 07/20/20 UNIVERSAL POLICE SUPPLY INC 247962 06/26/20 NEW HIRE: UNIFORM ITEMS: BELTS, KEEPERS,  $473.91

010‐514‐314 117429 07/31/20 BANNER OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH  693090 07/02/20 NEW HIRE RESERVE: TYLER HALL‐PHYSICAL $265.00

010‐514‐403 117248 07/20/20 PETTY CASH ‐ POLICE DEPT 45830 06/24/20 45831: REFRESHMENT ITEMS FOR TRAINING  $37.93

010‐514‐403 117304 07/20/20 WESTERN AZ LAW ENFORCEMENT  20‐12 07/07/20 NEW RECRUIT: ACADEMY BALANCE $3,000.00

010‐514‐403 117304 07/20/20 WESTERN AZ LAW ENFORCEMENT  20‐12.1 07/01/20 NON‐REFUNDABLE DEPOSIT FOR 1 RECRUIT $500.00

$15,767.56

FIRE ADMINISTRATION
010‐515‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $748.53

010‐515‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $250.19

Page 6 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

FIRE ADMINISTRATION
010‐515‐207 116932 07/08/20 ECM2 LLC 060920‐12 06/09/20 CALL MESSAGE SERVICE $1,000.00

010‐515‐207 117221 07/20/20 CLIA LABORATORY PROGRAM 11‐17‐20/1116‐ 05/19/20 LAB FEES $180.00

010‐515‐209 116941 07/08/20 LONG STAR AUTO GLASS SERVICES 3008 06/23/20 WINDSHIELD FOR FD G‐828FJ $247.35

010‐515‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807335 07/06/20 OIL & FILTERS FOR FD G‐964GH $45.87

010‐515‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807666 07/09/20 OIL & FILTERS FOR FD‐G995JG $45.87

010‐515‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 3949 N IOWA RADIO TOWER 2 $200.13

010‐515‐215 117263 07/20/20 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION 3231015193002  06/30/20 200 E. 6TH ST $31.27

010‐515‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 1817 N. HUNT HWY 010515215 $132.07

010‐515‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 72 E. 1ST ST $1,539.39

010‐515‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 04.06.20 07/20/20 APRIL 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $123.46

010‐515‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 05.06.20 03/09/20 MAY 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $123.46

010‐515‐231 117444 07/31/20 KS STATEBANK JUL‐20 07/01/20 JULY 2020 COPIER LEASE $123.46

010‐515‐235 116931 07/08/20 EAST VALLEY WELLNESS CENTER LLC 41 06/01/20 ANNUAL PHYSICALS FOR CHIEFS (3) $1,259.00

010‐515‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 FIRE ADMIN $523.38

010‐515‐401 116948 07/08/20 NFPAI 2020  06/08/20 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP $175.00

$6,748.43

FIRE STATION #1
010‐516‐201 117382 07/24/20 COX BUSINESS 256447501 0620 06/30/20 72 E 1ST ST $61.97

010‐516‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 FIRE ADMIN PHONES $1,183.75

010‐516‐201 117211 07/20/20 AT&T MOBILITY X05262020 05/08/20 FIRE‐ BASE PLAN $28.32

010‐516‐201 117211 07/20/20 AT&T MOBILITY X03262020 06/18/20 FIRE‐ BASE PLAN $3.54

010‐516‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807458 07/07/20 SPARK PLUGS PURCHASED BY FLEET $25.88

010‐516‐209 117441 07/31/20 JONES AUTO CENTER 75309.1 07/24/20 ADDITIONAL AMOUNT NEEDED FOR PO# 54919 $203.09

010‐516‐209 117441 07/31/20 JONES AUTO CENTER 75309 07/24/20 ENGINE REPAIRS FOR FD D‐346ES $7,000.00

010‐516‐209 117365 07/24/20 REVOLUTION TIRE LLC 1168089 07/09/20 TIRES FOR FD G346ES $950.87

010‐516‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807193 07/02/20 BATTERIES FOR FD G‐001FM $306.80

010‐516‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807155 07/02/20 FUEL ADDITIVE FOR FD G‐990GB $8.73

010‐516‐209 117299 07/20/20 SOUTHWEST TOWING 23679 07/06/20 TOWING FOR FD 346ES $350.00

010‐516‐209 117290 07/20/20 MANATEE TIRE & AUTO INC. DBA 199684 07/09/20 EXHAUST REPAIRS FOR FD G‐990GB $525.80

010‐516‐209 117287 07/20/20 JONES AUTO CENTER 184230 07/06/20 PARTS FOR FD G‐001FM $118.32

010‐516‐209 116959 07/08/20 SUPERSTITION FIRE & MEDICAL  5941 06/15/20 SHOP 131 HYD HOSE AND FITTINGS REPAIR $622.73
Page 7 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

FIRE STATION #1
010‐516‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806909 06/29/20 PARTS FOR FD G‐346ES $68.79

010‐516‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806877 06/29/20 PARTS FOR FD G‐346ES $271.38

010‐516‐209 117435 07/31/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 808158 07/15/20 RUBBING COMPOUND, BONNET, MCRFBR APP $30.85

010‐516‐210 116934 07/08/20 FIRECOM INV319328 06/08/20 HEADSET REPAIR (3) DIRECT WIRE $360.00

010‐516‐215 117263 07/20/20 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION 3231015507002  06/30/20 72 E 1ST ST $76.42

010‐516‐235 116931 07/08/20 EAST VALLEY WELLNESS CENTER LLC 41 06/01/20 ANNUAL FIREFIGHTER PHYSICALS FOR CREW AT  $5,721.00

010‐516‐302 117397 07/24/20 WATER SHED 400004743 06/29/20 ICE FOR CERT TEAM $14.89

010‐516‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248725 07/07/20 PAINT, TRAYS, TAPE $80.51

010‐516‐302 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248944 07/20/20 SUPPLIES $10.46

010‐516‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248800 07/11/20 PAINT $6.34

010‐516‐302 117225 07/20/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806842 06/27/20 BAR OIL $12.55

010‐516‐302 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248616 06/27/20 WHITE PLUG $11.64

010‐516‐302 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 800711 04/16/20 ADAPTERS $6.38

010‐516‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 247233 03/04/20 SUPPLIES FOR STATION #1 $19.04

010‐516‐304 116967 07/08/20 WILLIAM BRADLEY KELLS GEL‐KAYONU 26 06/17/20 PT SHOE REIMBURSEMENT $100.00

010‐516‐304 117270 07/20/20 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 32312 CREDIT 06/10/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE FOR STATION #2 AND  ($243.06)

010‐516‐304 116955 07/08/20 RANDY JABARA 087518 06/17/20 PT SHOE REIMBURSEMENT $100.00

010‐516‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 FIRE 541 $717.10

010‐516‐311 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE AMZN MKTP US SCREW DRIVER,  $75.92

010‐516‐311 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE AMZN MKTP US SCREW DRIVER,  $23.57

010‐516‐311 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE AMZN MKTP US SCREW DRIVER,  $14.96

010‐516‐311 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE AMZN MKTP US CHAINSAW AIR  $69.96

010‐516‐311 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE AMZN MKTP US CHAINSAW NUTS  $23.02

010‐516‐312 116940 07/08/20 L. N. CURTIS AND SONS INV395770 06/10/20 TIC REPLACEMENT BATTERIES $222.24

010‐516‐312 117242 07/20/20 L. N. CURTIS AND SONS INV397978 06/17/20 WILDLAND EQUIPMENT $46.47

010‐516‐312 117242 07/20/20 L. N. CURTIS AND SONS INV390779 05/20/20 WILDLAND EQUIPMENT $88.78

010‐516‐312 116946 07/08/20 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SVCS IN1465291 06/04/20 NOMEX HOODS FOR CANCER PREVENTION (14) $478.50

010‐516‐312 117215 07/20/20 BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC 83682536 07/02/20 PELICAN BOXES $794.54

010‐516‐321 117244 07/20/20 LIFE ASSIST INC 1012944 06/24/20 EMS SUPPLIES $125.42

010‐516‐321 117445 07/31/20 LIFE ASSIST INC 1015130 07/02/20 EMS SUPPLIES $125.42

010‐516‐321 117445 07/31/20 LIFE ASSIST INC 1017068 07/09/20 EMS SUPPLIES $125.42

Page 8 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

FIRE STATION #1
010‐516‐403 117425 07/30/20 WILLIAM S. BRUIN III 11/06/19 11/06/19 PER DIAM FOR CLASS IN TUCSON $16.00

$20,984.31

FIRE STATION #2
010‐517‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 723‐7347 HUNT FIRE $226.76

010‐517‐201 117382 07/24/20 COX BUSINESS 221288801  06/30/20 2035 N HUNT HWY $105.76

010‐517‐201 117382 07/24/20 COX BUSINESS 256447801  06/30/20 2035 N HUNT HWY $58.86

010‐517‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $12.92

010‐517‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $6.83

010‐517‐209 116954 07/08/20 PURCELL TIRE COMPANY 6788485 06/19/20 4 TIRES FOR FD123EK $2,712.20

010‐517‐212 117414 07/30/20 JOHNSON UTILITIES 00138081‐01  07/05/20 WATER & SEWER $69.96

010‐517‐212 117414 07/30/20 JOHNSON UTILITIES 00138082‐01 07/05/20 WATER & SEWER $345.25

010‐517‐215 117263 07/20/20 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION 4217982371002  06/30/20 2035 N HUNT HWY $84.98

010‐517‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 2035 N. HUNT HWY $1,940.39

010‐517‐235 116931 07/08/20 EAST VALLEY WELLNESS CENTER LLC 41 06/01/20 ANNUAL FIREFIGHTER PHYSICALS FOR CREW AT  $5,209.00

010‐517‐304 117434 07/31/20 CRAIG FELIZ 7‐8‐20 07/08/20 PT SHOE REIMBURSEMENT $100.00

010‐517‐304 116963 07/08/20 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 723067 04/28/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE ‐ KELLS $116.86

010‐517‐304 116963 07/08/20 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 723373 04/28/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE FOR STATION #2 AND  $373.47

010‐517‐304 116963 07/08/20 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 726939 04/28/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE FOR STATION #2 AND  $315.17

010‐517‐304 116963 07/08/20 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 726940 04/28/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE FOR STATION #2 AND  $348.63

010‐517‐304 117270 07/20/20 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 728114 06/10/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE ‐ WALTER $257.04

010‐517‐304 117270 07/20/20 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 728158 06/10/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE ‐ KELLS $579.38

010‐517‐304 117270 07/20/20 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. 728519 06/10/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE ‐ PIP $662.99

010‐517‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 FIRE 542 $530.72

010‐517‐312 116946 07/08/20 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SVCS IN1465291 06/04/20 NOMEX HOODS FOR CANCER PREVENTION (13) $478.50

010‐517‐312 117242 07/20/20 L. N. CURTIS AND SONS INV397978 06/17/20 WILDLAND EQUIPMENT $337.57

010‐517‐312 116940 07/08/20 L. N. CURTIS AND SONS INV395770 06/10/20 TIC REPLACEMENT BATTERIES $222.24

$15,095.48

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
010‐519‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 INFORMATION TECH/COUNCIL LAPTOPS $396.12

010‐519‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $15.11

Page 9 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 SENDGRID June 30 2020 06/30/20 TOWN EMAIL MARKETING $14.95

010‐519‐207 117392 07/24/20 SUBEX INC 40000567 06/30/20 JUNE 2020 NETWORK SECURITY $3,333.33

010‐519‐207 117392 07/24/20 SUBEX INC 40000559 05/31/20 MAY 2020 NETWORK SECURITY CHARGES $3,333.33

010‐519‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $13.91

010‐519‐207 116925 07/08/20 AT&T MOBILITY 287298070188X 05/18/20 FIRSTNET SERVICE FOR MODEM $24.78

010‐519‐207 116925 07/08/20 AT&T MOBILITY 287298070188X 05/18/20 FIRSTNET NIGHTHAWK MODEM $53.18

010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 RAMNODE.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 TOWN WEBSITE HOSTING $83.00

010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 RAMNODE.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 TOWN WEBSITE HOSTING $42.34

010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 RAMNODE.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 TOWN WEBSITE HOSTING $41.04

010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 RAMNODE.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 TOWN WEBSITE HOSTING $14.06

010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 GOOGLE June 30 2020 06/30/20 GOOGLE DRIVE STORAGE FOR WEBSITE BACKUP $2.99

010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 DNSMADE EASY TIGGEE June 30 2020 06/30/20 ANNUAL DNS MANAGEMENT RENEWAL $75.90

010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 AMAZON PRIME BUSINESS ANNUAL  $195.47

010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 ADOBE SYSTEMS INCORPORATED June 30 2020 06/30/20 ADOBE CREATIVE CLOUD SUBSCRIPTION $57.87

010‐519‐207 620 07/15/20 ZOOM June 30 2020 06/30/20 ZOOM FOR TELECONFERENCING $80.00

010‐519‐211 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 QTY 10 PATRIOT MEMORY 16GB FOR PC  $655.10

010‐519‐211 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 SSD REPLACEMENT DRIVES PC UPGRADES $327.60

010‐519‐217 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 MONTHLY MANAGEMENT SERVICE FEE $1,990.39

010‐519‐217 117403 07/30/20 AT&T MOBILITY 287298070188X 04/18/20 FIRSTNET HOTSPOT FOR BRENT $40.24

010‐519‐217 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 MONTHLY MANAGEMENT SERVICE FEE $1,991.02

010‐519‐217 117207 07/20/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN694359 05/20/20 MANAGED PRINT SERVICES $2,010.48

010‐519‐217 117207 07/20/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN688726 04/27/20 MANAGED PRINT SERVICES $2,010.48

010‐519‐217 116925 07/08/20 AT&T MOBILITY 287298070188X 05/18/20 AT&T FIRSTNET SERVICES, BALANCE REMAINING $15.46

010‐519‐217 117403 07/30/20 AT&T MOBILITY 287298070188X 03/18/20 FIRSTNET HOTSPOT FOR BRENT $12.94

010‐519‐222 117382 07/24/20 COX BUSINESS 607998101‐ 06/30/20 775 N MAIN STREET DIGITAL ADAPTOR $47.78

010‐519‐222 117409 07/30/20 COX BUSINESS JUNE/2020 06/11/20 775 N MAIN MAIN TRUNK LINE $2,440.00

010‐519‐302 116947 07/08/20 NEWEGG BUSINESS INC. 1302809943 06/09/20 HP PRODESK 600 G1 DESKTOP INTEL I7  $1,919.27

010‐519‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 IT $39.29

010‐519‐323 620 07/15/20 MICROSOFT CORPORATION June 30 2020 06/30/20 OFFICE 365 E1 MONTHLY SUBSCRIPTION $742.56

010‐519‐323 117286 07/20/20 CASELLE INC. 102856 06/03/20 ANNUAL SUPPORT, MAINTENANCE AND  $35,693.00

010‐519‐323 117286 07/20/20 CASELLE INC. CM40572 12/31/19 PHOTO CONTEST BALANCE ‐ CREDIT MEMO ($50.00)

Page 10 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
010‐519‐323 117437 07/31/20 DOCUNITED IMAGING LLC 102651 07/24/20 LASERFICHE LICENSES & SUPPORT $15,649.26

010‐519‐324 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 QTY 20 CRUCIAL 16GB DIMM 288‐PIN MEMORY  $1,397.60

010‐519‐324 116947 07/08/20 NEWEGG BUSINESS INC. 1302809943 06/09/20 HP PRODESK 600 G1 DESKTOP INTEL I7  $3,000.00

$77,709.85

FITNESS CENTER
010‐520‐201 117409 07/30/20 COX BUSINESS JUNE/2020 06/11/20 132 BAILEY ST ‐ FITNESS CENTER $3.14

010‐520‐215 117263 07/20/20 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION 3230058812022  06/30/20 133 N MAIN ST $31.27

010‐520‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 133 N MAIN ST $684.29

$718.70

PARKS & RECREATION ADMINISTRATION
010‐521‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $181.72

010‐521‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $66.69

010‐521‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $97.37

010‐521‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 04.06.20 07/20/20 APRIL 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $239.88

010‐521‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 05.06.20 03/09/20 MAY 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $239.88

010‐521‐231 117444 07/31/20 KS STATEBANK JUL‐20 07/01/20 JULY 2020 COPIER LEASE $239.88

010‐521‐301 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $13.09

$1,078.51

PARK MAINTENANCE
010‐522‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 PARKS MAINTENANCE PHONES $221.49

010‐522‐207 117210 07/20/20 ARIZONA'S BEST CHOICE PEST &  12153 06/22/20 GOPHER CONTROL @ HERITAGE PARK $235.00

010‐522‐207 117210 07/20/20 ARIZONA'S BEST CHOICE PEST &  689168 05/19/20 GOPHER CONTROL AT  $235.00

010‐522‐207 117210 07/20/20 ARIZONA'S BEST CHOICE PEST &  13161 06/29/20 GOPHER CONTROL @ HERITAGE PARK $235.00

010‐522‐207 117210 07/20/20 ARIZONA'S BEST CHOICE PEST &  11096 06/16/20 GOPHER CONTROL @ HERITAGE PARK $235.00

010‐522‐207 117210 07/20/20 ARIZONA'S BEST CHOICE PEST &  685880 04/28/20 GOPHER CONTROL AT  $235.00

010‐522‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 121 W 22ND ST ‐ PARK $117.19

010‐522‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 218 E 8TH ST $170.66

010‐522‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 28 E 11TH PLACE $79.56

010‐522‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 289 N. MAIN ST UNIT 1‐2 $77.58

010‐522‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 300 W 1ST ST $247.33

Page 11 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

PARK MAINTENANCE
010‐522‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 364 N. UNIVERSITY $193.76

010‐522‐302 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248887 07/16/20 IRRIGATION, FIELD PAINT AND MISCELLANEOUS  $116.36

010‐522‐302 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248904 07/16/20 IRRIGATION, FIELD PAINT AND MISCELLANEOUS  $14.80

010‐522‐302 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248923 07/17/20 CONDUIT , COUPLING & CONNECTIONS FOR  $15.31

010‐522‐302 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249068 07/27/20 GERMICIDAL BLEACH $10.33

010‐522‐302 117413 07/30/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248542 06/23/20 MISCELLANEOUS, IRRIGATION AND SHOP  $40.22

010‐522‐302 117413 07/30/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248432 06/17/20 MISCELLANEOUS, IRRIGATION AND SHOP  $9.69

010‐522‐302 117413 07/30/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 245504 06/22/20 MISCELLANEOUS, IRRIGATION AND SHOP  $36.44

010‐522‐302 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249010 07/22/20 WIRE BRUSH, SPACKLE KNIFE $13.75

010‐522‐302 117413 07/30/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248543 06/23/20 MISCELLANEOUS, IRRIGATION AND SHOP  ($0.63)

010‐522‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 PARKS MAINT $543.74

010‐522‐317 117410 07/30/20 DEVRIES BACKFLOW 061520 06/30/20 VACUUM BREAKER AT TOWN HALL $1,095.00

$4,177.58

COMMUNITY CENTER FACILITY
010‐523‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 778 N. MAIN ST $5,924.05

010‐523‐401 620 07/15/20 MOOD MEDIA CORPORATE June 30 2020 06/30/20 PANDORA MUSIC SUBSCRIPTION ‐ COMMUNITY  $29.43

$5,953.48

AQUATICS PROGRAMS
010‐524‐207 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐0265 PARKS & REC $324.72

010‐524‐207 117431 07/31/20 CENTURYLINK JULY/2020 07/16/20 868‐0265 PARKS & REC $341.17

010‐524‐215 117263 07/20/20 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION 3231015386002  06/30/20 174 W 1ST ST #2 $90.98

010‐524‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 174 W 1ST ST UNIT 2 $4,300.71

010‐524‐302 620 07/15/20 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 June 30 2020 06/30/20 4TH OF JULY SUPPLIES $16.40

010‐524‐302 620 07/15/20 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 June 30 2020 06/30/20 4TH OF JULY SUPPLIES $22.55

010‐524‐302 620 07/15/20 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 June 30 2020 06/30/20 4TH OF JULY SUPPLIES $125.71

010‐524‐304 116927 07/08/20 BSN SPORTS LLC 909206433 06/03/20 FEMALE LIFEGUARD SUITS $816.28

010‐524‐310 117205 07/20/20 AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTAL IN48094 06/15/20 POOL CHEMICALS $1,678.58

010‐524‐310 117205 07/20/20 AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTAL IN48189 06/29/20 SWIMMING POOL ACID $3,567.95

010‐524‐310 117235 07/20/20 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO. 50920073 06/11/20 MURIATIC ACID, CHEMICALS FOR AQUATIC  $1,568.54

010‐524‐312 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 SAFETY EQUIPMENT $30.22

Page 12 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

AQUATICS PROGRAMS
010‐524‐312 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 SAFETY EQUIPMENT $63.90

010‐524‐312 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 SAFETY EQUIPMENT $65.38

010‐524‐312 620 07/15/20 LINCOLN AQUATICS June 30 2020 06/30/20 FANNY PACKS, WHISTLES, AND REPLACEMENT  $846.61

010‐524‐401 620 07/15/20 MOOD MEDIA CORPORATE June 30 2020 06/30/20 PANDORA MUSIC SUBSCRIPTION ‐ AQUATIC  $29.43

$13,889.13

RECREATION PROGRAMS
010‐525‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 RECREATION PROGRAM $9.73

010‐525‐217 117284 07/20/20 BOX CANYON CONSULTING LLC 2020‐04 07/03/20 POSTON BUTTE CONSULTING AND STAFF  $1,181.25

010‐525‐302 620 07/15/20 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 June 30 2020 06/30/20 SUPPLIES FOR 4TH OF JULY TAKE AND MAKE KITS $34.09

010‐525‐302 620 07/15/20 DOLLAR TREE STORES INC June 30 2020 06/30/20 SUPPLIES FOR TAKE AND MAKE KITS $109.58

010‐525‐302 620 07/15/20 DOLLAR TREE STORES INC June 30 2020 06/30/20 SUPPLIES FOR TAKE AND MAKE KITS $8.82

010‐525‐302 620 07/15/20 DOLLAR TREE STORES INC June 30 2020 06/30/20 SUPPLIES FOR TAKE AND MAKE KITS $62.81

010‐525‐302 620 07/15/20 DOLLAR TREE STORES INC June 30 2020 06/30/20 SUPPLIES FOR TAKE AND MAKE KITS $22.04

010‐525‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 PARKS REC $31.84

$1,460.16

SPECIAL EVENTS
010‐526‐302 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 MEDAL HOLDERS FOR MASK DASH 50K $25.10

010‐526‐302 620 07/15/20 SPEKTRUM APPAREL June 30 2020 06/30/20 MASKS AND SHIRTS FOR MASK DASH 50K  $785.34

010‐526‐407 620 07/15/20 FACEBOOK June 30 2020 06/30/20 BOOST ADS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS FY 20 $4.70

010‐526‐407 620 07/15/20 FACEBOOK June 30 2020 06/30/20 BOOST ADS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS FY20 $5.30

$820.44

SENIOR CENTER
010‐528‐201 117433 07/31/20 COX BUSINESS 235531701 07/10/20 330 N PINAL ST. ‐ SENIOR CENTER $111.39

010‐528‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 SENIOR CENTER $18.56

010‐528‐201 117409 07/30/20 COX BUSINESS JUNE/2020 06/11/20 330 N PINAL ST. ‐ SENIOR CENTER $79.91

010‐528‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $105.92

010‐528‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $55.64

010‐528‐209 620 07/15/20 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES June 30 2020 06/30/20 LEXAN GLASS FOR SC‐16 $172.59

010‐528‐215 117263 07/20/20 SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION 3230058564022  06/30/20 330 N PINAL ST $36.13

010‐528‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 330 N. PINAL ST $1,286.30

Page 13 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

SENIOR CENTER
010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400002991 09/04/19 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $11.58

010‐528‐217 117427 07/31/20 AQUA CHILL INC #1 24341588 07/20/20 MONTHLY RENTAL OF REVERSE OSMOSIS $32.43

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400093 03/04/20 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $9.05

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004073 03/16/20 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $13.99

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400003653 12/23/19 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $11.52

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400003771 01/21/20 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $9.05

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400003545 12/02/19 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $9.05

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400002594 07/22/19 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $11.52

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400003813 01/27/20 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $7.40

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400002451 07/08/20 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $9.05

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400002352 06/24/20 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $11.52

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400002237 06/10/20 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $18.10

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400001933 04/22/20 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $9.05

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400001814 04/01/19 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $6.58

010‐528‐217 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400002731 08/05/19 WATER AND ICE FOR SENIOR CENTER $11.52

010‐528‐301 117247 07/20/20 OFFICE DEPOT INC 512771522001 06/18/20 PURCHASE OFFICE SUPPLIES $129.23

010‐528‐302 620 07/15/20 SMART & FINAL STORES CORP June 30 2020 06/30/20 MONTHLY MEAL SUPPLIES AND PAPER GOODS,  $116.30

010‐528‐302 620 07/15/20 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 June 30 2020 06/30/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR MONTHLY MEALS $172.67

010‐528‐302 117250 07/20/20 PINAL NUTRITION PROGRAM JUNE 2020 06/30/20 JUNE CONGREGATE MEALS $2,804.22

010‐528‐302 117415 07/30/20 PINAL NUTRITION PROGRAM 05/2020 06/02/20 MEALS FOR SENIOR CENTER ‐ MAY 2020 $1,790.01

010‐528‐304 620 07/15/20 WALMART COMMUNITY # 0005 7118 June 30 2020 06/30/20 SUPPLIES FOR STAFF UNIFORM SHIRTS $188.06

010‐528‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 SENIOR CENTER $106.59

010‐528‐401 620 07/15/20 MOOD MEDIA CORPORATE June 30 2020 06/30/20 PANDORA MUSIC SUBSCRIPTION ‐ SENIOR  $29.43

$7,384.36

LIBRARY
010‐529‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $33.49

$33.49

ENGINEERING
010‐530‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 ENGINEERING PHONES $82.90

010‐530‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $23.96

Page 14 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

ENGINEERING
010‐530‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $6.49

010‐530‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 ENGINEERING $43.48

$156.83

FACILITIES MAINTENANCE
010‐531‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 FACILITIES PHONES $144.91

010‐531‐201 117409 07/30/20 COX BUSINESS JUNE/2020 06/11/20 425 E. RUGGLES ST ‐ PW $3.14

010‐531‐201 117433 07/31/20 COX BUSINESS 235529101 07/10/20 425 E. RUGGLES ST ‐ PW $3.14

010‐531‐207 116943 07/08/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00259405 06/18/20 PD ADMIN $1,685.00

010‐531‐207 117395 07/24/20 UNITED EXTERMINATING 05312020.1 06/01/20 MONTHLY EXTERMINATING SERVICES FOR  $25.00

010‐531‐207 117353 07/24/20 BENSON SYSTEMS 857904 07/16/20 ALARM SYSTEM MONITORING FOR TOWN  $550.25

010‐531‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $69.55

010‐531‐207 116943 07/08/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00259441 06/18/20 AQUATIC CENTER $751.00

010‐531‐207 117426 07/31/20 A & R FIRE PROTECTION LLC 2547 07/14/20 MONITORING OF FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS $600.00

010‐531‐207 116943 07/08/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00259397 06/18/20 SWWTP $445.00

010‐531‐207 116943 07/08/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00259395 06/18/20 ANNUAL ALARM PANEL SERVICES/INSPECTIONS $580.00

010‐531‐207 116943 07/08/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00259392 06/18/20 TOWN HALL $640.00

010‐531‐207 116943 07/08/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00259281 06/18/20 PD EVIDENCE $435.00

010‐531‐207 116943 07/08/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00259441 06/18/20 ANNUAL FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM  $769.00

010‐531‐207 116943 07/08/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00259440 06/18/20 FIRE STA #1 $580.00

010‐531‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806315 06/22/20 BRAKES FOR FM‐4 $186.45

010‐531‐209 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $111.00

010‐531‐232 117355 07/24/20 DH PACE COMPANY INC. SVC/85795 07/06/20 CALL‐OUT SERVICES FOR FIRE STATION #1 $114.00

010‐531‐232 117380 07/24/20 CLEMANS PLUMBING 9481 06/19/20 CALL OUTS FOR PLUMBING SERVICES ‐ TOWN  $270.00

010‐531‐232 117355 07/24/20 DH PACE COMPANY INC. SVC/85794 07/06/20 CALL‐OUT SERVICES FOR FIRE STATION #1 $114.00

010‐531‐232 117245 07/20/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00263066 06/25/20 CALL‐OUT REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE TOWN HALL $700.00

010‐531‐232 117245 07/20/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00263066 06/25/20 CALL‐OUT REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ PD  $949.00

010‐531‐232 116956 07/08/20 SERRANO A/C AND HEATING LLC 393 06/16/20 CALL‐OUT HVAC SERVICES FOR TOF FACILITIES $1,695.00

010‐531‐232 117226 07/20/20 DH PACE COMPANY INC. SVC/85648 06/30/20 CALL‐OUT SERVICES (PD EVIDENCE) $228.00

010‐531‐232 117201 07/20/20 A & R FIRE PROTECTION LLC 2510 06/29/20 CALL‐OUT SERVICES FOR EXTINGUISHERS,  $484.16

010‐531‐232 117201 07/20/20 A & R FIRE PROTECTION LLC 2504 06/23/20 CALL‐OUT SERVICES FOR EXTINGUISHERS,  $243.05

010‐531‐232 117245 07/20/20 METRO FIRE EQUIPMENT INC. IN00263066 06/25/20 CALL‐OUT REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ PD  $7.50
Page 15 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

FACILITIES MAINTENANCE
010‐531‐232 117381 07/24/20 CONTINENTAL FLOORING COMPANY J038301 06/18/20 AQUATICS CARPET ‐ FURNISH & INSTALL $4,474.96

010‐531‐301 117367 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7310146202‐0‐1 07/16/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES FOR FAC. MAINT. $18.14

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248633 06/29/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. ($3.91)

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248634 06/29/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $10.57

010‐531‐302 117232 07/20/20 GRAINGER INC. 9535057161 06/29/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $288.22

010‐531‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248806 07/13/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FAC. MAINTENANCE‐ $26.67

010‐531‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248807 07/13/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FAC. MAINTENANCE ‐  $20.10

010‐531‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248941 07/20/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FAC. MAINTENANCE‐  $28.59

010‐531‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248942 07/20/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FAC. MAINTENANCE ‐  ($28.59)

010‐531‐302 117422 07/30/20 UNITED METAL PRODUCTS 78506 06/19/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $145.73

010‐531‐302 117384 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248223 06/05/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $6.09

010‐531‐302 117384 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248225 06/05/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $4.85

010‐531‐302 117384 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248244 06/08/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $17.99

010‐531‐302 117384 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248269 06/09/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $2.42

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248630 06/29/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $3.91

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248345 06/13/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $104.77

010‐531‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248943 07/19/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FAC. MAINTENANCE ‐  $28.58

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248554 06/24/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $14.81

010‐531‐302 117408 07/30/20 COOLIDGE ACE HARDWARE 166234/2 06/21/19 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES  $36.74

010‐531‐302 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 AMAZON ‐ BATTERIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $148.20

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248182 06/04/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. ($16.01)

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248301 06/11/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $32.72

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248337 06/12/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $40.20

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248433 06/17/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $1.41

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248448 06/18/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $21.82

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248585 06/25/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $13.63

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248573 06/25/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $12.70

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248577 06/25/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $3.17

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248578 06/25/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. ($11.12)

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248579 06/25/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. ($1.58)

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248580 06/25/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $1.58

Page 16 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

FACILITIES MAINTENANCE
010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248584 06/25/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $1.47

010‐531‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248420 06/17/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR FACILITIES MAINT. $24.33

010‐531‐304 117214 07/20/20 BLANK CANVAS 20707‐1 06/23/20 $124.85

010‐531‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 FAC MAINT $267.33

010‐531‐311 620 07/15/20 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES June 30 2020 06/30/20 LADDER $258.84

010‐531‐311 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248940 07/20/20 SMALL TOOLS FOR FAC. MAINTENANCE ‐ CUTTER $24.35

010‐531‐315 117279 07/20/20 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 79254025 06/19/20 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES FOR TOF FACILITIES $68.92

010‐531‐315 117279 07/20/20 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 79270684 06/26/20 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES FOR TOF FACILITIES $1,730.09

010‐531‐315 117279 07/20/20 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 79277974 06/30/20 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES FOR TOF FACILITIES $41.89

$20,372.58

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
010‐532‐201 117382 07/24/20 COX BUSINESS 228541501  06/30/20 CABLE LIBRARY & COMM CENTER $128.97

010‐532‐201 117431 07/31/20 CENTURYLINK JULY/2020 07/16/20 868‐7500 MAIN LINE $90.90

010‐532‐201 117431 07/31/20 CENTURYLINK JULY/2020 07/16/20 868‐0236 FIRE ALARM SYSTEM $55.55

010‐532‐201 117405 07/30/20 CENTURYLINK 88699086  07/08/20 LONG DISTANCE $207.51

010‐532‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐7500 MAIN LINE $90.91

010‐532‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐0593 INTERNET LINE ($3.99)

010‐532‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐0236 FIRE ALARM SYSTEM $55.52

010‐532‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK 520‐868‐ 06/30/20 AS/SR 9‐1‐1 LOCATOR $79.28

010‐532‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK 520‐868‐ 06/30/20 TRUNK LINE $545.31

010‐532‐201 117406 07/30/20 CENTURYLINK 8680593‐264B  07/10/20 868‐0593 $106.91

010‐532‐202 117364 07/24/20 PURCHASE POWER 07192020 07/19/20 POSTAGE METER REFILL $773.50

010‐532‐205 117217 07/20/20 CASA GRANDE VALLEY NEWSPAPER  81752 06/24/20 BUDGET $1,447.38

010‐532‐205 117217 07/20/20 CASA GRANDE VALLEY NEWSPAPER  81752 06/24/20 BUDGET ADOPTION NOTICE $168.30

010‐532‐205 117217 07/20/20 CASA GRANDE VALLEY NEWSPAPER  81752 06/24/20 PROPERTY TAX LEVY $168.30

010‐532‐205 117217 07/20/20 CASA GRANDE VALLEY NEWSPAPER  81752 06/24/20 PUBLIC HEARIING ‐ SLID LEVY $201.96

010‐532‐206 117206 07/20/20 ARIZONA MUNICIPAL RISK 40001519 07/06/20 LIABILITY INSURANCE $404.00

010‐532‐214 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 440 N. MAIN ST. SILVER KING $219.83

010‐532‐214 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐8933 291 S. BAILEY $291.89

010‐532‐214 117431 07/31/20 CENTURYLINK JULY/2020 07/16/20 868‐8933 291 S. BAILEY $156.48

010‐532‐214 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 440 N. MAIN ST. SILVER KING $213.65
Page 17 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
010‐532‐214 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 440 N. MAIN ST. SILVER KING $122.08

010‐532‐214 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 440 N. MAIN ST SILVER KING $62.81

010‐532‐214 117431 07/31/20 CENTURYLINK JULY/2020 07/16/20 868‐0705 SILVERKING ALARM $173.42

010‐532‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 24 W RUGGLES ST $59.17

010‐532‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 24 W RUGGLES ST $717.23

010‐532‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 291 N. BAILEY ST $318.41

010‐532‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 440 N. MAIN ST $223.06

010‐532‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 600 N MAIN ST $533.89

010‐532‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 775 N. MAIN STREET $3,896.69

010‐532‐217 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐0705 SILVER KING ALARM $173.25

010‐532‐314 117260 07/20/20 SHRED‐IT USA 8129913826 06/15/20 TOWN HALL SHREDDING $34.00

010‐532‐425 117282 07/20/20 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 2021‐125 07/01/20 ADMINISTRATION & COLLECTIONS ASSESSMENT  $70,609.50

$82,325.67

FLEET MAINTENANCE
010‐536‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $27.82

010‐536‐208 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806353 05/22/20 HYD FOR VEHICLE LIFT $27.89

010‐536‐209 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $50.76

010‐536‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806446 06/23/20 FUEL ADDITIVE FOR FT‐4 $4.70

010‐536‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 FLEET $60.75

$171.92

EMERGENCY RESPONSE
010‐550‐302 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 DISINFECTANT $152.84

010‐550‐302 620 07/15/20 COVIDNEED.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 LAST MINUTE HAND SANITIZER $326.95

010‐550‐302 117391 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308634720‐0‐2 06/16/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $21.74

010‐550‐315 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE AMZN MKTP US DISINFECTANT FOR  $435.80

010‐550‐315 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE AMZN MKTP US MASKS AND  $577.78

010‐550‐321 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PURCHASE AMZN MKTP US FACE MASKS FOR  $1,744.42

$3,259.53

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
010‐551‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐8030 MCFARLAND PARK ALARM $55.52

Page 18 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
010‐551‐201 117431 07/31/20 CENTURYLINK JULY/2020 07/16/20 868‐8030 MCFARLAND PARK ALARM $63.55

010‐551‐217 117233 07/20/20 GREATER FLORENCE CHAMBER 3103 07/02/20 4TH QUARTER 2019/2020 MCFARLAND  $13,750.00

010‐551‐407 117254 07/20/20 RAXX DIRECT MARKETING 3615 06/15/20 PINAL COUNTY VISITOR GUIDE $1,521.91

$15,390.98

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND ‐ COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
011‐510‐217 117251 07/20/20 PLANE‐ET COMMUNITIES LLC FL 2019‐600 06/30/20 TOF REDEVELOPMENT PLAN $26,618.00

011‐510‐217 117297 07/20/20 PLANE‐ET COMMUNITIES LLC FL 2019‐600 A 07/14/20 TOF REDEVELOPMENT PLAN $7,610.00

$34,228.00

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND ‐ PARKS
011‐522‐217 117424 07/30/20 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48609025 06/29/20 ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT & CULTURAL  $2,046.68

$2,046.68

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND ‐ SENIOR CENTER
011‐528‐507 117201 07/20/20 A & R FIRE PROTECTION LLC 2226 12/05/19 SENIOR CENTER FIRE ALARM PROJECT $8,663.14

$8,663.14

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND ‐ FACILITIES MAINTENANCE
011‐531‐211 117262 07/20/20 SJ ANDERSON COMPANY 2020.06.188 06/30/20 OWNER'S ALLOWANCE/CONTINGENCY $7,646.60

011‐531‐211 117262 07/20/20 SJ ANDERSON COMPANY 2020.06.188 06/30/20 WORK ON EXTERIOR FASCIA, STUCCO CRACKS & $50,977.32

011‐531‐507 117262 07/20/20 SJ ANDERSON COMPANY 2020.06.189 06/30/20 SILVER KING COMPLIANCE MODIFICATIONS $6,206.22

011‐531‐507 117262 07/20/20 SJ ANDERSON COMPANY 2020.06.189 06/30/20 SILVER KING COMPLIANCE MODIFICATIONS $53,848.23

$118,678.37

HURF ‐ PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS
012‐518‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS PHONES $968.43

012‐518‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $100.92

012‐518‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $49.10

012‐518‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $292.11

012‐518‐209 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $126.89

012‐518‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807573 07/08/20 TURN SIGNAL SWITCH FOR ST‐80 $35.29

012‐518‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807575 07/08/20 CREDIT ($11.79)

012‐518‐209 117365 07/24/20 REVOLUTION TIRE LLC 1168088 07/09/20 TIRES FOR STREETS T‐13 & T‐88 $1,108.62

012‐518‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807446 07/07/20 OIL & FILTERS FOR ST‐19 $84.18

Page 19 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

HURF ‐ PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS
012‐518‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807439 07/07/20 OIL & FILTERS FOR ST‐80 $37.08

012‐518‐209 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $600.00

012‐518‐209 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $196.00

012‐518‐209 116942 07/08/20 MANATEE TIRE & AUTO INC. DBA 199611 06/17/20 TIRES & SERVICE FOR PW $555.81

012‐518‐209 116937 07/08/20 H&E EQUIPMENT EXCHANGE LLC 95224200 06/12/20 WATER PUMP FOR ST‐45 $318.81

012‐518‐209 116937 07/08/20 H&E EQUIPMENT EXCHANGE LLC 95207840 06/03/20 CONTROL MODULE FOR ST‐45 $158.00

012‐518‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806738 06/26/20 PARTS FOR PW $13.09

012‐518‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806727 06/26/20 PARTS FOR PW $52.58

012‐518‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806650 06/25/20 PARTS FOR PW $70.07

012‐518‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806194 06/19/20 PARTS FOR PW $153.47

012‐518‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806176 06/19/20 PARTS FOR PW $137.26

012‐518‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807786 07/10/20 PURGE VALVE FOR FT‐29 $42.06

012‐518‐209 116958 07/08/20 SOUTHWEST SWEEPER SALES 10454 06/16/20 WATER STRAINER & SPRAY TIPS FOR ST‐26 $185.42

012‐518‐211 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $274.00

012‐518‐211 117360 07/24/20 MANATEE TIRE & AUTO INC. DBA 200492 07/20/20 2 TIRES FOR ST‐57 (TRAILER) $155.17

012‐518‐211 116933 07/08/20 EMPIRE SOUTHWEST EMWK2985840 06/30/20 REPAIRS TO ST30 (GRADER) $1,000.19

012‐518‐211 117361 07/24/20 NORTHERN TOOL & EQUIPMENT /  45552935 07/15/20 PUMP FOR PRESSURE WASHER $902.05

012‐518‐214 117371 07/24/20 AMERICAN HIGHWAY SOLUTIONS 1183 05/19/20 PREFORMED THERMOPLASTIC FOR STREETS $941.73

012‐518‐215 117208 07/20/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE 836486000‐ 07/02/20 ELECTRIC $2,852.40

012‐518‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 3180 N HUNT HWY $158.27

012‐518‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 SW COR MAIN & BUTTE TRLR SIG $61.55

012‐518‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 PINAL PKWY $88.18

012‐518‐215 117411 07/30/20 ELECTRICAL DISTRICT  NO. 2 JUNE‐20 07/07/20 SIGNAL LIGHT ON HUNT ‐ JUNE $41.83

012‐518‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 77 W. RUGGLES ST $75.71

012‐518‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 460 N. WARNER ST. $12.42

012‐518‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 4552 N. HUNT HWY $154.40

012‐518‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 444 N. WARNER $857.53

012‐518‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 2028 N. HUNT HWY $123.62

012‐518‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 201 N. GRANITE ST $37.55

012‐518‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 HWY 87 & CAMPBELL $46.20

012‐518‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 HWY 79‐8 D‐D LTS@FLO GRDNS $110.00

Page 20 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

HURF ‐ PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS
012‐518‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 FLO GRDN 4 DD LTS $61.60

012‐518‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 723 N PINAL PKWY‐TRAF LT $55.89

012‐518‐215 117227 07/20/20 ELECTRICAL DISTRICT  NO. 2 JUN‐20 06/30/20 DIVERSION DAM RD $267.63

012‐518‐215 117204 07/20/20 APS MAY/20  06/18/20 AR STREET LIGHT BILLING $3,346.32

012‐518‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 17 DD LTS N FLO $233.75

012‐518‐217 117385 07/24/20 FRANKLIN D. SPOON 0536102‐SPOON 06/30/20 REIMBURSEMENT FOR DOT PHYSICAL $99.99

012‐518‐217 117393 07/24/20 TERRACON CONSULTANTS INC TD83267 07/09/20 VAN HAREN STREET CM TESTING $4,063.75

012‐518‐217 117369 07/24/20 ADOT LA2020000134 06/09/20 IGA:12‐054‐SZ04101D‐ PROJECT DEVELOPMENT  $30,000.00

012‐518‐217 117370 07/24/20 ADRIAN REMIGIO 0536102  06/30/20 REIMBURSEMENT FOR DOT PHYSICALS $99.99

012‐518‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 04.06.20 07/20/20 APRIL 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $168.49

012‐518‐231 117241 07/20/20 KS STATEBANK 05.06.20 03/09/20 MAY 2020 XEROX LEASE PAYMENT $168.49

012‐518‐231 117444 07/31/20 KS STATEBANK JUL‐20 07/01/20 JULY 2020 COPIER LEASE $168.49

012‐518‐233 117374 07/24/20 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF  A041788  06/11/20 INMATE LABOR/WORK PROGRAM $23.00

012‐518‐235 117372 07/24/20 APS JUN/AR0480007 06/16/20 AR STREET LIGHT BILLING $2,001.82

012‐518‐236 620 07/15/20 TRACTOR SUPPLY CO #1808 June 30 2020 06/30/20 TRACTOR SUPPLY ‐ 325 GAL HORIZONTAL LEG  $590.11

012‐518‐236 116928 07/08/20 CENTERLINE SUPPLY WEST INC. 00089103 06/19/20 STREET REPAIR AND MAITNEANCE ITEMS $2,064.67

012‐518‐236 117259 07/20/20 SHERWIN‐WILLIAMS CO. #4378 3973‐0 06/24/20 STREET REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE ITEMS $798.74

012‐518‐236 117259 07/20/20 SHERWIN‐WILLIAMS CO. #4378 4530‐7 06/30/20 STREET REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE ITEMS $183.71

012‐518‐301 117367 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7310146202‐0‐ 07/16/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES FOR STREETS DIVISION $26.08

012‐518‐301 117391 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 730865768‐0‐2 06/22/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $100.69

012‐518‐301 117391 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308639876‐0‐1 06/11/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $66.91

012‐518‐301 117391 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308634720‐0‐1 06/11/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $321.35

012‐518‐301 117391 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308698752‐0‐1 06/12/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $39.52

012‐518‐301 117391 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308635768‐0‐1 06/11/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $94.12

012‐518‐302 117384 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248036 05/26/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $46.58

012‐518‐302 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 40004641 06/17/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $59.24

012‐518‐302 117303 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004764 07/01/20 WATER & ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $29.62

012‐518‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248672 07/01/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $25.31

012‐518‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248785 07/10/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $13.70

012‐518‐302 117356 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248808 07/13/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $6.48

012‐518‐302 117367 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 731019870‐1 07/17/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS DIVISION $13.16

Page 21 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

HURF ‐ PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS
012‐518‐302 117384 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248039 05/26/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $5.18

012‐518‐302 117384 07/24/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248099 05/28/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $10.58

012‐518‐302 117391 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308916812‐0‐1 06/22/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $9.31

012‐518‐302 117391 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308916812‐0‐2 06/18/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $11.97

012‐518‐302 117391 07/24/20 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 7308916812‐0‐3 06/30/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $61.82

012‐518‐302 117397 07/24/20 WATER SHED 400004650 06/18/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $18.73

012‐518‐302 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004740 06/29/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $77.48

012‐518‐302 117435 07/31/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 808717 07/22/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS DIVISION $2.59

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248338 06/12/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $25.38

012‐518‐302 117397 07/24/20 WATER SHED 400004683 06/22/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $23.15

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248333 06/12/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $32.04

012‐518‐302 620 07/15/20 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES June 30 2020 06/30/20 HOME DEPOT ‐ CEMENT AND TOOLS FOR  $539.09

012‐518‐302 620 07/15/20 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES June 30 2020 06/30/20 HOME DEPOT ‐ OPERATING SUPPLIES AND  $196.78

012‐518‐302 620 07/15/20 ZORO TOOLS INC June 30 2020 06/30/20 ZORO ‐ LATERAL FILE $177.66

012‐518‐302 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 799008 03/27/20 BLANKET: STREETS ‐ HURF & MISC OPERATING  $1.73

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 247020 03/23/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $8.45

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248083 05/28/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $20.09

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248412 06/16/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $16.90

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248302 06/11/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $87.43

012‐518‐302 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004682 06/22/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $49.37

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248410‐1 06/16/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $5.46

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248444 06/18/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $10.57

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248445 06/18/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $88.91

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248517 06/22/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $14.77

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248527 06/23/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $2.11

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248562 06/24/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $22.63

012‐518‐302 117231 07/20/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248655 06/30/20 OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR STREETS $6.95

012‐518‐304 117214 07/20/20 BLANK CANVAS 20707‐1 06/23/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE FOR ADMINISTRATIVE  $124.86

012‐518‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 HURF $2,749.19

012‐518‐311 620 07/15/20 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES June 30 2020 06/30/20 HOME DEPOT ‐ CEMENT AND TOOLS FOR  $137.97

012‐518‐311 620 07/15/20 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES June 30 2020 06/30/20 HOME DEPOT ‐ OPERATING SUPPLIES AND  $296.74

Page 22 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

HURF ‐ PUBLIC WORKS/STREETS
012‐518‐312 620 07/15/20 SUN MULLET LLC June 30 2020 06/30/20 SUN MULLET ‐ SUN VISORS FOR HATS FOR FIELD  $275.00

012‐518‐312 117269 07/20/20 UNIFIRST FIRST AID CORP 2505262 06/29/20 FIRST AID KIT RESTOCK FOR STREETS DIVISION $39.97

012‐518‐403 117407 07/30/20 CHRIS MAHURIN MAHURIN/OCT‐ 09/25/19 PER DIEM CORRECTION $56.00

012‐518‐403 117407 07/30/20 CHRIS MAHURIN PER DIEM/2020 01/21/20 PER DIEM FOR ATTENDING ASU'S PAVEMENT $23.00

012‐518‐403 117399 07/30/20 ADRIAN REMIGIO PER  01/08/20 REIMBURSEMENT FOR PARKING FEES $26.00

012‐518‐403 117399 07/30/20 ADRIAN REMIGIO PER  01/08/20 PER DIEM FOR MEAL DURING ROW TESTING $15.00

012‐518‐403 117417 07/30/20 RYAN BURSON BURSON/OCT‐19 09/25/19 PER DIEM CORRECTION $56.00

$63,732.26

HURF ‐ ENGINEERING
012‐535‐322 117216 07/20/20 CACTUS TRANSPORT INC. 71953565 06/30/20 T‐69 PAVEMENT PRESERVATION: $6,471.67

012‐535‐322 117216 07/20/20 CACTUS TRANSPORT INC. 71953566 06/30/20 T‐69 PAVEMENT PRESERVATION: ASPHALT  $117,738.44

012‐535‐322 117368 07/24/20 TERRACON CONSULTANTS INC TD83271 07/09/20 T‐69 PAVEMENT PRESERVATION PRJT. VAN  $97.50

012‐535‐322 117430 07/31/20 CACTUS TRANSPORT INC. 71954167 07/22/20 T‐69 PAVEMENT PRESERVATION: ASPHALT  $2,361.68

$126,669.29

HURF ‐ FLEET SERVICES
012‐536‐208 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806353 05/22/20 HYD OIL FOR VEHICLE LIFT $21.37

012‐536‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807064 07/01/20 OIL FILTERS FOR FT‐4 $118.11

012‐536‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806446 06/23/20 FUEL ADDITIVE FOR FM‐4 $3.61

012‐536‐209 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $38.88

012‐536‐302 117351 07/24/20 AGS SAFETY & SUPPLY 7522320 07/01/20 SCRUBS IN A TUB FOR FLEET $262.68

012‐536‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 FLEET $46.54

$491.19

HURF ‐ CAPITAL OUTLAY
012‐581‐505 117228 07/20/20 ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT 2Z072020‐ 06/24/20 2 NEW 2020 CHEVY CREW CAB WITH UTILITY  $83,828.48

012‐581‐506 116936 07/08/20 GRABBER POWER PRODUCTS 0084835 06/18/20 MERIT 50HP CONCRETE SAW $28,998.10

012‐581‐507 117267 07/20/20 T.Y.LIN INTERNATIONAL 102006374 07/07/20 CIP T‐41 TOWN CONTINGENCY $4,080.92

012‐581‐507 117421 07/30/20 TALIS CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION PW‐20‐0057 05/13/20 CIP T‐28 FS #2 TURN LANE $41,446.06

$158,353.56

FLORENCE WATER LIABILITIES
051‐219‐000 117451 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 10603802 07/24/20 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND $93.98

Page 23 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

FLORENCE WATER LIABILITIES
051‐219‐000 117456 07/31/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 601700 07/24/20 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND $139.92

051‐219‐000 117246 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 122327 06/30/20 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT $51.33

051‐219‐000 117456 07/31/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 221400 07/24/20 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND $67.18

051‐219‐000 117458 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 10224603 07/24/20 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND $61.59

051‐219‐000 117456 07/31/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 200800 07/24/20 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND $86.33

051‐219‐000 117454 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 312453 07/24/20 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND $25.16

051‐219‐000 117442 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 100317 07/24/20 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND $100.00

051‐219‐000 117432 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 10306806 07/24/20 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND $64.71

051‐219‐000 117258 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 408912 06/30/20 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT $75.60

051‐219‐000 117240 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 401505 06/30/20 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT $113.14

051‐219‐000 117276 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 221200 06/30/20 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT $28.86

051‐219‐000 117447 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 11206411 07/24/20 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND $94.35

$1,002.15

FLORENCE WATER
051‐574‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 WASTE WATER / WATER 50% SPLIT $443.20

051‐574‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐0246 WATER $177.46

051‐574‐201 117431 07/31/20 CENTURYLINK JULY/2020 07/16/20 868‐0246 WATER $177.65

051‐574‐202 117364 07/24/20 PURCHASE POWER 07192020 07/19/20 POSTAGE FOR MASS MAILING CIP WU‐90  $1,750.00

051‐574‐203 117387 07/24/20 INFOSEND 174460.1 06/30/20 2019 CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT $1,030.00

051‐574‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $93.19

051‐574‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $49.96

051‐574‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $90.40

051‐574‐208 116929 07/08/20 CUMMINS ROCKY MOUNTAIN LLC 54‐53054 08/02/19 REPAIRS FOR WELL 3B $1,630.56

051‐574‐208 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806353 05/22/20 HYD OIL FOR VEHICLE LIFT $4.15

051‐574‐208 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807163 07/02/20 PARTS FOR 3B WELL GENERATOR $564.13

051‐574‐208 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807169 07/02/20 CREDIT FOR BATTERIES FOR WELL 3B  ($157.25)

051‐574‐209 117354 07/24/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 807908 07/13/20 OIL & FILTERS FOR W‐2 $65.77

051‐574‐209 117365 07/24/20 REVOLUTION TIRE LLC 1168089 07/09/20 TIRES FOR W‐10 $600.00

051‐574‐209 117360 07/24/20 MANATEE TIRE & AUTO INC. DBA 200387 07/20/20 TIRES FOR W‐34 (TRAILER) $529.38

051‐574‐209 620 07/15/20 EARNHARDT  SERVICE #25440 OR  June 30 2020 06/30/20 REPAIRS FOR W‐31 $1,625.30

051‐574‐209 117287 07/20/20 JONES AUTO CENTER 75634 07/08/20 A/C REPAIRS FOR W‐31 $232.47
Page 24 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

FLORENCE WATER
051‐574‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806446 06/23/20 FUEL ADDITIVE FOR FT‐4 $0.70

051‐574‐209 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $218.48

051‐574‐209 117289 07/20/20 LONG STAR AUTO GLASS SERVICES 3023 07/07/20 WINDSHIELD FOR W‐1 $212.73

051‐574‐211 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $4.00

051‐574‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 425 E RUGGLES ST $10,417.78

051‐574‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 425 E RUGGLES ST REAR $343.00

051‐574‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 425 E RUGGLES ST $248.46

051‐574‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 IOWA MTR@WTR TANK ON HILL $1,806.01

051‐574‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 455 HWY 79 WELL 1 W/O RVRBTTM B $2,428.94

051‐574‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 565 S. QUARTZ ST WELL #5 $2,807.67

051‐574‐217 117213 07/20/20 BESST INC. TOF050520 05/05/20 WELL 3B ‐ ZONAL CHEMISTRY INVESTIGATION $5,000.00

051‐574‐217 117280 07/20/20 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48618004 07/07/20 PROPOSAL 2020P00033 FIRE FLOW $10,477.82

051‐574‐237 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248639 06/29/20 WATER ‐ UTILITY LINE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE $10.37

051‐574‐237 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248378 06/15/20 WATER ‐ UTILITY LINE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE $38.12

051‐574‐237 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248480 06/19/20 WATER ‐ UTILITY LINE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE $3.69

051‐574‐237 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248558 06/24/20 WATER ‐ UTILITY LINE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE $26.46

051‐574‐237 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248627 06/29/20 WATER ‐ UTILITY LINE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE $70.41

051‐574‐238 117223 07/20/20 COOLIDGE ENGINE & PUMP L.L.C. 8663 06/30/20 PACKER INSTALLED ‐ WELL #5 $24,240.26

051‐574‐301 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 LABELS $71.02

051‐574‐302 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004641.2 06/17/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $19.74

051‐574‐302 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004682.1 06/22/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $16.45

051‐574‐302 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004740.1 06/29/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $25.83

051‐574‐302 117303 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004764 07/01/20 WATER & ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $9.87

051‐574‐304 117305 07/20/20 WILLIAM MARTELL 498069 07/09/20 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE ‐ WATER 100% $324.61

051‐574‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 WATER $948.88

051‐574‐310 117235 07/20/20 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO. 50920621 06/30/20 WATER ‐ CHEMICALS $555.70

051‐574‐310 117235 07/20/20 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO. 50920621.1 06/30/20 WATER ‐ 12.5% LIQUID BLEACH $846.53

051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248878 07/15/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $20.94

051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249116 07/29/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $2.66

051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249102 07/28/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $17.56

051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249095 07/28/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $72.06

Page 25 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

FLORENCE WATER
051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249075 07/27/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $14.71

051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249050 07/24/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $10.57

051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249032 07/23/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $24.52

051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249005 07/22/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $28.70

051‐574‐326 117274 07/20/20 VERMEER SALES SOUTHWEST INC. 00189347 06/30/20 EVACUATOR $1,724.80

051‐574‐326 116951 07/08/20 OMEGA INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC. 126429 06/10/20 ROACH BAIT $836.99

051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248778 07/10/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $170.80

051‐574‐326 117412 07/30/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0395805 06/25/20 UTILITY LINE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE $2,660.98

051‐574‐326 117412 07/30/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0395804 06/19/20 UTILITY LINE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE $548.70

051‐574‐326 117412 07/30/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0388261 04/08/20 UTILITY LINE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE $101.63

051‐574‐326 117243 07/20/20 LEGEND TECHNICAL SVCS INC. 2010053 06/30/20 DRINKING WATER LAB TESTING $3,088.00

051‐574‐326 117225 07/20/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806002 06/17/20 SPARK PLUG $7.76

051‐574‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248837 07/14/20 BLANKET:  OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $22.41

051‐574‐335 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 PRINTER $18.99

051‐574‐403 117420 07/30/20 SUSAN JONAS 022519022619 02/25/19 WIFA WORKSHOP 2 DAY MEAL PER DIEM SJ $15.00

051‐574‐406 117400 07/30/20 AZ DEPARTMENT OF  0000326323X.1 06/01/20 B2042262 = WATER SYSTEM ‐ WQL $1,250.00

051‐574‐406 620 07/15/20 AZ DEPT OF WATER RESOURCES June 30 2020 06/30/20 2019 ANNUAL WATER WITHDRAWL FEE $4,992.00

051‐574‐406 117218 07/20/20 CENTRAL AZ GROUNDWATER DIST. 73861 03/31/20 WATER, M&I, SUBCONTRACT $35,271.11

051‐574‐507 620 07/15/20 U. S. POST MASTER June 30 2020 06/30/20 MAILING SUPPLIES FOR CUSTOMER  $368.65

$121,349.44

CAPITAL OUTLAY
051‐581‐507 117280 07/20/20 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48616005 07/07/20 PROJECT 0486.16 WELL 2B SR #1 $1,100.00

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC R395649 06/25/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $39.00

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC S384943 06/25/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $1,750.91

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC S393651 06/25/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $196.95

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC S936511 06/25/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $9.54

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC T393651 06/25/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM ($217.15)

051‐581‐507 117266 07/20/20 SWAN ARCHITECTS INC. 001 07/14/20 CIP WU‐91 WATER BARN $6,470.00

051‐581‐507 117280 07/20/20 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48616005.1 07/07/20 CIP WU‐23 WELL 2B PERMIT SUPPORT $55.00

051‐581‐507 117293 07/20/20 MILANDR INC 1041 07/01/20 CONNECTIVITY FEE ‐ COMMUNICATIONS  $80.40

051‐581‐507 117412 07/30/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0395649.1 06/18/20 CONCRETE METER BOX $55.14
Page 26 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

CAPITAL OUTLAY
051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC CMR395649 06/26/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM ($55.14)

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0394206 06/05/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $33,420.00

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC T936511 06/25/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM ($10.52)

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0396514 06/30/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $689.92

051‐581‐507 117213 07/20/20 BESST INC. TOF070720 07/07/20 CIP WU‐88 WELL #5 SPINNER LOG $5,000.00

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0394352 06/18/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $1,263.85

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0396025 06/30/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $2,375.69

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0393965‐1 06/18/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $1,013.99

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0393965 06/05/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $3,272.26

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0393651‐1 06/05/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $132.84

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0393651 06/03/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $2,742.19

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0387410‐1 06/05/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $12,130.00

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0384943‐1 06/05/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $49.15

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0384943 06/03/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $22,477.61

051‐581‐507 117230 07/20/20 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC 0396558 06/26/20 CIP WU‐90 ADVANCED METERING SYSTEM $19,032.00

$113,073.63

SEWER OPERATIONS ‐ SOUTH PLANT
052‐575‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK JUNE ‐ 2020 06/16/20 868‐2394 WASTEWATER $60.20

052‐575‐201 117431 07/31/20 CENTURYLINK JULY/2020 07/16/20 868‐2394 WASTEWATER $60.23

052‐575‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 WASTE WATER/WATER 50% SPLIT $443.20

052‐575‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $49.10

052‐575‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $93.71

052‐575‐207 117404 07/30/20 CASA GRANDE COURIER INC. 1550 06/30/20 SWWTP ‐ COURIER SERVICES $1,924.00

052‐575‐208 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806353 05/22/20 HYD OIL FOR VEHICLE LIFT $5.94

052‐575‐209 116930 07/08/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806446 06/23/20 FUEL ADDITIVE FOR FT‐4 $1.00

052‐575‐209 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $116.00

052‐575‐209 117360 07/24/20 MANATEE TIRE & AUTO INC. DBA 200485 07/21/20 6 TIRES FOR WW‐6 $889.81

052‐575‐211 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $90.00

052‐575‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 100 S PLANT RD $19,833.76

052‐575‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 425 E RUGGLES ST $248.46

052‐575‐215 117376 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE JUNE 2020 07/06/20 425 E RUGGLES ST REAR $343.00
Page 27 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

SEWER OPERATIONS ‐ SOUTH PLANT
052‐575‐217 117229 07/20/20 EUSI LLC 2955 06/05/20 MAY‐PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $5,012.90

052‐575‐217 117419 07/30/20 STRATTON RESTORATION 48479 03/25/20 SWWTP ‐ SEWER WATER REMEDIATION $2,812.26

052‐575‐217 117229 07/20/20 EUSI LLC 2926.1 04/09/20 SWWTP OPERATOR ON RECORD ‐ APRIL $3,858.69

052‐575‐217 117264 07/20/20 SOUTHWEST INDUSTRIAL RIGGING 59176 03/31/20 REMOVE MIXERS FROM BASINS $3,075.45

052‐575‐217 117229 07/20/20 EUSI LLC 2976 06/30/20 CONSULTING $945.00

052‐575‐222 117255 07/20/20 RIGHT AWAY DISPOSAL LLC 0003135383 06/15/20 SWWTP ‐ CONTAINER RENTAL FEES $100.00

052‐575‐230 117255 07/20/20 RIGHT AWAY DISPOSAL LLC 0003135383 06/15/20 SWWTP ‐ LANDFILL FEES $2,554.60

052‐575‐301 620 07/15/20 AMAZON.COM June 30 2020 06/30/20 OFFICE SUPPLIES $79.23

052‐575‐302 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004573 06/08/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $17.36

052‐575‐302 117303 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004764 07/01/20 WATER & ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $20.66

052‐575‐304 117214 07/20/20 BLANK CANVAS 20441 06/10/20 A MORENO SHIRTS $175.66

052‐575‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 S. SEWER $129.02

052‐575‐310 117235 07/20/20 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO. 50920622 06/30/20 SWWTP ‐ SODIUM BISULFITE 40% $683.07

052‐575‐310 117235 07/20/20 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO. 50920686 06/30/20 SWWTP ‐ 12.5% LIQUID BLEACH $2,337.05

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248989 07/22/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE ($84.72)

052‐575‐326 117294 07/20/20 MOTION INDUSTRIES AZ52‐721976 07/02/20 SWWTP: 12EBLSX ACTUATOR ASSEMBLY $2,085.62

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249111 07/29/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $14.81

052‐575‐326 117435 07/31/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 804997.1 06/05/20 AIR HAMMER RECEIVED 07/16/20 $123.92

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248960 07/21/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $128.09

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248963 07/21/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $14.29

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248988 07/22/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $84.72

052‐575‐326 117272 07/20/20 USABLUEBOOK ‐ ACCT 703717 172558 03/13/20 SWWTP ‐ PH AND DIS OXYGEN SENSORS $2,327.05

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248990 07/22/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $84.72

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248995 07/22/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $44.42

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249003 07/22/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $33.88

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249008 07/22/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $27.50

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249009 07/22/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $24.52

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249016 07/22/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $3.17

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249077 07/27/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $35.35

052‐575‐326 117272 07/20/20 USABLUEBOOK ‐ ACCT 703717 143004 02/12/20 HACH TOTAL CHLORINE ACCUVAC $296.65

052‐575‐326 117438 07/31/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 249015 07/22/20 BLANKET: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $7.39

Page 28 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

SEWER OPERATIONS ‐ SOUTH PLANT
052‐575‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248552 06/24/20 SWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $64.42

052‐575‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 247963 05/20/20 SWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $12.69

052‐575‐326 116924 07/08/20 ARIZONA WIRE ROPE 345616 06/17/20 OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $2,431.77

052‐575‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248171 06/03/20 SWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $9.31

052‐575‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248242 06/08/20 SWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $14.05

052‐575‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248375 06/15/20 SWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $74.12

052‐575‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248456 06/18/20 SWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $30.48

052‐575‐326 117256 07/20/20 SALT RIVER EXTRACTION LLC 26769 04/22/20 SWWTP ‐ HDROVAC $8,152.50

052‐575‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248514 06/22/20 SWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $36.17

052‐575‐326 116949 07/08/20 NSILAB SOLUTIONS 379756 06/10/20 SWWTP ‐ LAB EQUIPMENT TESTING $144.00

052‐575‐326 116965 07/08/20 USABLUEBOOK ‐ ACCT 703717 263240 06/10/20 NWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $170.42

052‐575‐326 117225 07/20/20 DAY AUTO SUPPLY INC 806200 06/19/20 TOW STRAPS $74.23

052‐575‐326 117243 07/20/20 LEGEND TECHNICAL SVCS INC. 2010055 06/30/20 SWWTP ‐ SAMPLE TESTING $1,389.00

052‐575‐326 117252 07/20/20 PROCESS FABRICATION INC 5641 06/30/20 CRACK REPAIR ‐ SWWTP $695.00

052‐575‐326 117255 07/20/20 RIGHT AWAY DISPOSAL LLC 0003135383 06/15/20 SWWTP ‐ DUMP AND RETURN $925.00

052‐575‐326 117255 07/20/20 RIGHT AWAY DISPOSAL LLC 0003135383 06/15/20 SWWTP ‐ DUMP AND RETURN $2,750.00

052‐575‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248479 06/19/20 SWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $12.69

052‐575‐403 117420 07/30/20 SUSAN JONAS 022519022619 02/25/19 WIFA WORKSHOP 2 DAY MEAL PER DIEM SJ $15.00

052‐575‐403 117400 07/30/20 AZ DEPARTMENT OF  0000326459X.1 06/18/20 B2043087 $59.25

052‐575‐406 117373 07/24/20 AZ DEPARTMENT OF  0000326948X 06/30/20 B2021816 WQL WATER QUALITY FEE ‐ JUNE  $2,500.00

052‐575‐406 117373 07/24/20 AZ DEPARTMENT OF  0000326919X 06/30/20 B2040349 QQL WATER QUALITY FEE ‐ JUNE 2020  $671.00

$71,441.84

SEWER OPERATIONS ‐ NORTH PLANT
052‐576‐201 117378 07/24/20 CENTURYLINK 520‐868‐ 06/30/20 FIRE ALARMS $114.04

052‐576‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $48.67

052‐576‐215 117257 07/20/20 SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION 110033.1 06/30/20 HWY 79 WASTE PLANT W SD OF INS $2,417.96

052‐576‐217 117265 07/20/20 STRATTON RESTORATION 49472 06/30/20 NWWTP ‐ RESTORATION SERVICES ‐  $1,488.58

052‐576‐217 117265 07/20/20 STRATTON RESTORATION 49473 06/30/20 NWWTP ‐ RESTORATION SERVICES CABINETS $995.00

052‐576‐217 117265 07/20/20 STRATTON RESTORATION 49471 06/30/20 INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE $1,000.00

052‐576‐217 117229 07/20/20 EUSI LLC 2940 05/11/20 SWWTP OPERATOR ON RECORD ‐ APRIL/MAY $3,762.31

052‐576‐217 117229 07/20/20 EUSI LLC 2940 05/11/20 SWWTP OPERATOR ON RECORD ‐ APRIL $3,762.32
Page 29 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

SEWER OPERATIONS ‐ NORTH PLANT
052‐576‐217 117229 07/20/20 EUSI LLC 2926.1 04/09/20 SWWTP OPERATOR ON RECORD ‐ APRIL $3,858.69

052‐576‐222 117255 07/20/20 RIGHT AWAY DISPOSAL LLC 0003135383 06/15/20 NWWTP ‐ CONTAINER RENTAL FEES $25.00

052‐576‐302 117278 07/20/20 WATER SHED 400004573.2 06/08/20 WATER AND ICE FOR PUBLIC WORKS $17.35

052‐576‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 N. SEWER $223.74

052‐576‐310 116938 07/08/20 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO. 50920425 06/10/20 NWWTP ‐ CHEMICALS $2,228.35

052‐576‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248371 06/15/20 SWWTP ‐ SMALL TOOLS $34.92

052‐576‐326 117272 07/20/20 USABLUEBOOK ‐ ACCT 703717 143004 02/12/20 PHENYLARSINE OXIDE SOLUTION $93.87

052‐576‐326 117243 07/20/20 LEGEND TECHNICAL SVCS INC. 2010054 06/30/20 NWWTP ‐ SAMPLE TESTING $503.00

052‐576‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248399 06/16/20 SWWTP ‐ SAFETY EQUIPMENT $26.18

052‐576‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248379 06/15/20 REPLACES PO# 52702‐RECLASS BALANCE TO  $7.39

052‐576‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248312 06/11/20 SWWTP ‐ SAFETY EQUIPMENT $45.92

052‐576‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248310 06/11/20 SWWTP ‐ SMALL TOOLS $20.10

052‐576‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248175 06/03/20 SWWTP ‐ OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE $24.76

052‐576‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248001 05/22/20 NUTS/ BOLTS/ SCREWS $10.78

052‐576‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 247982 05/21/20 GRASS KILLER/ HOE/ RAKE $75.16

052‐576‐326 116935 07/08/20 FLORENCE TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 248313 06/11/20 SWWTP ‐ SAFETY EQUIPMENT $89.94

$20,874.03

SEWER FUND ‐ CAPITAL OUTLAY
052‐581‐507 117280 07/20/20 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48614010 07/07/20 SWWTP ‐ CIP SU‐91 SYSTEM WIDE CAPACITY $3,527.00

052‐581‐507 117386 07/24/20 HAZEN AND SAWYER 0000001.1 04/24/20 CIP SU‐88 SWWTP EXPANSION HEADWORKS $5,286.76

052‐581‐507 117280 07/20/20 WESTLAND RESOURCES INC 48614009 06/09/20 SWWTP ‐ CIP SU‐91 SYSTEM WIDE CAPACITY $7,362.10

$16,175.86

SANITATION LIABILITIES
053‐219‐000 117268 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 734031.1 06/30/20 REFUND SANITATION DEPOSIT $49.57

053‐219‐000 117446 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 717593 07/23/20 REFUND SANITATION DEPOSIT $32.92

053‐219‐000 117443 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 738870 07/23/20 REFUND SANITATION DEPOSIT $14.84

053‐219‐000 117296 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 714214 07/01/20 REFUND SANITATION DEPOSIT $32.92

053‐219‐000 117220 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 703597.1 06/30/20 REFUND SANITATION DEPOSIT $51.00

053‐219‐000 117202 07/20/20 2ND TEMP 794600 06/30/20 REFUND SANITATION DEPOSIT $51.00

053‐219‐000 116961 07/08/20 2ND TEMP 711272 07/01/20 REFUND SANITATION DEPOSIT $32.92

Page 30 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

SANITATION LIABILITIES
053‐219‐000 117436 07/31/20 2ND TEMP 741560 07/27/20 REFUND SANITATION DEPOSIT $51.00

$316.17

SANITATION OPERATIONS
053‐571‐201 117273 07/20/20 VERIZON WIRELESS JUNE/2020 06/21/20 SANITATION PHONE $49.90

053‐571‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN682366 03/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (JAN ‐ MAR) $10.65

053‐571‐203 117401 07/30/20 ARIZONA OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY IN703908 06/29/20 QUARTERLY PRINTING CHARGES (APR‐JUNE) $2.89

053‐571‐207 116960 07/08/20 T‐MOBILE USA INC. JUNE 2020  05/21/20 GPS FOR FLEET $27.85

053‐571‐209 117203 07/20/20 AMERICAN FIRE EQUIPMNET 210162 06/08/20 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES/EQUIP. FOR PW  $5.08

053‐571‐217 117452 07/31/20 RIGHT AWAY DISPOSAL LLC 0003135600 07/01/20 JULY INSTITUTIONAL BILLING $6,842.91

053‐571‐217 117452 07/31/20 RIGHT AWAY DISPOSAL LLC 0003135599 07/01/20 JULY RESIDENTIAL BILLING $55,642.95

053‐571‐230 117277 07/20/20 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ARIZONA 0007403‐0563‐6 07/01/20 BULK TRASH PICKUP CHARGES FOR TOF $2,202.73

053‐571‐230 117277 07/20/20 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ARIZONA 0000171‐4767‐ 07/01/20 BULK TRASH PICKUP‐CUSTOMER ID 22‐36609‐ $775.49

053‐571‐230 117277 07/20/20 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ARIZONA 0000171‐4767‐9 07/01/20 BULK TRASH PICKUP CHARGES FOR TOF $1,332.01

053‐571‐230 116966 07/08/20 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF ARIZONA 0007384‐0563‐8 06/01/20 BULK TRASH PICKUP CHARGES FOR TOF $2,882.89

053‐571‐306 117281 07/20/20 WEX BANK 66224311 06/30/20 FUEL FOR JUNE 2020 SANITATION $103.91

$69,879.26

DOHS ‐ RADIOS ‐ HS6P‐190305‐01
249‐509‐506 116945 07/08/20 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS  INC. 1187040154 06/25/20 GRANT FUNDED: 6 PORTABLE RADIOS,  $43,499.66

$43,499.66

GRANT ‐ Bullet Proof Vests ‐ 2015/2016
250‐510‐312 117302 07/20/20 UNIVERSAL POLICE SUPPLY INC 26745 07/06/20 VEST ‐ GRANT FUNDED: CHIEF WALLS $972.85

250‐510‐312 117396 07/24/20 UNIVERSAL POLICE SUPPLY INC 246934 05/26/20 GRANT FUNDED: VEST: GASTON $972.85

$1,945.70

ANTHEM SLID #1
300‐506‐215 117377 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY 8364860000 07/02/20 SLID #1‐MERRILL RANCH $2,446.65

$2,446.65

ANTHEM SLID #2
301‐506‐215 117377 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY 8364860000 07/02/20 SLID #2 MERRILL RANCH $2,468.59

$2,468.59

ANTHEM SLID #3
Page 31 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

ANTHEM SLID #3
302‐506‐215 117377 07/24/20 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY 8364860000 07/02/20 SLID #3 MERRILL RANCH $2,209.08

$2,209.08

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES ‐ TRANSPORTATION
505‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 620 W 11TH ST. $2,250.00

505‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 606 W 11TH ST. $2,250.00

$4,500.00

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES ‐ POLICE
508‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 606 W 11TH ST. $754.00

508‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 620 W 11TH ST. $754.00

$1,508.00

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES ‐ FIRE/EMS
509‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 606 W 11TH ST. $955.00

509‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 620 W 11TH ST. $955.00

$1,910.00

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES ‐ PARKS
510‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 606 W 11TH ST. $1,934.00

510‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 620 W 11TH ST. $1,934.00

$3,868.00

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES ‐ FLORENCE WATER
596‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 606 W 11TH ST. $1,065.00

596‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 620 W 11TH ST. $1,065.00

$2,130.00

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES ‐ FLORENCE SEWER
597‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 606 W 11TH ST. $2,400.00

597‐360‐684 117275 07/20/20 WADE JURNEY HOMES 011620.1 01/16/20 REFUND CANCELLED PERMIT ‐ 620 W 11TH ST. $2,400.00

$4,800.00

CFD #1 ‐ MERRILL RANCH‐ADMIN
957‐506‐205 117217 07/20/20 CASA GRANDE VALLEY NEWSPAPER  81121 06/23/20 LEGAL AD‐BUDGET AND LEVY $1,110.78

$1,110.78

Page 32 of 33



Account 
Number

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Vendor Invoice         
Number

Invoice 
Date

AmountDescription

CFD #2 ‐ MERRILL RANCH‐ADMIN
958‐506‐205 117217 07/20/20 CASA GRANDE VALLEY NEWSPAPER  81121 06/23/20 LEGAL AD ‐ BUDGET AND LEVY $1,178.10

$1,178.10

$1,488,275.98Grand Total 

* * * End of Report * * *

Page 33 of 33



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8a.  

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Benjamin Bitter, Intergovernmental and  
                                       Communications Manager 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject:  Florence Returning Stronger Grant Program  Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 1 

 
SUBJECT:  Florence Returning Stronger Grant Program 
 

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Town Council authorize the creation of the Florence Returning 
Stronger Grant Program, under the conditions explained in the application. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Due to the economic downturn as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, Town Council 
challenged Town Staff to propose a program whereby funds could be invigorated into the 
local economy. The proposal before the Council is the outcome of the suggestions received 
from our business community (and also those gathered by the Chamber of Commerce), and 
has been framed by discussions that Staff has had with Council in the recent past (including 
the Work Session held on August 10th, 2020, as well as the Work Session on August 31st, 
2020). 
 
The Returning Stronger Grant Program is the resulting plan. The grants reimburse 
businesses for their assistance in protecting public health during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Eligible businesses, non-profits, and foodbanks will be able to receive reimbursements for 
the public health measures they implemented. This program would provide community 
funding of up to $500,000 (which could be increased at a later date) for PPE and physical 
equipment or modification costs that enhance the safety of visitors and staff of their Florence-
based business (including home-based businesses) or non-profit. Brick-and-mortar 
businesses would also be eligible for up to six months of reimbursement for 
rent/mortgage/water/sewer/electrical utility costs for the months of March through August, as 



Subject:  Florence Returning Stronger Grant Program  Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 2 

these utilities further promoted the health and safety of the general public and workforce. 
Each business would be eligible for up to a maximum total of $10,000 reimbursement 
between the differing types of public health expenses (PPE, food bank reimbursements, and 
rent/utilities). Funding would be on a first-come-first-served basis, until the maximum 
amount of $500,000 is reached. Council may choose to adjust the maximum amount of the 
program if demand justifies the increase. 
 
In Florence, 63 small businesses have already received Payroll Protection Program 
forgivable loans of up to $150,000, and one Florence business received a loan of between 
$150,000 and $300,000. These businesses range from non-profit organizations to LLCs and 
independent contractors to self-employed businesses.  At this time, we do not have data on 
how many may have also applied for or received Economic Injury Disaster Loans or other 
SBA grants/loans. Applicants will be required to sign an affidavit certifying that they have not 
received other federal funds to cover the costs for which they are requesting reimbursement. 
 
Businesses would have until 10/31/2020 to apply to the Town for reimbursement of these 
expenses. An application is attached, and businesses will have to submit receipts and a 
completed and signed application (including the affidavit). Applicants are requested to 
provide project narrative for reimbursement requests that are not easily categorized into the 
program criteria. Applications would be reviewed by an Audit Panel selected by the Town 
Manager. This panel exists simply to ensure that applications are complete, and that 
documentation is provided that meets program criteria. As applications are approved, the 
team will forward recommendations to the Town Council for action at the next available 
Regular Meeting. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
Florence would not create a grant program for local businesses. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
Local businesses, non-profits, and food banks would have access to additional funding 
to reimburse them for their contributions towards improving public health during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The total fiscal impact will depend upon the number of applicants for the program. The 
total amount set aside for the program at this time is $500,000, although the Town Council 
could choose to increase this at any time, should program demand justify the increase. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Application Packet (including W9 form) 











Form    W-9
(Rev. October 2018)
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification

 Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the  

requester. Do not 

send to the IRS.

P
ri

n
t 

o
r 

ty
p

e
. 

S
ee

 S
p

e
c

if
ic

 I
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
s
 o

n 
p

ag
e 

3.

1  Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2  Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

3  Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 
following seven boxes. 

Individual/sole proprietor or 
single-member LLC

 C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership)  

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner.  Do not check 
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is 
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

Other (see instructions)  

4  Exemptions (codes apply only to 
certain entities, not individuals; see 
instructions on page 3):

Exempt payee code (if any)

Exemption from FATCA reporting

 code (if any)

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5  Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

6  City, state, and ZIP code

Requester’s name and address (optional)

7  List account number(s) here (optional)

Part I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

– –

or
Employer identification number 

–

Part II Certification

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign 
Here

Signature of 

U.S. person Date 

General Instructions
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual 
funds)

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds)

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers)

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition)

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later.

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)

✔



Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page 2 

By signing the filled-out form, you: 

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a 
number to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt 
payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your 
allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business 
is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of 
effectively connected income, and 

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating 
that you are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is 
FATCA reporting, later, for further information.

Note: If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other 
than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form if 
it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are 

considered a U.S. person if you are:

• An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien;

• A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or 
organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States;

• An estate (other than a foreign estate); or

• A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or 
business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding 
tax under section 1446 on any foreign partners’ share of effectively 
connected taxable income from such business. Further, in certain cases 
where a Form W-9 has not been received, the rules under section 1446 
require a partnership to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and 
pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person 
that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the 
United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your 
U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of 
partnership income.

In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the 
partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding 
withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership 
conducting a trade or business in the United States.

• In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner 
of the disregarded entity and not the entity;

• In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner, 
generally, the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and 
not the trust; and

• In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust 
(other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a 
foreign bank that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use 
Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see 
Pub. 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign 

Entities).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a 
nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce 
or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax 
treaties contain a provision known as a “saving clause.” Exceptions 
specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to 
continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise 
become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception 
contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption 
from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement 
to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items.

1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under 
which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.

2. The treaty article addressing the income.
3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the 

saving clause and its exceptions.
4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption 

from tax.
5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of 

the treaty article.

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an 
exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese 
student temporarily present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this 
student will become a resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in 
the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of 
the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows 
the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese 
student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese 
student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first 
protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax 
on his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to Form 
W-9 a statement that includes the information described above to 
support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the 
appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.

Backup Withholding
What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you 
must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 24% of such 
payments. This is called “backup withholding.”  Payments that may be 
subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, 
dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, 
nonemployee pay, payments made in settlement of payment card and 
third party network transactions, and certain payments from fishing boat 
operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup 
withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you 
receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper 
certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your 
tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if: 

1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,

2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the instructions for 
Part II for details),

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,

4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding 
because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax 
return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to 
backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend 
accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. 
See Exempt payee code, later, and the separate Instructions for the 
Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Also see Special rules for partnerships, earlier.

What is FATCA Reporting?
The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a 
participating foreign financial institution to report all United States 
account holders that are specified United States persons. Certain 
payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See Exemption from FATCA 
reporting code, later, and the Instructions for the Requester of Form 
W-9 for more information.

Updating Your Information
You must provide updated information to any person to whom you 
claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee 
and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this 
person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if 
you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no 
longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if 
the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor of a 
grantor trust dies.

Penalties
Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a 

requester, you are subject to a penalty of $50 for each such failure 
unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you 
make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no 
backup withholding, you are subject to a $500 penalty.



Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page 3 

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying 

certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties 
including fines and/or imprisonment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of 
federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

Specific Instructions

Line 1

You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line 
blank. The name should match the name on your tax return.

If this Form W-9 is for a joint account (other than an account 
maintained by a foreign financial institution (FFI)), list first, and then 
circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in 
Part I of Form W-9. If you are providing Form W-9 to an FFI to document 
a joint account, each holder of the account that is a U.S. person must 
provide a Form W-9.

a.  Individual. Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If 
you have changed your last name without informing the Social Security 
Administration (SSA) of the name change, enter your first name, the last 
name as shown on your social security card, and your new last name.  

Note: ITIN applicant: Enter your individual name as it was entered on 
your Form W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the 
name you entered on the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your 
application.

b.  Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual 
name as shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter 
your business, trade, or “doing business as” (DBA) name on line 2.

c.  Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C 

corporation, or S corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the 
entity's tax return on line 1 and any business, trade, or DBA name on 
line 2.

d.  Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal 
tax documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the 
charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any 
business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

e.  Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is 
disregarded as an entity separate from its owner is treated as a 
“disregarded entity.”  See Regulations section 301.7701-2(c)(2)(iii). Enter 
the owner's name on line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1 
should never be a disregarded entity. The name on line 1 should be the 
name shown on the income tax return on which the income should be 
reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded 
entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a single owner that is a U.S. 
person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1. If 
the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first 
owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the 
disregarded entity's name on line 2, “Business name/disregarded entity 
name.” If the owner of the disregarded entity is a foreign person, the 
owner must complete an appropriate Form W-8 instead of a Form W-9.  
This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN. 

Line 2

If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded 
entity name, you may enter it on line 2.

Line 3

Check the appropriate box on line 3 for the U.S. federal tax 
classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only 
one box on line 3.

IF the entity/person on line 1 is 

a(n) . . .

THEN check the box for . . .

•  Corporation Corporation

•  Individual 
•  Sole proprietorship, or 
•  Single-member limited liability 
company (LLC) owned by an 
individual and disregarded for U.S. 
federal tax purposes.

Individual/sole proprietor or single-
member LLC

•  LLC treated as a partnership for 
U.S. federal tax purposes, 
•  LLC that has filed Form 8832 or 
2553 to be taxed as a corporation, 
or 
•  LLC that is disregarded as an 
entity separate from its owner but 
the owner is another LLC that is 
not disregarded for U.S. federal tax 
purposes.

Limited liability company and enter 
the appropriate tax classification. 
(P= Partnership; C= C corporation; 
or S= S corporation)

•  Partnership Partnership

•  Trust/estate Trust/estate

Line 4, Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, 
enter in the appropriate space on line 4 any code(s) that may apply to 
you.

Exempt payee code.

•  Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from 
backup withholding.

•  Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup 
withholding for certain payments, including interest and dividends.

•  Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments 
made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.

•  Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to 
attorneys’ fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations 
that provide medical or health care services are not exempt with respect 
to payments reportable on Form 1099-MISC.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup 
withholding. Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.

1—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or 
a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the 
requirements of section 401(f)(2)

2—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

3—A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or 
possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

4—A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, 
or instrumentalities 

5—A corporation

6—A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the 
United States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or 
possession 

7—A futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity 
Futures Trading Commission

8—A real estate investment trust

9—An entity registered at all times during the tax year under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940

10—A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)

11—A financial institution

12—A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or 
custodian

13—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 
4947



Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page 4 

The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt 
from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed 
above, 1 through 13.

IF the payment is for . . . THEN the payment is exempt 

for . . .

Interest and dividend payments All exempt payees except 
for 7

Broker transactions Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 
through 11 and all C corporations. 
S corporations must not enter an 
exempt payee code because they 
are exempt only for sales of 
noncovered securities acquired 
prior to 2012. 

Barter exchange transactions and 
patronage dividends

Exempt payees 1 through 4

Payments over $600 required to be 
reported and direct sales over 
$5,0001

Generally, exempt payees 
1 through 52

Payments made in settlement of 
payment card or third party network 
transactions 

Exempt payees 1 through 4

1 See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.
2 However, the following payments made to a corporation and   
reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup 

  withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys’ fees, gross 
proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under section 6045(f), and 
payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify 
payees that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes 
apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained outside 
of the United States by certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if 
you are only submitting this form for an account you hold in the United 
States, you may leave this field blank. Consult with the person 
requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is 
subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is 
not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with “Not Applicable” (or 
any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA 
exemption code.

A—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any 
individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)

B—The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

C—A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or 
possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

D—A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or 
more established securities markets, as described in Regulations 
section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

E—A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated 
group as a corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

F—A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial 
instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, 
and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United 
States or any state

G—A real estate investment trust

H—A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an 
entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment 
Company Act of 1940

I—A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)

J—A bank as defined in section 581

K—A broker

L—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 
4947(a)(1)

M—A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) 
plan

Note: You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting 
this form to determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee 
code should be completed.

Line 5

Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number). 
This is where the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information 
returns. If this address differs from the one the requester already has on 
file, write NEW at the top. If a new address is provided, there is still a 
chance the old address will be used until the payor changes your 
address in their records.

Line 6

Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.

Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and 
you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS 
individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social 
security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see How to get a TIN 
below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either 
your SSN or EIN. 

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity 
separate from its owner, enter the owner’s SSN (or EIN, if the owner has 
one). Do not enter the disregarded entity’s EIN. If the LLC is classified as 
a corporation or partnership, enter the entity’s EIN.

Note: See What Name and Number To Give the Requester, later, for 
further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. 
To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security 
Card, from your local SSA office or get this form online at 
www.SSA.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213. 
Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification 

Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer 
Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN 
online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/Businesses and 
clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a 
Business. Go to www.irs.gov/Forms to view, download, or print Form 
W-7 and/or Form SS-4.  Or, you can go to www.irs.gov/OrderForms to 
place an order and have Form W-7 and/or SS-4 mailed to you within 10 
business days.

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply 
for a TIN and write “Applied For” in the space for the TIN, sign and date 
the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend 
payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily tradable 
instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to 
the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on 
payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. 
You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until 
you provide your TIN to the requester.

Note: Entering “Applied For” means that you have already applied for a 
TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use 
the appropriate Form W-8.

Part II. Certification
To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or 
resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the 
withholding agent even if item 1, 4, or 5 below indicates otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I 
should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the 
person identified on line 1 must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt payee 
code, earlier.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in 
items 1 through 5 below.



Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page 5 

1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened 

before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. 

You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the 
certification.

2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts 

opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 

1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply. If 
you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing 
your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the 
certification before signing the form.

3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may 
cross out item 2 of the certification.

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not 
have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you 
have previously given an incorrect TIN. “Other payments” include 
payments made in the course of the requester’s trade or business for 
rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and 
health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to 
a nonemployee for services, payments made in settlement of payment 
card and third party network transactions, payments to certain fishing 
boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to 
attorneys (including payments to corporations).  

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of 

secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program 

payments (under section 529), ABLE accounts (under section 529A), 

IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or 

distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct 
TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

What Name and Number To Give the Requester
For this type of account: Give name and SSN of:

1. Individual The individual

2. Two or more individuals (joint  
account) other than an account 
maintained by an FFI

The actual owner of the account or, if 
combined funds, the first individual on 

the account1

3. Two or more U.S. persons 
    (joint account maintained by an FFI)

Each holder of the account 
 

4. Custodial account of a minor 
(Uniform Gift to Minors Act)

The minor2 
 

5. a. The usual revocable savings trust 
(grantor is also trustee) 
b. So-called trust account that is not 
a legal or valid trust under state law

The grantor-trustee1

The actual owner1

6. Sole proprietorship or disregarded 
entity owned by an individual

The owner3

7. Grantor trust filing under Optional 
Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see 
Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)
(A))

The grantor*

For this type of account: Give name and EIN of:

8. Disregarded entity not owned by an 
individual

The owner

9. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust Legal entity4

10. Corporation or LLC electing 
corporate status on Form 8832 or 
Form 2553

The corporation

11. Association, club, religious, 
charitable, educational, or other tax-
exempt organization

The organization

12. Partnership or multi-member LLC The partnership

13. A broker or registered nominee The broker or nominee

For this type of account: Give name and EIN of:

14. Account with the Department of 
Agriculture in the name of a public 
entity (such as a state or local 
government, school district, or 
prison) that receives agricultural 
program payments

The public entity

15. Grantor trust filing under the Form 
1041 Filing Method or the Optional 
Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see 
Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i)(B))

The trust

1 List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. 
If only one person on a joint account has an SSN, that  person’s number 
must be furnished.
2 Circle the minor’s name and furnish the minor’s SSN.
3 You must show your individual name and you may also enter your 
business or DBA name on the “Business name/disregarded entity” 
name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one), but the 
IRS encourages you to use your SSN.
4 List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do 
not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the 
legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see Special 
rules for partnerships, earlier.

*Note: The grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

Note: If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the 
number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

Secure Your Tax Records From Identity Theft
Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information 
such as your name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your 
permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use 
your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive 
a refund.

To reduce your risk:

• Protect your SSN,

• Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and

• Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a 
notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number 
printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you 
think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable 
credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline 
at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Pub. 5027, Identity Theft Information for 
Taxpayers.

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a 
systemic problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that 
have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible for 
Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance. You can reach TAS by 
calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 
1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes.  

Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to 
mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act 
is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established 
legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering 
private information that will be used for identity theft.



Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) Page 6 

The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the 
IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask 
taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access 
information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, 
forward this message to phishing@irs.gov. You may also report misuse 
of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector 
General for Tax Administration (TIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can 
forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission at 
spam@uce.gov or report them at www.ftc.gov/complaint. You can 
contact the FTC at www.ftc.gov/idtheft or 877-IDTHEFT (877-438-4338). 
If you have been the victim of identity theft, see www.IdentityTheft.gov 
and Pub. 5027.

Visit www.irs.gov/IdentityTheft to learn more about identity theft and 
how to reduce your risk.

Privacy Act Notice
Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your 
correct TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to 
file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or 
certain other income paid to you; mortgage interest you paid; the 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of 
debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The 
person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file 
information returns with the IRS, reporting the above information. 
Routine uses of this information include giving it to the Department of 
Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of 
Columbia, and U.S. commonwealths and possessions for use in 
administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other 
countries under a treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce civil 
and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence 
agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or 
not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers 
must generally withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and 
certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. 
Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or fraudulent 
information.



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8b. 

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration/Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town 
Manager/Town Clerk and Chris Salas, P.E. Public Works 
Director  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
Subject:  Ordinance No. 626-20 SLIDs                    Meeting Date September 8.  2020 
Page 1 of 6 

 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 686-20 SLIDs

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

  Community Vitality        Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Adoption of Ordinance No. 686-20: Adoption of an Ordinance of the Town of Florence, 
Pinal County, Arizona, amending Section 96.43, Street Lighting; Requirements; 
Improvement Districts. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The Town held the first reading of Ordinance No. 686-20 on November 18, 20190.  On 
March 16, 2020, the Town held a second Work Session on Streetlight Improvement 
Districts (SLIDs) which allowed the Public Works Director/Town Engineer to provide an 
update to Council on a SLID analysis.    
 
Since the first reading of Ordinance No. 686-20 Council added SLID 4 and 5 in the 
Anthem Area.  Mesquite Trails has a SLID under review at this time.  The Town 
Engineer is currently working with the developer for Sunrise Estates for development of 
the first SLID in the downtown area.  This Ordinance will allow for areas who are 
currently platted to apply for a SLID.  
 
Staff is using the Mesquite Trails submittal to align policies and procedures internally.   
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 48, Chapter 4, Arizona 
cities and towns may order the formation of Street Light Improvement Districts to pay for 
the electricity, operation and maintenance of street lighting systems on public streets 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 626-20 SLIDs                    Meeting Date September 8.  2020 
Page 2 of 6 

and parks.  There are three options available, as authorized in A.R.S., which are 
described in Table 1 below.   
 
Table 1 
Option Description When Used Public Support
Unanimous 
Petition  

Signed by all property 
owners prior to final 
plat approval  

Used for all new 
residential/commercial 
development 

Support by all 
property owners  

Majority Petition  Initiated by an existing 
neighborhood or 
commercial 
development  

Existing 
residential/commercial 
development  

Support by a 
majority of 
property owners  

Municipality 
Initiated  

Initiated by the 
municipality  

Existing 
residential/commercial 
development 

May or may not 
have support of 
the residents 

 
As can be seen from Table 1, the public support for a Street Light Improvement District 
is a major determining factor in which option is chosen.   
 
In new development where all of the property in still under a limited number of owners, 
the Unanimous Petition is the most common option.  The municipality can require the 
developer to initiate the formation of the SLID prior to final plat approval by executing a 
petition for its formation with the signatures from all owners, which prior to the final plat 
will be the developer.  The municipality then proceeds by adopting a resolution or 
ordinance declaring its intention to make public improvements pursuant to A.R.S. 
Section 48-576. 
 
In an existing residential or commercial development, having all the property owners in 
support would be rare.  In that case the Majority Petition is most often used.  In this 
option, a majority of property owners (51%) must sign a petition for the Town to proceed 
with formation of the SLID.  After the resolution of any protests made pursuant to A.R.S. 
Section 48-507, the municipality can move forward with the formation of the SLID. 
 
For the Municipality Initiated process, the Council would adopt a resolution or ordinance 
of intention to form the SLID and would hold a public hearing.  If the municipality is 
presented with written protests or a petition protesting the formation of the SLID signed 
by a majority of the property owners within the proposed SLID, resolution of those 
protests should be attempted by the municipality before the district formation proceeds; 
however, such protests would not prevent the municipality from proceeding with the 
subsequent order of formation subject to notice, hearing, and protest as provided for in 
the A.R.S. Section 48-576 and their municipal code. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 626-20 SLIDs                    Meeting Date September 8.  2020 
Page 3 of 6 

Answers to Questions previously asked:  
 
Forming an Improvement District in established areas: 
 
If Council voted to establish a SLID within an established area, the Town would be the 
applicant and establish boundaries.  The Town would circulate the petitions to the 
property owners within those boundaries (current town policy only states APS service 
areas). Once the signatures have been acquired and the petitions are submitted, the 
Town Council has the final approval for the formation of an Improvement District.    
 
What is the benefit to forming an Improvement District? 
  
Improvement Districts have the authority to assess properties and impose ad valorem 
property taxes to distribute the cost of improvements among the properties benefited. 
(The county collects taxes on behalf of the district in a similar manner as property 
taxes.) As decisions are made in open meetings the residents have the opportunity to 
be heard on issues concerning the system and the district.   An Improvement District is 
considered a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, which is a governmental 
agency and cannot profit.  Fees charged shall cover the cost to construct, repair and 
operate the improvement. 
 
Who is responsible for financing an Improvement District? 
 
The fees charged to the properties benefited by the improvement cover the financing of 
a district.  It is the responsibility of the District Board to establish these fees, but it is the 
obligation of the users of the system to pay for the construction and operations of the 
improvements.   
 
A.R.S. State Statues 
 
48-615. Special provisions relating to Improvement Districts for purchasing electricity for 
lighting public streets or parks 

A. If a petition for the formation of an Improvement District to purchase electricity for 
street or public park lighting is presented to the governing body, which purports 
to be signed by all of the real property owners in the proposed district, exclusive 
of mortgagees and other lienholders, the governing body, after verifying such 
ownership and making a finding of such fact, shall adopt a resolution of intention 
to order the improvement pursuant to the provisions of Section 48-576 and shall 
have immediate jurisdiction to adopt the resolution ordering the improvement 
pursuant to provisions of Section 48-581, without the necessity of publication and 
posting of the resolution of intention provided for in Section 48-578. 
 

B. If a petition for the formation of an Improvement District for off-street parking 
purposes, and for the leasing of sites and improvement, operation and 
maintenance thereof is presented to the governing body, signed by the owners of 
a majority of the frontage of the property proposed to be contained within the 
limits of the assessment district, the governing body shall adopt a resolution of 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 626-20 SLIDs                    Meeting Date September 8.  2020 
Page 4 of 6 

intention ordering the proposed improvement and cause same to be published 
and posted pursuant to the provisions of Section 48-578. 

 
48-616. Improvement Districts for purchasing energy for lighting public streets and 
parks 
 

A. In addition to the purposes for which an Improvement District may be formed 
under the provisions of Section 48-572, an Improvement District may be formed 
for the sole purpose of purchasing and not generating energy for the lighting of 
the public streets and parks of the Improvement District. 
 

B. Subject to the limitations contained in this section, the powers and duties of the 
governing body of a municipality shall be as provided in this article for other types 
of Improvement Districts. 

 
C. The governing body shall make annual statements and estimates of the 

expenses of the district which shall be provided for by the levy and collection of 
ad valorem taxes upon the assessed value of all the property real and personal 
in the district or by an equal apportionment of taxes based on the number and 
classification of properties within the district, publish notice of the statements and 
estimates, hold hearings on them and adopt them at the times and in the manner 
provided for incorporated cities and towns' statements and estimates by 
applicable portions of title 42, chapter 17, article 3, and the governing body, on or 
before the third Monday in August each year, shall fix, levy and assess the 
amount to be raised by ad valorem taxes or by an equal apportionment of taxes 
upon all of the property of the district and collect as county taxes are collected 
the amounts shown by the statements and estimates as adopted by the 
governing body.  All statutes providing for the levy and collection of general 
county taxes, including collection of delinquent taxes and sale of property for 
nonpayment of taxes, are applicable to the district taxes as provided to be levied 
by this section. 
 

D. An Improvement District formed under the provisions of this section shall not be 
authorized to issue bonds, and no assessment for district purposes against the 
property within such district shall exceed one dollar twenty cents per one 
hundred dollars of assessed valuation thereof in any year. 

 
E. No such district is authorized to engage in any activity other than contracting for 

and purchasing of energy for street and public park lighting. 
 

F. In the event the municipality is willing to participate in the costs of the lighting of 
streets in such Improvement Districts, the governing body may by resolution 
summarily order such participation.  If the municipality is willing to assume the 
total cost of such lighting, the council may summarily dissolve the district by 
resolution after payment of all liabilities. 

 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 626-20 SLIDs                    Meeting Date September 8.  2020 
Page 5 of 6 

G. The formation of an Improvement District for street and public park lighting under 
the provisions of this section shall not prevent the subsequent establishment of 
Improvement Districts for other purposes, including Improvement Districts for the 
purpose of constructing street lighting facilities within any part or all of the same 
territory. 

 
H. In the event an Improvement District is formed which includes the construction 

and operation of street lighting facilities within all or any part of the territory of a 
district formed under this section, the governing body may by resolution 
summarily delete from the district formed under this section any area covered by 
a subsequently formed district and form a new district from the balance of the 
original district formed under this section. 

 
I. The rate to be paid for the purchase of energy may include a charge for electric 

power, natural gas and other forms of energy and a charge for the use of lighting 
facilities if the established rate of the public service corporation or public agency 
imposes such a charge for the type of lighting facilities which the governing body 
determines shall be installed in accordance with Section 48-617, Subsection C. 

 
J. In either a new or existing Improvement District organized for purposes 

prescribed by this section, a majority of the real property owners may petition the 
governing body to levy ad valorem taxes or to equally apportion the taxes based 
on the number and classification of properties within the district.  If the petition is 
signed by the required number of owners of real property in the district, the 
governing body of the district shall declare the petition approved and shall 
provide that beginning on a date certain, all subsequent taxes levied for the 
benefit of the district shall be assessed and levied as prescribed by this 
subsection. 

 
48-617. Special provisions relating to Improvement Districts for purchasing energy for 
lighting public streets or parks 
 

A. If a petition for the formation of an Improvement District to purchase and not 
generate energy for street or public park lighting is presented to the governing 
body, which purports to be signed by all of the real property owners in the 
proposed district, exclusive of mortgagees and other lienholders, the governing 
body, after verifying such ownership and making a finding of such fact, shall 
adopt a resolution of intention to order the proposed improvement pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 48-576 and shall have immediate jurisdiction to adopt the 
resolution ordering the improvement, pursuant to the provisions of Section 48-
581, without the necessity of publication and posting of the resolution of intention 
provided for in Section 48-578. 
 

B. If a petition for the formation of an Improvement District to purchase energy for 
street or public park lighting is presented to the governing body signed by a 
majority of the real property owners in the proposed district, the governing body 
shall adopt a resolution of intention to order the proposed improvement and 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 626-20 SLIDs                    Meeting Date September 8.  2020 
Page 6 of 6 

cause same to be published and posted pursuant to the provisions of Section 48-
578, and unless protests received pursuant to Section 48-579 are sufficient to 
bar further proceedings, the governing body shall thereafter proceed with the 
improvements so petitioned. 
 

C. At the time of the adoption of the resolution of intention pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 48-576, the governing body shall determine the type of lighting 
facilities to be installed and consider the rate to be paid for purchasing the energy 
for the proposed district. 

 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
A no vote would not allow the current code to be modified, thus meaning SLIDs could 
not occur in existing areas.  
  
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
A yes vote would allow for the Town to proceed with developing SLIDs is subdivisions 
that have already been planted in the Town.  
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None at this time.  
    
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 686-20 
November 18, 2019 Council Minutes 
March 16, 2020 Council Minutes 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 686-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING SECTION 96.43, STREET LIGHTING; 
REQUIREMENTS; IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS. 

   
 WHEREAS, the Town Council for the Town of Florence has determined that 
existing residential, as well as new residential and commercial development within the 
should be considered for potential Street Light Improvement Districts; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council has further determined that such street lighting 
equipment, as described above, must be installed pursuant to certain standards; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that the costs to energize, operate 
and maintain such street lighting equipment should be paid by the owners of land 
requiring the street lighting equipment. 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that Sections 96.43 of the Code 
of the Town of Florence be amended to read as follows: 
  
96.43 STREET LIGHTING IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS. 
 
(A) The cost of the electricity, operation and maintenance of the street lighting system 

shall be assessed by the Town against the owners of the real property as follows: 
 

(1) Within a new residential subdivision development, the cost of the electricity, 
operation and maintenance of all street lights on public streets within or 
adjacent to the subdivision development, including major arterial, minor 
arterial and collector streets shall be charged to the property owner(s) 
through creation of a Street Light Improvement District. The developer of a 
new residential development shall initiate and complete the formation of the 
Street Light Improvement District prior to the final plat approval by executing 
a petition for formation of a Street Light Improvement District in a form 
acceptable to the Town Attorney. 
 

(2)  Within a new commercial or industrial subdivision development, the cost of 
the electricity, operation and maintenance of all street lights on public streets 
within or adjacent to the subdivision development, including major arterial, 
minor arterial and collector streets on which access is provided to the 
commercial or industrial subdivision development shall be charged to the 
property owner(s) through creation of a Street Light Improvement District. 
The developer of a new commercial or industrial development shall initiate 
and complete the formation of the Street Light Improvement District prior to 
the final plat approval by executing a petition for formation of a Street Light 
Improvement District in a form acceptable to the Town Attorney. 

 



(3) The Town shall require each party dedicating the streetlights to the Town to 
warranty the streetlights against defects in design, installation and operation 
for a two-year period commencing on the date of dedication. Normal wear 
and tear arising from the operation of the streetlights shall be excepted from 
the warranty requirement. 

 
(4) For any other property, the cost of the electricity, operation and maintenance 

of all streetlights fronting the property or on any street for which access is 
provided to the property may be charged to the property owner at the 
discretion of the Town.  

 
(B) Any owner(s) of real property, upon presentation of a petition signed by a majority 

of the owners of real property within the prescribed area pursuant to ARS 48-576, 
may request that the Town to form a Streetlight Improvement District for the 
construction, reconstruction or acquisition of street light systems pursuant to ARS 
48-572 for the purpose of lighting the public streets and parks within the proposed 
area including major arterial, minor arterial and collector streets on which access is 
provided to the property. Upon review of the petition by the Town, a public hearing 
shall be held upon the request. Following the public hearing, upon presentation of 
a majority petition for formation of a Street Light Improvement District in a form 
acceptable to the Town Attorney, the Town Council may commence improvement 
district proceedings to form a Street Light Improvement District and to assess the 
cost of the electricity, operation and maintenance of street lights against the 
properties within the Street Light Improvement District. 
 

   (C)   The Town may initiate the formation of a Streetlight Improvement District for the 
purpose of assessing properties for the costs of electricity, operation and maintenance 
for existing street lighting systems in the Town.  The Town shall pass a resolution of 
intention to do so and hold a public hearing in the same manner as if the improvements 
had been requested by majority petition pursuant to paragraph B above.  If written 
protests are submitted pursuant to ARS 48-579 by a majority of property owners within 
the proposed district, the Town shall not proceed with the formation of the Street Light 
Improvement District based on the intention to do so as protested. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September 2020. 

 
             
               
       _____________________________  

Tara Walter, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
  
 
_________________________   _____________________________  
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 



























































MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, MARCH
16, 2020, AT 5: 30 P. M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775
N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 5: 30 pm.

ROLL CALL:

Present:       Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes,
Judy Hughes

Absent: Bill Hawkins

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Walter called the meeting to order at 5: 30 pm.

ROLL CALL:

Present:       Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes,
Judy Hughes

Absent: Bill Hawkins

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 5: 30 p. m.

ROLL CALL:

Present:       Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes,
Judy Hughes

Absent: Bill Hawkins

ADJOURNMENT TO A JOINT EXECUTIVE SESSION WITH MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2
AND THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE.

For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the
public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38- 431. 03 ( A)(3), ( A)(4) and

A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding:

Discussion or consultations regarding a Notice of Claim filed by Merrill Ranch Owner' s
Agent, L.L. C., CMR/Casa Grande, L. L.C., Roadrunner Resorts, L. L.C. and Florence Copper,
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 1 of 16



Inc. against Merrill Ranch Community Facilities Districts No. 1, Merrill Ranch Community
Facilities District No. 2 and the Town of Florence.

Discussion or consultation potential and threatened claims against the Town and Districts.

Motioned, seconded, and carried ( 6- 0) to adjourn to a Joint Executive Session with Merrill Ranch

Community Facilities District No. 1, Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 and the
Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence.

Tara Walter, John Anderson ( M), Karen Wall ( S), Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes, Judy Hughes

ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.  1

EXECUTIVE SESSION.

On motion of Vice- Chairman Anderson, seconded by Boardmember Wall, and carried ( 6- 0) to
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 Executive Session.

ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.  1

MEETING.

On motion of Vice-Chairman Anderson, seconded by Boardmember Wall, and carried ( 6- 0) to
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 meeting.

ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.  2

EXECUTIVE SESSION.

On motion of Boardmember Wall,  seconded by Boardmember Cordes,  and carried  (6- 0) to

adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 Executive Session.

ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.  2

MEETING.

On motion of Boardmember Larsen, seconded by Boardmember Cordes, and carried ( 6- 0) to
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 meeting.

ADJOURNMENT FROM THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSION AND TO
RESUME REGULAR MEETING.

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried ( 6- 0) to
adjourn from Executive Session and to resume regular meeting.

MOMENT OF SILENCE

Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence in honor of Councilmember Bill Hawkins, who lost
his battle to cancer on March 12, 2020.  She stated that he devoted his life to Florence, caring
deeply about this Town and our citizens.

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 2 of 16



PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.

CALL TO THE PUBLIC

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.   Individual Councilmembers may
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised
or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council
shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the
matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action.

There were no public comments.

PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION

Public hearing to receive public comment on the Text Amendment to the Town of Florence
Land Development Code and first reading of Ordinance 689-20:

Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 689-20 by title only.

An Ordinance of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, Arizona, amending the Town of
Florence Code of Ordinances, Title XV Land Usage, Chapter 150:  Development Code,

Administration and Procedures Sections 150. 000 to 150.019 and adding Sections 150.020
to 150.024, and relocating " Part 1. General Provisions," Sections 150. 080 to 150.081 to the
Administration and Procedures Sections 150. 020 and 150. 021, respectively. The proposed
text amendment document was declared a public record by Resolution No. 1733-20, one
paper copy is on file in the Office of the Town Clerk, and one electronic copy is available
on the Town of Florence website.

Mr. Dana Burkhart, Consultant, stated that this is the first of two readings ( second reading is
scheduled for April 6, 2020) along with a public hearing on this proposed text amendment.

Mr. Burkhart, Consultant, provided a presentation on the Development Code Text Amendment:
Administration & Procedures, in which he outlined the following:

Why?
Correct code discrepancies and conflicts

Address statutory changes
No regulatory changes
Economic Development tool for the Town

Organize section to easily navigate
Scope

Correct Discrepancies

Redundant design review processes

Codify Pre-Application Conference and added Temporary Use procedures
Meet with applicant prior to submittal of application
Update terminology to be consistent

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 3 of 16



Update to reflect changes in statute

House Bill 2116 passed in 2017— rezoning appeal
Arizona Revised Statute § 12- 1134 Claim and Diminution in Value
o Inserted procedural language to give Town additional opportunity to appear

regarding future claims
o Will put Town in better situation

No regulatory changes
Decennial General Plan Update and other leading policy studies coming soon

General Plan/ Strategic Plan

Master Plans: Transportation, Redevelopment, Parks and Open Space, etc.

Technical Codes: Development, Building, Fire, Flood Control, etc.
Public Review and Recommendations

Started process in May 2019
Have had 10 public meetings

Community meeting and draft updates available for download and comment online
Historic District Advisory Commission  ( HDAC)  and Planning  &  Zoning Commission
recommend approval.

Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There be no public comments, Mayor Walter closed the
public hearing.

Census 2020 Presentation. (Jennifer Evans)

Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, provided a presentation, in which she outlined the
following:

How to Respond

Respond online, by phone, or by mail
Partner Questionnaire Assistance Center at the Florence Community Library - Place with

computers and information for community members to self-respond.
Event-Based Questionnaire Assistance -  Census Bureau and Town staff will have a
presence at community events.

Highly Mobile Questionnaire Assistance - As we receive self-response data, partners and
the Census Bureau will ensure we have questionnaire assistance in areas that are not
seeing expected self-response.

Census Schedule

What we will send in the mail

March 12 —20, 2020

o An invitation to respond online to the 2020 Census.   Some households will also
receive paper questionnaires.

March 16 —24, 2020

o A reminder letter

If you haven' t responded yet

March 26 —April 3, 2020

o A reminder postcard

April 8 — 16, 2020

o A reminder letter and paper questionnaire.
April 20 — 27, 2020

o A final reminder postcard before we follow up in person
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 4 of 16



Support the Census

Encourage people to respond online, by phone, or by mail
Remind people to cooperate with census takers if they visit their home.
Emphasize the census is safe and secure.

Information is retained for 72 years
Reach hard- to-count populations— farmworkers, children 0- 5 years, non- English speakers,
low- income families, veterans, winter residents
Response Rate Challenge

Challenge public to increase response rate
Would like to see the response rate to 90%

More Information

Contact Jennifer Evans,      Management Analyst,      at 520-868- 7549 or

Jennifer.evansflorenceaz.qov
www. icount2020. info

www.2020census.qov

Count everyone... once, only once, and in the right place

Mayor Walter inquired if there were as many platforms in which to respond ten years ago as there
are now.

Ms.' Evans stated that they did not have as many platforms to respond as there are now.  This is
the first time that online and phone options are available.

CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time
the agenda item is called.

Authorization to dispose of vehicles that are no longer needed and have outlived their
useful life. (Rebecca Jimenez)

Approval of Lantis Fireworks and Lasers contract for the 2020-2021 Fireworks Display in
an amount not to exceed $37,000. (Alison Feliz)

Approval of a Change Order for the Poston Butte Preserve Project On-Call Engineering,
pursuant to Council approved contract with WestLand Resources, Inc., for an additional

2, 500, increasing the total to $199,913, which is within budget for this fiscal year.  (John
Nixon)

Authorize Town staff to proceed with negotiations with the five parks communities in
drafting a special use agreement for future development of a Town parcel for use as a
community dog park. (John Nixon)

Approval of the January 27, 2020 Town Council Meeting minutes.

Receive and file the following board and commission minutes:

January 9, 2020 Arts and Culture Commission Meeting minutes.
January 29, 2020 Historic District Advisory Commission Meeting minutes.
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 5of16



December 5, 2019 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting minutes.

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried ( 6- 0) to
approve the Consent Agenda, as written.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Ordinance No. 691- 20:

Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 691- 20 by title only.

Second reading and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN
OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA AMENDING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 32.001
D) TOWN BOARDS, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEES. ( Lisa Garcia)

Ms.  Lisa Garcia,  Deputy Town Manager,  stated that this will correct the Town Code to be
consistent with the ordinance that was adopted at the last meeting regarding boards and
commissions.

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried ( 6- 0) to
adopt Ordinance No. 691- 20.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to adopt the Major General Plan Amendment Calendar
for 2020. ( Larry Harmer)

Mr. Larry Harmer, Senior Planner, stated that by State Statute, each community is allowed to
process major plan amendments once per year. The Town is doing a major update to the overall
plan; however, that will not be completed until next year. There may be some submittals for
properties north of the Gila River so the Town is setting a calendar for Council' s approval.

Mr. Harmer stated that there is a large gap between the submittal due date and the first public
hearing because the application is distributed to neighboring jurisdictions and agencies for a 60-
day comment period.  A sampling of these agencies includes: APS, SRP, Arizona Department of
Water Resources, Pinal County, Central Arizona Governments, City of Coolidge, Town of Queen
Creek,  Florence Unifies School District,  Arizona State Land Department,  and others.  The

proposed calendar for the Major General Plan Amendment for the 2020 year is as follows:

Completed Application Submittal due:  April 23, 2020

Planning and Zoning Commission 1st Public Hearing:    August 6, 2020

Planning and Zoning Commission 2nd Public Hearing
and Recommendation: September 3, 2020

Town Council Public Hearing and Possible Action: October 5, 2020

The required Public Hearings include notifications of neighboring property owners,  on- site

advertising signs and legal advertisement in the local newspaper. At this time, staff has had only
one inquiry regarding this year's process.

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 6 of 16



Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired why the Council is not provided as much time to review the
application as the other entities.

Mr. Harmer stated that the calendar is tentative.  Staff can also hold work sessions to discuss the
applications if they are comprehensive.  The calendar sets the public hearings.

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried ( 6- 0) to
adopt the Major General Plan Amendment Calendar for 2020.

First reading of Ordinance No. 692-20:

Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 692-20 by title only.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING
THE CODE OF ORDINANCE,  ARIZONA,  TITLE XI BUSINESS REGULATIONS,   BY
AMENDING CHAPTER 111, SECTION 111. 05 ( F) OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that in 2018, Arizona passed a mobile
food truck ordinance. The League of Arizona Cities and Towns did a model city code for all
municipalities to adopt.  There was a section to allow for residential to be 250 feet.  This made it

so mobile food trucks could not be on the streets, specifically in the downtown area because there
are residential homes in near proximity.  It is not the intention of the Town to eliminate food trucks
from being able to operate in our community.  Food trucks are utilized at special events.  The

State law allows them to park in any public parking space.

Ms. Garcia stated that once it was brought to the Town' s attention, staff is requesting to modify
the Code to allow for a mobile food vendor,  including auxiliary generator and other related
equipment, that projects less than 66 decibels at property line may be within 50 feet of a residential
use.

Councilmember Wall asked for clarification with regards to how Section H 1. of Sec.  111. 05
Operational Requirements will be interpreted.

Ms. Garcia stated that it would read: " A residential area, a mobile food vendors shall not operate
in an area zoned for residential use or within 50 feet of the area zoned for residential use to use,
not property line to property line and then outline the exceptions.

Councilmember Wall inquired what use-to- use means.

Mr. Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that there are issues when there are separation
requirements and zoning regulations when measuring from point A to point B.  By allowing the
measurements to be from use- to- use, this will allow for some flexibility.

Resolution No. 1735-20:

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1735-20 by title only.

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 7 of 16



A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, EXERCISING
TOWN COUNCIL' S LEGISLATIVE DISCRETION TO NOT ENFORCE OR SUSPEND

ENFORCEMENT OF CHAPTER 111, SECTION 111. 05 ( F) UNTIL THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF
ORDINANCE NO. 692- 20. ( Lisa Garcia)

Ms. Garcia stated that the intent of this resolution is so that the Town will not enforce the Code
as it is currently written until the adoption and effectiveness of Ordinance No. 692-20.

On motion of Councilmember Larsen, seconded by Vice- Mayor Anderson, and carried ( 6- 0) to
adopt Resolution No. 1735-20.

Resolution No. 1736-20:

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1736-20 by title only.

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING
REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE PROPERTY LEASE POLICY.      ( Lisa
Garcia/Jennifer Evans)

Ms. Garcia stated that per Council' s direction, staff reviewed and modified the lease policy,
Request for Qualifications ( RFQ),  Request for Proposals  (RFP) and the lease.   The Policy
Committee and Town Attorney reviewed the documents.

Ms. Garcia stated that the following areas need clarification:
Page 4 of the Memorandum regarding examples and lease rates

Ms. Cindy Sills, Florence Realtor provided commercial lease rates
Staff spoke with those who rented and confirmed rate
Council needs to make determination on what to charge

0. 51 per square foot
O Charge less than market rate because of the GPLET and charge a combined rate of

0. 51 per square foot

Ms. Garcia stated that staff is recommending that they do a Consumer Price Index ( CPI) each
year and the rates would increase if the CPI increased.

Ms. Garcia stated that the following was done:
Lease was modified and there will be no utility charges for the common areas, as requested
by Council.
Modified the process to make it more user-friendly.
Removed the language stating that the area would be used as an incubator since it is no
longer used as such.

Defined the RFP process which is 30 days per State Law.
Two spaces will be available

Outlined the RFP Process

Use comes before Council

The 30-day appeal process begins once Council approves the use
After the 30 days has lapsed, the Town Manager can negotiate and sign off on the
lease.

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 8 of 16



Councilmember Wall inquired about Space 4. She also inquired about the telephone changes,
which is more than the electrical for the common area.

Ms. Garcia stated that Space 4 is the Brunenkant Building and their square footage will change
because currently the lower floor (891 square feet (sq. ft.) was the only part of the building being
leased; however, they will now include the upstairs which will be a total of 1, 782 sq. ft.

Discussion occurred on various leased scenarios.

Ms. Garcia stated that the Fudge Shop has sold and will now be for-profit. The business upstairs
is vacating effective April 30th so there will be two spaces vacant upstairs.

Ms. Garcia explained the process to fill those upstairs vacancies at the Silver King Market Place.

Ms. Garcia explained that the telephone changes includes the alarm system and fire sprinkler
system, for a total of four lines.

Councilmember Wall inquired if the electrical for the common areas is on a separate meter.

Ms. Garcia explained that the common areas have a separate electrical meter from the suites.
The water usage would be for the common restroom.

Councilmember Wall inquired if the renter pays GPLET tax on the Brunenkant Building.

Ms. Garcia stated that they do pay GPLET tax.

Councilmember Cordes stated that the lease is listed as a modified gross lease basis, which
means that it is inclusive of all costs ( i. e. rent, taxes, insurances, utilities, etc.); however, this is
not how the leases are and the tenants pay separate for each of those items.

Discussion occurred on the verbiage and it will be changed to modified triple net rather than
modified gross lease.  She inquired if the tenants contribute to the cost of the phone line.

Ms. Garcia stated that she will change the verbiage to modified triple net lease and explained
that the tenants do not pay for the phone line.

Councilmember Cordes stated that the GPLET should be included in their lease rate.  If they are
charged the going rate along with the GPLET tax, this may raise the cost more than the market
can handle.  She suggested that the rates be combined to what the going rate is.  During the
summer months (May— August) she suggested that some type of relief, such as a 30% decrease
in rent be offered to the tenants because business is seasonal in Florence.  She suggested the
rate be decreased if they maintain the minimum of hours open as outlined in the lease; otherwise
they may choose to close early but would forego the discount.

Ms. Garcia stated that staff can incorporate Councilmember Cordes' suggestions should Council
agree.  She asked if Council is in agreement with Scenario Two which is for a combined rate of

0. 51 sq. ft. She stated that staff will develop a summer program with the modified rates for those

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 9 of 16



businesses who will remain open for the 32 hours per week.  Those who choose not to remain
open will not receive the discounted rate.

Councilmember Larsen inquired how this will be managed.  It may appear that the Town is micro-
managing the businesses.

Councilmember Cordes stated that the tenant needs to notify the landlord if they are making
changes to their hours of operation.

Discussion occurred on various scenarios with regards to closing early or opening late.

Ms. Garcia asked that Council modify the motion to allow for staff to advertise the RFP so that
they can start the process to fill the two vacancies.

Councilmember Wall stated the discount would result in the square footage to be approximately
0. 24 sq. ft.

Councilmember Hughes inquired if the ingress/egress issue has been resolved.

Ms. Garcia stated that the issue will be resolved no later than June 2020.

On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried ( 6- 0) to
advertise for RFPs and to have staff bring back to Council options on the discussed changes to
the Lease Policy.

WORK SESSION ON STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENT ORDINANCE AND POLICY (Chris
Salas)

Mr. Chris Salas, Public Works Director, provided a presentation, in which he outlined the

following:

Definition

A Street Light Improvement District( SLID) is a neighborhood partnership and very common
practice in which property owners in a defined area agree to pay the costs to operate and
maintain their immediate area' s streetlights through a property tax.

Other communities that have SLID' s

All new developments in the City of Surprise require a SLID for streetlights on collector or
local roadways.

The City of Apache Junction utilizes a special district mechanism to fund the installation
and energy costs of streetlights placed in residential subdivisions.
Maricopa County - A Street Lighting Improvement District ( SLID) may be formed for the
sole purpose of paying for the energy to power streetlights on the public streets and parks.
The SLID provides the means for purchasing energy for lighting public streets and parks.
The SLID also provides a mechanism to split these energy costs among all property owners
in the SLID.

The City of Scottsdale's streetlight improvement districts were established beginning in
1971 to allow taxpayers residing in the benefiting area to pay for the operation of the
streetlights. The City currently has 355 streetlight improvement districts formed by petition

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 10 of 16



of the property owners for the sole purpose of purchasing electricity for the lighting of public
streets.

Buckeye  -  All new development is subject to the implementation of a Streetlight
Improvement District ( SLID) in accordance with Town of Buckeye Ordinance 43- 05 as
found in Chapter 20, Article 20- 15- 1 of Town Code and in Resolution No. 109- 12.
Queen Creek - The Town is the administrator of over 100 Street Light Improvement
Districts ( SLIDs) at the time of budget development. The fund receives revenues through
an assessment on secondary property tax that pays for the electricity consumption in the
districts.

Showlow

Litchfield Park

Gilbert

Peoria

New SLID' s forthcoming
Each new sub-division is required to form a SLID before the Final Plat is recorded.
Mesquite Trails has already submitted their application
Many, many more to come

1ri: i: i:.      - --       3•?' i: r
a3£ALT3 A{ FMtAto

tik"hlt tRII 0. Iss'M6Y Mt

4.it{.liib Y3t{t4K^

N. 15{ if

n IaY3E11      ^*
i-VA, 

v

SCS

MFSQUITE TRAILS SLID o    ., e--'`

Use of HURF for streetlights

Previously asked, ' Is still an opportunity to determine how many streetlights could be paid
by the HURF fund in the Anthem area so that the residents will not have to pay for those
streetlights.  The lights would be the ones in the arterial roadways as well as density lights.
Response—The State law covering the use of HURF doesn' t delineate to this level. Several
communities pay both the lights on the arterial streets as well as the lights interior to the
sub-division.

HURF Revenues — Gas Tax

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 11 of 16



Arizona gas taxes were last increased in 1991

Cars are more fuel-efficient reducing total revenue per mile driven
Tires pressures have increased, causing the roads to see more of the loads and increase
wear to the roads

Electric and hybrid vehicles cause similar wear to the roads but don' t contribute as much
to the revenue stream to repair the roads

Public Works Street Departments across the nation, including at the State and Federal
level, have been asked to do the same with less for a long time
House Bill 2899 aims to increase gas $. 06 per year over the next three years

House Bill 2899 aims to increase registration fees for electric vehicles
HURF Revenues — Prison closing

Highway Users Revenue Fund  ( HURF)  —  Decreases from  $ 2, 028,423 in FY20 to

1, 752,019. This is an annual loss of$ 276,404 to the HURF/Street Maintenance Fund
Loss of Pinal County Transportation Excise Tax  ( TET)  Revenues — Decreases from

1, 274, 910 in FY20 to $ 1, 110, 121. This is an annual loss of$ 164, 789 to the HURF/ Street
Maintenance Fund

Total revenue reduction of$ 441, 193

Conclusion

Revenue streams continue to decrease

The streets CIP is not fully funded based on the improvements needed for Hunt Highway
both in terms of maintenance and widening
Paying for streetlights out of HURF will mean less money available for maintaining the
streets, the primary purpose of HURF

Councilmember Larsen stated that though she feels that the SLIDs should be paid for by the
Town, it would be irresponsible to request so, specifically with the anticipated reduction in HURF
revenues.

Mr. Salas explained that HURF and TET funds are used for salaries.  The various completed
projects have reduced patch repairs and crack sealing as well as materials used.   One of his

concerns is how to find funds to widen Hunt Highway and to maintain the interior lanes because
the road is used as a main highway.  The City of Mesa has a separate tax that is earmarked for
maintaining their roads.

Councilmember Wall inquired if the cost to install the streetlights included in the bonding.  She

inquired if Mesquite Trails will have a Community Facilities District (CFD).

Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, explained that the Streetlight Improvement District ( SLID)
does not pay for the light poles but rather for the maintenance of the infrastructure and for the
monthly usage.  He stated that developers have the option to establish a CFD; however, Mesquite
Trails have not discussed the option of forming a CFD at this time.

Mr. Salas explained how CFDs work.

Councilmember Wall inquired if the SLIDS are mandated.

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 12 of 16



Mr. Billingsley stated that with the exception of Sunrise Estates Phase II, the Code mandates that
all new development form SLIDs.  They are not mandated to form a SLID because their plat was
approved as a rural dark sky subdivision many years ago.

Discussion occurred on various scenarios regarding when SLIDS would be required.

Mr. Salas stated that developers can do more than what is required.

MANAGER' S REPORT

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Police Department is going to offer a Youth Citizens Police Academy
for 6th— 8th

grade students.  Topics will include:
Crime Scene Investigations

Fingerprinting
Dangerous Drugs Education

Firearms Safety
Equipment Demos

Internet Safety
Alcohol Abuse Education

Crime Reporting
Team Building
Working with the Town' s K- 9 Officer.

Mr. Billingsley stated that the intent is to have a one-week course in June.

Mr. Billingsley stated that Police Chief Wall was elected as President of the Pinal County Law
Enforcement Agency.

Mr. Billingsley stated that today, the Town released two press releases regarding COVID- 19 and
the coronavirus.  The development that the Town has received is continually changing and staff
is taking this information very seriously.  Staff is in constant contact with the State, County, and
local medical professionals.  A State of Emergency has been declared at a Federal and State
Level.   The Pinal County Department of Public Health has activated their Incident Command
System.  Mountain Vista Medical Center is the operator of Florence Anthem Hospital and have
vowed to provide the best community support possible.   He said in light of this pandemic, the
Town is:

The Town is cancelling all special events through the end of April.  This will include

POWWOW, Eggstravaganza, Road to Country Thunder, and Movie in the Park.
Town representatives have also reached out to the organizers of Country Thunder,
Gallagher Softball Tournament, Third Fridays on Main, and the upcoming Rail 3 Ranch
Rodeo to make them aware of the CDC guidance.

The Town is cancelling all Recreation, Active Adult Center, and Library programming until
Monday March 30th.
Due to the nature of the activities performed at the Fitness Center, and our customer base,
the Fitness Center is being closed until further notice.

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 13 of 16



The Give A Lift Program is being suspended at this time, as the program depends on
volunteer drivers.

The Medical Equipment Loan Program will continue to be offered but patrons will need to

contact Community Services staff at (520) 868-7040 to arrange for pickup and drop-off.
Due to the updated CDC guidelines, and the nature of program participants, closing the
Florence Active Adult Center is imperative.  Getting seniors meals is a top priority, therefore
we will continue the Meals on Wheels Program and are working to provide meals for pickup
at the Active Adult Center, instead of hosting meals at the facility.
Consistent with the Maricopa County Library District and several Pinal County Libraries, the
Florence Library will be closed on Wednesday March 18th, until further notice.
All room reservations at the Florence Community Center and facility rentals are suspended
at this time.

All Town parks will remain open. Park restrooms will remain open and will receive cleaning
and supply service as resources allow.

There are currently no plans to suspend the Intersession and After School Programs
sponsored by the Town.  Protocols are being put in place and partnerships are being
researched to be sure that we can meet the community need.
Suspended all volunteer programs because all of the Town' s volunteers fall into the high- risk
categories under the CDC requirements.

Municipal Court will remain open

Mr.  Billingsley asked that citizens that are not feeling well or are showing symptoms of the
coronavirus not utilize the Fire Department as they have no ability to test or treat at this site.
Florence Anthem Hospital is putting protocols in place for COVID- 19. The Poison Control System
is now a COVID- 19 Call Center and asked that they be contacted if you are having symptoms.

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Florence Town Council has the ability to hold remote meetings
through technological means and if it takes place, it may limit public involvement.  This would

mean that there would be no public hearings. All board, commission and task force meetings and
all meetings have been cancelled until further notice.

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town is working with multiple agencies to ensure that accurate
information is disseminated to the public so that people can protect themselves and their families.

Town departments have an established protocol and are using the appropriate precautionary
measures to ensure to have an established protocol in providing service to our residents and
businesses.

Vice- Mayor Anderson inquired if there are any businesses that are closed due to the pandemic.

Mr. Billingsley stated he does not know of any businesses closing due to the pandemic.

CALL TO THE PUBLIC

There were no public comments.

CALL TO THE COUNCIL— CURRENT EVENTS ONLY

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 14 of 16



Councilmember Wall stated that McDonald' s will only offer drive-thru service effective
immediately.  L & B Cantina is open for business and offers take out service.

Councilmember Larsen stated that she appreciates the public notices that are being sent out and
the Council is doing its best to protect its residents.

Councilmember Cordes stated that she attended the 7th Annual Caliente Car Show.  She dressed
as a clown.  There were 75 cars that were in attendance.  She also attended the music festival;
unfortunately,  the attendance was low.    Everyone made sure to wash their hands and to
continually sanitize.   She also extended her condolences to the Hawkins family.

Vice Mayor Anderson stated that he would miss Councilmember Hawkins' friendship.  He was a

good friend and he is saddened by his passing.

Mayor Walter stated that the attendance was low for the Music Festival.  She stated that many
people are electing to distance themselves.  She asked that you limit your shopping to what you
need so that there will be enough for everyone.   She also asked that you check on others to
ensure that everyone is doing well.

Councilmember Hughes stated that she is saddened with Councilmember Hawkins passing.

ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the
public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431. 03 ( A)(3), ( A)(4) and

A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding:

a.  Town' s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa
County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015-000325,
including counterclaims.

b.  Town' s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of
Environmental Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case
No. 16- 002, including appellate proceedings to reviewing courts.

c.  Town' s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in the U. S.
District Court for the District of Arizona:  (Case No. CV-14- 01304-PHX- DMF) Walt
Hunter and Jarris A. H. Varnrobinson Von Zombie v. Town of Florence, et al.

d.  Town' s position on purchasing, leasing and or selling land.

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried ( 6- 0) to adjourn to
Executive Session.

ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION

On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried ( 6- 0) to
adjourn to Executive Session.

ADJOURNMENT

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 15 of 16



On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried ( 6- 0) to
adjourn the meeting at 8: 27 p. m.

U\Y Q
Tara Walter, Mayor

ATTEST:-

Oarcia, Town Clerk

I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council
meeting held on March 16, 2020, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum
was pres, nt.

Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes
March 16, 2020

Page 16 of 16



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9a. 

MEETING DATE:         September 8, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:           Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/  
                                     Town Clerk 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject: Andrea Hild resignation from Comm Svcs Advisory Board               Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT: Andrea L. Hild’s resignation from Community 
Services Advisory Board 

 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Accept Andrea L. Hild’s resignation from the Community Services Advisory Board.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Ms. Andrea L. Hild has submitted her oral resignation from the Community Services 
Advisory Board as she no longer resides in the Town planning area.    
 
2.086  MEMBERSHIP. 
 
   (A)   Composition. The Community Services Advisory Board shall consist of nine 
members, two alternates, and one youth liaison appointed by the Florence Town 
Council. The Commission shall strive to consist of one Florence business owner, one 
Florence resident who is a visual artist, one Florence resident who is a musician, one 
Florence resident who is involved in library services or the Friends of the Florence 
Library, one resident who is involved in youth sports, and four Florence residents of the 
town at large. The youth liaison shall be selected by the Florence Teen Council 
members by vote. Three members of the Community Services Advisory Board may 
reside within the Town of Florence planning area, but outside the municipal 
boundaries of the Town of Florence. 
 
   (B)   Five of nine members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for conducting 
business, and action may be made upon a majority vote of the quorum. 



Subject: Andrea Hild resignation from Comm Svcs Advisory Board               Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

   (C)   The Board shall elect a Chairperson and a Vice Chairperson who shall serve 
two-year terms. 
 
  (D)   The Board may organize committees and adopt rules and procedures as 
necessary to accomplish its purpose. 
 
   (E)   The Community Services Director and town staff shall serve as an information 
resource only and not as a voting member of the Board. 
 
 Advertisements will be placed on the Town website, social media, Channel 11, and in 
the Florence Reminder noticing the availability of the vacancy, along with the two 
alternate positions.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
Not applicable  
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
 A vote of yes would allow staff to move forward in advertising for the vacancy.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There is minimal cost for advertisement in the Florence Reminder and Blade Tribune.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Advertisement 
Community Services Advisory Board Contact List 



 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL SEEKS QUALIFIED 

APPLICANTS TO SERVE ON THE FOLLOWING 
BOARDS/COMMISSIONS: 

 
COMMUNITY SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD (1 position, 2 alternates) 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (3 positions) 
 

APPLICANTS MUST BE A QUALIFIED ELECTOR AND AT LEAST 
EIGHTEEN YEARS OF AGE. 

 
APPLICATIONS MAY BE PICKED UP AT TOWN HALL, 775 N. MAIN 
STREET AND ARE AVAILABLE ON THE TOWN WEBSITE AT 
www.florenceaz.gov. IF YOU WOULD LIKE MORE INFORMATION, 
PLEASE CALL (520) 868-7552.   
 
POSITIONS WILL REMAIN OPEN UNTIL FILLED. 
 

 



Effective: 4-6-2020  

COMMUNITY SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD 
 

Formation Authority: Town Code §32.085 
Membership:    Nine members with two-year terms, two alternates  

and one youth liaison  
Term:      Two-year staggered terms 
Meeting:    Second Thursday of the month at 6:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Council Chambers, 775 N. Main Street  
 

Library Services: 
Sheree Berger  
P.O. Box 324 
409 Ashley Way 
Florence  AZ 85132 
Home: (520) 868-5288 
Cell: (520) 518-1526 
shereeberger@hotmail.com 
Re-appointed:  1/7/2019 
Expires: 12/31/2021 
 
Musician: 
Ed Curran  
P O Box 1734 
495 N. Warner 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Home:  520-483-6694 
Email:  motodepowick@yahoo.com 
Appointed:  11/22/2018 
Expires: 12/31/2020 
 
Visual Artist 
Doris Hagemann  
3607 N. North Dakota Ave. 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Home:  520-868-8758 
hagemannd@centurylink.net  
Appointed 4/6/2020 
Expires:  12/31/2022 
 
Business Owner:  
Ann Rankin  
P O Box 1471 
351 W. Poston Butte Loop 
Florence, AZ  85132 
Home:  520- 868-9528 
Cell:  520-705-2469 
strawpad@cox.net  
Appointed: 1/22/2018  
Expires:  12/31/2020 
 

Talma Harmon  
P O Box 1944 
515 N. Warner 
Florence  AZ 85132 
Cell: (520) 450-2183  
Work: (520) 866-3560 x7149 
guitah@hotmail.com 
Appointed: 2/4/2019 
Expires: 12/31/2020 
 
Andrea L. Hild 
3644 N. Emerald Creek Dr. 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Home:  928-575-7747 
Work:  520-424-2100 
kirch29@hotmail.com  
appointed: 2/4/2019  
Expires: 12/31/2021 
 
Cydni Ambrosio 
7997 W. Georgetown Way 
Florence  AZ 85132 
Home: (520) 788-4842 
c.ambrosio@icloud.com  
Appointed:  2/4/2019 
Expires:  12/31/2020 
 
Douglas W. Stinson 
P O Box 36 
275 E. Virginia 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Cell:  520-560-6404 
Pinal768@aol.com 
Appointed:  1/7/2019 
Expires: 12/31/2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Effective: 4-6-2020  

William “Bill” Vitalec 
7598 W. Millerton Way 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Home: 817-996-8558 
Billsglass2018@gmail.com 
Appointed 4/6/2020 
Expires: 12/31/2022 
 
Alternate:   
Vacant 
 
Alternate:  
Vacant 
 
Youth Liaison: 
Vacant 
 
Council Liaison: 
Kristen Larsen 
5578 W. Montebello Way 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Cell: (605) 376-2048 
Email: Kristen.R.Larsen@gmail.com 
 
Staff Liaison: 
Hezekiah Allen 
P O Box 2670 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Office:  520-868-7582 
hezekiah.allen@florenceaz.gov 
 

Composition of Board:  
The Community Services Advisory Board shall consist of nine members, two 
alternates, and one youth liaison appointed by the Florence Town Council. The 
Commission shall strive to consist of one Florence business owner, one Florence 
resident who is a visual artist, one Florence resident who is a musician, one 
Florence resident who is involved in library services or the Friends of the Florence 
Library, one resident who is involved in youth sports, and four Florence residents 
of the town at large. The youth liaison shall be selected by the Florence Teen 
Council members by vote. Three members of the Community Services Advisory 
Board may reside within the Town of Florence planning area, but outside the 
municipal boundaries of the Town of Florence.
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9b.  

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director/Town Engineer 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject:  Cactus Transport Contract   Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT: Cactus Transport Inc. (dba Cactus Asphalt) Contract 
  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory     None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approve a contract with Cactus Transport Inc. (dba Cactus Asphalt) for asphalt 
maintenance and repair services, in an amount not to exceed $403,602.99, which 
includes a 15% contingency. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The request is to contract with Cactus Transport Inc. (dba Cactus Asphalt) using the Pinal 
County Cooperative Contract #175923, expiring June 26, 2023, for asphalt maintenance 
and repair services, which includes the application of chip seal binder and polymer 
modified asphalt rubber and fog seal binder, for pavement preservation treatment. This 
is associated with CIP T-69 for Pavement Preservation  
 
The surface of the various locations throughout Florence are worn and in need of asphalt 
preservation. The areas targeted for the Fall of 2020 are shown in Exhibit B. 
 
The Town of Florence has the opportunity to utilize Pinal County’s Contract (#175923) 
with Cactus Asphalt, originally entered into on June 27, 2018, to provide asphalt 
maintenance and repair services, which includes binder pavement preservation 
treatment. This contract expires June 26, 2023 with options to extend. 
 
 
 



Subject:  Cactus Transport Contract   Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

A vote of no would mean preventative maintenance would be delayed until the following 
fiscal year. The asphalt pavement would continue to incrementally deteriorate. As 
preventative maintenance is delayed, the cost to maintain the streets is increased. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
A vote of yes would mean preventative maintenance would occur as scheduled and the 
future costs would continue as projected. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to contract with Cactus Asphalt in the amount of $350,959.12, plus 15% 
contingency of $52,643.87, making the not to exceed amount $403,602.99. 
 
5.632 Vendor Selection 
 
5.6321 Alternative purchase methods are identified if approved by necessity or by the 
Town Manager as indicated by Emergency/Sole Source Purchase, state contract or any 
other method authorized. The Finance Director reviews for budget availability and bidding 
procedures. The Town Manager reviews for need. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Exhibit A – Fall 2020 Scope of Work 
 Exhibit B – Map 
 Pinal County Contract #175923 renewal, expiring June 26, 2023 
 Professional Services Contract 

 



jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT A



jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT B







1 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF PINAL COUNTY JOB ORDER 

CONTRACT NO. 175923 FOR ASPHALT MAINTENANCE & REPAIR SERVICES 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 8th day of 
September, 2020 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the 
“Town”), and Cactus Transport, Inc., dba Cactus Asphalt, (the “Contractor”) and together 
with the Contract Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant 
contract” contemplated in Pinal County RFP & Contract No. 175923, originally entered 
into on June 27, 2018, to provide asphalt maintenance & repair services. The term of the 
contract is extended through June 26, 2023.  The Town and the Contractor are sometimes 
referred to in this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, 
material, transportation services and equipment to provide polymer modified 
asphalt paving, per contract specifications described in the attached scope of 
materials and services set forth in Exhibit “A” (the “Scope of Work”) and the 
targeted locations for asphalt paving, shown in Exhibit “B” (the “Map”). The 
Contractor shall provide the Goods in accordance with the schedule attached in 
Exhibit “A”, and the Contract Documents, including all exhibits to the Master 
Contract including but not limited to any Instructions, Standard Terms and 
Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, Specifications, Scope of Work, 
Submittals and Attachments.  Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to 
do all the work and furnish all the equipment, personnel and materials necessary 
to provide in a good and substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of the Town, 
the Goods. 
 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the 
Parties that should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the 
Master Contract, or the Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the 
provisions of the Contract Documents shall control and nothing herein shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said Proposal conflicting herewith 
or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

 
3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and 

valuable consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative 
solicitation/contract (Pinal County, 175923) provides asphalt maintenance and 
repair services. Requirements Contract and Contract Amendment dated June 26, 
2023 (“Master Contract”), is in full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of 
the Master Contract are incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an 
agreement identical in terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master 
Contract, the terms: “Pinal County”, “Buyer” and “City” shall be deemed to be and 
refer to the Town of Florence; the terms: “Deputy Finance Director” shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Town of Florence Town Manager; and the terms: 
“Assignee”, “Offeror”, “Contractor”, “Seller”, “Supplier”, and “Vendor” shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  



2 
 

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract 
documents, which by reference are incorporated herein: 
 This signed Cooperative Contract 
 Pinal County Contract Renewal for FY19/20, #175923, Expires 6/27/2023 

 
5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract 

Documents and Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “A” (Price Sheet) 
and shall not exceed $350,959.12. 
 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective Date 
through satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and 
acceptance of the Services and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to 
the terms of this Contract. 
 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the 

Town  that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and 
are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) (hereinafter 
“Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 

breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 

Subcontractor’s employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the 
Contractor or Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town regarding any such 
inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 

employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to 
assist the Town regarding any random verification performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 

materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment verification 
provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal Immigration 
and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by A. R. S. § 23-
214, Subsection A. 



3 
 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all its subcontractors who provide Services under this 
Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, time 
or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services 
include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation 
facility or improvement to real property. 

 
8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “A”.  If 

payment is to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and 
progress reports which clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of 
compensation due by virtue of that progress.  All invoices shall be for Services 
completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 
 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may 
terminate, suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s 
convenience without penalty or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for 
Services or Goods satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as determined 
by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods and/or Services 
requirements and schedule for payment. 
 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an 
independent contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under this 
Contract, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, agent, 
or to have any other legal relationship with Town. 
 

11. NOTICES.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be 
deemed to have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified 
or registered mail, addressed as follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 
775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Cactus 
Asphalt, A Division of Cactus Transport, Inc, Bryan Glazer, 8211 W. Sherman 
Street, Tolleson, AZ 85353. 

 
12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its 

successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees, from and against all demands, 
claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but not 
limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), and 
all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or alleged 
to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or Services of 
the Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors 
related to the Goods or Services in the performance of this Contract.  Contractor’s 
duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Town of Florence, its Mayor and  
Council members, its agents, officers, officials, representatives and employees 
shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense that is 



4 
 

attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment, or 
destruction of property including loss of use of resulting therefrom, caused by 
Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services in the 
performance of this Contract including any employee of the Contractor, any tier of 
Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for whose acts, errors, mistakes, 
omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally liable. In consideration 
of the award of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the Town, its officers, officials, agents and employees for 
losses arising from the Goods or Services provided by the Contractor for the Town. 
 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to 
the requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all 
Services will be performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  The 
Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not relieve 
Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods or Services are 
of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the Town, Contractor, 
at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or redo such Services until 
they are in accordance with this Contract and to the Town’s reasonable 
satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants that Goods will be 
new, unused, of most current manufacture and not discontinued, will be free of 
defects in materials and workmanship, will be provided in accordance with 
manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) year, unless otherwise 
specified, and will perform in accordance with manufacturer’s published 
specifications. 
 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing 
Policy (the “Policy”) govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this 
Contract by this reference. Contractor agrees and warrants that it is in compliance 
with the Policy, including demonstrating its lawful presence in the United States. 

 
15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be 

construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. 
The exclusive forum selected for any proceeding or suit in law or equity arising 
from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, Arizona. 
 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. section 35-393.01, the Contractor, 
by execution of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees 
for the duration of this Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the 
Effective Date set forth above. 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 
 

        
 

By: __________________________  Date: _________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 
 
Approved as to Form 
 
______________________________ 
Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ___________________________ Date: __________________________ 
         
 
Its: __________________________  
         
 
           



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9c. 

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
  
STAFF PRESENTER:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 
Subject:  Lease Agreement for COVID-19 Testing               Meeting Date September 8.  2020 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:  COVID-19 Testing  
Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

  Community Vitality        Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Ratification of a Lease Agreement to use the Florence Community Center as a Florence 
location for COVID-19 testing.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
Pinal County contacted the Town to lease a portion of the Community Center for 
COVID-19 testing.   Pinal County Department of Health has contracted with a lab from 
Tucson to supply free tests with a 98.9% accuracy rating.  The test is available by 
appointment only.  The tentative schedule is Monday to Wednesday.  Locations will also 
be available in Casa Grande and San Tan Valley.  The lease is for 30 days and has an 
option to renew for an additional 30 days.    
 
Ms. Tascha Spears, Pinal County Department of Health, will be present to answer any 
questions regarding the test center.  
 
Council will note this is a ratification, testing began on site today.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
A no vote would require the Town to issue the 10-day cancellation notice to Pinal 
County.  
 
  



 

Subject:  Lease Agreement for COVID-19 Testing               Meeting Date September 8.  2020 
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
A yes vote would allow the Community Center Recreation Rooms to be used by the 
Pinal County Department of Health to offer COVID-19 testing.  
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The rental agreement is for $1,900 per month.  
    
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Agreement 
Exhibits 
 



 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (“Lease”) is dated this 8th  day of September 2020, (“Effective 

Date”), and made by and between the TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
(“Landlord”), and PINAL COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona (“Tenant”).  
Landlord and Tenant are sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as a “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties”. 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Landlord is the owner of certain real property and building located at the Florence 
Community Center at 778 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona  85132 (the “Property”). 
 

B. Landlord is authorized pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”)  §9-241 to 
lease real property owned by it upon such conditions as may be determined by its Council. 

 
C. Tenant is authorized pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-251(54) to lease real property for 

public purposes. 
 
D. Landlord desires to lease to Tenant and Tenant desires to lease from Landlord a 

portion of the Property for public uses including, without limitation, Covid-19 testing and storage 
of related materials and supplies.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. LEASED PREMISES. 
 
 Tenant agrees to lease from Landlord a portion of the Property comprising approximately 
3788 sq. ft. as depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Leased Premises”). 
 

2. TERM. 
 
 The initial term of this Lease shall be for a period of 30-days commencing on the Effective 
Date.  The term shall automatically renew for successive 30-day periods unless terminated by 
either Party.  Either Party may terminate this Lease at any time upon 10 days written notice to the 
other Party. 
 

3. RENT.  
 
 Tenant shall pay to Landlord as rent for the Leased Premises the sum of $1,900.00 per 
month of this Lease. 
 

4. SECURITY DEPOSIT. 
 
 Landlord does not require a security deposit from Tenant under this Lease. 
 
 

 



 
 

5. TENANT RESPONSIBILITIES. 
 

             5.1 Tenant will maintain property and liability insurance in connection with 
Tenant’s use of the Leased Premises for the term of this Lease. 
 

5.2  Tenant will protect the Leased Premises from waste or nuisance of any 
kind. 

 
5.3 Tenant will return the Leased Premises to Landlord in the same condition 

as on the Effective Date, in a clean and orderly condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted.
  

5.4 Tenant will not be responsible for any utilities not separately metered for 
the Leased Premises. 

 
5.5 Tenant will not be responsible for any maintenance or repairs to the Leased 

Premises except for repairs caused the Tenant’s negligence or misconduct in its use of 
the Leased Premises 

 
6. ADDITIONS AND ALTERATIONS TO LEASED PREMISES. 

 
Tenant will make no changes, alterations, additions or improvements to the Leased 

Premises without the Landlord’s prior written consent.   
 
7. TENANT’S PROPERTY.  

 
7.1. All supplies, movable furniture and equipment and personal property 

owned by Tenant and not attached to the Leased Premises are to remain Tenant’s sole 
and separate property.   

 
7.2. All fixtures installed on the Leased Premises by Tenant shall be the sole 

and separate property of Landlord, regardless of the manner or mode of attachment and 
Tenant shall not be entitled to any payment for those changes, alterations, additions or 
improvements made to the Leased Premises during the term of this Lease. 

 
8. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.  

 
Tenant, shall not either voluntarily or by operation of law, assign, transfer, pledge, 

hypothecate or encumber this Lease or any interest therein.  Any such assignment or subletting 
shall be void, and shall, at the option of the Landlord, constitute an event of default by Tenant 
under the terms of this Lease.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant may contract with third-
parties including, without limitation, Paradigm Laboratories, LLC, to provide Covid-19 testing and 
related services at the Leased Premises provided, however, Tenant will remain responsible for 
compliance with all terms and conditions of this Lease. 

 
9. ACCESS BY LANDLORD. 

 
 Landlord, its agents and employees, shall have access and the right to enter upon the 
Leased Premises at any reasonable time during normal business hours and after providing 24 
hours notice to Tenant to examine the condition thereof, or to make any repairs that Landlord 
deems necessary.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an emergency, Landlord, its 
agents and employees, shall have access and the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at any 
time without notice.  



 
 

    10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REASONABLE USAGE. 
 
 Tenant shall comply with all federal, state, municipal and other laws, ordinances, rules 
and regulations applicable to the Leased Premises and the business conducted therein by 
Tenant; will not engage in any activity other than the permitted uses of the Leased Premises which 
would cause Tenant’s insurance to be canceled; will not commit any act that is a nuisance or 
annoyance to the Landlord or to other tenants, or which might, in the reasonable judgment of 
Landlord, damage Landlord’s reputation, or tend to injure or depreciate the Leased Premises; and 
will not commit or permit waste on the Leased Premises. 
 

11. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION.    
 
To the extent permitted by law, each Party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall indemnify, defend 

and hold harmless the other Party (“Indemnified Party”), its officials, employees and agents from 
all suits, actions, claims, demands, losses, costs or damages of every kind and description, 
including any attorneys' fees, arbitration and litigation expenses, which may be brought or made 
against or incurred by the Indemnified Party on account of injuries, death or damages received or 
sustained by any person, persons, or property on account of any negligent or willful act, omission, 
neglect or misconduct of the Indemnifying Party, its employees, agent or anyone acting on 
County's behalf or under its direction, arising under this Lease.  Such indemnity shall not be limited 
by reasons of remuneration of any insurance coverage. 
 

12. NON-WAIVER OF REMEDY. 
 
 The waiver by Landlord or Tenant of any breach or default of any term, covenant or 
condition of this Lease shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same 
or any other term, covenant or condition of this Lease.  Any waiver must be in writing and signed 
by the Party against whom it is sought to be enforced in order to be effective. 
 

13. NOTICES. 
 
 All notices and other communication required or permitted under this Lease shall be in 
writing and shall be, as determined by the person giving such notice, either hand delivered, mailed 
by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by facsimile communication to the other 
Party at the following addresses: 
 

LANDLORD:  Town of Florence 
   Town Manager 

775 N. Main Street 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, Arizona 85132 

      
TENANT:  Pinal County 

     County Manager 
     P.O. Box 827  
     135 N. Pinal Street 
     Administrative Complex 
     Florence, Arizona  85132 
      
Notice shall be deemed delivered at the time of personal delivery, telecopy or telegraphic 
communication or when mailed to the required party.  Any party may change its address by given 
written notice of a change of address to the other Party in the manner above provided. 



 
 

14. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

14.1. Headings.  Headings of this Lease are not a part of the Lease and shall 
have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part thereof. 

 
 
14.2. Binding Effect.  The covenants and conditions herein contained shall inure 

to the benefit of and bind to the successors and permitted assigns of the Parties hereto. 
 

14.3. Entire Lease.  This written Lease contains the entire and only Lease 
between Landlord and Tenant and there are not any prior or contemporaneous oral or 
other statements, Leases ore representations other than those expressly contained in this 
Lease between said parties.  This Lease shall not be modified or amended in any manner 
except by written instrument signed by all the parties hereto. 

 
14.4. Applicable Law.  This Lease in entered into in the State of Arizona and be 

governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona. 
 

14.5. Attorney’s Fees.  Notwithstanding any other provision herein, it is agreed 
is any such action is brought in a court of law by either party to this Lease as to the 
enforcement, interpretation or construction of this Lease, or any document provided for 
herein, the prevailing party in such action shall be awarded reasonable attorney’s fees as 
well as all costs incurred in the prosecution or defense of such action. 

 
14.6. Hazardous Materials.  Tenant will not store, use or dispose of any 

hazardous materials in, on or about the Leased Premises.  Tenant will be solely 
responsible for and will defend, indemnify and hold Landlord, its officers, agents and 
employees harmless from and against all claims, costs and liabilities including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, court costs and other expenses of litigation (i) arising out of or in 
connection with Tenant’s breach of its obligations contained in this Section 14.6, or (ii) 
arising out of or in connection with the removal, clean-up and restoration work and 
materials necessary to return the Leased Premises to the condition existing prior to the 
appearance of Tenant’s hazardous materials in the Leased Premises.  Tenant’s 
obligations under this Section 14.6 shall survive the expiration or other termination of this 
Lease. 

 
14.7. Force Majeure.   “Force majeure” delay  shall be defined for the purposes 

of this Lease as an event or circumstance where an act or failure to act by either Party 
hereunder which would otherwise be a breach or default where such act or failure to act 
is due to events outside the control of the Party claiming an extension including, without 
limitation the following:  war; insurrection; strikes; lock-outs; riots; floods; earthquakes; 
fires; casualties; act if God; acts of the public enemy, including terrorism; epidemics; 
quarantine restrictions; freight embargoes; or government delays; unusually severe 
weather; inability to secure necessary labor; materials or tolls; delays of any contractor; 
subcontractor or supplier. 

 
14.8 Conflict of Interest.   This Lease is subject to cancellation for conflict of 

interest without penalty or further obligation as provided by A.R.S. § 38-511.  
  

  

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Lease Agreement as of the day 
and year set forth below. 

      “Landlord” 
       

TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal 
corporation 

 
      By: ______________________________________ 
                                  Town Manager 
 
 
 
      BY: _____________________________________ 
             Mayor  

 
Dated: ___________________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 

 
      _________________________________________ 
      Town Clerk 
 
      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Town Attorney
       
 
      “Tenant” 
 

PINAL COUNTY, a political subdivision of the  
State of Arizona 

 
       

By: ______________________________________ 
            Chair of the Board  
  
      Dated: ___________________________________ 
 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk/Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Deputy County Attorney



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
TO  

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

[Depiction of Leased Premises] 
 

See following page. 
 
    



Exhibit “A” 

Community Center Usage 

 

  
Rec A:                   1029 SF 
Rec B:                    1025 SF 
Rec C:                    1072 SF 
Ruggles 1:             447 SF 
Kitchen:                 175 SF 
TOTAL                   3778 SF 
 

 

 

  



Shared
Plaza

General Government
Meeting Room A

Women's
Restroom

Date  Create d: 7/21/2015                    Date Modified: 4/4/2016

0 8 164

Feet /
This map is cre ate d for re fe re nce purpose s only and is to be
use d at your ow n risk.  The Tow n of Flore nce make s no
w arranty as to the accuracy or comple te ne ss of the
information contained in this map and assume s no liability
for any e r rors or omissions contained the re in, nor for any
dire ct, indire ct, or conse que ntial damage s Which may be
cause d by its use .  It is the use r’s r e sponsibility to ve rify all
information contained he r e in.     MM-96

Tow n of Flore nce Library
Gene ral Gove rnment Me e ting Room B

Empty Se tup Tow n of Flore nce

Rec
Room

A

Rec
Room

B

Rec
Room

C

Shared
Plaza Public

Computers

Children's
Collection

Adult
Collection

Librar y
Entr y

Gen Govt
Room A

Gen Govt
Room B

Craft
Room

Men's
Women's

Room Location



Shared
Plaza

Gen Gov
Room

A

Date Created: 7/21/2015                    Date Modified: 4/4/2016

0 14 287

Feet /
This map is created for reference purposes only and is to be
used at your own risk.  The Town of Florence makes no
warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of the
information contained in this map and assumes no liability
for any errors or omissions contained therein, nor for any
direct, indirect, or consequential damag es Which may be
caused by its use.  It is the user’s responsibility to verify all
information contained herein.     MM-94

Town of Florence Library
Recreation Room
Empty Setu p Town of Florence

RecRoom

Shared
Plaza Public

Computers

Children's
Collection

Adult
Collection

Librar y
Entr y

Gen Govt
Room A

Gen Govt
Room B

Craft
Room

Men's
Women's

Room Location



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 9d. 

MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works, Water & Wastewater Division 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher Salas, P.E.  
                                      Public Works Director/Town Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Approval to lease 17 vehicles with Enterprise Fleet 

  Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject: Lease vehicles from Enterprise Fleet Management                                    Meeting Date:  September 8, 2020 
Page 1 of 3  

Management 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  
 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Public Safety    Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   
 
Approval to lease 17 vehicles with Enterprise Fleet Management, in an amount not to 
exceed $300,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The Town currently has a total capital budget of $288,000 for the purpose of purchasing 
six vehicles; three Police Tahoes, one Facility Maintenance Truck, one Community 
Service Truck, and one Wastewater Truck.   
 
Instead, the Town is requesting to enter into a lease for 17 vehicles at estimated price of 
$288,816 plus a contingency of $11,184 for a total of $300,000.  The vehicles include: 

- 10 Tahoes for Police Department 
- One truck for Community Services Department 
- Two trucks for Facilities Maintenance Division  
- Two trucks for Wastewater Division  
- Two trucks for HURF Division 

 
A lifecycle cost analysis was performed for a regular truck with a cab and standard bed 
and a Police Tahoe to demonstrate the cost savings for the different vehicles, and is 
included in Attachment A. 
 
Enterprise Fleet Management – Questions and responses: 



 
 

1) Sounds like a bubble, 3 years $146,000 Why is that bubble? 
Answer:  That year the Town is selling back fewer vehicles. 
 

2) How long will it take to replace all the vehicles we have now?  Is that immediately 
or is that spread out over a couple of years? 
Answer: First 2 years, 17 first year (FY 20/21), 5 second year.  

 
3) Specialized equipment for vehicles, how are we taking the equipment off of one 

vehicle and putting it on another? Does it already come equipped and when we 
sell the vehicles what happened to the equipment? Mounts for computers etc.? 
Answer: Police vehicles come fully equipped and Enterprise will work with the 
vendors that the Town currently uses.  Also, Town/Enterprise will reuse the 
equipment is about 50%.  Work with the vendors closely to keep the equipment 
up to date.  Look at everything they can be re-use. 

 
4) GPS equipment directly transferable? 

Answer:  Yes, direct transfer and Enterprise also uses the same equipment. 
       

5) How many total vehicles are in the Town fleet – excluding fire trucks? 
Answer: We have 92 vehicles, 44 are police vehicles & 48 are light duty trucks & 
SUVs. 

6) What does it do to the personnel that take care of fleet maintenance?  How many 
would it eliminate? 
Answer:  Ongoing conversation, no jobs are planned to be eliminated – possibly 
reassigned, but we will still need a certain amount of mechanics for the Public 
Works vehicles.  Possibly reassign one mechanic (fleet) to one mechanic 
(wastewater). 
 

7) Grants for five vehicles what do we do with the grants? 
Answer:  Different grants have different requirements and the Town will need to 
determine the best option for each grant individually.  For grants that require the 
Town to take title that process lends itself to continue to purchase those vehicles 
with cash and then be reimbursed by the grant.  This is most likely how the Town 
will need to proceed with 5310.  On vehicles obtained utilizing the Governors 
Officer of Highway Safety grant process the Town could either purchase cash or 
utilize a lease process through Enterprise.  
 

8) Are we self-insured for the Town’s vehicles? 
Answer:  We are insured through Southwest Risk 
 

9) Why can’t Florence shop local for vehicles? 
Answer:  Town follows the Town’s purchasing policy which allows co-operative 
purchasing.  Traditionally the Town has purchased vehicles utilizing the state 



 
 

contract.  The State Contract only has three vendors on the pre-approved list and 
Garrett Motors is not on the State Contract.   

 
With integrating newer vehicles into the Town’s fleet, employees will drive safer, more 
reliable, and more fuel-efficient vehicles with minimal maintenance needs.  The Town 
will be able to reduce the vehicle lifecycle by leveraging Enterprise’s infrastructure and 
economies of scale that have been built by operating their fleet for 60 years that now 
numbers approximately two-million vehicles.  
 
Town staff have been working with Enterprise to better understand the process and cost 
savings for over six months.  Several concerns from Finance, Public Works and the 
Police Department have been discussed and addressed.  The Town has taken the time 
to reach out to neighboring cities to discuss their satisfaction with the Enterprise Fleet 
Management System and have heard nothing but strong satisfaction on both the 
qualitative and quantitative side.  Communities and Departments of all sizes are all 
using this type of model throughout Arizona.   
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
The Town would move forward on the cash purchase of the six vehicles approved in the 
CIP. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:    
 
The Town would be able to lease 17 new vehicles 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   
 
Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Presentation  
Total Cost of Ownership exhibits 
Quotes 



Town of Florence

Public Works Department



That year the Town is selling back fewer vehicles.



 It will take 2 years to replace all the vehicles the Town has now. 
 17 first year – FY 20/21
 5 second year



 Police vehicles come fully equipped and Enterprise will work with the vendors that 
the Town currently uses.  Also Town/Enterprise will reuse the equipment is about 
50%.  Work with the vendors closely to keep the equipment up to date. Look at 
everything they can re-use.



 Yes, direct transfer and Enterprise also uses the same equipment.



 We have 92 vehicles, 44 are police vehicles & 48 are light duty trucks & SUV’s.



 Ongoing conversation, no jobs are planned to be eliminated – possibly reassigned, 
but we will still need a certain amount of mechanics for the Public Works vehicles. 
Possibly reassign 1 mechanic (fleet) to 1 mechanic (waste water).



 Different grants have different requirements and the Town will need to determine 
the best option for each grant individually. For grants that require the Town to take 
title that process lends itself to continue to purchase those vehicles with cash and 
then be reimbursed by the grant. This is most likely how the Town will need to 
proceed with 5310. On vehicles obtained utilizing the Governors Officer of 
Highway Safety grant process the Town could either purchase cash or utilize a 
lease process through Enterprise. 



 The Town is insured through Southwest Risk.



 Town follows the Town’s purchasing policy which allows co-operative purchasing. 
Traditionally the Town has purchased vehicles utilizing the state contract. The State 
Contract only has three vendors on the pre-approved list and Garrett Motors is not 
on the State Contract. 











© 2016 Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

TOTAL COST OF OWNERSHIP

$50,838 to run 4 trucks for 3 years each over 12 years.  $4,237 per year or $353 per month



© 2016 Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

TOTAL COST OF OWNERSHIP

$59,136 to run 1 truck for 12 years over 12 years.  $4,928 per year or $411 per month

$8,298 in savings with Enterprise Fleet Management



© 2016 Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

TOTAL COST OF OWNERSHIP

$149,646 to run 2 Tahoe’s 6 years each over 12 years.  $12,471 per year or $1039 per month



© 2016 Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

TOTAL COST OF OWNERSHIP

$155,396 to run 1 Tahoe for 12 years over 12 years.  $12,950 per year or $1,079 per month

$5,750 in savings with Enterprise Fleet Management















Prepared For: Town of Florence Date 08/21/2020

Salas, Christopher AE/AM 6JB/kw

Unit #

Year 2021 Make Chevrolet Model Silverado 2500HD

Series Work Truck 4x2 Regular Cab 8 ft. box 141.6 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type Ordered Term 60 State AZ Customer# 575892

$ 36,126.20 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * Sales Tax 0.0000% State AZ

$ 15.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 * Registration Fee

$ 350.00 * Other: (See Page 2)

$ 2,325.00 * Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 213.90 * Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 662.40 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $7,200.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name

Exterior Color (0 P) Summit White / Black Front Grille

Interior Color (0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 33,801.20 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 456.32 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 98.52 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 554.84 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 51.05 Transaction Privilege Tax 9.2000%  State AZ

$ 605.89 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 6,422.00 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 8,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to 
collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered vehicle. Lessee certifies that it intends that more than 50% of the use of the vehicle is to be in a trade or 
business of the Lessee.

LESSEE Town of Florence
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized Price of Vehicle May be Adjusted to Reflect Final Manufacturer's Invoice. Lessee Hereby Assigns to Lessor anyManufacturer Rebates And/Or Manufacturer Incentives Intended for the Lessee, Which Rebates 

And/Or Incentives Have Been UsedBy Lessor to Reduce the Capitalized Price of the Vehicle.
2 Monthly Lease Charge Will Be Adjusted to Reflect the Interest Rate on the Delivery Date (Subject to a Floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725877

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:42:38 PM Page 1 of 6



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

utility bed and ladder rack - sun country C $ 9,300.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 9,300.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 9,300.00

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Pricing Plan Delivery Charge B $ 150.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee B $ 200.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 350.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 0.00

Other Charges Total $ 350.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725877

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:42:38 PM Page 2 of 6



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2021 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD Work Truck 4x2 Regular Cab 8 ft. box 141.6 in. WB - US

Series ID: CC20903

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $32,826.2 $34,700.00

Total Options $-455.00 $-500.00

Destination Charge $1,595.00 $1,595.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: GAZ / GRIL-(0 P) Summit White / Black Front Grille

Interior: H2G-(0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

1WT Preferred Equipment Group 1WT NC NC

9J4 Rear Bumper Delete Included Included

9L3 Delete Spare Tire & Wheel Included Included

AE7 Front 40/20/40 Split-Bench Seat w/Storage Included Included

AED Power Front Windows w/Passenger Express Down Included Included

AKO Deep-Tinted Glass Included Included

AQQ Remote Keyless Entry Included Included

AU3 Power Door Locks Included Included

AXG Power Front Windows w/Driver Express Up/Down Included Included

BG9 Rubberized-Vinyl Floor Covering Included Included

BLUE Bluetooth For Phone Included Included

C49 Electric Rear-Window Defogger Included Included

C4M GVWR: 9,900 lbs (4,490 kg) Included Included

CAP Capped Fuel Fill Included Included

CTDDEL 12 Fixed Cargo Tie Downs Delete Included Included

CTTDEL Hitch Guidance Delete Included Included

DBG Heated Vertical Trailering Mirrors Included Included

GAZ_01 (0 P) Summit White NC NC

GRIL Black Front Grille Included Included

GT4 3.73 Rear Axle Ratio STD STD

H2G_02 (0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim NC NC

IOR Radio: Chevrolet Infotainment 3 System STD STD

JL1 Integrated Trailer Brake Controller $250.25 $275.00

K34 Electronic Cruise Control w/Set & Resume Speed Included Included

KW7 170 Amp Alternator Included Included

L8T Engine: 6.6L Gas V8 w/Direct Injection & VVT STD STD

L8TBAT 720 Cold-Cranking Amps Heavy-Duty Battery Included Included

MCAP Black Mirror Caps Included Included

MYD Transmission: HD 6-Speed Automatic STD STD

N33 Manual Tilt-Wheel Steering Column Included Included

PCV WT Convenience Package NA NA

PYN Wheels: 17" Silver Painted Steel Included Included

QHQ Tires: LT245/75R17E AS BW Included Included

$33,966.20 $35,795.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725877

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:42:38 PM Page 3 of 6



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

SFW SEO: Back-Up Alarm Calibration Included Included

STDTM Vinyl Seat Trim Included Included

STPDEL Black BedStep Delete Included Included

U95 2-Speaker Audio System Feature Included Included

UDC 3.5" Diagonal Monochromatic Display DIC Included Included

UVCDEL Rear Vision Camera Delete Included Included

VH6 Black Front Bumper Included Included

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

YF5 California State Emissions Requirements NC NC

Z82DEL Trailering Package Delete Included Included

Z85 Suspension Package STD STD

ZHQ Spare LT245/75R17E AS BW Tire $345.80 $380.00

ZW9 Pickup Bed Delete $-1,051.05 $-1,155.00

ZY1 Solid Paint STD STD

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725877

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:42:38 PM Page 4 of 6



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  2

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Convex Driver Mirror:  convex driver and passenger mirror

      Mirror Type:  manual extendable trailer mirrors

      Door Handles:  black

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  black front and rear bumpers with black rub strip

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  trailering with brake controller

      Fender Flares:  black fender flares

      Grille:  black grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  manual air conditioning

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Front Cupholder:  front cupholder

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      IP Storage:  covered bin instrument-panel storage

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  AM/FM/Satellite-prep with seek-scan

      Speakers:  2 speakers

      1st Row LCD:  1 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite halogen headlamps

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog display

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  systems monitor

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:42:38 PM Page 5 of 6



      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Low Oil Level Warning:  low-oil-level warning

      Low Coolant Warning:  low-coolant warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

      Brake Pad Wear:  brake pad wear

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  DuraLife four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Ignition Disable:  immobilizer

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  StabiliTrak w/Proactive Roll Avoidance electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 3

      Front Bucket Seats:  front split-bench 40-20-40 seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  4-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  manual reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  manual driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Leather Upholstery:  vinyl front seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

Standard Engine:

      Engine  401-hp, 6.6-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  6-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:42:38 PM Page 6 of 6



Prepared For: Town of Florence Date 08/21/2020

Salas, Christopher AE/AM 6JB/kw

Unit #

Year 2021 Make Chevrolet Model Silverado 2500HD

Series Work Truck 4x4 Regular Cab 8 ft. box 141.6 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type Ordered Term 60 State AZ Customer# 575892

$ 36,875.00 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * Sales Tax 0.0000% State AZ

$ 15.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 * Registration Fee

$ 350.00 * Other: (See Page 2)

$ 2,000.00 * Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 184.00 * Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 717.60 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $7,800.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name

Exterior Color (0 P) Summit White / Black Front Grille

Interior Color (0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 34,875.00 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 470.81 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 101.22 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 572.03 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 52.63 Transaction Privilege Tax 9.2000%  State AZ

$ 624.66 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 6,626.40 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 8,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to 
collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered vehicle. Lessee certifies that it intends that more than 50% of the use of the vehicle is to be in a trade or 
business of the Lessee.

LESSEE Town of Florence
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized Price of Vehicle May be Adjusted to Reflect Final Manufacturer's Invoice. Lessee Hereby Assigns to Lessor anyManufacturer Rebates And/Or Manufacturer Incentives Intended for the Lessee, Which Rebates 

And/Or Incentives Have Been UsedBy Lessor to Reduce the Capitalized Price of the Vehicle.
2 Monthly Lease Charge Will Be Adjusted to Reflect the Interest Rate on the Delivery Date (Subject to a Floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725885

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:46:47 PM Page 1 of 6



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

utility bed - sun country C $ 8,000.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 8,000.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 8,000.00

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Pricing Plan Delivery Charge B $ 150.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee B $ 200.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 350.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 0.00

Other Charges Total $ 350.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725885

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:46:47 PM Page 2 of 6



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2021 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD Work Truck 4x4 Regular Cab 8 ft. box 141.6 in. WB - US

Series ID: CK20903

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $35,475 $37,500.00

Total Options $-455.00 $-500.00

Destination Charge $1,595.00 $1,595.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: GAZ / GRIL-(0 P) Summit White / Black Front Grille

Interior: H2G-(0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

1WT Preferred Equipment Group 1WT NC NC

9J4 Rear Bumper Delete Included Included

9L3 Delete Spare Tire & Wheel Included Included

AE7 Front 40/20/40 Split-Bench Seat w/Storage Included Included

AED Power Front Windows w/Passenger Express Down Included Included

AKO Deep-Tinted Glass Included Included

AQQ Remote Keyless Entry Included Included

AU3 Power Door Locks Included Included

AXG Power Front Windows w/Driver Express Up/Down Included Included

BG9 Rubberized-Vinyl Floor Covering Included Included

BLUE Bluetooth For Phone Included Included

C49 Electric Rear-Window Defogger Included Included

CAP Capped Fuel Fill Included Included

CTDDEL 12 Fixed Cargo Tie Downs Delete Included Included

CTTDEL Hitch Guidance Delete Included Included

DBG Heated Vertical Trailering Mirrors Included Included

GAZ_01 (0 P) Summit White NC NC

GRIL Black Front Grille Included Included

GT4 3.73 Rear Axle Ratio STD STD

H2G_02 (0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim NC NC

IOR Radio: Chevrolet Infotainment 3 System STD STD

JGB GVWR: 10,250 lbs (4,649 kg) Included Included

JL1 Integrated Trailer Brake Controller $250.25 $275.00

K34 Electronic Cruise Control w/Set & Resume Speed Included Included

KW7 170 Amp Alternator Included Included

L8T Engine: 6.6L Gas V8 w/Direct Injection & VVT STD STD

L8TBAT 720 Cold-Cranking Amps Heavy-Duty Battery Included Included

MCAP Black Mirror Caps Included Included

MYD Transmission: HD 6-Speed Automatic STD STD

N33 Manual Tilt-Wheel Steering Column Included Included

NQF 2-Speed Electronic Shift Transfer Case Included Included

PCV WT Convenience Package NA NA

PYN Wheels: 17" Silver Painted Steel Included Included

$36,615.00 $38,595.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725885

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:46:47 PM Page 3 of 6



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

QHQ Tires: LT245/75R17E AS BW Included Included

SFW SEO: Back-Up Alarm Calibration Included Included

STDTM Vinyl Seat Trim Included Included

STPDEL Black BedStep Delete Included Included

U95 2-Speaker Audio System Feature Included Included

UDC 3.5" Diagonal Monochromatic Display DIC Included Included

UVCDEL Rear Vision Camera Delete Included Included

VH6 Black Front Bumper Included Included

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

YF5 California State Emissions Requirements NC NC

Z82DEL Trailering Package Delete Included Included

Z85 Suspension Package STD STD

ZHQ Spare LT245/75R17E AS BW Tire $345.80 $380.00

ZW9 Pickup Bed Delete $-1,051.05 $-1,155.00

ZY1 Solid Paint STD STD

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725885

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:46:47 PM Page 4 of 6



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  2

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Convex Driver Mirror:  convex driver and passenger mirror

      Mirror Type:  manual extendable trailer mirrors

      Door Handles:  black

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  black front and rear bumpers with black rub strip

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  trailering with brake controller

      Fender Flares:  black fender flares

      Grille:  black grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  manual air conditioning

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Front Cupholder:  front cupholder

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      IP Storage:  covered bin instrument-panel storage

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  AM/FM/Satellite-prep with seek-scan

      Speakers:  2 speakers

      1st Row LCD:  1 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite halogen headlamps

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog display

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  systems monitor

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:46:47 PM Page 5 of 6



      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Low Oil Level Warning:  low-oil-level warning

      Low Coolant Warning:  low-coolant warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

      Brake Pad Wear:  brake pad wear

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  DuraLife four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Ignition Disable:  immobilizer

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  StabiliTrak w/Proactive Roll Avoidance electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 3

      Front Bucket Seats:  front split-bench 40-20-40 seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  4-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  manual reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  manual driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Leather Upholstery:  vinyl front seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

Standard Engine:

      Engine  401-hp, 6.6-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  6-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/21/2020 12:46:47 PM Page 6 of 6



Prepared For: Town of Florence Date 08/21/2020

Salas, Christopher AE/AM 6JB/kw

Unit #

Year 2021 Make Chevrolet Model Silverado 2500HD

Series Work Truck 4x2 Double Cab 8 ft. box 162.5 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type Ordered Term 60 State AZ Customer# 575892

$ 36,185.80 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * Sales Tax 0.0000% State AZ

$ 15.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 * Registration Fee

$ 350.00 * Other: (See Page 2)

$ 2,000.00 * Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 184.00 * Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 763.60 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $8,300.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name

Exterior Color (0 P) Summit White / Black Front Grille

Interior Color (0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 34,185.80 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 461.51 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 99.27 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 560.78 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 51.59 Transaction Privilege Tax 9.2000%  State AZ

$ 612.37 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 6,495.20 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 8,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to 
collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered vehicle. Lessee certifies that it intends that more than 50% of the use of the vehicle is to be in a trade or 
business of the Lessee.

LESSEE Town of Florence
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized Price of Vehicle May be Adjusted to Reflect Final Manufacturer's Invoice. Lessee Hereby Assigns to Lessor anyManufacturer Rebates And/Or Manufacturer Incentives Intended for the Lessee, Which Rebates 

And/Or Incentives Have Been UsedBy Lessor to Reduce the Capitalized Price of the Vehicle.
2 Monthly Lease Charge Will Be Adjusted to Reflect the Interest Rate on the Delivery Date (Subject to a Floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725895

Printed On 08/21/2020 11:20:26 AM Page 1 of 6



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

utility bed - sun country C $ 8,000.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 8,000.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 8,000.00

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Pricing Plan Delivery Charge B $ 150.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee B $ 200.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 350.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 0.00

Other Charges Total $ 350.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725895

Printed On 08/21/2020 11:20:26 AM Page 2 of 6



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2021 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD Work Truck 4x2 Double Cab 8 ft. box 162.5 in. WB - US

Series ID: CC20953

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $35,285.8 $37,300.00

Total Options $-455.00 $-500.00

Destination Charge $1,595.00 $1,595.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: GAZ / GRIL-(0 P) Summit White / Black Front Grille

Interior: H2G-(0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

1WT Preferred Equipment Group 1WT NC NC

9J4 Rear Bumper Delete Included Included

9L3 Delete Spare Tire & Wheel Included Included

A68 Rear 60/40 Folding Bench Seat (Folds Up) Included Included

AE7 Front 40/20/40 Split-Bench Seat w/Storage Included Included

AEQ Power Rear Windows w/Express Down Included Included

AKP Solar Absorbing Tinted Glass Included Included

AQQ Remote Keyless Entry Included Included

BG9 Rubberized-Vinyl Floor Covering Included Included

BLUE Bluetooth For Phone Included Included

CAP Capped Fuel Fill Included Included

CTDDEL 12 Fixed Cargo Tie Downs Delete Included Included

CTTDEL Hitch Guidance Delete Included Included

DBG Heated Vertical Trailering Mirrors Included Included

GAZ_01 (0 P) Summit White NC NC

GRIL Black Front Grille Included Included

GT4 3.73 Rear Axle Ratio STD STD

H2G_02 (0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim NC NC

IOR Radio: Chevrolet Infotainment 3 System STD STD

JFG GVWR: 10,200 lbs (4,627 kgs) Included Included

JL1_ Integrated Trailer Brake Controller (Fleet) $250.25 $275.00

K34 Electronic Cruise Control w/Set & Resume Speed Included Included

KW7 170 Amp Alternator Included Included

L8T Engine: 6.6L Gas V8 w/Direct Injection & VVT STD STD

L8TBAT 720 Cold-Cranking Amps Heavy-Duty Battery Included Included

MCAP Black Mirror Caps Included Included

MYD Transmission: HD 6-Speed Automatic STD STD

N33 Manual Tilt-Wheel Steering Column Included Included

PYN Wheels: 17" Silver Painted Steel Included Included

QHQ Tires: LT245/75R17E AS BW Included Included

SFW SEO: Back-Up Alarm Calibration Included Included

STDTM Vinyl Seat Trim Included Included

STPDEL Black BedStep Delete Included Included

$36,425.80 $38,395.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725895

Printed On 08/21/2020 11:20:26 AM Page 3 of 6



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

UDC 3.5" Diagonal Monochromatic Display DIC Included Included

UQF 6-Speaker Audio System Included Included

UVCDEL Rear Vision Camera Delete Included Included

VH6 Black Front Bumper Included Included

WARANT Fleet Customer Powertrain Limited Warranty NC NC

YF5 California State Emissions Requirements NC NC

Z82DEL Trailering Package Delete Included Included

Z85 Suspension Package STD STD

ZHQ Spare LT245/75R17E AS BW Tire $345.80 $380.00

ZLQ WT Fleet Convenience Package NA NA

ZW9 Pickup Bed Delete $-1,051.05 $-1,155.00

ZY1 Solid Paint STD STD

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4725895

Printed On 08/21/2020 11:20:26 AM Page 4 of 6



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Convex Driver Mirror:  convex driver and passenger mirror

      Mirror Type:  manual extendable trailer mirrors

      Door Handles:  black

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  black front and rear bumpers with black rub strip

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  trailering with brake controller

      Fender Flares:  black fender flares

      Grille:  black grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  manual air conditioning

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with front and rear 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Front Cupholder:  front cupholder

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      IP Storage:  covered bin instrument-panel storage

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  AM/FM/Satellite-prep with seek-scan

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      1st Row LCD:  1 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite halogen headlamps

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Tinted Windows:  light-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog display

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

Printed On 08/21/2020 11:20:26 AM Page 5 of 6



      Systems Monitor:  systems monitor

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Low Oil Level Warning:  low-oil-level warning

      Low Coolant Warning:  low-coolant warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

      Brake Pad Wear:  brake pad wear

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  DuraLife four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  immobilizer

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  StabiliTrak w/Proactive Roll Avoidance electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  2 rear head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 6

      Front Bucket Seats:  front split-bench 40-20-40 seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  4-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  manual reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  manual driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Leather Upholstery:  vinyl front and rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

Standard Engine:

      Engine  401-hp, 6.6-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  6-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/21/2020 11:20:26 AM Page 6 of 6



Prepared For: Town of Florence Date 08/31/2020

Salas, Christopher AE/AM 6JB/kw

Unit #

Year 2021 Make Chevrolet Model Tahoe

Series Police Vehicle 4x2

Vehicle Order Type Ordered Term 48 State AZ Customer# 575892

$ 55,079.52 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * Sales Tax 0.0000% State AZ

$ 15.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 * Registration Fee

$ 200.00 Other: (See Page 2)

$ 5,000.00 * Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 460.00 * Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 611.80 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $6,650.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name

Exterior Color (0 P) Black

Interior Color (0 I) Jet Black w/Cloth Seat Trim

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 50,279.52 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 1,045.81 Depreciation Reserve @ 2.0800%

$ 133.81 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

, Including Management 
Fee of

$ 55.28

$ 1,179.62 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 108.53 Transaction Privilege Tax 9.2000%  State AZ

$ 1,288.15 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 80.64 Reduced Book Value at 48 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 15,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to 
collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered vehicle. Lessee certifies that it intends that more than 50% of the use of the vehicle is to be in a trade or 
business of the Lessee.

LESSEE Town of Florence
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized Price of Vehicle May be Adjusted to Reflect Final Manufacturer's Invoice. Lessee Hereby Assigns to Lessor anyManufacturer Rebates And/Or Manufacturer Incentives Intended for the Lessee, Which Rebates 

And/Or Incentives Have Been UsedBy Lessor to Reduce the Capitalized Price of the Vehicle.
2 Monthly Lease Charge Will Be Adjusted to Reflect the Interest Rate on the Delivery Date (Subject to a Floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4726269

Printed On 08/31/2020 02:36:05 PM Page 1 of 7



separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4726269

Printed On 08/31/2020 02:36:05 PM Page 2 of 7



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

MHQ C $ 17,591.87

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 17,591.87

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 17,591.87

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Pricing Plan Delivery Charge B $ 150.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee C $ 200.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 150.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 200.00

Other Charges Total $ 350.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4726269

Printed On 08/31/2020 02:36:05 PM Page 3 of 7



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2021 Chevrolet Tahoe Police Vehicle 4x2 - US

Series ID: CC10706

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $45,408 $48,000.00

Total Options $-2,625.35 $-2,885.00

Destination Charge $1,295.00 $1,295.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: GBA-(0 P) Black

Interior: H1T-(0 I) Jet Black w/Cloth Seat Trim

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

1FL Preferred Equipment Group 1FL $-3,913.00 $-4,300.00

5J3 Surveillance Mode Calibration Interior Lighting Included Included

7X2 SEO: Left & Right-Hand Spotlamps $1,219.40 $1,340.00

9C1 Identifier for Police Package Vehicle NC NC

AMF Remote Keyless Entry Package $68.25 $75.00

ATD 3rd Row Passenger Seat Delete Included Included

AZ3 Front 40/20/40 Split-Bench Seat STD STD

C5Z GVWR: 7,200 lbs (3,266 kgs) STD STD

GBA_01 (0 P) Black NC NC

GU5 3.23 Rear Axle Ratio STD STD

H1T_02 (0 I) Jet Black w/Cloth Seat Trim NC NC

IOR Radio: Chevrolet Infotainment 3 System STD STD

K47 High-Capacity Air Cleaner Included Included

K6K 760 Cold-Cranking Amps Auxiliary Battery Included Included

KX4 250 Amps Alternator Included Included

L84 Engine: 5.3L EcoTec3 V8 STD STD

MQC Transmission: Electronic 10-Speed Automatic w/OD STD STD

PXT Wheels: 20" x 9" Steel Included Included

RAV Spare P275/55R20 AS BW Tire Included Included

RC1 Front Skid Plate Included Included

STDTM Cloth Seat Trim STD STD

UQF 6-Speaker Audio System Feature Included Included

UT7_ SEO: Ground Wires Included Included

V53 Luggage Rack Side Rails Delete Included Included

VPV Ship-Thru: Kerr Industries Included Included

XCS Tires: P275/55R20SL AS BW Included Included

YF5 California State Emissions Requirements NC NC

Z56 Full Independent Suspension Package Included Included

ZY1 Solid Paint STD STD

$44,077.65 $46,410.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 4726269

Printed On 08/31/2020 02:36:05 PM Page 4 of 7



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  liftgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Spoiler:  rear lip spoiler

      Running Boards:  running boards

      Skid Plates:  skid plates

      Door Handles:  body-coloured

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  body-coloured front and rear bumpers

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch

      Grille:  black w/chrome surround grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  automatic dual-zone front air conditioning

      Rear Air Conditioning:  rear air conditioning with separate controls

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with front and rear 1-touch down

      1/4 Vent Rear Windows:  power rearmost windows

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  Keyless Open and Start proximity key

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting, manual telescoping

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Driver and Passenger Vanity Mirror:  illuminated auxiliary driver and passenger-side visor mirrors

      Emergency SOS:  OnStar and Chevrolet connected services capable emergency communication system

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console

      Glove Box:  glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Front Underseat Storage Tray:  locking front underseat storage tray

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  3 12V DC power outlets

      AC Power Outlet:  1 AC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  AM/FM stereo with seek-scan

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Steering Wheel Radio Controls:  steering-wheel mounted audio controls

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      Internet Access:  4G LTE Wi-Fi Hotspot capable internet access

      TV Tuner:  OnStar Turn-by-Turn Navigation turn-by-turn navigation directions

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  window grid antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite LED low/high beam headlamps

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent Rainsense rain detecting wipers wipers

      Front Windshield Visor Strip:  front windshield visor strip

      Rear Window wiper:  fixed interval rear window wiper

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Rear Window:  flip-up rear windshield

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

Printed On 08/31/2020 02:36:05 PM Page 5 of 7



      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog display

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  rear parking sensors

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  systems monitor

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Low Oil Level Warning:  low-oil-level warning

      Low Coolant Warning:  low-coolant warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  DuraLife four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st, 2nd and 3rd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  tailgate/rear door lock included with power door locks

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  PASS-Key III immobilizer

      Security System:  security system

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Tracker System:  tracker system

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  2 rear head restraints

      Break Resistant Glass:  break resistant glass

Printed On 08/31/2020 02:36:05 PM Page 6 of 7



Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 6

      Front Bucket Seats:  front split-bench 40-20-40 seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  8-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  power reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Lumbar:  power 2-way driver and passenger lumbar support

      Driver Height Adjustment:  power height-adjustable driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  power driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Driver Cushion Tilt:  power driver and passenger cushion tilt

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Rear Seat Type:  rear manual reclining 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat tumble forward

      Rear Seat Armrest:  rear seat centre armrest

      Leather Upholstery:  cloth front and rear seat upholstery

      Door Trim Insert:  vinyl door panel trim

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

      Interior Accents:  chrome/metal-look interior accents

      Cargo Space Trim:  carpet cargo space

      Trunk Lid:  plastic trunk lid/rear cargo door

      Cargo Tie Downs:  cargo tie-downs

      Cargo Light:  cargo light

Standard Engine:

      Engine  355-hp, 5.3-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  10-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/31/2020 02:36:05 PM Page 7 of 7



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor and Town Council  
From:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 
Copy:  Department Heads 
Date:  September 8, 2020 
Re:  Town Manager’s Report  
 
COVID-19 Update: To be provided at the meeting. 
 
 
Community Vitality:  Amid the COVID-19 epidemic and social distancing requirements 
a lot has changed worldwide.  The Town of Florence has done its best to respond in a 
responsible but thoughtful way.  Although programs and services have been impacted 
1 
 

the Town has added additional opportunities to address the needs of our citizens.     
 
Recent event update: 
 
Library Division: 

• Library patrons may request materials to be placed on hold.  Patrons are called 
by Library staff once the requested materials are available.  This service is 
available Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to noon and 1:00 p.m. to 4:00 
p.m. Materials are delivered curbside in front of the Library and Community 
Center.  Requests are limited to 10 items and library cards must be in good 
standing before making the request. Requests for materials may also be made 
online through the library catalog via their website. Or, with the new Pinal County 
Library District (PCLD) app on your smart phone.  

 
• Printer On service: This allows patrons to print directly to the Library’s printer 

system by utilizing the “Printer On” app or website directly from home (website 
address is https://bit.ly/38zBqxE ).  Documents are available during curbside 
Library hours for pickup.  The cost is 10 cents per page. 

 
• Ask-a-Librarian service:  Staff provides brief answers or suggested resources to 

a variety of questions. The purpose of the service is to guide the user to 
appropriate information sources or services that can answer their research 
questions. This service is available during curbside hours, by calling 520-868-
8311, or by emailing library@florenceaz.gov 
 

• Books on Wheels – Users of the Congregate Meal program or Homebound Meal 
services through the Senior Center can now receive Library materials through 
this unique partnership at no additional cost to the Town.  
 

• Tutor On-Demand – The Library is seeking community members who would be 
interested in serving our local youth as tutors in their chosen field (i.e. math, 
science….) This program is geared to assist families with the online learning 

https://bit.ly/38zBqxE
https://bit.ly/38zBqxE
mailto:library@florenceaz.gov
mailto:library@florenceaz.gov


2 
 

platform administered by FUSD. We tentatively planning on releasing this 
program to the public on Sept. 1.  
 

• Copy Services: Patrons may request copies made during curbside hours.  Prices 
are 10 cents for single-sided, black and white copy and $1 for single-sided Color 
copy.  
 
 

 
Senior Center: 

• Meals - Pick-up meals are available to Senior Center Patrons from 11:30 a.m. 
until noon, Monday through Friday for those who call the center prior to Tuesday 
of the previous week.   
 

• Home-bound Meals - Seniors may qualify for lunch meals delivered by calling the 
senior center for details.  
 

• Shopping for Seniors - Senior Center staff shops for groceries at Coolidge 
Walmart, Safeway Anthem, Dollar General Store.  Staff also picks up 
prescriptions at Walmart, Sun Life and Safeway Pharmacies.  Those seniors who 
wish to be placed on this list just need to call the center.   
 

• Telephone Reassurance Program - Seniors are contacted daily with a well-check 
phone call.   

 
• Resources Information - Seniors may call the center and receive assistance with 

a variety of questions and issues.  Staff also offers recommendations to other 
available resources. 
 

• Staying Connected - Staff offers a variety of challenging daily activities (on 
paper) for seniors.  Challenges are completed, returned to senior center staff for 
review.  Small prizes are awarded for winner of completions. 
 

• Give-A-Lift Program - While medical rides are limited at this time (absence of 
volunteers in the center), all ride requests are evaluated and offered on a case-
by-case basis.  
 

• Books on Wheels – In collaboration with the Library senior can have media 
materials delivered to them.  
 

• Zoom Phone-In Bingo – Nothing like bingo and the Senior staff is getting 
creative.  
 

• Zumba in the Park - Same as the Rec. division’s Yoga in the Park, but with 
seniors. The idea of getting the older population out and active.   

 
 
 
 



3 
 

Recreation Division: 
 

• Take and Make Kits - Contain various arts and crafts supplies for hours of 
enjoyment and artistic creativity.  Different kits are available for curbside pickup 
every Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  Participants register through the Town 
web site.  Fees vary according to that week’s theme.        
 

• Rec on the Go - An assortment of sports equipment designed to keep citizens 
active during COVID-19.   People call to request which item or items they wish to 
borrow.  Items available include tennis rackets, horseshoes, pickle ball paddle, 
basketballs, footballs, soccer balls and more.  Equipment is available in two-hour 
increments, Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  

 
• Durable Medical Equip. – Continues to be a success with many donations and 

equipment checkouts.  
 

• Over the Line – Tournament at Heritage Park with COVID-19 safety practices in 
place. Teams of three play each other at designated times to avoid gatherings. 
Winners get tee-shirts COVID RECkers. 
 

• Yoga in the Park – To get community members out and active Padilla Park will 
host Yoga in the Park. Staff will distance participants at least 6 ft. a part and 
instructors will ensure that all are wearing masks to and from class as well as 
temperature checks and health screenings. All classes reached capacity.  
 

• Sand Volleyball – Teams of two will compete at Heritage Park. Again, focused on 
getting the community out and active with COVID-19 safety practices in place.  
 

• Historic Tour – The Rec. team re-released the Town’s historic video tour for 
community members to walk and see the sites.   
 

• Alphabet Hide-and-Go Seek – Letter and number tags are hidden around the 
community that provide an experience for participants to decode the hidden 
message. Geared toward the younger population and families. 
 

• Downtown Kiosk is being updated and it will showcase all of the projects 
completed by the Town within the Downtown area, Movies filmed in Florence, 
thank you to flower box participants and the Shop Local campaign  
 

• Take-a Hike Challenge - Participants must complete ten hiking trails in the area. 
All who participate get a tee-shirt.   
 

• Rec. Recess – Staff is providing Florence K-8 a list of activities that teachers can 
utilize during virtual school breaks.  

 
Economic Prosperity:  As you know, the Town has been focusing on infill 
development and redevelopment for the last few years by utilizing our available tools.  
One project that has been a continued focus is the longstanding Sunrise Estates Phase 
II Development in Old Town Florence.  I am happy to report that the Town has received 



4 
 

and amended Final Plat and engineering submittal to complete the project.  The 
submittal reduced the number of remaining lots from 89 to 83, primarily due to drainage 
retention requirements.  This is only the 1st submittal and must go through review to 
obtain Engineering Approval prior to taking to Council for the Amended Plat Approval.  
When construction commences, this will be the third substantial infill project in the last 
two years. 
 
Leadership and Governance:  It was requested that this report provide a look forward 
to future Town Council agenda items.  The following is a list of future items for potential 
Town Council action. This list is not intended to be comprehensive but represents 
important forthcoming items: 
 

• Regional Transportation Plan Update 
• ESCO Project, Investment Grade Audit 
• Spirit Loop Ach Culvert 4.1 acceptance 
• Felix Road acceptance 
• Redevelopment Plan Update 
• Town Fee Schedule Update 
• General Plan Working Paper Number 1 
• Town Purchasing Code Update 
• T-Mobile License Agreement 
• Zayo License Agreement 

 
Partnerships and Relationships:      
 
On August 25, 2020, Chief Bruce Walls was an invited speaker at the Bridge Forum 
“NEXT GENERATION” 2020 Series, in Tempe.  His session was entitled “TIME FOR 
CHANGE”.  

 
The event was sponsored by HeroZona, a non-profit organization that empowers our 
Heroes in the community through entrepreneurship, employment, and education. They 
work with veterans, first responders and those that bring social good to our future 
generations and under-served communities. 
 
The Forum’s goal is to have productive and synergistic discussions that result in pro-
active suggestions, ideas and recommendations to enhance achieving quality results 
regarding community issues and racial injustice in today’s climate from all angles.  

 
Transportation and Infrastructure:  The Public Works Department has several projects 
ongoing but three are of particular interest.  
 

1. CIP GG-25 - Silver King Balcony Repairs 
• Construction complete, minus the light fixtures. 

 
2. State Route 79B/287 Roundabout Project 

• Stage III Design (60% Plans) 
• Property appraisals underway 
 

3. State Route 79/Gila River Bridge 



5 
 

• Under design 
• Construction funding moved to 2023 
 

4. SMART Water Meter Installation 
• 903 meters installed 
• LoRaWAN Network Working Well 
• Data Transfer to Water Smart 

 
 

Upcoming Events/Meetings/Forums:   
 
Date Time Event Host Venue  
Sept. 1 Evening (Nightly 

Tues. – Thur.) 
Sand Volleyball Rec. Division Heritage Park 

Sept. 1 Evenings (Nightly 
Tues – Thur.)  

Over the Line Rec. Division  Heritage Park  

Sept. 1 Evenings (Mon. & 
Wed.)  

Yoga in The Park  Rec. Division Padilla Park  

Aug. 1 Daily  Books on Wheels Library Division Library  
 
 
Economic Outlook:   
Statewide: 
 
The impacts from the COVID-19 Pandemic are still being assessed, but the latest 
numbers were remarkably better than anticipated. Overall, July Sales Tax collections 
(which represent June sales activity) grew by 13.0% above July 2019, the highest year-
over-year growth since the beginning of the pandemic. The state’s Fiscal Year 2020 
ended on June 30th. After reviewing complete FY 2020 revenue data, the State noted 
that revenue gains appeared sufficient to end FY 2020 with a positive $377 million 
balance.   
 
As we now kick off a new fiscal year, we are already seeing gains statewide compared 
to last year (pre-Pandemic, when the market was doing well). Despite the pandemic, 
July 2020 Sales and Use Tax revenues came in 13.0% higher than last July. 
Contracting continues to see dramatic increases, as it was up 25.1% over last year.  
The only segment that seems to be struggling is Restaurant & Bars, which was 11.1% 
less than last July. 

  
Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) collections of $129.3 million in July were (1.8)% 
below the amount collected in July 2019 but $23.5 million above forecast. 
  
In June, Arizona’s 12-month total of single-family building permits was 34,806, or 2.0% 
more than last month, but 10.7% more than a year ago.  For the same period in the 



6 
 

United States, the growth rate stood at only 3.2%. For Florence, the 12-month period 
ending on May 31st saw an increase of 78.9% over the same period last year.  In June, 
Florence issued 35 SFR permits, and is continuing at a pace ahead of the Arizona 
economy. While we budgeted for a decline in building in FY21, early signs show that the 
building is outpacing these conservative projections. 
  
Arizona’s correctional industry decreased in inmate population in June, with the closure 
and delay of new court proceedings. The state saw a (-2.0)% decrease this month, and 
a (-7.0)% decrease since the end of last June. This lower inmate population will affect 
Florence’s state shared revenues in the future.  As of the date of the Governor’s 
announcement for the closure of the ASPC-Florence complex, there were 3,589 
inmates in the complex.  As of 8/25/2020, there are only 2,780 (-22.54%). Staff are 
monitoring these numbers daily and have noted the continued downward trend. 
 
 
 
Current Advertisements: 
 
The following Requests for Proposals/Qualification are currently Open: 

1. None Currently 
 
The following Requests for Proposals/Qualifications are Under Review: 

1. Silver King Marketplace Public/Private Partnership/Lease (Suite 202) 
 

 
 



 

   TOWN OF FLORENCE  
Community Development 

224 W. 20th Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 
 

SUBMITTED DATE:  August 31, 2020 
 
MEETING DATE:   September 8, 2020 
 

1 
 

STAFF PRESENTER:   Barbara Rice, Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Community Development Report  

July 2020 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Building Safety Division 

A. Permits for July 2020 
a. New Single Family  49  
b. Residential remodels/add 11 
c. Manufactured Homes     3            
d. Commercial/Office/TI’s    1                 
e. Misc.    50       

Total                114  
B. Total Single-Family Residential valuation for July: $13,744,703.40 
C. Total Permit valuation for July: $15,032,301 
D. Current Builders:  

a. Pulte and DR Horton in Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
b. Wade Jurney Homes in Villa Adelaida  
c. Private custom 

 
Code Compliance Division 

A. Compliance Notices Issued for July 2020 
a. Verbal   0   
b. Written   31    

B. Mitigated/Compliance     20     
C. On-going   16  
D. Referred to Town Attorney   6    

 



2 
 

Types of Notices:  weeds, abandoned vehicles, illegally parked vehicles, motor 
homes and trailers, illegal campsites, general property maintenance 
 

RAD Service Orders: 
Town of Florence had 36 Bulk trash pickups 
Florence Gardens has 17 Bulk trash pickups 
Anthem had 79 bulk trash pickups 
 
Cemetery: 
Inquiries: 6 
Burials:    1 
Lots Sold: 3 
 
Planning and Zoning Division 
 

A. Planning and Zoning Commission 
a. There have been no applicant-driven requests requiring a meeting in July.   

 
B. Historic Preservation Advisory Commission 

a. HDAC has not met since COVID-19 precautions have been put in place.  There 
have been no applicant-driven requests received.  Staff will be working on 
updates to the Historic Property Inventory with the State Historic Preservation 
Office and file the final report on the Certified Local Government grant in 
August. 

 
C. Special Projects 

a. Redevelopment Plan Update: 
Our consultant is almost complete with the draft Land Use Plan and written 
document.  Staff has reviewed the preliminary interactive web-based 
interactive document that will ultimately be placed on the Town’s website.  We 
are in a position to initiate the final public meetings and hearings in the near 
future once Covid-19 precautions are relaxed … or we may look into conducting 
some form of on-line interactive public process.   

 
b. General Plan Update: 

The Town’s consultant, Michael Baker International, is proceeding with the 
preliminary work necessary to initiate presentations and community meetings 
that will be held once we are back to a “normal” existence. In the meantime, 
staff working with the consultant to consider an on-line process to solicit input 



3 
 

from the public regarding the review of General Plan information and general 
questionnaire. 
 

D. Major General Plan Amendment: 
We have received an application for a Major General Plan Amendment 
application for properties in the vicinity of Judd and Felix Roads.  Staff has 
prepared the 60-Day Review documents as prescribed by Arizona Statutes and 
distribute them for external agency comments. Minimal comments have been 
received.  (The Town Council was introduced to the application at their June 
15, 2020 meeting.)  Staff is also working with the applicant in anticipation of 
applications for annexation. The first Public Hearing scheduled for the Planning 
and Zoning Commission is scheduled for August 20, 2020. 

 
 

 



Memorandum 

To:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 

From:  Hezekiah Allen, Community Services Director 

Date:  August 14, 2020 

Re:  August 2020 C.S. Department Report (July) 

Director’s Report 
 

Page 1 
Community Services 

July 2020 Monthly Report 

Project Updates 
• Poston Butte Preserve – PA/HPTP & BLM Lease have all been submitted to 

legal for review. Agreements are scheduled to be heard by Council in Sept. J2 is 
set to present design to Council on Sept. 8. Staff is working with J2 to ensure all 
deliverables are received per the agreement, and that Development Services, 
Fire, and PW are approving the 60s plan-set.   

Heritage Park 
• Wood Fiber procurement process is complete, and work is being scheduled with 

the contractor. 
• CARUSO TURLEY SCOTT STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS did an onsite visit to review the 

Ramadas and their rust damage. Staff should have a design this week.  
• Parks M. staff have repainted all of the trashcans and handrails at HP. Next 

Parks M. staff is working on fixing the pilons in the parking lot. 
Charles Whitlow Rodeo Grounds 

• Staff was able to touch base with the Posse, and collectively working on a clean-
up day in coordination with PW. Thank you to the Town Manager for his 
assistance.  

Special Events 
• Staff had a Zoom meeting with the Chamber to discuss the Arts & Culture 

Festival, and after discussion the Chamber is looking at online hosting 
capabilities for the festival to showcase vendors for this year. 

• Ride to Country Thunder has been canceled this year due to Country Thunder’s 
announcement. 

Community Services Board 
• Staff reached out to all members, and the majority are willing to try Zoom.  

Program Updates 
• The Tutor on Demand program is still accepting volunteers.  
• Yoga in the Park has a waiting list for participants. 

Downtown 
• Staff designed and hung “Buy Local” banners around town. 
• Staff is designing information for the kiosk: Downtown History, Downtown Capital 

Projects List Completed, Popular Movies Filmed in Florence list, and local bus. 
Directory 



Page 2 
Community Services 

July 2020 Monthly Report 

Parks and Recreation Divisions Report 
 

Recreation/Special Events Programs 
Recreation Programs  Participants Revenue Notes 
Take and Make Crafts 14 $227  

                                                                 
Senior Division Report  

 
Dorothy Nolan Senior Center 

Activity Monthly Total 
Sunlife Pharmacy performed by Staff  
Safeway Anthem Shopping – performed by Staff 1 
Striving to Keep Seniors Connected 79 
Exercise with Rhoda – Contactless  46 
Healthy Eating by Lou – Contactless 30 
Congregate Meal Delivery due to COVID-19  401 
Home Delivered meals –     502 
Delivered Shelf Stable Meals to Seniors 17 
Telephone Reassurance Calls (daily calls to vulnerable Seniors) 161 
Friday’s Hot Meal provided by Staff 64 

 
Due to COVID 19 all activities are still suspended.   
We did deliver 401 meals to our local senior citizen, and 502, Home delivered meals to            
homebound seniors. Total meals delivered for July 903. 
 
 We traveled 326 miles, because of 447 trips 
  
The Give-A-Lift program provided 3 clients with Priority medical transportation resulting 
in 32 trips, 18.75 hours and 210 additional transportation miles. 2 staff assisted in 
providing these medical transportation rides.  
 
  Staff currently shops for groceries and medication for as needed.  
  
   We continue striving to keep seniors connected with daily puzzles, seek, and find 
pictures, cards etc.  They enjoy doing the quizzes/ games we send out and enjoy the 
participation prize they receive. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 
Community Services 

July 2020 Monthly Report 

 
 
 

Library Division Report  
July Statistics  
 3,312 total items were circulated in July. 
 14 library cards were issued. 
 0 patrons signed up for use of the computer lab computers. 
 254 wireless sessions were held. 
 0 person(s) attended 0 program(s) presented by the library. 
 
New Services Statistics 
 744 total items were placed on hold in July. 
 265 patrons picked up items utilizing Curbside Pick Up 
 6 patrons printed and collected print jobs utilizing Printer On services 
 2 patrons requested copy services utilizing the library copy machine 
 402 approximate incoming calls were received by library staff in July 
 
 
July Activities  
*Programming cancelled; library remained closed due to COVID-19.  
 
7/15/2020  Library Manager Gloria Moreno accessed, “Stay Connected with Library 
Development Office Hour: July Check-in” professional development webinar. 
 
7/31/2020  The Summer Reading program came to an end. 67 people participated. 
Youth under 18 read 21,000 minutes and adult participants read 92 books.  
 
 
Spotlight 
 
The library and senior center collaborated to offer a new service, “Books on Wheels,” to 
serve the homebound community members of Florence currently signed up for the 
senior center meal delivery program.  
 



 

  

 

 
 

COURT 

FINANCIAL 

REPORT 
July 2020 

IRENE ENRIQUEZ – Court Administrator 



 

COUNTY REVENUE       50.13       39.41 

VARIOUS CITING AGENCIES                          0.34         0.00 

STATE REVENUE                         14,027.88                         9,671.82 

TOWN REVENUE                  16,160.91                             13,858.10 

RESTITUTION AND BONDS                      169.75                                  744.00 

TOTAL MONTHLY REVENUE:                       $30,409.01         $24,313.33 

20% Increase from 2019 

 
DISTRIBUTION TYPE 

JULY 2020 
 (CURRENT) 

JULY 2019 
(LAST YEAR) 

 
FINE, FEES, & TRAFFIC 

 
13,162.71 

 
11,571.05 

 
STATE SURCHARGES 

 
8,429.58 

 
6,160.94 

 
STATE JCEF 

 
315.43 

 
450.78 

 
LOCAL JCEF 

 
169.85 

 
242.71 

 
STATE FINES 

 
2,530.47 

 
1,971.09 

 
FLORENCE POLICE FUND 

 
806.51 

 
449.06 

 
RESTITUTION 

 
169.75 

 
300.00 

 
BONDS 

 
0.00 

 
444.00 

 
PUBLIC DEFENDER FEE 

 
137.07 

 
372.64 

 
JAIL HOUSING FEES 

 
1,882.77 

 
1,205.64 

 
JUSTICE COURT FEES 

 
50.13 

 
39.41 

 
GENERAL FUND 

 
2.00 

 
17.00 

 
FARE SPECIAL COLLECTION FEE 

 
1,653.43 

 
644.28 

 
FARE DELINQUENCY FEE 

 
676.40 

 
160.73 

 
VICTIMS RIGHTS ENFORC. 

 
422.57 

 
284.00 

DPS FUND 0.34 0.00 

 
OVERPAYMENT REFUND 

 
 

 
0.00 



 

Florence Municipal Court Citation/Complaint Totals 

July 2020 

TOTAL COMLAINTS FILED:  33 

Citations:  

Paper      27  

Electronic         6 

Longform Complaints:            0 

 

  BREAKDOWN: 

   CIVIL TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS:  27 

   MUNICIPAL CODE:     0 

   CRIMINAL TRAFFIC:     3 

   CRIMINAL:              2 

   DUI:        0 

   DOMESTIC VIOLENCE:     1   

 

  Comparison to last year: 

   2019:  73 

   2020:  33 

 



 

 

 

 

CITATION/COMPLAINT INTAKE 

  

 

 

      JAN   FEB   MAR   APR  MAY   JUN  JUL  AUG   SEPT   OCT   NOV   DEC 

2019 –        102    102     84     63      63       53   73 

2020 –       137     84        44         13      44       60   33 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

2019 2020



 

 

 

 

 

REVENUE 

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$30,000.00

$35,000.00

$40,000.00

$45,000.00

$50,000.00

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

2019

2020

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Finance Department 

Memo 
To: Honorable Mayor and Town Council 

 Brent Billingsly, Town Manager 

 Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager  
1 

 

From: Becki Jimenez, Finance Director 

 

Date: August 14, 202 

 

Re: Finance Department Report 

Finance Department Update 

Budget 
 
The budget cycle for fiscal year 2020-2021 is now complete.  We will be starting next year’s 
budget process in October this year.    
 
Finance Reports 
 
The financial information presented in our report is for monies received for the new fiscal year.  
I wanted to remind Mayor and Town Council that many funds received and many expenditures 
in July are actually for June.  We have recorded those transactions in our June 30, 2020 books 
and will present a recap of the year end financial information in the near future. 
 
Audit  
 
We are currently well underway in our audit of 2019-2020 for the Town of Florence and the 
Community Facilities Districts.  The field audit started two weeks ago.  It is a very different 
audit than last year.  All documents and transactions are loaded onto a secure web portal and the 
auditors come in and retrieve records.  Normally they are here on site a week and then return 
for the final audit at a later time.  This year that will not occur and all will be done 
electronically.  
 
Staff is busy closing out all the year end entries and preparing schedules for the auditors.   



 Page 2 
 

  
Future Projects 
 
We are working on updating the Fee Schedule.  Process and forms are being developed.  All 
submissions for new fees are in and being complied into a document to be reviewed internally 
then presented to Town Council 
 
We have completed the Travel Policy and it is in committee. 
We have completed our final review of the Purchasing Policy and it is in final formatting. 
We have completed our recommendations on the Uniform Policy, and it is in review. 
We are working on the Fiscal Policy update. 
  



Memorandum

Date:

To: Brent Billingsley, Town Manager
Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager

From: Becki Jimenez, Finance Director

Subject: Departmental Report - July 2020

Major Fund Position

Fund Name

Year to Date 
Revenue     

Actual              FY 
20-21

Revenue Budget  
FY 20-21

% Actual to 
Budget

Year to Date 
Expense  
Actual       

FY 20-21

Expense  
Budget         FY 

20-21

% Actual 
to 

Budget

General $838,859 $21,455,250 3.91% $1,174,492 $17,075,185 6.88%

Capital Improvement $0 $1,617,800 0.00% $77,358 $3,814,615 2.03%

Highway Users Tax $40,388 $3,839,169 1.05% $609,119 $6,647,479 9.16%

Construction Tax - 4% $0 $420,000 0.00% $0 $150,000 0.00%

Town Water $144,400 $4,384,400 3.29% $160,568 $5,362,876 2.99%

Town Sewer $67,504 $4,423,000 1.53% $607,970 $6,575,211 9.25%

Sanitation $79,744 $1,017,589 7.84% $106,703 $1,367,938 7.80%

Total $1,170,894 $37,157,208 3.15% $2,736,210 $40,993,304 6.67%

 

The month of July represents 8%of the fiscal year.  The following chart compares the FY 2020-2021 actual revenue and expenses to the budget 
amounts for the Town's major Funds. Expenditures posted into the current month do not always reflect current month expense.  Expendiutures run 
30 to 45 days in arrears.

 



General Fund Revenue YTD Amount Budget % to Budget
Taxes -$                    3,436,611$          0.0%
licenses and permits 325.00$               52,500$               0.6%
Franchise Fees and Taxes -$                    712,500$             0.0%
Intergovernmental 550,729.00$        8,158,311$          6.8%
Civil Engineering Inspection 337.80$               104,000$             0.3%
Civil Engineering Fees 380.00$               76,025$               0.5%
Community Development 129,015.31$        614,939$             21.0%
General Government 30,629.17$          261,200$             11.7%
Cemetery 1,000.00$            15,000$               6.7%
Police 1,238.90$            29,850$               4.2%
Parks & Recreation 361.00$               112,375$             0.3%
Fines & Forfeitures 15,117.09$          181,600$             8.3%
Investment Earnings 2,931.39$            220,000$             1.3%
Fire 4,335.93$            92,500$               4.7%
Library -$                    5,500$                 0.0%
Miscellaneous 486.38$               136,215$             0.4%
Downtown Redevelopment -$                    2,400$                 0.0%
Government Access Channel -$                    3,000$                 0.0%
Seniors 112.00$               18,400$               0.6%
Transfers In 101,860.00$        7,222,324$          1.4%
Total 838,858.97$        21,455,250$        3.9%

General Fund Expenditures
Administration

Mayor and Council 30,851.47$          278,735$             11.1%
Administration 38,546.89$          789,172$             4.9%
Town Clerk 27,318.99$          349,698$             7.8%
Courts 11,822.68$          241,400$             4.9%
Legal 47,383.83$          803,425$             5.9%
Finance 55,304.68$          742,725$             7.4%
Human Resources 20,781.52$          265,960$             7.8%
Information Technology 82,517.70$          727,085$             11.3%
General Government 71,859.35$          887,100$             8.1%
Emergency Response 2,487.07$            104,600$             2.4%

Public Safety
Police Services 294,444.25$        4,268,545$          6.9%
Fire Services 296,000.09$        3,559,799$          8.3%

Community Services 
Community Services 100,640.29$        2,559,862$          3.9%

Community Development
Community Development 60,439.24$          837,684$             7.2%
Engineering 3,042.17$            88,590$               3.4%
Facilities Maintenance 31,051.30$          559,905$             5.5%
Cemetery 10,900$               0.0%

Interfund Transfers
Transfers Out 0.0%
Total Expenditures 1,174,491.52$     17,075,185$        6.9%

Development Impact Fee Report

Development Impact Fees Revenue Use Cash Balance
Transportation 48,007.00$          -$                    1,598,178.74$     
Police 36,240.56$          -$                    1,247,577.17$     
Fire 46,716.41$          -$                    940,261.25$        
Parks 95,917.40$          -$                    873,466.03$        
Library -$                    -$                    139,267.54$        
Water 5,256.72$            -$                    72,332.67$          
Wastewater 11,758.96$          -$                    231,559.13$        
Total Development Impact Fees 243,897.05$        -$                    5,102,642.53$     



Fire Department 
 

 

M E M O R A N D U M   

  
 

DATE:      August 19, 2020 
 
TO:  Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 
  

FROM: David Strayer, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJ: Summary of July 2020 
 

Florence Fire Department Fire Response Zones  
 

 



 

 
 



 

 



 

 
 

 

 



Response District Boundaries and Fire Station Locations 
 

 



Summary of July 
 

EVENTS: No Events COVID -19 restrictions  

 

Continued to work with the Compliance Engine to track data entry information including 

contractor site visit compliance and fire code compliance. An initial summary of activity 

from them should be available soon.  

 

Much of our focus in training during July was online sessions with the National Fire 

Academy Online wildland training program. Blue Card Emergency Management online 

training continues and is showing an acceptable completion rate. 

 

MEETINGS 

• Council Web Meetings 

• Public Safety meeting Florence PD-FD 

• Management Team Meetings 

• Weekly Fire Staff Meetings 

  

Special Projects- COVID-19 

• Continue to work on the development of brush fire responses, member 

qualifications, data entry and State approvals. 

• Continued to evaluate the revised response model when responding to 

Correctional Facilities. 

• Continue to work with Public Works department to identify roads with residential 

properties found to have fire access restrictions.   

• Multiple web meetings and COVID-19 updated with the PC-Public safety 

committee and PC Emergency Operations Center.    

• Administrative Assistant Monthly Report 

 

We continue to use the Crewsense program to complete the payroll for submittal. This 

process is going very smoothly. With payroll, an “overtime report” is completed which 



tracks how much overtime is used and what the time was used for, this report is 

submitted to payroll as well as Chief Strayer. 

 

Monthly billing for AMR Ambulance Service was completed for the month of June and 

requests were sent to Finance for billing to be sent out. The following is what was 

requested to be billed: 

 

• $1330.00 for the 95 transports that AMR did for our patients. (June Calls) 

 

• $720.23 for the 7 patients that were transported with a Fire Dept. Rider to the 

hospital for continuity of care for the patient. (June Calls) 

 

• $1,423.82 for the monthly lease agreement for AMR’s use of Station #2 facilities. 

(Sept. Bill) 

 

The Fire Department was tasked with calculating an approximate cost for a wild-fire that 

the crews ran on for Chief Strayer and the town’s Attorney. The amount was requested 

for a legal proceeding. 

 

In the past few months, we have run multiple wildland fires. We have developed a 

spreadsheet to help work up those costs when it comes time to send bills to Az State 

Forestry for reimbursement. We are currently awaiting approval of our fee schedule.  

 

Our crews continue to run COVID patients. We are monitoring our supply of PPE and 

working with the EOC and distributers to maintain our normal operating supplies and 

PPE. Firefighter Chris Robison is working diligently with distributers to navigate new 

ordering protocols and forecasting burn rates to prepare future ordering when quantities 

are not available. 

 

We were awarded a LUCAS CPR device and case of Clear Gear spray through an 

Arizona Emergency Medical System (AEMS) COVID 19 grant. The funding meetings 



were attended by Capt. Usher, Jennifer Evans and BC Walter to present these special 

needs for funding. A second round of funding was open due to funds left over which 

were not claimed from the original grant. There was a capped amount, but to make sure 

all departments that applied would have equal access our second-round request was 

submitted for 2 additional cases of Clear Gear Spray. 

 

Assistance to Firefighters (AFG) COVID 19 supplemental grant awards are starting to 

be released. We have not received news yet on the PAPR devices that we put in to 

receive. AFG has also started awarding the original Safety Equipment grants that we 

put in for self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA). 

 

Fleet has sent out the first of our large apparatus to Ascendant under our new 

agreement. David Hills has communicated and coordinated our new model of apparatus 

repair. David and BC Walter spoke about a plan to rotate our trucks for maintenance 

and for Ascendant to see each one to become familiar. The turnaround time is longer 

than we experienced with Superstition, but David and BC Walter are discussing options 

including in-house options for an Emergency Vehicle Technician (EVT). 

 

Sean Mahoney and BC Walter completed the 3 shifts of Emergency Vehicle Operations 

training. 3 classes were held with the help of Zoom to maximize participation and time. 

All full and part-time members have gone through the full training with a few scheduling 

and family conflicts. Sean is working with the certifying agency so we can obtain 

national certification for all personnel. There are two major advantages: Annual EMS CE 

certification hours, and discounts on personal vehicle insurance premiums. The 

completion of this class brings all personnel up to the national standard of Emergency 

Vehicle Operation and brings the department into compliance with NFPA. 

 

 
 



 

 
 

   

 

1 
 

July 2020 
FLORENCE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
 

 
 
Bruce Walls, Chief of Police 
425 N. Pinal Street., 
P.O. Box 988 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Phone: 520-868-7681 
 

 



 

 

2 
 

 
Florence Police Department Monthly Report 
July 2020 

The information contained in this report outlines significant information and activity 
within the Florence Police Department (FPD) during the month. The monthly report is 
prepared for the Town Council’s review and furthermore for the use by FPD to examine 
the current activity within the department and community to identify short-term and 
long-term needs, and to develop plans for improvement to provide the highest level of 
service.  
 

 
 
 

“The men and women of the Florence Police Department stand firm in our pursuit for justice and 
public trust. We will stay true to our mission of providing service and safety to our community with 
honor, respect, and integrity. We are committed to providing fair and equal treatment to those we 

encounter.” 



 

 

3 
 

PERSONNEL 
 

Employee Position Effective 
New Hire 

Tyler Hall Officer Reserve 7/2020 

Cordero Salazar Officer 7/2020 

Resignations/Terminations 

None   

   

Vacancies 

3 Full-time 3 Officers Open continuous 

3 Full-time (Anticipated) Dispatcher Open continuous 

Two dispatcher applicants are undergoing background checks. 

CHIEF OF POLICE 
Chief of Police, Bruce Walls attended the following meetings during the month: 
 
 Town Council Meetings 
 Management Team Meetings 
 Public Safety Coordination Conference Call  
 Fire and Police Communications Meeting 
 Pinal County Law Enforcement Association (PCLEA) Meeting 
 Individual Performance Reviews (Sergeants) 
 Caliente Board Meeting 
 Sergeant Promotion Interviews 
 Police Accreditation Meeting 
 Food Bank Meeting 
 Peoria Police Officer Funeral  
 Anthem Neighborhood Watch Meeting 
 Superior PD Meeting 
 Meeting with Director Community Services 
 Meet and Greet Anthem/Sun City Community Managers 

 
 
 



 

 

4 
 

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE/SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
The Support Services area includes the following: Communications Division, Evidence 
and Property, Crime Scene Investigator, Records Division, Departmental 
Budget/Finances and Public Information-Media. 
 
Support Services Manager, Deanna Husk had the following monthly activities: 
 
 Employee Evaluations 
 Review of polices (on-going) 
 Laserfiche project (on-going) 
 Grant Tracking Process 
 Budget Tracking 
 Chair-Webpage Committee 
 Chair-Youth Experience Program 
 Chair-Training Unit 
 University of Arkansas: Criminal Justice Institute: Foundations of Sexual Assault 

Investigation for the Rural Officer  – completed online 
 University of Arkansas: Criminal Justice Institute: Sexual Assault Investigation for the Rural 

Executive – completed online 
 Dispatcher Interviews 
 Community Food Bank Meetings/Participated in Event at Heritage Park 
 Fire and Police Communications Meeting 
 Pinal County Law Enforcement Association (PCLEA)-Appointed Secretary for 2-year term 

 
Communications: The Dispatch Supervisor had the following monthly activities: 
 
 Completed Superior Fire Department 2nd Quarter billing 
 Completed training Lead Dispatcher Calomino on TEXT-911 
 Completed training all dispatchers on TEXT-911 
 Completed TEXT-911 testing throughout the month 
 Set up testing for applicants. Held oral boards. 
 All completed training for National Center for Missing and Exploited Children (NCMEC) – 

Checklist for Public-Safety Telecommunicators Responding to Calls 
 All completed training on Association of Public-Safety Communications Officials (APCO) ANS 

1.112.1-2014 -  Best Practices for the Use of Social Media in Public Safety 
 
 
 



 

 

5 
 

 
Calls for Service 

Below is a table that depicts the total calls for service handled by FPD Dispatchers during the 
month. The numbers are shown by the incident locations and how the incident was reported. 
 

How Calls Are Received, Totals by How Received 
 Beat A Beat B Beat C TOTAL 
911 Line 34 9 25 68 
Crime Stop Line 0 0 0 0 
Officer Report 166 96 180 442 
In Person 18 2 5 25 
Radio Transmission 1 1 1 3 
State TT/NLETS 0 0 0 0 
Telephone 106 46 86 238 
TOTAL 325 154 297 776 

 
 

Average Response Time to Calls for Service 
 

6 Month Reporting Period: February 2020 to July 2020 
 Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul 
Priority 1 5:03 4:56 6:01 5:59 5:02 5:06 
Priority 2 5:51 6:37 6:38 7:01 7:00 7:03 
Priority 3 16:43 17:17 19:02 23:39 14:41 18:49 
Priority 4 47:18 43:14 7:27 0:12 00:10 00:15 

Definitions: 
Priority 1 These priorities are those in which there is an imminent danger to life or 

major damage/loss to property or an in progress or just occurred major 
felony. 

Priority 2 These priorities are those in which a crime in progress might result in a 
threat of injury to a person, or major loss of property or immediate 
apprehension of a suspect. 

Priority 3 These priorities are those in which there is no threat of personal injury or 
major loss of property. 

Priority 4 These priorities are those of a report nature only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

6 
 

Uniformed Crime Reporting (UCR) 
 

Classification of Offense Offenses 
Reported 

Unfounded 
Complaint 

Actual 
Offense 

Offenses 
Cleared 

Juvenile 
Clearance 

CRIMINAL HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Murder/Non-Neg Manslaughter 0 0 0 0 0 
b. Manslaughter by Negligence 0 0 0 0 0 
      
FORCIBLE RAPE 0 0 0 1 0 
a. Rape by Force 0 0 0 1 0 
b. Attempt Forcible Rape 0 0 0 0 0 
      
ROBBERY 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Firearm 0 0 0 0 0 
b. Knife or Cutting Instrument 0 0 0 0 0 
c. Other Dangerous Weapon 0 0 0 0 0 
d. Hands, Fist, Feet, etc. 0 0 0 0 0 
      
ASSAULT 13 0 13 5 1 
a. Firearm 0 0 0 0 0 
b. Knife or Cutting Instrument 0 0 0 0 0 
c. Other Dangerous Weapon 3 0 3 1 0 
d. Hands, Fist, Feet, etc. 1 0 1 1 1 
e. Other Assaults – Simple 9 0 9 3 0 
      
BURGLARY 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Forcible Entry 0 0 0 0 0 
b. Unlawful Entry/No Force 0 0 0 0 0 
c. Attempt Forcible Entry 0 0 0 0 0 
      
LARCENY – THEFT 3 0 3 0 0 
      
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 0 0 0 0 0 
a. Autos 0 0 0 0 0 
b. Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 
c. Other Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 
GRAND TOTAL 16 0 16 6 1 
Officers Assaulted 0     
Clearance(s) by Adult Arrest 4     
Clearance(s) by Juvenile Arrest 1     
Arson Cases 0     

**All data presented in this report is tentative. 
 
 



 

 

7 
 

Property & Evidence 
During the month, there were 86 envelopes/packages involved in 59 incident cases that were 
submitted for processing by the Property & Evidence Section. Of the total envelopes/packages: 
Total evidence items: 54 
Released Stored Destroyed Out to lab 
1 49 0 4 
Total safekeeping items: 2 
Released Stored Destroyed Out to lab 
0 2 0 0 
Total disposal items: 10 
Released Stored Destroyed Out to lab 
0 10 0 0 
Total found items: 20 
Released Stored Destroyed Out to lab 
0 20 0 0 

 

The items of evidence involved the following crimes: 
  6 drug incidents 

  0 DUIs 
 

Other considerations: 
  The status of the Police Evidence Trust Fund bank account, involving $18,899.70. 

  13 pending items:  
o 6 are for safekeeping/found property 
o 6 are pending RICO forfeiture/evidence 
o 1 is to be returned to owner, if located 

  Due to COVID-19 protocols, four fingerprints were conducted by Evidence Section during 
the month of July for Town of Florence employees. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

8 
 

Operations/Patrol 
Professional Standards 
 
 One complaint received 
 One administrative investigation initiated 
 No “Use of Force” incidents reported 

 
 

Criminal Investigations Unit 
 

Observed Offense Assigned Detective Case Status Notes 
# of new cases assigned this month: 15 

Agency Assist D. Helsdingen Closed 
Sex Offender Packet for Behavioral Health 
Center.  

Death Investigation D. Helsdingen Closed 
42-year-old male fentanyl overdose at Core 
Civic. 

Assault (Prison) D. Helsdingen Closed Victim did not wish to pursue charges. 

Agency Assist D. Helsdingen TOT 

Victim (staff) reported being sexually 
assault at the prison by another staff 
member TOT to DOC CIU. 

Assault (Prison) D. Helsdingen Closed Suspect Has mental Issues. 

Agency Assist D. Helsdingen Closed 
Sex Offender packet Behavioral Health 
Center. 

Death Investigation D. Helsdingen Closed 36-year-old male fentanyl overdose. 
Assault (Prison) D. Helsdingen Closed  Misdemeanor charges filed. 

Sex Offense (PREA) D. Helsdingen Closed 
Victim did not wish to pursue charges also 
reported act did not meet ARS charging 

Sex Offenders D. Helsdingen Closed 
Address verification on three sex offenders 
in Town limits. 

Death Investigation D. Helsdingen Closed 
61-year-old male extensive medical history 
COVID-19 positive. 

Agency Assist D. Helsdingen TOT 
Phoenix PD victim reported being raped in a 
motel in PHX found at Blue Mist assaulted. 

Promote Prison 
Contraband x2 D. Helsdingen Closed 

Felony charges filed on suspects with 
Suboxone, Heroin, fentanyl  

Death Investigation D. Helsdingen Closed 
58-year-old male extensive medical history 
COVID-19 positive. 

Aggravated Assault (Prison) D. Helsdingen Closed Felony charges filed. 
# of cases carried over into this month: 5 

Robbery (BANK) D. Helsdingen OPEN 

US Bank was robbed on 2/29/20. Video 
footage and still photographs of suspect 
obtained evidence at scene collected 
working with FBI. Person of interest 
arrested in California fingerprints of suspect 
given to FBI for comparison. Contacted FBI 
still waiting on comparison. 

Sex Offense x2 D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Victim from previous Horizon case provided 
additional information 2nd victim has come 
forward with an allegation. 



 

 

9 
 

Promote Prison 
Contraband- Narcotic 
Drugs & Prescription Pills D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Inmate found with over 13 grams of Heroin 
and 30 narcotic pills possible fentanyl. 
Felony charges received DPS report. 

Sex Offense (Juvenile) D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Suspect identified, forensic interview 
completed, cell phone downloaded 
completed PCSO has been unable to locate 
suspect in Gilbert. 

Hit & Run Fatality  D. Helsdingen OPEN 

Suspect in custody $200,000 bond Second 
Degree Murder Charges Approved 
investigation on-going. 

# of joint cases worked this month: 2 
Observed Offense Primary/Secondary 

Detective 
Case Status Notes 

Sex Offense (Juvenile) 
L. Gaston/D. 
Helsdingen OPEN 

Several juvenile females disclosed 
inappropriate sexual abuse. Grand Jury 
indictment added 3 more child-related 
offenses. Possible trial date August 2020. 

Sex Assault/Sex Abuse 
L. Gaston/D. 
Helsdingen OPEN 

Reported long time sexual abuse from 
Illinois to AZ ending in Florence. Working 
with LE in Illinois search warrant on 
residence suspect arrested. Suspect 
rearrested on Agency Assist felony warrant 
from Illinois. Suspect currently in custody 
awaiting extradition.   Images of Child 
pornography found on suspect’s computer 
conducting follow-up at the direction of 
PCA trial set for July 2020. Collected Court 
Order handwriting samples from suspect, 
continuing to conduct follow up, trial set for 
September 21st re-indictment schedule for 
June. Completed a second search warrant 
on cell phones. 

Other activity: 
Detective  
D. Helsdingen Grand Jury  
D. Helsdingen Forensic Interview x3 
D. Helsdingen Autopsy x2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

10 
 

BEAT 1 
 

 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat A Supervisor: Sgt. D. Peterson 
There are 6 officers assigned to Beat 1 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 291 
Total number of traffic stops: 78 
Total number of accident reports: 5, 1 on private property 
Total number of citations issued: 4 for 5 violations 
Total number of DUI: 1 
 
Crimes against persons 
Assault: 1 
 
Property crimes 
Criminal damage: 1 
Vehicle theft: 1 
 
 



 

 

11 
 

Monthly Activities 
Total calls for service for the month were 291. Person crimes totaled zero. Property crimes totaled 
two. Officers in Beat 1 conducted Directed Patrols in the areas of previously reported crimes. 
Officers also conducted Field Interviews of persons throughout Beat 1 and inquired if there was any 
knowledge of any crimes being committed. The Directed Patrols and Field Interviews were utilized 
to gather information/suspects and also to provide a presence in the community to help deter 
additional crimes. 
 
In addition to normal patrol, officers also conducted 314 directed patrols of businesses, apartment 
complexes, Florence Gardens and Caliente communities, and the prisons. 
 
Community Involvement and Education 
Area schools continued to be closed due to the Governor’s Executive Order (COVID – 19) and 
Summer Break. Schools have opened for a few students on site with most attending via online 
courses. Officers continued their visits to schools and grounds to prevent and/or detect any crimes.  
 
Special Events 
None 
 
Upcoming Special Events 
None  
 
Significant Calls for Service 
Assault reported on E. 1st Street – A male reported that he was punched in the face, no injuries 
sustained.  This assault was linked with the below described Criminal Damage report on N. Warner 
Street. The victim of this assault had thrown rocks at a motorcycle causing paint damage. The 
motorcycle owner then punched the suspect in his face.  Neither party wanted to press charges for 
this incident. 
 
Criminal Damage reported on N. Warner Street – A male reported that another male had thrown 
rocks at his motorcycle and caused paint damage.  See above assault reported on E. 1st Street. 
 
Vehicle Theft reported on E. Ruggles Street – A male reported that a trailer had been removed 
from his yard without permission or authority to do so.  There are currently no suspects or leads in 
this case. 
 
Theft reported on N. Phoenix Street – A male called to report a theft of a bicycle.  Upon police 
arrival the complainant was unable to be located. 
 
Accident reported on N. Pinal Parkway – Two vehicles were travelling northbound on Pinal 
Parkway, one behind the other (in the same lane). When the lead car attempted to turn into a 
driveway, he was struck from behind by the second vehicle. The lead vehicle then struck a third 
vehicle that was attempting to exit the same driveway. There were no injuries reported. The at-
fault driver was cited. 
 



 

 

12 
 

Accident reported on E. Celaya Street at S. Main Street – A vehicle that was travelling eastbound on 
Highway 287 passed a stop sign at S. Main Street struck a vehicle that was northbound on S. Main 
Street. There were no injuries reported. 
 
Accident reported on E. Duron Street – A male reported that he parked his vehicle outside of his 
home on the roadway (legally parked). When he returned to his vehicle, he noticed a dent on his 
vehicle. The male stated he did not see or hear the accident take place and that the second vehicle 
had apparently left the area. 
 
Accident reported on S. Highway 79 at Florence Heights Drive – A male riding a bicycle on the 
shoulder of highway 79 was struck by a van that was passing him. The van which was also 
southbound struck the bicyclist and continued southbound. The bicyclist was thrown from his 
bicycle and sustained several injuries including a compound fracture to his right forearm. The male 
was removed from the scene by ambulance to a hospital for further treatment. The van and driver 
were located a short time later. The driver was arrested for Driving Under the Influence. 
 
Private Property Accident reported on N. Phoenix Street – A male reported that another vehicle 
had backed into his vehicle a few days prior. The male stated that both drivers exchanged 
information and agreed on a settlement. Now the male has been unable to locate/contact the 
other party. The male was advised that at this point this was a civil matter and referred to court. 
 
Training 
Daily updates on COVID-19, Intelligence Bulletins, Duty to Intercede Training. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

13 
 

BEAT 2 
 

 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat 2 Supervisor: Sgt. D. Campbell 
There are 5 officers assigned to Beat 2 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 291 
Total number of traffic stops: 78 
Total number of accident reports: 5, 1 on private property 
Total number of citations issued: 13 for 16 violations 
Total number of DUI: 0 
 
Crimes against persons 
None 
 
Property crimes 
None 
 
 
 



 

 

14 
 

Monthly Activities 
Citations were issued for speeding, expired registration, vehicles not having mandatory insurance, 
passing a stop sign and driving without a license.  
 
Community Involvement and Education 
During the month of July, FPD continued with directed patrols and keeping the community safe 
during COVID-19.  A total of 101 directed patrols were initiated. 
 
Special Events 
None 
 
Upcoming Special Events 
None 
 
Significant Calls for Service 
Accident: FPD responded to Main Street Park reference a single vehicle accident. During the 
investigation, the driver was conducting reckless maneuvers intentionally and collided with a 
residential fence causing extensive damage. The homeowner was notified, and the driver was cited 
criminally. 
 
Parking Violation: FPD continues with parking enforcement and issued a verbal warning to a vehicle 
parked on the wrong side of the road in the area of 10th and Mulberry. During the month of July, 
officers issued six warnings in Beat 2.  
 
Traffic Stop:  FPD initiated a traffic stop in the area of Main and 12th Street. During the stop, the 
odor of marijuana was coming from the vehicle. The driver did not have a valid medical marijuana 
card. During the search of the vehicle, marijuana and paraphernalia was located. The driver was 
processed and booked into Pinal County Sheriff’s Office (PSCO) Adult Detention Center without 
incident. 
 
Training 
Daily updates on Covid 19, Intelligence Bulletins, Duty to Intercede Training. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

15 
 

 

BEAT 3 

 
Beat Statistics: 
Beat 3 Supervisor: Sgt. S. Morris 
There are 6 officers assigned to Beat 3 
Total number of calls for service (including traffic): 280 
Total number of traffic stops: 88 
Total number of accident reports: 2 
Total number of citations issued: 23 for 28 violations 
Total number of DUI: 0 
 
Crimes against persons 
Assault: 1 
Sexual assault: 2 
Other (Domestic): 1 
 
Property crimes 
Criminal damage: 3 
Theft: 2 
 



 

 

16 
 

 
Monthly Activities 
Threat Liaison Officer (TLO) activity – All Intelligence Bulletins received have been placed into the 
Intelligence File in the Q drive and officers reminded to check it. 
 
For the month of July, the total calls for service was 280, compared to 219 in June. No influx of 
major crime. A total of 199 directed patrols were conducted.  
 
For the month of July, traffic enforcement in Beat 3 consisted of 70 traffic offenses, 12 citations 
with 20 violations. 
 
For the month of July, traffic enforcement in Beat 3 consisted of 88 traffic offenses, with 23 
citations with 28 violations.  
 
The Juvenile Detention Log was completed as required by state law. The Florence Police 
department detained no juveniles for the month of July.  
 
Community Involvement and Education 
The Beat Three officers continue to look for code enforcement violations and enforced 34 parking 
violations. Sgt. Morris’ shift assisted with a Food Bank Drive at Heritage Park on July 31st.  
 
Special Events 
None 
 
Upcoming Special Events 
None 
 
Significant Calls for Service 
Hunt/Attaway – A driver traveling on Hunt Hwy lost control of his car, a 2006 Lexus, which hit the 
canal and rolled onto its roof. The driver was arrested and charged with DUI. 
 
W. Victory Way – An unknown person threw eggs at the victims 2005 Chrysler Sebring. No suspects 
or witnesses. 
 
N. Monticello Dr. – An unknown person threw eggs at the victim’s house and cars. No suspects or 
witnesses.  
 
W. Millerton Way – An unknown person slashed the victims 2008 Dodge pickup truck tires and 
scratched the sides of the truck as well. Approximately $1000 in damage. No suspects or witnesses.  
 
W. Montebello Ct. – An unknown person entered the victims Dodge Ram pickup and removed a 
work stab vest valued at $600. No suspects or witnesses.  
 
W. Millerton Way – An unknown person removed the victims Schwinn mountain bike from her 
garage. Bike valued at $100. No suspects or witnesses. 



 

 

17 
 

 
N. Monticello Dr. – An argument ensued between a male and female couple. The male threw a 
drink at the female, and the female threw her drink at the male. After exiting the vehicle, the male 
struck the female in the face and shoulder. Male was arrested for Assault Domestic Violence. 
 
N. Astoria Dr. – A husband and wife got into a verbal argument. No physical contact. No charges 
filed. 
 
N. Hudson Ct. – An ongoing investigation continues on a sex assault investigation involving an adult 
and underage children.  
 
Training 
Officer uniforms were inspected this month, with no discrepancies noted. Completed weapons and 
vehicle inspections, Intelligence Bulletins reviewed, and Duty to Intercede Training. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

18 
 

K-9 Unit 
How many officers assigned to K-9 Unit: 1 - K-9 Murphy 
Total number of vehicle stops: 30 
Total number of K-9 utilizations: 4 
Total number of vehicle hand searches: 11 
Total amount of narcotic seizures in weight: 4.1 grams 
 

Type of drug: Narcotic Weight: 4.1 grams 
Type of drug: Prescription drugs Weight: 3 Suboxone 
Type of drug: Paraphernalia # of items: 15 individual items 
Type of drug: U.S. Currency Amount $0.00 

 
Monthly Activity: 
Officer Murphy attended K9 detection training every other week with the Pinal County Sheriff’s 
Office K9 Unit Training Unit and conducted in-house training due to the current epidemic. Officer 
Murphy’s service dog Rexo, detected marijuana, cocaine, methamphetamine and heroin without 
incident.  Officer Murphy is certified through the (NCAT) National Canine Audit Tracking Systems 
using K9 Rexo. 
 
During the month of July 2020, Officer Murphy self-initiated (39) cases which included vehicle 
stops, field interviews, call for service and on-view criminal activity. Due to the current Covid-19 
pandemic, certain restrictions limited the total amount of self-initiated cases that were conducted.   
 
Traffic Stop: Officer Murphy conducted a traffic stop at 801 N. Pinal Parkway Avenue. During the 
traffic stop, a male subject was found to be driving with a suspended driver license. The driver 
provided verbal consent to search the vehicle resulting in finding marijuana, methamphetamine 
and paraphernalia which was located on the passenger side of the vehicle. The registered owner of 
the vehicle arrived on scene to take control of his vehicle when a search of his name stated he had 
a valid warrant for his arrest. The suspect refused to identify himself, fled from the scene on foot 
and was ultimately placed under arrest after a short foot pursuit. He was booked into jail for his 
valid warrant and resisting arrest. The driver of the vehicle was cited and released, and charges 
were submitted for the passenger where the narcotics were located. Two vehicles were towed 
away from the scene. 
 
Traffic Stop: Officer Murphy and K-9 Rexo responded to assist another officer during a traffic stop. 
A free air sniff was conducted of the vehicle in which K-9 Rexo alerted on the vehicles front 
passenger seat. A search of the vehicle was conducted with negative findings, but a search of the 
passenger located approximately 2 grams of methamphetamine in between his buttocks.  
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

19 
 

Volunteers 
The Victim Services Unit was not utilized this month. Due to COVID-19, all volunteer activities have 
been suspended until further notice.  

 

Grants 
DUI Task Force and other scheduled statewide patrols cancelled due to COVID. Agency discretion 
for details and localized saturation and enhanced patrols. 
Order for DUI Goggles, peddle cart and other miscellaneous items received. 
The following are statistics reported to GOHS for both special events and sustained (regular) 
activity: 
Total citations for the month: 82 
Total traffic contacts for the month: 438 

 

Type of Citation Total Number of Citations 
Civil traffic 73 
Criminal traffic 6 
DUI 1 
DUI drugs 0 
Other (CT, CR, CV) 2 
 

 

Training 
A Training Unit has been developed at the Florence Police Department.  This Unit will be 
responsible for proficiency, continued, and department-wide training.  

 

Traffic 
Total number of citations issued for the department: 40 for 49 violations 

 

Directed Patrol 
The Police Department conducted 625 directed patrols during the month. Directed patrols are a 
proactive, police-initiated, approach which focuses patrol resources on the places with highest risks 
of serious crime to increase crime prevention. Statistics have proven that an increased pro-active 
patrol in high crime areas has decreased crimes. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

20 
 

ACCOMPLISHMENTS/COMMENDATIONS/KUDOS 
 

 
 

Chief Walls and Officers Assisting with the Food Bank at Heritage Park 

 



 
TOWN OF FLORENCE  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
444 N. Warner Street 

Florence, AZ 85132 
Office:  520-868-7614 

FAX:  520-868-7546 

MEMO 
MEETING DATE:  September 8, 2020 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Christopher A. Salas, Public Works Director/Town Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:   Staff Report 
1 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report –September 8, 2020 
 

 
Engineering Division: 
 

Cox Irrigation Ditch 
• Final design modified (lengthened) from original EPS design spec to meet land user 

inputs 
• NRCS (National Resource Conservation Service) provided GPS survey data 
• Dennis Bagnall provided bid to build berm for V-ditch and access road grading 
• Hunter Ditch Lining to provide bid for concrete V-ditch 
• Town has solicited a total of 5 contractors and received pricing from two contractors 
• Town has sent the lessees a document illustrating the scope of work, limits of 

construction and general contract language.  
• Town continues to communicate property owners to complete this task. Item is with the 

property owners.  
 

SCIDD Diversion Dam/Florence Canal 
• Informational meeting with SCIDD on 6/20/19 
• Town utilities (water/sewer) will need to be relocated on two (2) bridges 
• Town in possession of GCE construction plans for “Reach 2” of Florence Canal 
• Town to get quotes for comparison against GCE quotes to relocate utilities 
• Confirmed Town utilities along the two (2) bridges Butte Ave & SR79B 
• Town to request PCL quote to perform utility relocation work 
• No update 

 
Facilities Maintenance: 
 

Rodeo Grounds  
• Attended site visit with Building Safety, Parks and Fire Department to address Safety 

issues. Temporary safety issues were addressed.  Waiting on long term solutions from 
Jeff Swan. 

• Scope of work from Swann Architects has been received.  
• No update 



2 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report –September 8, 2020 
 

Streets (HURF) Division: 
 

Roads 
• No update 

 
Water Division: 
 

Wells 
• Tie-in Well 2B to distribution system – Design completed and submitted to ADEQ 

o Construction underway – 95% complete. 
• Packer feasibility ongoing on Well 5. Testing done. Evaluating results. 

  
WELL WATER LEVELS (IN FEET) – 2020 – YTD Average = 214’ 
 

2020 Monthly Well Level Summary (by feet) 

Well # Well ID JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL 

Rodeo 
Well ADWR - 55-539984               

1 ADWR - 55-610433 206 204 204 205 205 205 205 

2B ADWR - 55-224592 0 202 202 204 204 204 204 

3B ADWR - 55-215446 220 223 219 219 219 220 219 

4 ADWR - 55-619533 218 228 219 217 217 218 218 

5 ADWR - 55-619534 240 239 238 240 240 241 240 

WELL #1 
POC #1 ADWR - 55-584201 X X X X X X X 

NWWTP 
POC #1 ADWR - 55-584202 207 207 197 207 196 197 207 

SWWTP 
POC #2 ADWR - 55-916170 201 201 192 195 196 194 201 

MONTHLY AVERAGE 177 219 216 212 217 218 217 
 

 
Wastewater Division: 
 

South Wastewater Treatment Plant 
• Process options to replace current SAM units – touring other Town / City sites.  

Gathering data. 
o Town working with contractor on pricing bubble diffusers 

• Town contacting vendors to replace the troubling decanters with a more robust 
technology 

• Staff continuing to work on getting pricing/proposal on diffuser and decanters 



3 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report –September 8, 2020 
 

Capital Improvement Projects: 
 

CIP GG-25 Silver King Balcony Repairs 
• Motley Design Group –egress designs - Complete 

o Electric 
o Fire suppression 
o Door hardware 

• 4.25.2019 – Advertised Formal Bid 
• Bids greatly exceed Town budget – revisions to construction documents are occurring 
• Exterior staircase extension scheduled for HDAC on 1/29/2020 – Approved 
• Design nearing completion 
• Next steps 

o Get pricing from SJ Anderson  
o Get pricing from ACI on components they will agree to build, if any 
o Take contract to Town Council for approval 
o Complete the work by June 30th 2020 

• Construction complete minus the lighting fixtures 
o Lighting fixtures delayed due to production reductions related to COVID 19.  

• No updates 
 

CIP GG-26 Signal Light @ SR79 & Hunt Highway 
• ADOT Traffic study is complete 
• Met with ADOT to discuss project options 
• ADOT is using CMAR Process, Contractor selected, but designer has not been selected 
• District Engineer contacted. New ADOT budget has not been approved. No funding at 

this time. 
 

CIP GG-29 Territory Square Expansion – Phase 1 
• Extend 8” waterline within Main Street @ Town Hall 
• Funds not available until FY 19/20 
• Confirmed on budget 19/20 
• Phase 1 scheduled for FY20/21 as part of the Modus project. Scoping and cost 

estimates underway  
• No update 

 
CIP PSP-18 HVAC @ Police Department 

• Three units replaced after failures in FY16/17, remaining two are newer and are not 
scheduled for replacement. Likely to be part of the energy project.  

 
CIP SU-06 Wastewater Main Extensions & Replacements 

• No new updates 
 

CIP SU-83 SCADA Tie-Ins – Wastewater Controls 
• SOW provided 9/13/18 
• As of 3/4/19 – Under review, searching for alternatives 
• No new update 

 
 

CIP SU-88 SWWTP Expansion Headworks 



4 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report –September 8, 2020 
 

• Plan revisions necessary – working with Hazen & Sawyer 
• Fan test is being scheduled  

o Contract for fan test scheduled for approval on August 3 
o Fan test approved and scheduled 

 
CIP T-12 – Kelvin Highway (aka Butte) Bridge Replacement 

• On-going – Feasibility Study 
• Trying to find funding sources   
• No update 

 
CIP T-14 – Roundabout / Intersection Improvement SR 79B & SR287 

• MAG close out funds 
• Design concept report completed 
• Engineer has been selected by ADOT. Scoping meeting – Completed 
• Notice to Proceed to be issued by ADOT by end of October 
• 60% design is underway   
• No update 

 
CIP T-41 – Pinal Street Drainage (aka Main Street Butte to Ruggles Ditch) 

• Notice to Proceed -T Y Lin 
• Design underway 
• Alternatives being evaluated 
• Draft report submitted 

o Presentation scheduled once in person Council meetings return 
 

CIP T-91, Hunt Highway at Attaway Intersection Improvements (Design stage) 
• 30% plan was submitted on 8/16 
• Project meeting scheduled for 8/28 
• Comments supplied to design engineer 
• 60% plan completed 
• Staff has reviewed 60% plan and providing comments on 10/23 
• Submittal is scheduled for January 31st.  
• 90% submitted and minor comments sent back to engineer 

 
CIP WU-23 Well 2B Outfitting 

• Tie-in Well 2B to distribution system 
• New sand filter at Well 2B 
• Construction underway – 95% complete 

 
CIP WU-25 Water Line Relocation 

• Relocate 12” water line outside of INS property 
• Funds not available until FY 22/23 

 
 

CIP WU-74 Transmission Line & Pressure Zones 
• Report on feasibility of project and pump curves 
• Project still being scoped 



5 | P a g e  
Public Works Staff Report –September 8, 2020 
 

• Alternatives being evaluated   
• No update 

 
CIP WU-85 Hydrant Replacement 

• Replace aging fire hydrants 
• Cooperative utilized for parts Fortiline & Ferguson 
• Work being completed in-house 
• Project is on-going – Several hydrants in Caliente replaced  

 
CIP WU-86 8” Line Extension (410 feet) Willow to High School 

• 7/1/2018 – Project ON HOLD until 3rd quarter FY 18/19 
• 10/7/19 No update 
• Being completed as part of our current CDBG project 

o Design complete 
o Construction tentatively scheduled for first quarter of 2021 

 
CIP WU-88 – Well Preservation - Well #5 Rebuild 

o USGS Tracer method completed – report submitted 
o Gamma Ray test completed – awaiting formal report 
o Packer feasibility testing underway – testing complete 
o Evaluating results 

 
CIP WU-91 Water Barn 

• In design with Swan Architects – civil engineer, landscape and soils reports – review 
complete. Comments sent back to Swan Architects. 


	September 8, 2020 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

	6. PRESENTATIONS
	6a. J2 Design Presentation Poston Butte
	6b. Lt. Tryon Retirement

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Resolution No. 1748-20-DEMA App Agent
	7b. PA and HPTP Agreement
	7c. Warrant Register

	8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	8a. Florence Returning Stronger Grant Program
	8b. Ordinance No. 686-20 SLID

	9. NEW BUSINESS
	9a. Andrea L Hild Resignation
	9b. Cactus Asphalt Chip Seal
	9c. Covid-19 Testing
	9d. Lease vehicles from Enterprise Fleet Mgmt

	10. MANAGER'S REPORT
	10. Manager's Report

	11. DEPARTMENT REPORTS
	11a. Community Development  Report
	11b. Community Services Report
	11c. Courts Report
	11d Finance Report
	11e. Fire Report
	11f. Police Report
	11g. Public Works Report


	Start Date: 
	End Date: 
	Aothorizing Official's Name: 
	Applicant: Town of Florence
	Governing Body's Name: Town Council
	day: 
	Month: 
	Year: 
	Title: 
	Date: 
	Applicant Agent: Brent Billingsley
	TitleOfficial Position: Town Manager
	Full Mailing Address: PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132
	Email address: Brent.Billingsley@FlorenceAZ.gov
	Daytime Telephone Number: 520-866-7558
	Cell: 
	Check Box PA program: Yes
	Check Box HMA Program: Off
	Check Box Until Further Notice: Yes
	Check Box For the Period: Off
	Check Box1: Off
	Disaster #: 
	Check Box2: Off


